
Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM
Council Chambers
One DesCombes Drive
Broomfield, CO 80020

View Correspondence
View Presentations

1. Meeting Commencement

1A. Pledge of Allegiance

1B. Review and Approval of Agenda

2. Petitions and Communications

3. Councilmember Reports

4. Public Comment

5. Reports

5A. Semi-Annual Performance and Internal Audit Update

5B. 4th of July Update

6. Consent Items

6A. Minutes for Approval

6B. Proposed Resolution Approving a Construction Agreement for the 2025 ADA Curb Ramp
Program Project

— Resolution No. 2025-39 approving the Construction Agreement by and between the City and
County of Broomfield and Denver Dirt Works, Inc. for the 2025 ADA Curb Ramp Program Project

6C. Proposed Resolutions for DOLA Energy and Mineral Impact Grant Funds for Harvest Hill
Affordable Housing Development

— Resolution 2025-25 accepting $2M in grant funding from the Colorado Department of Local
Affairs Energy & Mineral Impact Assistance Program for the Harvest Hill Development and
allocating the $2M to Harvest Hill Owner, LLC

— Resolution 2025-27 approving a forgivable loan agreement with Harvest Hill Owner, LLC for
the Harvest Hill project for grant funds from the Energy & Mineral Impact Assistance Program

6D. Proposed Resolutions for 112th and Uptown Widening Construction Agreements

— Resolution No. 2025-46 approving a construction agreement with American West
Construction, LLC.

— Resolution No. 2025-47 approving an agreement with Felsburg Holt & Ullevig (FHU) for
construction management services

— Resolution No. 2025-48 approving an amendment to the agreement with Felsburg Holt &
Ullevig (FHU) for construction administration services

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


6E. Proposed Resolutions for Norman Smith Service Center Construction and Design Agreement
Amendments

— Resolution No. 2025-50 approving the First Amendment to Construction Agreement with AD
Miller Services, Inc.

— Resolution No. 2025-18 approving the Second Amendment to the Consulting Agreement
with Short Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. (SEH) for additional design services related to the Norman
Smith Service Center Remodel.

6F. Proposed Resolution Approving a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License for Northwest
Cascade Inc. DBA Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc

— Resolution 2025-43 approving a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License for Northwest
Cascade Inc. DBA Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc

6G. Board of Equalization - Proposed Resolution for the Adoption of Hearing Officer
Recommendations for Abatement Petitions

— Resolution No. 2025-38 approving hearing officer recommendations on abatement requests

6H. Proposed Resolution Almost Home Third Amendment for 2025 Services

— Resolution No. 2025-51 approving a Third Amendment to the Agreement for Severe Weather
Activation Program Services with Almost Home, Inc.

7. Action Items

7A. Ordinance for the Business Improvement District Formation for Broomfield Town Square - First
Reading

— Ordinance No. 2263

7B. Proposed Resolution for 2025 Waterline Replacement Construction Contract Award

— Resolution No. 2025-05 approving the Construction Agreement with Diamond Contracting
Corp. for the 2025 Waterline Replacement Project

8. Mayor and Councilmember Requests for Future Action

8A. Mayor Castriotta's Request for Future Action to permit marijuana retail shops to sell non-
marijuana food and drinks to a cap of no more than 20% of overall revenue, which would be in line
with the recently changed state law (SB 24-76)

9. Adjournment

The City and County of Broomfield operates without regard to race, color, national origin, ethnicity, citizenship,
immigration status, gender, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, source
of income, military status, or disability in all programs and activities. 
Individuals with disabilities requiring accommodation or persons needing a language interpreter must submit such
a request to the City Clerk no later than noon on Thursday prior to the scheduled Council meeting to allow adequate
time to make arrangements.  Please call 303.438.6332 or TDD 303.465.5411 or write cityclerk@broomfield.org to
make your request.
During the meeting, individuals can click the “CC” button on Live Council meeting video feeds to view closed
captioning. Auxiliary hearing aid equipment can be requested on the night of the meeting with our AV team located
at the back of the Council Chambers.

mailto:cityclerk@broomfield.org


Date Posted: February 19, 2025



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

A. Semi-Annual Performance and Internal Audit Update

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Reports Item: 5A.

Presented By

Bernie Block, Performance and Internal Audit Director

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence

View Presentation

The Performance and Internal Audit (PIA) Department seeks questions / comments from City Council regarding the
activities described in the accompanying City Council memo, which provides an overview of PIA activities since the
last City Council update in August 2024.  These activities generally include a combination of performance audits,
special projects/reviews, business process improvement projects, consultation, audit follow-ups, professional
development, and other assignments. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Semi-Annual Performance and Internal Audit Update Council Memo.pdf
Attachment 1 - 2025 Project Plan & Attachment 2 - PIA Status Update.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66d9e404821ecb0063275bdb%2FSemi-Annual%20Performance%20and%20Internal%20Audit%20Update%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=e5174332-ecf9-4453-abbf-f211b057185b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66d9e404821ecb0063275bdb%2FSemi-Annual%20Performance%20and%20Internal%20Audit%20Update%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=e5174332-ecf9-4453-abbf-f211b057185b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66d9e404821ecb0063275bdb%2FSemi-Annual%20Performance%20and%20Internal%20Audit%20Update%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=e5174332-ecf9-4453-abbf-f211b057185b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66d9e404821ecb0063275bdb%2FAttachment%201%20-%202025%20Project%20Plan%20%26%20Attachment%202%20-%20PIA%20Status%20Update.pdf?alt=media&token=fca09e55-0776-4ef2-86a7-a9adc581a5ce
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66d9e404821ecb0063275bdb%2FAttachment%201%20-%202025%20Project%20Plan%20%26%20Attachment%202%20-%20PIA%20Status%20Update.pdf?alt=media&token=fca09e55-0776-4ef2-86a7-a9adc581a5ce
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66d9e404821ecb0063275bdb%2FAttachment%201%20-%202025%20Project%20Plan%20%26%20Attachment%202%20-%20PIA%20Status%20Update.pdf?alt=media&token=fca09e55-0776-4ef2-86a7-a9adc581a5ce


 Memo for the Semi-Annual Performance and Internal Audit Update 
 Prepared By:  Bernie Block 

 Summary 
 View Correspondence 
 View Presentation 

 The  Performance  and  Internal  Audit  (PIA)  Department  seeks  questions  /  comments  from  City 
 Council  regarding  the  activities  described  below.  City  Council  previously  requested  semi-annual 
 updates  on  PIA  activities.  In  December  2024,  an  annual  organizational  risk  assessment  was 
 completed,  then  based  in  part  on  the  assessment,  the  potential  future  audit  projects  list  was 
 updated  and  priority  ranked.  The  resulting  2025  Annual  Project  Plan  (  Attachment  1  ),  which 
 reflects  the  scope  and  objectives  of  projects,  has  been  updated  based  on  new  information  and  the 
 changing  needs  of  the  organization.  Since  the  last  City  Council  update  in  August  2024,  work  has  been 
 conducted on the activities described below. 

 Performance  Audits  provide  assurance  or  conclusions  based  on  an  evaluation  of  sufficient, 
 appropriate  evidence  against  stated  criteria,  such  as  specific  requirements,  measures,  or  defined 
 business  practices.  These  audits  are  performed  in  accordance  with  Generally  Accepted  Government 
 Auditing  Standards  (GAGAS)  and  generally  focus  on  program  effectiveness  and  results,  internal 
 controls,  compliance,  and  prospective  analysis.  The  PIA  Status  Updates  Listing  (  Attachment  2  ) 
 provides  a  summary  of  all  performance  audit  findings,  recommendations,  and  the  status  for  issued 
 audits  with  open  and  recently  implemented  items.  Performance  Audits  completed  or  in  progress 
 since  the  last  update  include  the  2024  Revenue  Payment  Processing  (issued  September  2024),  the 
 Fleet Maintenance (issued December 2024), and Overtime (in-progress). 

 Special  Projects/Reviews  are  unscheduled,  narrowly  focused  reviews  on  a  specific  topic  requested 
 by  the  City  and  County  Manager’s  Office.  Due  to  the  limited,  narrow  focus  of  these  activities,  the 
 projects  are  not  conducted  in  accordance  with  GAGAS.  No  Special  Reviews  have  been  conducted 
 since the last update. 

 Business  Process  Improvement  (BPI)  projects  focus  on  operational  efficiencies  by  working  directly 
 with  process  owners  to  eliminate  waste  and  improve  workflows  throughout  the  City  and  County  of 
 Broomfield  (CCOB).  The  structure  of  BPI  projects  vary  depending  on  the  goals  and  objectives  of  each 
 project.  No BPI projects have been conducted since the last update. 

 Consultation  is  provided  to  management  and  staff  on  various  internal  control  and  process 
 improvement  related  topics.  This  includes  participation  in  meetings  related  to  the  forthcoming 
 Enterprise  Resource  Planning  (ERP)  procurement/implementation,  grant  administration,  and  external 
 audit.  Most other consulting activities are informal and do not involve an issued report. 

 Professional  Development  activities  include  assisting  the  Development,  Diversity,  Equity,  and 
 Inclusion  Department  with  the  development  and  delivery  of  process  improvement  and  change 
 management  training  materials  for  the  CCOB  Innovation  Ecosystem  program.  Innovator  training 
 sessions were delivered in August, September, and November of 2024. 

 Other  activities  include:  participation  on  the  Strategic  Planning  Committee,  audit  follow-ups,  and 
 maintenance of the CCOB Employee Fraud Hotline. 

 Financial Considerations 
 N/A 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


 Memo for the Semi-Annual Performance and Internal Audit Update 
 Prepared By:  Bernie Block 

 Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 
 The last PIA update was provided on August 27, 2024. 

 Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 
 N/A 

 Proposed Actions / Recommendations 
 The  PIA  Department  seeks  questions  /  comments  from  City  Council  regarding  the  activities  described 
 above. 

 Alternatives 
 N/A 



1

Attachment 1 - Performance & Internal Audit (PIA) 2025 Project Plan 
Project

Description
Dept/
Div Scope / Objectives Status

Performance
Audits

Non-Audit Svcs
Special Reviews

Business Process
Improvement

Other

Performance Audits provide assurance or conclusions based on an evaluation of sufficient, appropriate evidence
against stated criteria, such as specific requirements, measures, or defined business practices. Performed in
accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS) and generally focus on program
effectiveness/results, internal controls, compliance, and prospective analysis.

Narrowly focused projects requested by CMO.  Reviews are not conducted in accordance with GAGAS.

Business Process Improvement (BPI) projects focus on operational efficiencies by working directly with process
owners to eliminate waste and improve workflows.  This also involves working with staff to more effectively use
electronic data in order to reduce processing times and improve the accuracy of reporting.

Other continuous process improvement & performance activities.

Overtime

The audit scope will cover overtime (OT) incurred during the period 2022 through audit start date.  The
audit objectives will be to:  1) confirm compliance with state and federal overtime guidelines, 2)
identify overtime trends and the drivers of overtime, 3) evaluate employee staffing in relation to OT,
and 4) evaluate the effectiveness of practices used to manage overtime.

Fieldwork
In-Progress

 Cybersecurity
Controls

Assessment and
PenTesting

IT The scope/objectives of the audit are to evaluate the CCOB IT Department operational practices in
relation to industry best-practices.  This will include, but is not limited to, vulnerability scans,
penetration testing, and an evaluation of IT processes/procedures and internal controls related to the
CCOB network infrastructure and data governance.  PIA will oversee the services of an external
consultant that will provide cybersecurity expertise.

Planning
In-Progress

 CCOB Contracting CCAO,
CIP,

Finance/
Procrmt

The audit scope covers all CCOB contracting (i.e. agreements) activity.  The objectives are to: 1)
evaluate the sufficiency of organizational guidance (e.g. instructions, process flows, checklists, etc.)
related to the contracting process, 2) determine if processes are standardized, 3) evaluate signature
authroity structure and delegations, and 4) determine if executed agreements are archived in
accordance with organizational guidance.

Not Started

 Grants Compliance Finance/
Grants
Admin

The audit scope covers all CCOB contracting (i.e. agreements) activity.  The objectives are to: 1)
evaluate the sufficiency of organizational guidance (e.g. instructions, process flows, checklists, etc.)
related to the contracting process, 2) determine if processes are standardized, 3) evaluate signature
authroity structure and delegations, and 4) determine if executed agreements are being archived in a
consistent manner.   

Not Started

Audit Follow-Ups Follow-up on the implementation status of past audit recommendations and assist departments where
possible. On-Going

Other Audit
Related Tasks

Annual Risk Assessment (exec mgmt feedback and research governmental audit topics).  Maintain
Potential Audits Projects Listing and develop Annual Project Plan with input from the CMO/CAO.  Council
Meeting memo prep & attendance for Semi-Annual PIA Updates.  CCOB Fraud Hotline and maintenance
of PIA Policies/Procedures.

On-Going

TBD TBD Placeholder for project requests.

 Monitoring of
Developer,

Incentive, &
Subdivision

Improvement
Agrmts.

The audit scope will cover the monitoring of deliverables related to developer incentive and subdivision
improvement agreements.  The audit objectives are to: 1) determine if a comprehensive process exists
for vetting agreements, 2) ensure responsibilities for monitoring  financial and programmatic
deliverables are appropriately assigned, 3) ensure there are sufficient processes in place to reassign
responsibilities wen employee turnover occrus, and 4) determine if a sufficient close-out and archiving
process exists for agreements that have been fulfilled.

Not Started

PW Projects Per PW Director, PIA assistance may be useful with establishing Stormwater Division, Asset Management
Planning, and other process improvement efforts could be possible.  Discussions with PW Divisional
Superintendents to occur in January 2025.  This is a placeholder until the scope/objectives of any efforts
are determined.

Not Started

20-Day
Environmental &
Wildlife Letter

Process

The project scope will cover all aspects of the 20-day environmental and wildlife letter process, which is
required for most construction permits. The objective is to enhance related information and to
streamline/standarize operations related to this process. This project will involve representatives from
Community Development (Building, CIP, Engineering, and Planning), Open Space & Trails, and Public
Works.

Not Started

Innovation
Ecosystem

 All Professional Development/Performance Excellence - Assisting the DEOD with the development and
delivery of process improvement and change management training materials for the CCOB Innovation
Ecosystem (IE) program.

On-Going

Strategic Planning Paticipation on the Strategic Planning Committee. In-Progress
ERP (COA/Change

Mgmt)
Serve as a subject matter expert on the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) project. In-Progress

Vulnerability
Reporting

Develop and maintain high-level management reporting for vulnerability threats. On-Going

Consultation Management consultation on topics such as organizational processes, internal controls, and external
audit. On-Going

All

Various

N/A

N/A
All

All

 ComDev/
Economic
Vitality/
Finance

TBD

ComDev/
OST/ PW

IT



1

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Note - This is a summarized version of the audit findings and recommendations.  Please refer to the detailed audit report if the context of certain topics are not be readily apparent.

CCOB Risk
Mgmt

Process
3/31/2013

4 a. CIRSA application is not fully reconciled on
an annual basis to the CCOB Fixed Asset
Listing
b. Replacement costs on CIRSA application
are not substantiated

a. Conduct a more comprehensive annual reconciliation of
CIRSA application asset data

b. Develop methodology that supports the reasonableness
of replacement cost values on CIRSA application

Medium

CCOB Risk
Mgmt

Process
3/31/2013

8 Notification forms (e.g. waivers, consents,, etc.)
are not tracked and the Police Department
shooting range does not use a notification form.

Track notification forms in use to ensure current and
periodically review.  The Police Department should have a
notification form signed by users from other agencies.

Low

Capital
Improvement

Program
(CIP)

8/21/2013

1 Organizational guidelines related to capital
asset tracking and reporting need to be
developed.

Finance and Public Works Departments should work
together to enhance the organizational policies and
procedures governing capital asset inventory records.

Medium

Capital
Improvement

Program
(CIP)

8/21/2013

2 Medium

Capital
Improvement

Program
(CIP)

8/21/2013

3 Medium

CCAO /
R&S

All Depts.

Finance,
PW

All Depts.

All Depts.

Reconciling
CCOB Fixed

Assets Listing to
CIRSA Application

12/2028
12/2026
12/2025
12/2022
12/2020
12/2019
12/2018
6/2014

Proper Risk
Notification

CIP Policies /
Procedures

Related to Capital
Asset Data

12/2028
12/2026
12/2025
12/2022
6/2022

12/2020
6/2019

12/2018
6/2014

Use of Technology
in the Capital
Planning and

Asset
Management

Process

The current CIP planning and operating budget
process, as well as the subsequent management of
assets for operational and financial reporting
purposes, is a convoluted process involving various
forms and systems that are used to track and report
on capital assets.  The information is often
duplicative amongst the various forms and systems
and information that resides in several locations
must be periodically reconciled.  This is a
time-consuming and error prone process.  In other
cases, the assets are simply not effectively tracked
and managed.

CCOB management should consider implementing an integrated
capital asset management system that can be used consistently
by the various functions throughout the organization for tasks
such as tracking asset additions and deletions, financial reporting
(i.e. asset balances, depreciation, accumulated depreciation,
etc.), budget planning (CIP and operational), asset maintenance
scheduling and tracking, and asset inventories.  At a minimum,
the Finance, Public Works, and Information Technology
Departments should be included in this exercise.

12/2028
12/2026
12/2025
12/2022
6/2022

12/2020
6/2019

12/2018
6/2014

Future Business
Process

Improvement
Project (BPI)

There was insufficient time (and it was beyond the
audit scope) to thoroughly identify, discuss and
implement strategies for improving the overall CIP
process.  More time should be dedicated by
management to improve the efficiencies and
effectiveness of the CIP process.

Management should consider conducting a BPI project focused
on the CIP process.  The BPI project would involve a
cross-functional group of stakeholders who would work together
during a concentrated period of time to identify and implement
opportunities for improving the CIP process.

12/2028

Major CCOB assets have been reconciled to the CIRSA
application and adjustments made accordingly.  However, a
sustainable, repeatable process that includes all CCOB assets
is still being developed.  While Finance maintains an asset
listing for financial reporting purposes, it does not reflect all
organizational assets, estimated replacement costs, or a
sufficient projection of future capital needs.  An asset
management system would help ensure all relevant factors
are considered.  Management is aware of this issue and plans
to fully address it when the asset management system is
implemented (see recommendation #7 in Capital Improvement
Program Audit issued 8/21/2013 for additional details).

A CCAO Attorney will be assisting the Risk & Safety Manager
with the collection and review of waivers / consent forms
currently in use.  A Google Drive folder has been created
where these documents will be stored.  A revision date will
also be added to the documents so that future reviews can be
scheduled.

A cross-functional group of CCOB employees will be evaluating
asset tracking and CIP administration processes (see
Recommendation 3 below for additional details).  The content
from the project will be used to help identify the required CIP
policies and procedures, which will then be documented and
communicated throughout the CCOB.  This will be done in
conjunction with the Asset Management System project (see
Recommendation 2 below for additional details).

Management agrees that an Asset Management System would
be beneficial to the CCOB.  A cross-functional project
assessing asset management needs will take place in
conjunction with the upcoming ERP replacement project.  A
comprehensive assessment of organizational asset
management needs will take place prior to procuring the
system (see Recommendation 3 below for additional details).

When the organization is prepared to move forward on Asset
Management System project an evaluation involving
representation from various departments throughout the
CCOB will be conducted.

6/2025,

12/26, 12/25,
12/22, 6/22,
12/20, 6/19,
12/18, 6/14

12/2024,
6/2024, 10/2023,
4/2023, 9/2022,

12/2021, 4/2021,
1/2021, 6/2020,
9/2018, 6/2018,

1/2017
Original TBD



2

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Capital

Improvement
Program

(CIP)
8/21/2013

7 Low

Grants Billing
and Cash
Receipts

03/15/2016

1 Medium

Grants Billing
and Cash
Receipts

03/15/2016

2 Medium

Grants Billing
and Cash
Receipts

03/15/2016

4 Medium

Finance

Finance -
Acctg &
Budget

Finance -
Acctg &
Budget

Finance -
Acctg &
Budget

Report of Capital
Facilities

A standard report that communicates the existence
and condition of existing capital assets does not
exist.  Currently, the information needed to prepare a
detailed capital asset report is not readily available
because the information is either maintained in
different systems, or it is not currently tracked.

The Finance Department, cooperating with other Departments
that maintain asset information, should prepare a comprehensive
Report on Capital Facilities at least every one to three years.
Note – this recommendation is partially dependent on the first two
recommendations since consistent capital asset data from
reliable identified sources is a prerequisite.

12/2028

Grant Billing and
FINS

Reconciliation
Process

CCOB policies and procedures related to grant
financial administration are limited, and grants are
administered in a decentralized manner by the
departmental administrators with varying accounting
backgrounds. As a result, inconsistent grant
accounting practices exist. There are also several
examples of expense tracking methods (generally
Excel spreadsheets) within the organization that are
used for grant financial reporting purposes, opposed
to using the official accounting records from FINS.

The Finance Department should:
  a. Follow-through with its plans to address the FINS
shortcomings (i.e. 1) timeliness and comprehensiveness of grant
payroll and 2) timeliness of PCard data), which are a factor
causing departments to maintain supplemental, inefficient, and
sometimes inaccurate accounting records.

 b. Develop a standard operating procedure (SOP) that requires
cost-reimbursable grant billings to be based on a FINS financial
report. Providing examples of how typical billings should be
prepared will help ensure consistency and departmental
compliance.

 c. Develop an SOP that requires departmental grant
administrators to evaluate both the programmatic and financial
position of the grant at least two months prior to grant termination.

 d. Develop an SOP requiring departmental grant administrators
to document a final FINS reconciliation within 60 days of the grant
termination. For most fully-expended, cost reimbursable grants
this should include: 1) award amount equals revenue; 2) revenue
equals cash receipts; 3) expenses equal revenue (adjusted for
cost-sharing requirements); and 4) the fulfillment of cost-sharing
requirements.

a. Payroll ~
12/2027

PCard - TBD

10/24, 6/24,
12/22, 5/22,
3/21, 6/20,
4/19, 11/18,
8/18, 12/17,

6/17

b, c, & d.
Implemented

Accounts
Receivable

The majority of CCOB departments are only booking
grant revenue when payments are received,
opposed to accruing revenue and establishing an
accounts receivable balance.

The Finance Department should establish an SOP that requires
all departments to recognize grant revenue, and to establish an
accounts receivable balance, whenever there is a billing to an
external grantor. All grant billings should be routed through the
Finance Department so that the billings can be reviewed and
accounts receivable balances can be established.

Implemented

Cost Sharing All grant project expenses are charged to the same
account and grant code, regardless of whether the
expense is reimbursable grant item, designated cost
share, or simply extra project related expenses.

a. Finance should establish an SOP for recording grant sharing
expenses that will allow cost reimbursable expenses to be

distinguished from cost share expenses within FINS.

 b. Departments should first charge expenses to the cost
reimbursable grant code, and then charge the remaining project
expenses to a distinguishable cost share grant code (assuming

there are no grant restrictions to the contrary).

Implemented
6/24, 12/22,
5/22, 3/21,
6/20, 4/19,
11/18, 8/18,

12/17

12/26, 12/25,
12/22, 6/22,
12/20, 6/19,
12/18, 6/14

An asset management system (see recommendation #2 above)
would greatly facilitate the preparation of a comprehensive
report on capital facilities.  Thus, the report will be prepared
after a system has been implemented and sufficiently
populated.

The CCOB Grants Policy was issued in November 2024. While
the policy has addressed several of these audit
recommendations, there are still a few open items.

Item a1 (Payroll) - The Human Rsources Information System
(HRIS) component of the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
system replacement project should provide opportunities to
improve the timeliness of grant payroll reporting. Item a2
(PCards) - The timely positing of PCard data remains a
challenge. Finance is currently collecting/analyzing PCard
data and will be proposing changes to PCard practices to CMO
that should help overcome these challenges. This is necessary
because it will likely involve the revoking Pcards from
PCardholders who repeatedly violate guidelines and cause
delays.  Items a1 and a2 will remain open until the issues have
been addressed.

b, c, and d. These topics have been addressed in the new
CCOB Grant Policy.

This topic has been addressed in the new CCOB Grant Policy.

Finance has changed how it budgets for grant revenue and
related cost-share expenses so that both are now part of the
approved budget.  Grant expenses and cost share expenses
are charged to the same project code and a percentage of the
total expenses are to be reported to the grantor for
reimbursement (e.g. 75% grant expense and 25% cost share
expense).  Finance will be working with the departments to
ensure the grant expenses are accurately reported.



3

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Police Dept
Overtime
5/23/2016

1 Medium

Tax
Collection,

Recording, &
Allocation

Procedures
4/9/2018

4 Low a, b & c
8/2025
9/2024
6/2024
9/2023
3/2023
8/2022
3/2022

10/2021
1/2020
6/2019

12/2018

NWPSIS
03/18/2019

6 Low

Procurement
10/17/2019

3 Medium

Procurement
10/17/2019

4 Medium

Police

Finance

Time Reporting The PD has not established time based performance
standards for routine daily tasks.

The PD should develop a listing of all data elements needed to
effectively track hours associated with standard time, regular
overtime (OT) and Extra Duty Assignment (EDA) OT. Where
practical, performance standards should also be developed and
associated with routine, standard processes.   The PD should
also attempt to incorporate this enhanced staffing/timekeeping
data into the budgeting process.

6/2028
6/2018
3/2018
5/2017

Incentive,
Developer, and

Service
Expansion Fee

Agreements

There are opportunities to more effectively
administer incentive, developer, and Service
Expansion Fee agreements.

a. Establish a standard electronic filing structure with agreed
upon naming conventions and attempt to eliminate duplicate
documentation.

b. Document standard operating procedures for administration
tasks that apply to all agreements and supplement with more
specific instructions for tasks that are unique to each agreement.
A shared Google calendar should also be considered so that
administration activities are apparent to the City Manager’s
Office, Economic Development, Finance, Community
Development and other departments that have a role in
administration activities.

c. Continue to enhance the shared spreadsheet to include most
of the information that is needed for administration and research
purposes.

Project Cost Current project cost reporting does not provide a
comprehensive overview of total project costs.

IT projects should remain on the Information Technology CIP
Status Report until all implementation issues have been resolved
and a final financial summary has been provided. All costs related
to a systems implementation should be tracked with a designated
project code.

12/2027
3/2019

Reviews of
Agreements,
Bonds and

Certificates of
Insurance

Procurement Manual does not explicitly address the
following:  a) Risk Administrators involvement in the
procurement process, b) who and how bond and
insurance sureties should be rated and verified, c)
guidance does not explicitly require COI prior to the
start of work, d) standard procedure needed to
ensure updated bonds and COI are received when
change orders or amended agreement with a
monetary impact are processed, and e) criteria for
when bonds are required and what bonds are
necessary.

The Procurement Manual guidelines should be updated to
address:  a) when it is necessary to involve the Risk Administrator
in the insurance and bonding review, b) how bonding sureties are
to be verified and who is responsible, c) COI is required prior to
the performance of any work, d) procedure to ensure updated
bonds and COI are received when change orders or amended
agreements with a monetary impact are processed, and e) criteria
for when bonds are required and the type of bonds needed.

3/2025
9/2024
6/2024

10/2023
6/2023
9/2022
7/2021

10/2020

Cash Equivalents Cash equivalents, such as gift cards or movie ticket
vouchers, are susceptible to fraud and
misappropriation. The current CCOB policy does not
require an accounting of who received these gifts if
taxes are not involved.

Finance Department should consider a reporting process for all
cash equivalents, such as gift cards and gift certificates,
regardless of the monetary value.

Resolution of this issue is dependent on an enhancement or
replacement of the Human Resources Information System,
which is scheduled to take place during the new ERP
implementation process.

Recruitment for a new Financial Analyst position is currently
in progress.  Once on board, a business process improvement
(BPI) project will take place with representatives from the
following departments: City/County Attorney's Office,
Community Development, Economic Vitality, and Finance. The
CCOB Economist and PIA will also participate in the effort.
The project is tentatively scheduled for late Q1/early Q2. The
implementation of new process may also require a few
months.

A more standardized process for project reporting that
encompasses all cost elements (e.g. payroll) still needs to be
developed.  Until the Human Resources Information System
(HRIS) upgrade or a replacement system offers an efficient
and effective method for allocating personnel-related costs,
this item will remain open.  The HRIS is a component of the
current ERP project.
The City & County Attorney's Office is developing a list of
topics/situations when the Risk and Safety Manager should be
involved.  This listing will then be shared with the Finance
Department so this information can be included in the
relevant policy documents, such as the Procurement Manual,
which is currently being updated.

Finance, in consultation with the CMO, has decided to no
longer permit the use of cash equivalents.  Thus, a reporting
process will no longer be required.

Comm Dev

Economic
Dev

Finance/
Acctg

All

CCAO &
Finance/

Purchasing

Implemented
6/2025, 9/24,
6/24, 10/23,
3/23, 8/22,
5/22, 7/21,
1/20, 12/19



4

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Procurement
10/17/2019

07-01 Medium

Low

Low 12/2025
10/2023
3/2023
9/2022
3/2022
3/2021
6/2020

PD Medium

Low

All Depts.

Finance

Finance,
PRSS

Court
Services

Travel, Training
and Meals

Supporting documentation was sufficient in the
majority of the transactions reviewed, but this was
only after the Finance Department had to follow up
with the employees to provide the required
information in may cases. This demonstrates
insufficient understanding of the documentation
requirements by many employees and the need for
additional training.

To ensure all requirements are being satisfied:  a) the Finance
Department should continue to be involved in the review and
approval of travel, training, and meals, b) a conference/training
agenda should be provided with the Travel, Training, and
Incidental Expense Report Form, and c) the travel guidelines
should be updated to clarify that local travel (i.e. within a 50 mile
radius) does not qualify for a meal reimbursement unless
approved by the CMO.

Cash Receipts
03/06/2020

Cash Receipts/
Cash Handling

Policy and
Deposit Package

Preparation

Closed
6/2025, 9/24,
6/24, 10/23,
3/23, 8/22,
3/21, 12/20

Cash Receipts
03/06/2020

Memorial Escrow
Account

Segregation of
Duties

2/2025,
9/24, 6/24,

10/23, 3/23,
8/22, 5/22,
7/21, 1/20,

12/19

An updated Travel and Training Policy is currently in the
review/approval process and should soon be issued.

All PCard transactions involving travel training and food items
are audited 100%.

4a A current Cash Receipts/Cash Handling Policy
document could not be located in the Policies and
Procedures Accounting section of the BEACH, which
could result in varying practices throughout the
CCOB and lead to confusion. Also, there are
currently inconsistencies in how business units
prepare deposit packages and pass supporting
documents along to Finance depending on the
personnel involved in the process.

The CCOB Cash Receipts/Cash Handling Guidelines should be
adequately documented and accessible to employees via the
BEACH (CCOB intranet). These guidelines should address how
supporting records for deposits and journal entries should be
consistently prepared and submitted.

Note - this recommendation has been carried forward to the
2024 Revenue Payment Processing Audit (item #4).

10b Some of these unused balances in the CCOB
Memorial Escrow account have been outstanding for
several years. Tracking these outstanding balances
also requires additional effort. There have been
minimal changes to how the program is
administered since its inception.

PW and Finance should consider changing how the Memorial
Escrow account is administered going forward. For example,
rather than establishing an escrow balance, an agreement to
provide specific services for an agreed upon fee could be
established. This would remove the requirements associated
with the administration of an escrow account. For existing
balances in the trust account there should be a confirmation
from the donor the excess fund can be retained or the residual
balances should be refunded.

Parks Services has decided the Memorial Account will
eventually be transitioned to a revenue account.  Park
Services will coordinate with its budget representative to
create a revenue account to accommodate the memorial tree
and bench program moving forward.  Most likely the timing for
this transition will be during the budget request process for
the 2026 Operating Budget.

Body-Worn
Camera
Program

8/24/2021

Evidence.com
Data

No process to identify instances when BWC video
footage should exist but it is missing.

Consider developing a report that compares the Computer Aided
Dispatch system data that reflects an officer assigned to a call
for service to the Evidence.com BWC video data to ensure BWC
videos are present for the case. Exceptions should be
researched and documented accordingly.

6/2025
8/2024
10/2023
3/2023
9/2022
6/2022

Rather than internally developing a CAD report, the PD
Property and Evidence Unit will explore the use of an
additional analytics Performance module offered by the BWC
vendor that could assist with various types of BWC reporting.
The Performace software module will be included in the new
vendor contract.

Court Services
Cash Receipts
Special Review

8/24/21

1 Court Services Department lacks segregation of
duties in the cash receipts process.  As a result of
incompatible duties, system reports used to record
cash receipts activity could be modified to reflect
less cash and revenue during the deposit
preparation process.

Due to the limited size of the Court Services business unit, it is
not practical to sufficiently segregate duties with existing
personnel so it is necessary to expand the involvement of staff
to include Finance personnel. A Finance employee should
directly access the BCAP system and generate the
documentation needed for journal entry and reconciliation
purposes.

12/2027
10/2024
6/2024
10/2023
6/2023
9/2022

3/1/2022

Finance has communicated that it will evaluate how to
structure an internal control that will allow for a periodic,
high-level reconiliation of BCAP and City Suites revenue data.
However, due to other priorities that have been deemed more
pressing, this issue will not be addressed until after the ERP
implementation. This item will remain open until the
shortcomings have been addressed.

2-02b



5

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Court Services
Cash Receipts
Special Review

8/24/21

2 12/2027
10/2024
6/2024
12/2023
6/2023
9/2022
3/2022

Similar to item 1 above, Finance will be exploring how to best
structure the reviews of the exception reporting to ensure the
proper segregation of duties exist.

Several challenges involving the use of the Health
Space system were identified:  1) reporting is
lacking sufficient detail for journal entry and
reconciling purposes, 2) incorrect
revenue/accounts payable entries and insufficient
account reconciliations resulting in overdue
amounts owed to a state agency, 3) inaccurate
account information for many business owners, 4)
duplicated transaction activity, 5) some 2022
license fees billed/received in 2021 should have
been recorded to deferred revenue, and 6)
insufficient segregation of duties between
billing/invoicing and cash receipts.

Prior to implementing any future third-party systems that will
involve financial transactions the Finance Department, working
in conjunction with the primary users of the business unit,
should dedicate sufficient time to the scoping process prior to
implementation. These activities should involve the following
tasks: 1) identify appropriate system administrators; 2)
document in sufficient detail the various types of transactions
that could be processed in the system, along with the
accounting entries that should occur with each transaction; 3)
test each type of transaction that could be processed to verify
the system records the transaction in the expected manner; 4)
ensure system generated reports used to compile the journal
entry loaded into the CCOB financial system to reflect the
financial transactions in sufficient detail; 5) document a
detailed SOP for users that includes the information described
above, along with detailed instructions for using the system in a
consistent manner; and 6) schedule user training workshops
prior to the “go live” date so that all users have an opportunity
to work in the test environment prior to implementation.

Closed

9/2024
12/2023
6/1/2023

Finance has put a hold on any new third-pary systems that
integrate with the CCOB financial system until after the
implementation of the ERP.  All existing third-party system
integrations will be handled by the consultant responsible for
the ERP implmentation.

PIA has agreed to close this recommendation based on the
cuurrent circumstances, but reiterated the importance of due
diligence practices and supporting documentation when
third-party integrations resume.

1A There are currently Human Resources employees
who are responsible for both initiating and/or
approving changes to the HRIS Employee Master
File (EMF). There are also conflicting assignments
for employees who are processing payroll and
reviewing/approving payroll.

Where practical, Human Resources should separate the EMF
modifications duties and user system permissions from:
employee hiring and termination decisions, payroll system
module access, payroll processing duties, creation and
distribution of payroll checks, and the investigation of rejected
payroll deposits. Where practical, Human Resources should also
modify assigned duties and user system permissions so that an
employee is not able to both initiate and approve a change to
the EMF.

Also, a system report of changes to the EMF should also be
generated for review. A supervisory-level employee, other than
the employee initiating the change, and who ideally does not
have ability to modify HRIS, should then review this report and
match the changes to approved Personnel Action Forms and
other relevant documentation.

12/2027

Partially
Implemented

3/1/2023

HR has separated the assigned EMFmodification duties as
suggested.  However, in the event that someone is out of the
office, HR may not be able to ensure this in all cases but it is
the exception rather than the rule.  While the assigned duties
are segregated in most instances, staff size limitations
prevent the system control permissions from being
permanently segregated.  As a result, the need for a report
reflecting all changes to the EMF still exists.  HR has explored
a reporting option with the contracted vendor that provides
HRIS reporting solutions.  Unfortunately, neither HR nor the
vendor have been able to generate a report that captures
these changes.  Considering the current listing of HR reporting
needs and the limited available budget. This item will remain
open until the HRIS upgrade or replacement (part of the ERP
project) sufficiently addresses these short-comings.

Cash receipt exceptions (e.g. adjustments, voids,
refunds, deletes, reversals, etc.) are reductions of
revenue that should be reviewed by an employee
who is independent of the cash receipts processes
and familiar with the business operations.  While
Court Services does include exception activity
documentation in the daily deposit package, the
review of these transactions by an individual
independent of the cash handling process (ideally a
supervisor or someone familiar with the business
processes) is not currently performed.  Also, there
is currently no BCAP report available that allows
users to run a listing of cash receipts exceptions.

Court Services should have a designated reviewer independent
of the cash handling function who is responsible for monitoring
departmental cash receipts exception activity (i.e. adjustments,
etc.).  Documentation supporting the exception should be
reviewed to ensure adjustments were for a valid business
purpose.  Due to the small staff size of the business unit, a
Finance employee should be included in the monthly or
quarterly process.  Documentation of the review process should
be retained for audit purposes.  Until an exceptions report is
available, Finance should periodically review the daily deposit
activity for voids, refunds, deletes, reversals, etc. to ensure the
rationale is sufficiently documented and is appropriate.

Court
Services

Exception
Reporting

Health Space
System Use For

License and
Inspection Activity

Employee Master
File, Payroll

Processing, and
Payroll Review
and Approval

Low

DHS/DPHE
Operations

Division
4/21/2022

DHS/
DPHE

Ops Div
Finance

High

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

High

3c

HR



6

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

High

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Medium

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Low

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Low

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Low

Finance

Finance

Finance

Finance

Finance

Internal Control
Reports for
Purchase

Requisitions,
Invoices, and

Journal Entries

Internal Control
Reports for
Purchase

Requisitions,
Invoices, and

Journal Entries
Internal Control

Reports for
Purchase

Requisitions,
Invoices, and

Journal Entries
Internal Control

Reports for
Purchase

Requisitions,
Invoices, and

Journal Entries

Internal Control
Reports for
Purchase

Requisitions,
Invoices, and

Journal Entries

2A No one individual should have the ability to both
initiate and approve a purchase requisition, invoice
payment, or journal entry transaction. Since the
financial system permissions lack the necessary
controls to prevent this from occurring, Finance
implemented compensating internal control
reports. Samples of these reports were reviewed
during the audit and few deficiencies were noted.
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) do not
currently exist that explain the purpose of these
internal control reports, the procedures to be
performed, and the frequency in which these
reports should be generated and reviewed. This
could result in procedures being performed
inconsistently or overlooked altogether.

SOPs should be developed that explain the purpose, procedures,
and frequency of the purchase requisition, invoice payment, and
journal entry internal control reports.

12/2027
12/2025
10/2023
6/2023

While Finance acknowledges these are important internal
controls, the production and monitoring of these reports in
the current environment are inefficient due to the limitations
of the City Suites financial system.  Also, the Finance
Department feels the preparation work for the upcoming ERP
procurement and implementation is currently a greater
priority.  It is anticipated that the new ERP will include
reporting that will make the on-going management of these
recommended internal controls more practical to produce and
monitor.  This recommendation will remain open until the
internal controls are established (with the proper segregation
of duties for the preparation and review of the reports) in the
new ERP internal control environment.

2B There is no "sign-off" on the reports so it is not
possible to determine whether the reports are
actually being reviewed or if the internal control is
working effectively.

The report reviewer, who should not be involved in the
purchasing or accounts payable processes, should type their
initials and date into the report in order to demonstrate the
review was actually performed.

12/2027
12/2025
10/2023
6/2023

See 2A above.

2C An invoice report reflected two transactions that
had the same Created By and Approver but this
exception was not flagged and researched.

Any discrepancies noted on the reports should include
documentation of the corrective action taken to resolve the
matter.

12/2027
12/2025
Ongoing

See 2A above.

2D Finance personnel (e.g. Budget staff) are in some
cases reflected as the Approver of the purchase
requisition or invoice, opposed to supervisory staff
in the department with a working knowledge of the
purpose for the purchase requisition. While it can
be assumed that Budget personnel are verifying the
supervisory approval exists before approving the
purchase requisition, there is no documentation or
SOP to confirm this is occurring.

If possible, the purchase requisition and invoice payment
reports should be updated to reflect the departmental
supervisory approver, as opposed to Finance Department
personnel. If this is not possible, the internal control report SOP
should clearly state the role of the Budget staff when
performing approvals, which should include ensuring the
transactions have separate departmental initiators and
approvers.

12/2027
12/2025
10/2023
3/2023

See 2A above.

2E Finance has not been able to develop a sufficient
control report for journal entries that reflects who
initiated and who approved the transactions.
Instead, a manual log is maintained that reflects
who initiated and who approved the journal
entries. However, journal numbers are assigned
sequentially to all types of transactions in the
financial system, not only journal entries. As a
result, it’s not possible to determine if journal
entries are missing from the manual listing.

The Finance department should continue to work on a system
generated report that reflects the journal entry initiator and
approver. In the meantime, the manual journal entry listing
should be updated to ensure all journal entries that have been
posted in the financial system are also included in the control
log.

12/2027
12/2025

and
Ongoing

See 2A above.



7

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Low

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Medium

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Medium

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Medium

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Medium

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Medium

Finance

Finance

Finance

Finance

HR

Finance

Internal Control
Reports for
Purchase

Requisitions,
Invoices, and

Journal Entries
Vendor Master

File Maintenance

Vendor Master
File Maintenance

Vendor Master
File Maintenance

Reconciliation of
Payments to

Benefits Vendors

Maintenance of
Internal Control

Infrastructure and
Assigned Duties

2F The invoice payments internal control report,
which has close to one-thousand transactions per
month, is manually reviewed. This increases the
likelihood of missing an exception.

Finance should use a formula to compare the Created By and
Approved fields in the invoice control report in order to improve
the efficiency and accuracy of the report review process.

12/2027
12/2025
10/2023
3/2023

See 2A above.

4B The New Vendor Request Form SOP does not specify
what information is to be verified on the Secretary
of State website and what documentation should be
added to the VMF.  As a result, vendor verification
procedures could be insufficiently and
inconsistently performed.

Enhance the Vendor Clean-Up SOP to more explicitly state what
is to be confirmed on the Secretary of the State website and
what information is to be added to the VMF. For example, the
business should be in good standing and the registered
agents/Owner(s) should not be a CCOB employee.

6/2025
9/2024
6/2024
10/2023
3/2023

Due to other departmental priorities, additional time is
required to evaluate these business practices.

4C The Finance Department has an SOP that indicates
annual maintenance activities (e.g. inactivating
vendors that have not been used in three years)
should be performed on the VMF but these
activities have not been performed for a few years.

Conduct annual VMF maintenance activities in accordance with
the established Vendor Clean-Up SOP. Documentation of this
procedure should be retained in order to demonstrate the
internal control is being performed.

6/2027
12/2024

VMF clean-up activities will be taking place in the months
ahead, prior to migrating the VMF into the new ERP.

4D Changes to the VMF should also be monitored but
there is currently no internal control that detects
unauthorized changes.

Work with the financial system vendor to obtain an internal
control report that reflects changes to the VMF. At a minimum,
this report should reflect all new vendors, as well as vendors
that have been reactivated. In the meantime, all new vendors
(note - vendor numbers are assigned sequentially) should be
reviewed by a staff member who is independent of the
purchasing and accounts payable functions to ensure there is an
approved New Vendor Request Form on file. Documentation of
this review should be retained to demonstrate the internal
control is being performed.

12/2027
12/2025
3/1/2024

See 2A above.

5 The reconciliation of payments made to benefits
vendors to the corresponding payroll withholdings
were previously a few months in arrears due to
employee turnover.

The Human Resources Department should ensure the Vendor
Benefits Payments reconciliation is prepared and reviewed
within thirty days of month end.

5/2025
9/2024
6/2024
Ongoing

PIA met with HR (8/27/2024) to review the vendor benefit
payments reconciliation process.  HR has a process that
focuses on auditing the on-going changes using BORIS reports
that reflect terminations, new hires, and benefit changes.
These changes are confirmed and documented in the Invoice
Audit workbook.  PIA suggested that a reconciliation of vendor
data to BORIS data still be performed on an annual basis (e.g.
March - after open enrollment changes have been made).  HR
plans to prepare the reconciliation and then present the
completed process to PIA.  This item will remain open until
completion of the annual reconciliation is confirmed.

6 The majority of the CCOB business cycle internal
controls were documented in the CCOB Internal
Control Framework tool. However, there have been
no efforts on the part of Finance to update the
document in recent years.

The Finance Department should periodically (annually at a
minimum) update the Financial Internal Control workbook, or a
similar tool designed by the Finance Department, to ensure
internal controls are working effectively and there are no
conflicting duties. A copy of a blank Segregation of Duties Matrix
workbook has also been provided to the Finance Department.
The Matrix, or a similarly designed tool, should be used to
evaluate staffing changes and ensure the assignments are
appropriate. Documentation of these maintenance efforts
should be retained for audit purposes.

12/2027
12/2023

Finance anticipates using the Financial Internal Control
workbook, or a similar tool designed by the Finance
Department, when assigning staffing roles in the new ERP.  A
schedule for mainating the internal control will be established
at that point in time.  This item will remain open until this
internal control is established and properly maintained in the
new ERP internal control environment.



8

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Low

Financial
Internal
Controls

10/04/2022

Low

Emergency
Management

7/26/2023

High

Emergency
Management

7/26/2023

High

Emergency
Management

7/26/2023

HR

HR

EM 01-01

EM 01-02

EM

Human
Resources
Information
System (i.e.

BORIS)
Deficiencies

The HRIS system continues to lack the capability of producing
a standardized report that illustrates the employee level
changes made for the purposes of payroll.  Resource
constraints have prohibited current staff from working with our
third party vendor to produce a report to meet this requirement.
The inability to effecitvely track changes in the HRIS also
impacts the Employee Master File interal controls, as noted in
1A above.  This item will remain open until a sufficient control
report is available via the upgraded or replacement HRIS,
which is a component of the current ERP project.

Human
Resources
Information
System (i.e.

BORIS)
Deficiencies

EOP and
Capabilities Plan

EOP and
Capabilities Plan

Long-Term OEM
Work Plan &

Budget

9B Being able to track who made changes within the
system and when these changes occurred is a
common feature in most modern HRIS and financial
systems. However, most auditing capabilities within
the CCOB HRIS are currently turned off because the
feature historically had a severe impact on the
system performance.

While this system audit reports feature may not be currently
practical due to the system performance issues related to the
audit feature activity logging, Human Resources staff should
revisit the use of these internal control reports after the
upcoming system update (Aug 2022).

12/2027
12/2023

9D The HRIS user interface for time allocations is
impractical to use. As a result, time allocations by
project are generally not entered directly into the
HRIS timesheets. Instead, duplicative timesheets
are used for grant and management reporting
purposes. Also, the HRIS is not capable of
effectively allocating payroll costs so payroll
costing data reflected in City Suites is generally
insufficient and inaccurate for grant and
management reporting purposes.

The Finance and Human Resources Departments should continue
to work with the HRIS vendor to identify an efficient and
effective method for entering actual time worked into the HRIS
timesheets. This data should then be used to allocate payroll
costs based on actual hours. This will reduce workarounds and
facilitate preparation of the Schedule of Federal Awards.

In the event the HRIS is upgraded or replaced at some point in
the future, the ability to effectively and efficiently allocate
hours worked by task or project, as well as the associated costs,
should be a must have feature in any alternative that is
considered.

12/2027
12/2023

The CCOB is focused on the implementation of a new ERP
system, of which the HRIS upgrade or replacement is a
component.  Thus, limited progress is expected in this area
for the foreseeable future.  This item will remain open until
the issues are eventually addressed.

The CCOB Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) and
supporting documentation were dated and
convoluted.  There were several opportunities to
improve and streamline the program
documentation.  OEM staff and PIA worked together
on some improvements but additional work in this
area is still necessary.

The new EOP and Capabilities Plan are still in draft form and
require some enhancements. For example, the cybersecurity
capability section should provide a general overview of response
activities in order to provide the public with assurance that this
risk has been sufficiently considered.

Implemented
10/2024
6/2024
12/2023

The updated EOP, Capabilities Plan, and Roles/Responsibilities
spreadsheet were shared City Council during he October 22,
2024 Council meeting. Resolution 2024-160 was adopted,
which approved the plans.

The EOP and Capabilities Plan also need to be shared with
relevant stakeholders so they are familiar with the plans, and so
that their feedback can be used to make further improvements
to the content. These plans will then need to be reviewed by
the Colorado DHSEM, which is scheduled to occur in late 2023
according to the CCOB EM 2023 Work Plan. Finally, the plans
need to be formally approved by Broomfield City Council and
then posted to the CCOB webpage so that the plans are
accessible by CCOB staff and residents.

Implemented
10/2024
6/2024
10/2023

The EOP and Capabilities Plan were shared with relevant
stakeholders prior to the plans being finalized and their
feedback was incorporated into the plan accordingly.

2 A long-term (e.g. 5-years) work plan and budget do
not currently exist for the Office of Emergency
Management (OEM) so it is unclear when various
plans are due for an update.

A 5-year OEM work plan and budget should be developed that
includes a maintenance schedule with targeted revision dates
for the significant Emergency Management Plans and
assessments. The schedule should also reflect the effective date
of the current plan, the targeted revision date, and the
designated approver for each plan. Since some of these efforts
may require consulting services, an estimated OEM budget
would also be useful for financial planning purposes. For the
remainder of 2023, it is recommended that OEM focus on the
completion of the new EOP and supporting Capabilities Plan
approvals, as well as the completion of the Local Integrated
Preparedness Plan, so that training on these new materials can
be conducted in 2024.

High Implemented
10/2024
6/2024
3/2024

The Integrated Preparedness Plan (IPP) was submitted to the
State in June 2024 and has since been approved. The IPP is a
road map for the CCOB and its partners to maintain and
strengthen specific areas within its disaster training and
exercise program. It establishes overall disaster preparedness
priorities and outlines a multi-year schedule of actions
designed to address those priorities and validate capabilities.
The IPP helps the OEM to plan and budget for upcoming
activities.



9

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
Emergency

Management
7/26/2023

Emergency
Management

7/26/2023

High

Economic
Vitality

All

IT & PD

Local Business
Outreach

Time Reporting/
Payroll System

Challenges

5 The CCOB does not license all businesses so a
central list of all businesses in the CCOB does not
exist. This complicates efforts to communicate
with local businesses during an emergency. The
Economic Vitality Department is working on a
project to develop a more comprehensive listing
that will improve the quality and of the contact
information and also allow it to be maintained so
the information is current.

The Economic Vitality Department should follow through with its
plans to Develop a formal, comprehensive business outreach
program that includes a list of all businesses operating in the
CCOB and essential contact information.

Low 6/2025
6/2024
4/2024

The new Economic Vitality (EV) Director will be assessing what
Broomfield business information is currently available within
the organization. EV will then determine the most effective
method for maintaining an updated business listing moving
forward.  This may involve a process improvement effort
leveraging information that is currently available or possibly a
business licensing effort.

6 The CCOB’s current payroll system does not easily
allow for time allocation to specific task-related
project codes and employee training on the subject
was minimal prior to the pandemic. As a result,
employee efforts to allocate their time were
time-consuming and inconsistent. New procedures
were introduced during the early phases of the
emergency, but the instructions should have been
communicated more clearly and frequently. The
use of these project codes also created unintended
timekeeping issues, such as system freezes and
timecards not being appropriately saved. This
resulted in inconsistent timekeeping practices and
varying degrees of detail in the payroll data.

The CCOB should explore enhancements to the current payroll
system timesheet module. If the current payroll system is
unable to accommodate the task-related project codes in an
efficient and effective manner, then a third-party timesheet
module should be explored. (It should be noted this item is
currently on hold until the replacement of the CCOB Innoprise
Financials system with an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
financial module occurs (tentatively 2026). Then, a Human
Resources Information System (including payroll) will be
identified that is compatible with the new ERP.)

Low for
OEM

(beyond
its

control)
but High
for CCOB

12/2027 The CCOB is focused on the implementation of a new ERP
system, of which the HRIS upgrade or replacement is a
component.  Thus, limited progress is expected in this area
for the foreseeable future.  This item will remain open until
the issues are eventually addressed.

2023 PD
Property &
Evidence

(11/29/2023)

Public Safety
Technology Team

1 The Public Safety Technology Team (PSTT) should
include subject matter experts from each Police
Department (PD) function that relies upon the New
World Public Safety Information System (NWPSIS)
for its operational processing of information. One
of the purposes of this group is to bring issues to
the attention of CCOB IT support personnel in order
to resolve issues so that the system is used to its
full potential. The Property & Evidence (PE) Unit
has not had representation on the PSTT in recent
years due to employee turnover. As a result, the
CCOB IT support staff was not aware of many of the
system shortcomings impacting the PE Unit.

The CCOB PD should revisit and formalize its continuous
improvement practices for the administration and maintenance
of the NWPSIS. A senior-level manager with working knowledge
of the system should be assigned responsibility for the oversight
of the entire NWPSIS. This NWPSIS leader should also serve as a
liaison with the IT Department to ensure the necessary
resources are being allocated to the NWPSIS so that outstanding
issues are addressed in a timely manner.

There should be an established process for ensuring
representation on the PSTT for all of the NWPSIS modules used
by the PD business units. A subject matter expert for the PE
Unit should attend the monthly PSTT meetings.

Implemented
11/1/2024

The PSTT has been reconviened in 2024 with PD
new/additional SMEs representing all NWPSIS modules,
including the Property & Evidence function. IT support staff
are also included.  The group met twice during 2024 and will
be meeting on a quarterly basis moving forward.



10

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2023 PD

Property &
Evidence

(11/29/2023)

2 System training allows users to use the system to
its full potential. However, none of the current PE
Unit employees have received comprehensive
vendor training on how to most effectively use the
NWPSIS LERMS PE module. When employees are not
sufficiently trained on how to use a software
application, variations in practice and inefficiencies
will generally occur, which can impact the
reliability of the data in the system. Also, PE
Directives, standard operating procedures (SOPs),
User’s Manual, and Desk Procedures require
updating.

A. A renewed focus on user training for PE Unit on the NWPSIS
LERMS module is warranted. Module specific training should be
provided every time an employee is reassigned to a position that
requires familiarity with a new module.

B. The PD should consider having an experienced Analyst from
Tyler Technologies, the NWPSIS vendor/developer, observe how
PD staff is using PE features in the NWPSIS LERMS module in
order to identify techniques that could help improve operating
efficiencies.

C. The PE Unit should update the PE Directives, SOPs, User’s
Manual, and Desk Procedures to reflect current practices to help
ensure consistency in practice, as well as effective onboarding
and cross-training.

D. The PD should make NWPSIS self-Study resources, summaries
of system upgrade enhancements, and internally developed
resources easily accessible by PD Unit employees.

E. The PD should continue to develop in-house expertise on the
NWPSIS by using a "train the trainer" model, which involves the
identification of specific employees who have a strong technical
understanding of the subject matter.

A, B, and D
Implemented

09/2024
06/2024

C.
Implemented

09/2024

E.
Implemented

09/2024

A, B, and D - A Tyler Technologies representative was on site
twice during 2024 to provide training and work through system
issues related to the NWPSIS LERMS module.  Additional PD
employees who use the NWPSIS, including PE staff, have been
provided access to the online Tyler University resouces for
self-study training purposes.  Select staff will also be
attending an upcoming Tyler conference for training purposes.

C. The PE Unit Directives, SOPs, User's Manual, and Desk
Procedures have been updated to reflect current practices.

E. As described in item 1 above, additional NWPSIS SMEs have
been identified and are meeting on a quarterly basis to
address system related issues.  These SMEs will be avalable to
address issues and train other staff members as needed.

2023 PD
Property &
Evidence

(11/29/2023)

Property and
Evidence

Dispositions

3 B. Since December 2020, physical PE inventory has
increased by 9,100 items.  As of June 2023, there
were 31,443 physical items in PE inventory.
Increasing PE inventory will eventually cause space
limitations and additional work on the part of PE
staff.

D. The PE Unit does not currently have a reliable
report that identifies PE that is eligible for
disposition due to outdated statutory tables.  This
causes more items to be handled than necessary
when processing dispositions.

B. The PE Unit should continue its current focus on the PE
disposition process. This should be an operational priority until
the backlog of PE inventory items that are eligible for
disposition has been addressed. If necessary, temporary labor
should be considered to assist the PE Unit with these efforts.

D.The PE Unit should work with the Records Unit to update the
statutory tables that are used to auto-populate the retention
period for new PE items. PE items in NWPSIS/LERMS with no
retention period need to be manually updated with the proper
information. Once the data fields are accurate, a more reliable
disposition report should be available.

B.
Implemented

11/2024

D.
Implmeented

09/2024
07/2024

B. The number of PE inventory items has been consistently
decreasing for the past five months. The PE unit has
dedicated one day of the week to focus on the disposition
process and staff expect the inventory balance to continue
decreasing.

D. The Records Unit has updated the statutory tables in the
NWPSIS.  Disposition dates are now automatically populating
in the system when new PE inventory is entered into the
system. This should improve the efficiency of the disposition
process since statutory timeframes no longer need to be
manually researched.

A. PD/
Property &
Evidence

(PE)

B. PD/PE

C. PD/PE

D. PD

E. PD

B. PD/PE

D. PD/PE
  &

  Records

NWPSIS User
Training and
Documented
Resources

High for
all items

High

Medium



11

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2023 PD

Property &
Evidence

(11/29/2023)

NWPSIS LERMS
Deficiencies

4 There are several NWPSIS LERMS issues currently
impacting the efficiency of PE Unit operating
practices:

A. When an Officer places an item in an evidence
bin the LERMS module records a date/time stamp
but the same date/time stamp is also used when
the PE Technician subsequently moves the item to
the next location

B. 50 PE items (as of July 2023) appear on the
“Property - Missing Chain of Custody Report (COC)”
and the COC screen in LERMS for these items is also
blank - COC history exists in the “Field Level
Auditing Viewer" but it is not user-friendly and
complicates reporting

C. No notes fields are available for documenting PE
details specific to a case and inefficient
workaround solutions are currently being used

D.Inventory Not Present Report pulls incorrect data

E. Not able to check out or transfer multiple items
or cases so the items must be inefficiently moved
one item at a time

F. Not able to batch transfer a case when moving
location so the items must be inefficiently moved
one item at a time

G. Inventory scanners reflect items in inventory
that have actually been destroyed or checked out

H. Electronic signatures for chain of custody will
not automatically attach to the case so a manual
workaround process is currently being used

I. A NWPSIS test environment for all modules does
not currently exist due to hardware limitations

J. Reporting solutions needed include a Dispositions
Report reflecting how an item was actually
disposed (e.g. Returned to Owner) and a COC
Report that reflects every change of location for an
inventory item.

The PE Unit and IT support staff should meet regularly to
address the NWPSIS deficiencies or adopt an acceptable
workaround solution for the following:

A. An accurate date/time stamp is recorded each time PE is
moved to a different location (including the initial intake
process)

B. Determine the root-cause for why items are showing up on
the “Property - Missing Chain of Custody Report” and the COC
screen information is missing so that this error can be corrected
moving forward

C. Identify a more efficient solution for documenting and
retaining case notes for PE items

D. A correct Inventory Not Present Report should be available

E. Ability to check out or transfer multiple items or cases

F. Ability to batch transfer a case when moving location

G. Accurate inventory when using the scanners that shows when
items have been destroyed or checked out

H. Ability to efficiently capture electronic signatures for COC
purposes that are automatically attached to the case

I. A test environment should exist for all NWPSIS modules

J. Reporting solutions that reflect 1) how an item was disposed
(e.g. Returned to Owner) and 2) COC showing every change of
location for an inventory item

A - J
Originally

11/2024 but
now

dependent on
future

software
change

All items (A - J):  PE and IT staff attempted to address these
issues when Tyler Technologies was on-site in 2024 for user
training and trouble-shooting purposes.  Unfortunately, these
problems still persist and the vendor has no proposed
solutions. Thus, the PD and IT have concluded, after several
months of trouble-shooting efforts, that it will be necessary to
transition to a separate third-party system for PE inventory
purposes in order to ensure the integrity of the inventory and
to improve operational efficiencies. The PD is currently
reviewing alternative products and obtaining user
testimonials.  Eventually, a supplemental budget request for
the new software will be submitted.

 IT &  
PD/PE 
for all
items 

Medium
for all
items



12

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2023 PD

Property &
Evidence

(11/29/2023)

LERMS Module 6 The LERMS module is an integrated component of
the NWPSIS, which has its advantages when it
comes to managing data and system interfaces. The
PD Records Division also uses the LERMS module and
most PD staff have already had some level of user
training. However, inefficiencies also create an
extra time and cost burden on PE Unit staff
operations. An efficient and reliable information
system for managing PE inventory data is an
important internal control and directly impacts the
efficiency of operations. PE Unit staff have
expressed an interest in transitioning to another
software program to manage its PE data operations
needs.

The PE Unit staff should continue to work with the designated
CCOB IT technical support staff to resolve the challenges
described in this report. If the system deficiencies are not able
to be sufficiently resolved, it may be necessary for the PD (in
consultation with the IT Department) to consider other
alternatives to the NWPSIS LERMS module for managing the PE
Unit data activities. Any proposal to move to a different
software application should include a thorough cost/benefit
analysis related to the proposed change.

Closed

11/2024

The PD will be transitioning to a new software for PE
inventory purposes.  See item 4 above for additional details.

2023
Purchasing

Card
(12/29/2023)

1A Approval Groups - The City Suites Financial System
(CSFS) has a shortcoming in the PCard approval
workflow where the transaction can only be routed
to a single approval group and only one individual
from that group can approve the transaction. As a
result, broad approval groups have been
established, which sometimes have insufficient
segregation of duties. Examples include
PCardholder who is also in their approval group,
subordinate approving transactions, and approver
redirecting the approval to the PCardholder.

The Finance Department should reevaluate the PCard approval
structures to ensure the proper segregation of duties. Having
the approval structures updated prior to the implementation of
the new financial system (approx late 2027) will also allow for a
more efficient and effective implementation of the approval
workflows.

Also, ensure the upcoming request for proposal for the new
financial system has “must have” criteria that allows for
multiple approval workflows for all types of purchases, as well
as reporting that shows who initiated and who approved a
purchasing transaction. This should decrease the need for overly
broad approval groups.

High 6/2027
9/1/2025

Finance will continue to evaluate existing structures /
procedures and document processes over the next year with
the Government Finance Officers Association. Multiple items
will be addressed including approval tiers prior to
transitioning to a new ERP system. Capabilities are limited in
the current system. Improving this will be part of the ERP
selection and implementation process.

2023
Purchasing

Card
(12/29/2023)

1C Federal Purchases - Per CCOB Procurement Manual,
P-Cards should not be used for purchases covered
by federal funds. This control helps ensure that
federally suspended or debarred entities are not
used. However, a few PCard transactions applied to
federal funding were identified.

The Finance Department should evaluate PCard transaction data
using the project code to ensure that no federal purchases have
been made using the PCard and identified exceptions should be
corrected. Alternatively, Finance could implement an control
that checks for federally suspended/debarred entities, while
also allowing the PCard to be used.

Medium 12/2025
12/1/2024

Finance has decided to remove the federal purchase
restriction from the PCard policy because it is only a CCOB
guideline and not a federal restriction. Since other
procurement guidelines are also being updated in relation to
the ERP, additional time is necessary to update the PCard
policy.

2023
Purchasing

Card
(12/29/2023)

1D Receipts/Business Purpose - The Procurement
Manual and PCard Policies the Procedures Handbook
require PCardholders to provide a detailed
receipt/invoice and to document the business
purpose of the transaction in sufficient detail so
that appropriateness of the purchase is apparent to
the Approver. For most transactions tested, this
was sufficiently provided. However, exceptions
were also noted.

The Finance Department should periodically (e.g. annually)
remind PCardholders about the receipt and business purpose
requirements for PCard purchases. In addition to the what,
when, and where criteria, the documentation should also reflect
who utilized the product or service purchased. PCardholders
who continually provide insufficient PCard documentation
should have their PCards revoked.

High 6/2026
11/2024

Training content is currently being developed, which will
cover this topic.  In addition to planned in-person training,
on-demand training related to PCards will be made available
on the Cornerstone training platform.  Additional time is
required to fully address this item.

2023
Purchasing

Card
(12/29/2023)

1E Split Transactions - A split purchase occurs when a
purchase is separated into two or more transactions
in order to avoid the PCardholder’s single purchase
limit. CCOB policy prohibits this practice.
Transaction testing identified several transactions
that appeared to be split transactions.

The Finance Department should more effectively monitor PCard
activity for split transactions. When violations are noted,
remind the PCardholder that split transactions are not allowed
and that a temporary single purchase limit exception is
required. If necessary, work with the departments to identify a
more appropriate single purchase limit for the PCardholder.
Revoke PCard from PCardholders who continually violate the no
split transactions policy.

High 6/2026
11/2024
6/1/2024

Training content is currently being developed, which will
cover this topic.  In addition to planned in-person training,
on-demand training related to PCards will be made available
on the Cornerstone training platform.  Additional time is
required to fully address this item.

IT &
PD/PE

Low

Finance /

Finance /

Finance /

Finance /

Procurement

Procurement

Procurement

Procurement

PCard
Transaction
Processing

PCard
Transaction
Processing

PCard
Transaction
Processing

PCard
Transaction
Processing



13

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2023

Purchasing
Card

(12/29/2023)

1F Timeliness of PCard Transaction Processing - There
are often delays with PCard transactions posting to
the general ledger due to untimely coding and
supporting documentation from PCardholders. Also,
Finance batch processes PCard transactions so a
single delayed PCard transaction causes the entire
batch to be delayed. This causes staff frustration
because it can delay other business processes, such
as timely grant reporting.

The Finance Department should be more aggressive on the
enforcement of the PCard processing timeline. PCardholders
who repeatedly cause processing delays should have their
PCards revoked. Also, Finance should consider using a temporary
clearing account for the transactions that are pending approval
past the established deadline so that the entire batch is not
delayed.

Medium 6/2025
12/2024

Finance has been collecting data related to PCard violations.
A conversation with the CMO will eventually occur where
recommendedations will be made for either suspending or
revoking the PCards for individuals who repeatedly submit
receipts past the deadline and delay PCard transaction
processing. PCard that are infrequently used will also be
revoked in order to aleviate the administrative burden
associated with these cards.

2023
Purchasing

Card
(12/29/2023)

2B Business Need for PCards - PCards provide an
efficient/effective method for making purchases,
but there are costs and risks associated with the
PCard Program administration. Thus, PCards should
only be issued to active employees who have a
valid business purpose. During the audit period
(1/2022 - 8/2023), there were 56 PCards used three
or fewer times, including 29 PCards that were not
used at all. The scrutiny of PCards needed may be
lacking and there is no procedure for evaluating the
on-going business need for issued PCards based on
actual PCard usage. Unused or underused PCards
expose the CCOB to the unnecessary risk of credit
card fraud.

PCards should only be issued to employees who have a valid
business need for the PCard. The Finance Department should
consider establishing some criteria for issuing PCards that
includes the intended frequency of use. Finance should also
periodically evaluate (e.g. annually) the frequency of PCard use
to determine whether all issued PCards are necessary since the
risk of unauthorized usage increases when more cards are
outstanding.

High 6/2025
12/2024

See item 1F above.

2023
Purchasing

Card
(12/29/2023)

2C PCard Administrative Forms - PCard administrative
forms (i.e. Request, Change, Agreement, and
Missing Documentation) appear to capture the
necessary information for administrative business
purposes. However, testing procedures identified
missing forms in the filing system (eventually found
in archived emails). There was also no standard
naming convention for the electronic files stored in
the Google Drive folders, which made it more
challenging to locate the supporting
documentation.

The Finance Department should consider converting the manual
PCard forms to an electronic format that can more efficiently
collect and store the required PCard information. The intake
forms should include “mandatory fields” that require a response
before it can be submitted, which should reduce the follow-up
inquiries on the part of the Finance PCard Administrator when
the forms are not comprehensively completed. This would also
eliminate the manual routing of documents, as well as the
additional administrative effort of scanning/filing copies of the
forms in the Finance Google Drive folders.

Low 6/2025
10/2024
6/1/2024

Finance has been experiementing with the use of an online
form for PCard purposes.  Additional time is required to
ensure the new process has been properly tested and
communicated with CCOB staff.

Finance /

Finance /

Finance /

Procurement

Procurement

Procurement

PCard
Transaction
Processing

PCard Account
Administration

PCard Account
Administration



14

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2023

Purchasing
Card

(12/29/2023)

3 CCOB policies/procedures do not address how gift
cards/certificates purchased for individuals who
are not CCOB employees should be handled. The
methods used for tracking gift card purchases with
PCards vary by business unit. When an “inventory”
of gift cards are maintained, the reconciliation/
tracking procedures are generally not sufficient.
This results in a greater risk of theft or
misappropriation. Excessive use of these cash
equivalents without a comprehensive and
transparent tracking system may be viewed
negatively even if the use/gesture is warranted.

Purchased cash equivalents should have records that provide the
information necessary to support the expense and to ensure
distribution of these items were used for the intended business
purpose. The Finance Department should enhance procurement
policies to address how gift cards/certificates purchased for
non-employees should be tracked, reconciled, and documented.
Consider providing a standard template that includes the typical
quantitative and quantitative elements of a rolling inventory for
gift cards stored for future use.

While Finance is responsible for providing the policy/procedure,
it is the responsibility of the CCOB departments to be compliant
with these CCOB guidelines. Periodically, a manager who is
independent from the gift card/certificate handling process,
should review the tracking log and ensure the ending balance of
gift cards/certificates on hand agree to the tracking log. Finally,
staff should be encouraged to use mechanisms other than cash
equivalents to reduce the risk of misappropriation or negative
public perception.

High Closed
12/2024

Finance, in consultation with the CMO, has decided to no
longer permit the use of cash equivalents.  Thus, a reporting
process will no longer be necessary. While this item is
currently being closed based on that course of action, it will
be reopened if future audit transaction testing shows cash
equivalents continue to be purchased and used.

2023
Purchasing

Card
(12/29/2023)

4A While the slide deck for the in-person PCard
Training presentation appears to be comprehensive
and a good source of information, it has not been
delivered during the last few years due to the
pandemic and employee turnover. This is a missed
opportunity to educate/remind employees about
the PCard guidelines.

The Finance Department should periodically schedule in-person
PCard training for new employees and for existing employees
looking for a refresher. Alternatively, a recorded presentation
could be made available on the Purchasing Cards BEACH
(intranet) web page.

Medium 6/2025
11/2024
6/1/2024

Training content is currently being developed, which will
cover this topic.  In addition to planned in-person training,
on-demand training related to PCards will be made available
on the Cornerstone training platform.  Additional time is
required to fully address this item.

2023
Purchasing

Card
(12/29/2023)

4B Currently, there are no PCard training documents
available on the BEACH (CCOB intranet) Purchasing
Cards web page. When working with the PCard test
that must be taken by PCard applicants prior to the
PCard being issued, it is necessary to contact the
Procurement Analyst who then sends the PCard test
information to the PCard applicant. The
Procurement Analyst continues to correspond with
the PCard applicant until a passing test grade (i.e.
80%) is obtained.

The Finance Department should consider adding the mandatory
PCard test to the recently implemented Cornerstone Learning
Management System. Also, detailed instructions should be
included on the Purchasing Card BEACH web page that directs
the PCard applicant to complete the PCard test and submit
proof of passing along with the original PCard Request
Form/Application. This should reduce the unnecessary
correspondence that is occurring related to the PCard test.

Low 6/2025
11/2024

Training content is currently being developed, which will
cover this topic.  In addition to planned in-person training,
on-demand training related to PCards will be made available
on the Cornerstone training platform.  Additional time is
required to fully address this item.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

1A There is currently no owner of the CCOB ADA
Internal Tracking workbook or a formal process in
place to maintain this workbook.

The Risk and Safety Manager should take ownership of the ADA
Internal Tracking workbook. CCOB departments should be
responsible for designating an individual who will be responsible
for updating those portions of the ADA Tracking Workbook
applicable to the department. The ADA Coordinator should work
with the designated departmental ADA contact to review and
update the workbook on an annual basis.

High 6/2025
4/2025

An assessment of the ADA Tracking workbook is currently
taking place to determine what actions (if any) are necessary
to address the items identified in log. The ADA working group
with either be revitalized or disbanded depending on the
results of the assessment. Future ADA assessments will take
place as deemed necessary by management.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

1B1 There were a few locations that still require the
2010 ADA Standards checklists to be completed.

The 2016 ADA Standards Checklists, based on the 2010 ADA
Standards for Accessible Design, should be fully completed for
all publicly accessible facilities and parking lots.

Medium 6/2025
4/2025

See item 1A above.

Finance /

Finance /

Finance /

CCAO /
R&S

PW/
Facilities &

Streets, and
CCAO/R&S

Procurement

Procurement

Procurement

Gift Cards

PCard Training
Resources

PCard Training
Resources

ADA Tracking
Internal Workbook

- Owner

Buildings &
Parking Lots



15

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2024 ADA

(4/9/2024)
1B2 There are a few additional resources available on

ADA.gov that have not been used but could be
beneficial in the self-assessment process.

When applicable, the following checklists should be used when
the department is conducting self-assessments: Play Areas;
Swimming Pools, Wading Pools & Spas; and Fishing Piers &
Platforms.

Medium 6/2025
4/2025

See item 1A above.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

1B3 The self-evaluation process for open space and
trails can be more challenging since there are no
specific ADA.gov checklists available for this
category. As a result, staff have pieced together
evaluation criteria from different resources but the
source of the guidance has not been documented in
the ADA Tracking workbook. It is also difficult to
determine whether the listing comprehensively
captures all CCOB Open Spaces and Trails.

The trails documentation in the ADA Tracking workbook should
be enhanced so that it is clear which trails have been evaluated
and which trails still need to be evaluated. The trails worksheet
should also include the trails evaluation criteria, findings, and
any necessary actions. As discussed in item 1B5 below,
partnering with the GIS Division would improve the efficiency
and effectiveness of this process.

Medium 6/2025
4/2025

See item 1A above.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

1B5 The self-assessment of many outdoor spaces can be
time-consuming due to the dispersed locations
throughout the City/County. There are more
effective and efficient methods to perform
self-assessments of these outdoor areas when
compared to the manual methods previously used.
A more comprehensive self-assessment would also
help ensure all publicly accessible outdoor spaces
have been evaluated.

CCOB departments/divisions responsible for maintaining outdoor
spaces should consider partnering with the GIS Divisions to
identify more efficient and effective data collection and
mapping methods for conducting ADA self-assessments.

Medium 4/2025 See item 1A above.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

1C The current combined ADA workgroup is large. The
items in the ADA Tracking workbook are not
currently prioritized and in most cases there are no
cost estimates. As a result, the plan/timeline for
addressing these items is unclear and there are no
established budgets.

The ADA Coordinator should establish an appropriately sized
ADA Committee that meets on a periodic basis (e.g.
semi-annually) to discuss ADA related matters. The ADA
Committee should then work together to prioritize the items in
the ADA Tracking workbook, identify solutions for the issues
identified, establish cost estimates (periodically adjusted for
inflation), and establish work plans to address the solutions
within their respective business units.

Medium 12/2024 See item 1A above.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

1D Online ADA Complaint Form available on
Broomfield.org is not consistently used. There are
inconsistencies in how CCOB ADA efforts are
addressed, tracked, documented, and archived.
Standard operating procedures (SOPs) for CCOB ADA
activities have not been established. The
documentation trail is sometimes dispersed and the
details are not archived in a central location.

The Online ADA Complaint Form should be used every time a
complaint is received so that a record is established in the
linked workbook that is maintained by the ADA Coordinator.
Staff should direct the public to complete the form to initiate
the research/response process. If staff receive the information
via phone or in person, then the staff member should complete
the Online Complaint Form.

A standard template or checklist for documenting responses to
ADA complaints should be developed so that cases are
consistently handled. This SOP should require the CCOB ADA
Coordinator to be involved in all ADA inquiries/complaints. The
SOP should also specify where the documentation is to be
archived and the naming convention for the files. Finally, the
ownership of the ADA files should be transferred to the CAO
since the designated CCOB ADA Coordinator is assigned to that
department.

Medium 4/2025 The online ADA and Accessibility Grievance and Request Form
and the ADA and Accessibility Process and Procedures are now
available on the 

. All grivances and/or requests that require
additional effort on the part of staff (i.e. issues that are not
immediately addressed) are to be documented using this
online form, which notifies the CCOB Risk & Safety Manager,
who is also the CCOB ADA Coordinator. This will help ensure
all ADA inquiries are sufficiently documented and addressed.
Supervisory staff will be made aware of this requirement
when taking the mandatory Navigating Antidiscrimination
Laws in the Workplace training during 2025. A Disability
Etiquette training will also be offered for staff who work
directly with the public.

PRSS,
CCAO/R&S

OST,
CCAO/R&S

OST, PRSS,
PW,

CCAO/R&S

CCAO/R&S

CCAO/R&S,
Com-

munications

Specific Use
Checklists

Trails

Technology to
Conduct ADA

Self-Assessment

ADA Committee/
Divisional

Administrators

Managing and
Standardizing

Complaints Broomfield.org ADA and Accessibility
webpage



16

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2024 ADA

(4/9/2024)
2C In August 2019, the City and County Manager issued

a memo appointing the Risk Administrator as the
designated ADA Coordinator. The name of the
employee was also explicitly stated in the memo.
However, there has since been turnover in this role
and the position title has changed.

The City and County Manager should issue an updated memo
designating the new Risk and Safety Manager as the CCOB ADA
Coordinator, along with the necessary contact information (i.e.
name, office address, and telephone number).

Low 4/2025
10/2024
8/1/2024

Preparation the memo is currently in-progress.  A meeting
with the City and County Manager will then be scheduled to
get the memo approved and to discuss any necessary
refinements to organizational ADA coordination moving
forward.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

2D The CCOB Department of Human Services (DHS)
Grievance and Complaint Policy designates the
Operations Manager of the HHS Department to
serve as the department’s ADA and Section 504
Coordinator, but there is currently no requirement
to also make the CCOB ADA Coordinator aware of
any formal ADA complaints.

The CCOB DHS Grievance and Complaint Policy should be
updated to ensure the HHS Operations Manager makes the CCOB
Risk and Safety Manager, the CCOB ADA Coordinator, aware of
any formal ADA complaints that are received.

Low Implemented
4/1/2025

 has
been updated accordingly.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

3B Since CCOB staff who interact with the public have
varying levels of experience when dealing with
situations that are ADA in nature, there is potential
compliance risk if the matter is not appropriately
handled.

CCOB programmatic staff who frequently interact directly with
the public should be trained on how to identify potential ADA
related matters. Since ADA cases will vary in nature, and the
expertise of programmatic staff will also vary, CCOB employees
who encounter ADA Title II (Public Services) related issues
should involve the Risk and Safety Manager in ADA matters as a
quality control measure.

High 4/2025
10/2024
4/1/2025

See item 1A above.

2024 ADA
(4/9/2024)

4 Since CCOB supervision staff have varying levels of
experience when dealing with situations that are
ADA in nature in the employment setting, there is
potential compliance risk if the matter is not
appropriately handled.

CCOB supervisory staff should be trained on how to address and
handle ADA related matters, specifically requests for
accommodations from employees. Since ADA employment cases
will vary in nature, and the expertise of supervisory staff will
also vary, CCOB employees who encounter ADA Title I
(Employment) related issues should involve Human Resources as
a quality control measure. When cases involve novel or more
complicated legal issues or potentially subject CCOB to
increased liability and risk, Human Resources should involve
attorneys from the City & County Attorney’s Office.

High 4/2025
10/2024
4/1/2025

See item 1A above.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

1 A review of exception activity (i.e. adjustments,
voids, refunds, deletes, reversals, etc.) by a
supervisor independent of the revenue payment
process has not been consistently performed by the
business units listed below.

All City & County of Broomfield (CCOB) functions that use a cash
receipting system for revenue payment processing should have a
designated reviewer (ideally a supervisor) independent of the
cash handling function who is responsible for monitoring
departmental exception activity (i.e. voids, refunds, deletes,
reversals, etc.). Business units should ensure exception
reporting is properly and consistently performed.

High See below See below

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

1A City Suites CCR Exceptions Report is not being
generated and reviewed on a consistent basis.

The CCR Exceptions Report should be generated/reviewed on a
periodic basis and archived.

High Implemented
9/2024

The CCR Exceptions Report is now being generated on a
quarterly basis and reviewed by an Administrator that is
independent of cash handling.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

1B City Suites Customer Information System (CIS)
Adjustments Report and the Reversals/Voids Report
are available but are no longer being used as a
result of employee turnover.

The CIS Adjustments Report and the Reversals/Voids Report
should be generated/ reviewed on a periodic basis and archived.

High 3/2025
9/2024

With recent vacancies in the Revenue Division, additional time
is necessary to fully implement this internal control.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

1C Eagle Treasurer control report that reflects
exception activity is not being used.

Eagle Treasurer control report should be generated/ reviewed
on a periodic basis and archived.

High 6/2025 With recent vacancies in the Revenue Division, additional time
is necessary to fully implement this internal control.

CCAO/R&S,
CMO

Human
Services /
Operations

CCAO/R&S

CCAO/ Risk
& Safety

DDEI
HR

ADA Coordinator
Designation

CCOB DHS
Grievance and

Complaint Policy

ADA Training -
Public Facing

ADA Training -
Employment

Control Reports

Control Reports

Control Reports

Control Reports

HHS Discrimination, Grievance, and/or Complaint Policy

See Below

Police
Admin

Finance/
Revenue

Finance/
Revenue



17

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2024 Revenue

Payment
Processing
(9/5/2024)

See below 2 Revenue payment processing segregation of duties
could be improved in the business units listed
below.

Whenever possible, individuals who collect payments from
customers and/or prepare the cash deposits should not also
generate the supporting documentation or perform
reconciliation procedures because the information could be
altered.

High See below See below

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

Court
Services &
Finance/

Accounting

2A The Court Administrator processes cash receipts
transactions, handles deposits, provides
documentation from the BCAP system to Finance
for the monthly reconciliation, and reconciles the
Court Services checking account. This arrangement
lacks the proper segregation of duties.

Due to the limited staff size of the unit, it is not practical to
sufficiently segregate duties with existing personnel so it may
be necessary to expand the involvement of the Finance
personnel in the monthly financial reconciliation procedures.
The Finance Accountant who receives the BCAP system reports
could directly access the BCAP system to verify the accuracy of
the documentation.

High Closed
12/2027
11/2024

Note - this is a repeat comment that was also identified in the
Court Services Cash Receipts Special Review - issued 8/24/21
(see above).  Rather than reflect the issue twice in this
listing, this line item will be closed and future tracking of the
matter will done in relation with Court Services Cash Receipts
Special Review.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

Finance/
Revenue

2C CRO staff are responsible for making a manual daily
summary entry for Eagle Recorder activity into the
Eagle Treasurer system. Since CRO staff handle
cash and are also responsible for providing the
supporting documentation for the daily
balancing/deposit process, there is a lack of
segregated duties.

High 6/2025 With recent vacancies in the Revenue Division, additional time
is necessary to fully implement this internal control.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

Finance/
Accounting

3A The Division of Motor Vehicles (DMV) daily
balancing activities, revenue allocations, and
related journal entries could be improved.

The daily allocation workbook should be enhanced by adding a
narrative explaining what the taxes and fees represent and the
authoritative guidance authorizing the collection and
subsequent allocation of these amounts.

Medium 6/2025 Additional time is necessary to address this item.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

Finance/
Revenue

3B Medium 6/2025 Additional time is necessary to research and address this
issue.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

Finance/
Accounting

4 The CCOB Revenue Payment Processing/Cash Receipts guidelines
should be adequately documented and accessible to employees
via the BEACH (CCOB intranet). These guidelines should address
how supporting records for deposits and related journal entries
should be consistently prepared, submitted, and documented.
The guidelines should also explain how the documentation
should be provided (e.g. placed in a designated electronic file
folder on the network along with a standard naming convention
that includes the relevant dates). Also, the policy should require
that a receipt is provided for all in-person cash transactions,
including off-site transactions, to ensure the transaction is
captured in the cash receipts system. If the cash receipts
system is not available, then a manual receipt should be
provided and later reconciled to ensure the funds are
appropriately deposited.  Finally, the policy should provide
direction on how departments are to handle NSF check
transactions.

Medium 12/2027
6/2025

3/2020

A draft of the Revenue Payment Processing / Cash Receipts
guidelines currently exists.  However, Finance has decided to
defer the issuance of the policy until the new ERP is
implemented in order to ensure the policy reflects updated
operating practices based on the new internal control
environment. The need for this policy was first identifed in
the 3/2020 Cash Receipts audit.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

5D The total proceeds collected for the last
Broomfield Days 5k Race and Fun Run event was not
reconciled to the total amount deposited in the
financial system.

The Broomfield Days 5k Race and Fun Run event proceeds should
be reconciled to the amount deposited via the BRex system.
This documentation should be retained and the corresponding
SOP should be updated accordingly.

Medium 10/2025 This item will be reviewed after the next Broomfield Days
event in the fall of 2025.

Segregation of
Duties

Segregation of
Duties

Segregation of
Duties

Standard
Operating

Procedures
(SOPs)

Standard
Operating

Procedures
(SOPs)

Revenue Payment
Processing/ Cash
Receipts Policy

Supporting
Documentation

The Eagle Recorder to Eagle Treasurer Reconciliation internal
control should be reimplemented and maintained. The Revenue
Manager, who does not handle cash or make the deposit, should
independently generate the reports from the Eagle Recorder
and Eagle Treasurer systems that are used to perform the
reconciliation. Differences noted in the reconciliation should be
researched and documented.

The Finance/Revenue SOP for the daily balancing of
the Eagle Treasurer system (Property Tax) could be
improved.

The Finance/Revenue SOP for the daily balancing of the Eagle
Treasurer system should be improved by documenting additional
details about the process. This will help ensure consistency in
the procedures performed and the resulting documentation
when different staff perform this task. This will also help with
onboarding and cross-training.

The CCOB does not currently have a Revenue
Payment Processing/ Cash Receipts Policy, which
results in varying practices throughout the CCOB.
This could also lead to confusion or non-compliance
with prescribed operating practices. Currently,
there are many inconsistencies in how business
units prepare deposit packages. The methods used
to pass along supporting documents to Finance also
varies (e.g. email vs. placing documentation in a
shared folder on the network drive). In some cases
the deposit package supporting documentation
appeared to be excessive, while in other cases the
deposit only included a deposit slip. Note - Cash
Receipts Policy also recommended in the 2020 Cash
Receipts Audit.

Issue First
Recommended

in 

Recreation
Services



18

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2024 Revenue

Payment
Processing
(9/5/2024)

Finance Credit Card Fees 7 Credit cards are a common payment option used by
CCOB customers due to the convenience it offers.
However, the CCOB is inconsistent in how the
associated credit card processing fees are handled.
In some cases the customer pays the fee and in
other cases the CCOB business unit absorbs the
cost. With the popularity of online payments
increasing, this will also result in additional costs to
the CCOB. Finally, the CCOB offers other payment
options that generally do not include a service fee.

The CCOB should be consistent in how credit card processing
fees are handled throughout the organization. Since it is the
customer who benefits from the convenience of online credit
card payments, and other payment options are available (e.g.
cash, check, e-check, and ACH), the CCOB should consider
having the customer cover the cost of credit card fees. While
this position varies among governmental and private
organizations, it is becoming more common to pass the fee
along to the customer.

Medium 12/2027
6/2025

Informally, Finance has been responding to department
inquiries on the matter by stating it is appropriate to pass
along the credit card processing fees to the customer.
However, this will not formally be addressed until the Revenue
Payment Processing / Cash Receipts guidelines have been
issued (see item 4 above for additional details).

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

Public
Works

Recreational
Vehicle Dump

Station Permits

9 There are approximately 2,200 active Public Works
recreational vehicle (RV) dump station permits.
Approximately half are for Broomfield residents,
for which there is no fee, and the other half is for
non-residents who have an annual fee of $30. The
current process for administering RV dump station
permit renewals is manually intensive. The listing is
maintained in a spreadsheet and staff must
manually send out multiple email reminders to
customers when their permit is expiring. Payment
processing is also manual since staff must be
physically present to run credit cards when
requested.

Public Works should resume efforts to improve the efficiency of
the RV dump station permit renewal process. The potential use
of the CCOB OpenGov license/permit software should be
revisited. Regardless of the system or method used, automatic
email renewal notices should be used. Also, customers should
have the option to renew their permits online with a credit card
since this would improve the convenience for the customer and
save CCOB staff time.

Low Closed
12/2024

PW explored the use of OpenGov, but determined there are
too many logistical limitations to make it work for their
purposes.  PW has instead updated the RV Dump Station
Permit spreadsheet. While there are still many manual steps
involved, PW believes the process is now more efficient.
Information Technology has indicated that credit card
processing will not be implemented until after the ERP
implementation due to capactity reasons. Considering this is
an operational efficiency issue, rather than an internal control
or data integrity issue, this item is being closed at this time.
The topic will be revisited during the next Revenue Payment
Processing Audit.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

Finance/
Revenue

Online Banking
Bill Pay Service

11 Both Metavante and EBox are services where
customers can use their online banking/bill paying
services to issue payments to the CCOB. While
payments from the EBox service can be rejected
due to incorrect account numbers and other issues,
this is not currently the case with Metavante
payments. Metavante is also being used incorrectly
by some taxpayers to pay their property tax bills.
These issues require extra research and
administrative workarounds for the
Finance/Revenue Division staff.

The Finance Department should contact the company
responsible for the Metavante payments and attempt to correct
the administrative challenges associated with these payments. If
possible, the CCOB should be able to reject erroneous payments
and prevent the service from being used for unauthorized
purposes in order to reduce the extra administrative efforts
associated with these payments.

Low 12/2025
12/2024

Additional time is necessary to research and address this
issue.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

Finance,
Court

Services &
Police/

Detention

Disposition of
Intangible
Property

12 The Municipal Court and PD/Detention have issued
refunds to individuals for various purposes but the
checks were never deposited by the recipient.
Some of these checks have been outstanding for
several years. The business units requested
guidance on how to handle these items so the City
and County Attorney’s Office (CCAO) was
consulted. The CCAO reviewed Colorado Revised
Statute (CRS) § 38-13-1504 - Unclaimed Property, as
well as Broomfield Municipal Code (BMC) 3-25-030 -
Procedure for the Disposition of Intangible Property.

For unclaimed property held more than five years, statute
allows local governments to follow their local ordinance related
to the disposition of property. Thus, the Municipal Court and
PD/Detention should work with the CCOB Finance Director to
clean-up these outstanding checks by following the guidance
included in BMC 3-25-030 - Procedure for the Disposition of
Intangible Property.

Low 6/2025 Efforts are currently in progress to establish an SOP so there is
a repeatable process that can be used by CCOB staff.



19

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2024 Revenue

Payment
Processing
(9/5/2024)

Finance/
Accounting

Petty Cash Funds 13 Petty cash funds can be useful under the right
circumstances, but this method of reimbursement
was more common before the use of PCards. An
evaluation of petty cash fund activity has not been
conducted in recent years to determine whether all
these funds are still necessary. Petty cash funds
have a separate process for reconciling and
replenishing the fund when it is depleted, which
also requires staff to make a trip to the bank.
Finance must also conduct cash counts at year-end,
which requires additional staff time.

Finance should evaluate the petty cash funds frequency of use
and consider closing the funds that have minimal activity.
PCards should be encouraged as the preferred method of
procurement for smaller purchases. While not as efficient,
check requests can also be used if necessary.

Low Implemented
12/2026

Finance has communicated to CCOB staff that petty cash
reimbursements are no longer available effective 1/1/2025.
The primary reason for this change is to help remove an
unnecessary administrative burden associated with these
funds. Going forward, a check request can instead be
submitted in Innoprise for reimbursement.

2024 Revenue
Payment

Processing
(9/5/2024)

City
Manager’s

Office
(CMO),
Clerk &

Recorder
Office
(CRO),

Economic
Vitality, &
Finance

Business License 14 The CCOB does not currently license all Broomfield
based businesses. As a result, there is no
comprehensive business registry, which causes
challenges when attempting to effectively
communicate with Broomfield businesses
(particularly in emergency situations). Business
licenses would also allow for improved
communication of CCOB programs and general
awareness of events occurring in the community. In
addition to business outreach, the license would
also be useful for sales tax purposes.

In consultation with the CMO, relevant CCOB business units (e.g.
CRO, Economic Vitality, Finance/Sales Tax Division, etc.) should
consider a business licensing program for Broomfield businesses.
If it is determined this would be beneficial, business licensing
program guidelines for an annual registration/ renewal process
should be developed. A modest annual fee (e.g. $20) is also
suggested to help off-set associated costs. It may also be
necessary to consider a related penalty fee for businesses that
are aware of the licensing requirements but fail to register.

Low 6/2025 The new Economic Vitality (EV) Director will be assessing what
Broomfield business information is currently available within
the organization. EV will then determine the most effective
method for maintaining an updated business listing moving
forward.  This may involve a process improvement effort
leveraging information that is currently available or possibly a
business licensing effort.

Public
Works
(PW) /

Fleet Mntc
(FM)

Cost Effective Use
of Fleet Resources

1a Total Cost of Ownership (TCO) includes all lifetime
costs that result from owning an asset, such as
purchase price, maintenance and repairs, fuel,
disposal value, etc. Projected and actual TCO could
be used more effectively when making vehicle
purchase decisions.

FM should use TCO information more effectively when making
vehicle purchase decisions whenever practical.

High 1/2026 Considering this audit was recently issued, additional time is
necessary to address most of these audit recommendations.
An update will be provided in the next PIA Audit Status
Update.

PW/FM Cost Effective Use
of Fleet Resources

1b The labor rate currently being used by FM in the
Ron Turley & Associates (RTA) Fleet Services
software is understated and based on an educated
estimate opposed to an amount supported by a
standard calculation and associated costs.

FM should perform a standard labor rate calculation on an
annual basis that is supported by actual cost data. A simple
template for documenting the calculation and the source of the
supporting documentation has been provided to FM staff. The
labor rate should be updated in the RTA system at the beginning
of each calendar year.

High Implemented
12/1/2024

An updated labor rate calculation has been performed and it
was updated in RTA effective January 1, 2025.

PW/FM Cost Effective Use
of Fleet Resources

1c Fleet utilization standards and actual utilization
data could be used more effectively to allocate
vehicles throughout the CCOB.

Management should consider setting vehicle utilization
standards using data from the telematics and fleet services
software systems. Vehicles that do not satisfy this criteria
should be considered for shared use via a motor pool model.

High 1/2026 See item 1a above.

Finance &
PW/FM

Cost Effective Use
of Fleet Resources

1d CCOB EV chargers are free to the public, which
essentially provides a subsidy for EV owners.
Finally, EVs reinforce the shared vehicle pool notion
since an infrastructure for charging the vehicles is
necessary.

Management should consider implementing a pricing structure
on all public-facing EV chargers that would help cover
electricity costs, as well as the costs associated with the EV
infrastructure used by the public (including CCOB employees).

High 12/2025 See item 1a above.

Finance &
PW/FM

Vehicle &
Equipment

Replacement
Fund & Policy

2 The purchase of new and replacement
vehicles/equipment are subject to the availability
of the funds during the annual budgeting process.
Specialized heavy-duty vehicles/equipment with
higher costs often impacts the availability of
funding for other asset needs throughout the
organization.

CCOB management should explore long-term options for funding
vehicle/equipment acquisitions and replacements, such as a
vehicle/equipment fund that could be used to more
strategically plan and budget for these assets.

High 1/2026 See item 1a above.

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)



20

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2024 Fleet

Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

PW/FM Policies &
Procedures

3 FM policies/procedures do not reflect an effective
date, some policy documents are redundant, and
there are opportunities to better organize this
content so that it is more accessible.

FM should review its standard operating guidelines to ensure
these documents reflect current best-practices and a revision
date is included. Unfinished policies should be finalized and
outdated policies should be archived. The guidelines should also
be more accessible to staff. Finally, a maintenance schedule
should be established so that the guidelines remain current.

Medium 1/2026 See item 1a above.

Risk &
Safety

Accident Report 4 Historically, an accident trend report was prepared
periodically and shared with relevant senior
management staff, rather than only being handled
at the supervisory level, so that adverse trends
could be identified and mitigated in a timely
manner. However, due to employee turnover in the
Risk & Safety function, this report is no longer
being prepared and distributed.

The Accident Trend Report preparation, distribution, and review
process should be reinstated on a quarterly basis. This report
should eventually reflect accident data for a five-year minimum
period and be shared with relevant senior management.

Medium 1/2025 See item 1a above.

PW/FM Training &
Succession

5a While FM adequately maintains training and
certification records for its employees, there is
currently no formal, documented training plan or
succession plan that reflects the training content
and skill development steps necessary for its
employees.

FM should develop and document a formal Training Plan and
Succession Plan for the FM Division.

Medium 1/2026 See item 1a above.

PW/FM Training &
Succession

5b FM supervisory staff have expressed that at times
they feel overloaded by their responsibilities that
pull them in many directions. FM has a desire to
have more qualified staff to support its operations,
while also creating a career path for its
Technicians.

There is sound rationale for the advanced Technician III role,
which would also support FM succession planning efforts. Thus,
the FM Superintendent should continue advocating for the
Technician III position with PW management and Human
Resources. It may also be necessary for FM to make a few
concessions in how the role is structured in order to advance
this initiative.

Medium 1/2026 See item 1a above.

PW/FM &
Senior

Services

Easy Ride Shuttle 6 When vehicles are serviced by the FM Division it
generally requires the efforts of two employees, as
well as two vehicles, when dropping off and picking
up the vehicles at the FM Service Center. This is an
inefficient use of resources and has been a pain
point for FM since FM Technicians are often
shuttling the vehicles. As a result, there is less time
available to perform the repairs and maintenance
work.

Senior Services and FM should continue exploring whether the
use of the CCOB Easy Ride Shuttle is an option for CCOB
employees to travel to/from the FM Service Center when picking
up and dropping off CCOB vehicles for repairs and maintenance.

Low 9/2025 See item 1a above.

City
Manager’s

Office,
City

Attorney’s
Office,
Finance

Aggregate Spend 7 While there are practical reasons for aggregate
spend guidelines, there are also time and
administrative costs associated with the process.
There are also different interpretations related to
the guidelines.

Management should consider alternatives to the aggregate
spend reporting requirements that would improve the efficiency
and effectiveness of the process, as well as the clarity of the
guidelines.

Low 9/2025 See item 1a above.



21

ATTACHMENT 2 - Performance and Internal Audit Status Update
Audit &
Special
Reviews

Issue Date
Dept /

Division Topic # Finding Recommendation
Priority
Ranking

February 2025 Audit Status Update or Management
Responses in Recently Issued Audit Report

Revised &
Original

Estimated
Complete

Date(s)
2024 Fleet

Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

2024 Fleet
Maintenance
(12/20/2024)

City
Manager’s

Office,
City

Attorney’s
Office,
Finance

Procurement
Thresholds

8 Procurement thresholds have not been updated in
recent years. The CCOB also lacks a standard
process for the routine review and adjustment of
the procurement thresholds.

Management should evaluate current purchasing thresholds
(including aggregate spend) and request adjustments of the
threshold amounts from City Council as needed so that the
CCOB is comparable to surrounding local governments. This
would also be an opportunity to request that these newly
established amounts be administratively updated on an annual
basis using an agreed upon inflation adjustment. Finally, a
benchmark analysis of neighboring Colorado local government
purchasing limits should be prepared on a periodic basis (e.g.
every three to five years) and presented to the City Council to
provide assurance that the CCOB procurement thresholds are
reasonable.

Low 9/2025 See item 1a above.

PW/FM Expense
Supporting

Documentation

9 During expense transaction testing it was noted
that the documentation in the City Suites financial
system for a vehicle/equipment supplier was
insufficient.

Every invoice should reflect a sufficient level of detail to
understand exactly what goods were purchased or what services
were performed. These invoices should be approved by an
employee who has firsthand knowledge of the work performed
and uploaded into City Suites financial system as supporting
documentation for the expense.

Low Implemented This recommendation has been sufficiently addressed.



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

A. Minutes for Approval

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6A.

Presented By

Crystal Clemens, City Clerk

Community Goals

Overview

View Presentation

Approval of Minutes for Regular Council Meeting of February 11, 2025.

 

Attachments

Minutes of February 11, 2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67784f185294e000544279ff%2FMinutes%20of%20February%2011%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=84cc9ef9-f764-4637-96ee-9857030d854b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67784f185294e000544279ff%2FMinutes%20of%20February%2011%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=84cc9ef9-f764-4637-96ee-9857030d854b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67784f185294e000544279ff%2FMinutes%20of%20February%2011%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=84cc9ef9-f764-4637-96ee-9857030d854b


��������	
����������
���������������������������������������� �!����"��#$ ����%&&'&(���)*�+�,, �'&'- �./&'�01�2�(���)*�+�,, �'&'- �3/,4�01��
������5�6789�:;<<;=>?@�A9AB9CD�=9C9�>?�EFF9?GE?H9IJ������������
���K�1*+��L������M�N���
�K�O*�$�PQ
NN�
���K�O*�$�-R��
S��T����N���
K�O*�$�'U��N��U��V��K�O*�$�-W�����L�����K�O*�$�PX����L�SK�O*�$�4Y�����Z���[�����K�O*�$�,T�\���]��		K�1*+���0���̂�� �O*�$�4M������_��NK�O*�$�'[
��R������5X�S��������̀U
������K�O*�$�,M��
�R������5a����"���b�""�*� ���c+�*�$���)�c+�1*�*d��e��*�!��c��f�cc� ���g)c+���c+�*�$���)�c+�1*�*d���*���*��+ ���g)c+���c+�*�$���)�c+�1*�*d��h*�i+�j�$d��� ���c+�*�$���)�c+�ecc����+*̂�k*�j�+��#$� ���c+�*�$���)�c+��#��l�e$�����c�*c��e�$��*���)���c*""��������mn���������
SS����S���opq�rstuvt�wx�psstvyz{|t2�./&'�01o}q�~t�yt��z{u�p���w�zs�wx�pvt{uz2�./&4�01�n�R�����
�����N�
SS�������
���n�
�����S�S�������
����n�R������
SS����n����
���

���������������� ����������

�������� ¡¢¢£¤��¥�¦������¥���¦���� ¡¢¢£¤��¥���¡�����¡�¤��§§§��̈¤̈¤¤����©©ªª««  �© ��«



���������	
������	�����������������	�������
	��������	�������������� !"�#$%&'(&)�'&�*++,&-.�&++&/('(&)�'&�012345637�8&9*:�;&-.,)<.)'�=.,<(''()>�?(,.:.//@.:.9&<<A)(9*'(&)/�B*9(:('(./�<*C.�DE�%*E&,�=,&�@.<�FG*HH�*)C�/.9&)C.C�DE�I&A)9(:<.<D.,0.)J.:K�%&'(&)�+*//./�L46M�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�%*,/G40&:/9G.)�*D/.)'K%&'(&)�'&�*++,&-.�&++&/('(&)�A):.//�*<.)C.C�'&�01234557L�0&A/()>�N.-.:&+<.)'�&H�B*('G�*)COCA9*'(&)*:�8*)C�PQR;1QS�<*C.�DE�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�0.)J.:�*)C�/.9&)C.C�DE�%*E&,�=,&�@.<�FG*HHK%&'(&)�+*//./�T42M�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�?*,C�*)C�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�N.:>*C(::&�&++&/.CMI&A)9(:<.<D.,�%*,/G40&:/9G.)�*D/.)'K%&'(&)�'&�*++,&-.�*<.)C<.)'/�'&�F12346U6�R)9,.*/.�@,*)/+&,'*'(&)�%&C.�IG&(9.�V.CA9.O<(//(&)/K�W<.)C<.)'/�'&�()9:AC.�<()(<(X()>�'G.�,.YA(,.<.)'/�&H�:&9*:�>&-.,)<.)'/�*)C�H()C()>Z*E/�'&�9*+('*:(X.�&)�Z&,J�'G*'�:&9*:�>&-.,)<.)'/�*,.�*:,.*CE�C&()>K�%&'(&)�+*//./�L46MI&A)9(:<.<D.,�%*,/G40&:/9G.)�*D/.)'K�[��[����\���
�]�̂ �_̀�	���a���
	������	
�]�	�\����� b!�#$cd�efghigj�kjilhm���n������\���������	���� bo�#$m[��p������
�q������������r���s����r���	t���	�����\��t����t������u������� bo�#$v�q�������������awx�	���������r��t	t���	�����\��r���	
�
�������������
�����r���	t��u��	������	���t����t�����m���p������
�q�
����	�����\������\����y\\�t���	
�z�������	��y\\�t���\���{�uz�������	��q����̂ ���� bo�#$%&'(&)�'&�*++,&-.�9&)/.)'�('.</�7*�'G,&A>G�79�<*C.�DE�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�?*,C�*)C�/.9&)C.C�DEI&A)9(:<.<D.,�0.)J.:K�%&'(&)�+*//./�L46K�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�%*,/G40&:/9G.)�*D/.)'K|d�}~j�fg�kjilh����p����t�{�	����y�
�	t��\���q	��
��r��t��������a�_�t�
�q�	
����� b��#$#����������������������������� b��#$���������������" !��#$%&'(&)�'&�*++,&-.��,C()*)9.�223��W<.)C()>�'G.�OHH.9'(-.�N*'.�H&,�V*)J.C�IG&(9.��&'()>F.9&)C�V.*C()>�<*C.�DE�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�8./:(.�*)C�/.9&)C.C�DE�I&A)9(:<.<D.,��>AE.)K%&'(&)�+*//.C��45M�&++&/.C�DE�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�?*,CK�I&A)9(:<.<D.,�%*,/G40&:/9G.)�*D/.)'K

������� ��¡�¢�£¤ ¥¦§̈©ª«¬̈

®̄̄°±¡��²³́ µ́¶¬§·©̧ª¦§̈©ª·¬̧̈ª°°�²³́ µ́¶¬§·©�°³¬̈̄�©³ª¶̄�¹¹¹�§º¶º¶¶�¢¢ª»»¼¼½½²²¢» ��½



����������	
����	���������������������������������	����
����	��	��������� !�"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""#$%&'�($)*'+&**$""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""",--+./�&-�*0/�(+*%�$12�(&31*%�(4/'5
678976:;�6<6=�>? @ABCDEFGCH

IJJKL<77MNOOPQGBRDSEABCDERGCHSEKK7MNOOPQGBRD7KNGCJ7DNEQJ7TTT8BUQUQQ:==EVVWWXXMM=V X7X



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

B. Proposed Resolution Approving a Construction Agreement for the 2025 ADA Curb Ramp Program Project

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6B.

Presented By

Brian Graham, CIP Manager

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence

View Presentation

The ADA Curb Ramp Program aims to enhance accessibility in Broomfield by upgrading non-compliant curb ramps,
sidewalks, curbs, and gutters, ensuring compliance with ADA standards. This memo is requesting to award
construction to Denver Dirt Works, Inc. If approved, construction is expected to begin in April 2025 and be
completed by the end of Q2 2025. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Council Memo ADA Curb Ramp Program Construction Agreement.pdf
Resolution 2025-39.pdf
Standard Construction Agreement - Denver Dirt Works.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FCouncil%20Memo%20ADA%20Curb%20Ramp%20Program%20Construction%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=de15c33b-a721-4576-8559-8f97200cc79a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FCouncil%20Memo%20ADA%20Curb%20Ramp%20Program%20Construction%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=de15c33b-a721-4576-8559-8f97200cc79a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FCouncil%20Memo%20ADA%20Curb%20Ramp%20Program%20Construction%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=de15c33b-a721-4576-8559-8f97200cc79a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FResolution%202025-39.pdf?alt=media&token=f48e8faf-3a4d-4bfa-981d-a703a7d48349
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FResolution%202025-39.pdf?alt=media&token=f48e8faf-3a4d-4bfa-981d-a703a7d48349
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FResolution%202025-39.pdf?alt=media&token=f48e8faf-3a4d-4bfa-981d-a703a7d48349
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FStandard%20Construction%20Agreement%20-%20Denver%20Dirt%20Works.pdf?alt=media&token=731d22e7-fb4d-4ebe-a537-62cc03d13d61
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FStandard%20Construction%20Agreement%20-%20Denver%20Dirt%20Works.pdf?alt=media&token=731d22e7-fb4d-4ebe-a537-62cc03d13d61
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673ba9d1db91740054dd9ee5%2FStandard%20Construction%20Agreement%20-%20Denver%20Dirt%20Works.pdf?alt=media&token=731d22e7-fb4d-4ebe-a537-62cc03d13d61


Memo for the ADA Curb Ramp Program Construction Award  
Prepared By: Kelly Behling, CIP Project Manager 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-39 would approve a construction agreement between the City and County of 

Broomfield and Denver Dirt Works, Inc. for the construction of the 2025 ADA Curb Ramp Program.  

The ADA Curb Ramp Program is an annual capital improvement project, subject to budget approval, that 

aims to enhance accessibility across Broomfield by addressing critical pedestrian infrastructure needs and 

ensuring compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). In 2024, Kimley-Horn completed the 

engineering design of ADA ramp improvements for 18 locations and concept planning for two additional 

locations.  The remaining funds in 2024 were rolled into 2025 to allow Broomfield to construct as many of 

these improvements as possible this year.  

This project will upgrade non-compliant curb ramps in priority order.  The work will also include associated 

improvements to sidewalks, curbs, and gutters, as well as, signage and pavement markings at 13 locations 

throughout the City. 

This vicinity map shows the project locations that will be a part of the 2025 ADA Curb Ramp Program. 

 

An invitation to bid was posted to BidNet on December 20, 2024, and eight contractors submitted bids by 

the bid opening deadline on January 21, 2025.  

 

The lowest responsive and responsible bidder was Denver Dirt Works, Inc. for $309,510 and is recommended 

by staff to complete the project. 

 

If proposed Resolution No. 2025-39 is approved, construction is anticipated to begin in April 2025, with the 

project slated for completion by the end of the second quarter of 2025. 

 

Financial Considerations 

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 

budgeted amount. 

 

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

2024 ADA Curb Ramp Program (0AZ0445) (20-70010-55200)  $227,525 

2025 ADA Curb Ramp Program (0AZ0445) (20-70010-55200)  $250,000 

Total Budget $477,525 

     Consulting Agreement (Kimley-Horn) -$127,500 

     Construction (Denver Dirt Works, Inc.) –$309,510 

     10% Construction Contingency -$30,950 

Environmental Clearance/Materials Testing/Public Notification -$9,745 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16SXjZVH2YwpITnunzokXWWcBCkSeRQ9z/view?usp=drive_link


 

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

Total Use of Funds -$477,525 

Projected Balance $0 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

On October 24, 2023 Council authorized funds in the 2024 Budget. 

 

On October 22, 2023 Council authorized funds in the 2025 Budget. 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to proceed with the project, the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-39 be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

Decide not to proceed with the project.  

 

2 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1j78auSwiGLnV_xEAiSKXjeou5_F53_to/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BSnWMtJNlCtbCYzKAB7N55sBwloK3QWX/view


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-39 

A resolution approving the Construction Agreement by and between the City and County of 

Broomfield and Denver Dirt Works, Inc. for the 2025 ADA Curb Ramp Program Project 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The Construction Agreement by and between the City and County of Broomfield and Denver 

Dirt Works, Inc., for the 2025 ADA Curb Ramp Program in the amount not to exceed $309,510 

is hereby approved.   

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem is authorized to sign and the Office of the City and County Clerk 

to attest the agreement, in form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

The City and County Manager or a designee thereof is authorized to approve change orders in 

an aggregate amount not to exceed ten percent. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on February 25, 2025. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

 
NCR 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



A CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD  

AND DENVER DIRT WORKS, INC. FOR THE 2025 ADA CURB RAMP PROGRAM PROJECT 

  

1. PARTIES.  The parties to this Construction Agreement (this “Agreement”) are the City 

and County of Broomfield, a Colorado municipal corporation and county, (the “City”) 

and Denver Dirt Works, Inc. (the “Contractor”), collectively, the “Parties,” or 

individually, a “Party.” 

2. RECITALS. The Recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein by this 

reference as though fully set forth within the body of this Agreement. 

2.1. The City, seeking construction services for the 2025 ADA Curb Ramp Program 

project completed a competitive selection process by invitation for bid (IFB) 

issued on December 19, 2024. 

2.2. The Contractor’s response to the above referenced IFB was determined to be of 

best value, responsible, responsive bidder to the City for the procurement of 

the services requested. 

2.3. The Parties therefore desire to enter into this Agreement for completion of the 

services further described herein. 

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of 

the Parties contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and 

adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

3.1. Work. The Contractor agrees to furnish all necessary labor, materials, 

equipment, tools, and services necessary to perform in a workmanlike manner 

the work (hereinafter “Work”) described in the Scope of Work attached hereto 

as Exhibit A and incorporated by this reference. 

3.1.1. Key Personnel.  The Contractor’s key personnel shall include (i) the 

[Project Executive - Sean Shelbourn]; (ii) the [Field Superintendent - 

Tico Perea] and (iii) the [Project Manager - Daragh Goode]. The 

Contractor's obligation to provide adequate staffing is not limited to 

providing the key personnel, but is determined by the needs of the 

Project. The Contractor shall not replace any of the key personnel 

without the City’s prior written approval, which shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. If any of the key personnel become unavailable 

to perform services in connection with this Agreement due to death, 

illness, discharge or resignation, then the Contractor shall promptly 

appoint a replacement acceptable to the City. The City shall be entitled 

to complete information on each such replacement, including a current 

resume of his or her qualifications and experience.  

 



3.2. Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents shall consist of the following:  

3.2.1. This Agreement; and 

3.2.2. The Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A;  

3.2.3. The Contractor’s Cost Proposal dated January 21, 2025, attached 

hereto as Exhibit B; and 

3.2.4. The IFB including all attachments and links; and 

3.2.5. The Construction Plans for Project No. 0AZ0445; and 

3.2.6. Any change orders and contract amendments, as applicable; and  

3.2.7. Project Special Provisions for Project No. 0AZ0445; and 

3.2.8. The Insurance Requirements attached hereto as Exhibit C,    

 

all of which are incorporated by reference as though set forth in full herein, 

whether or not attached hereto and shall form an integral part of this 

Contract.  If there is any conflict between this Agreement and the other 

Contract Documents, this Agreement shall control. 

3.3. Access and Inspection.  The City and its representatives shall at all times have 

access to the Work. The Contractor shall provide proper facilities for access to and 

for inspection of the Work for the purpose of determining compliance with this 

Agreement and quality of workmanship and material. All materials, equipment and 

supplies used in the performance of the Work shall be subject to adequate 

inspection and testing in accordance with generally accepted standards. The City 

Representative may order that portions of the Work be uncovered, exposed or 

made available for observation, inspection or testing at no additional cost. The 

Contractor shall provide all labor, tools, materials, equipment and supplies 

necessary to comply with the request of the City Representative. If any portion of 

the Work is determined to be defective, the Contractor shall bear all costs involved 

to bring the Work into compliance with the Agreement, including without 

limitation the cost to replace any materials, to re-perform or to reconstruct. The 

Contractor shall remove from the work site all work or materials rejected by the 

City for failure to comply with the Contract whether incorporated in the Work or 

not at no additional cost to the City. 

3.4. Site Clean-Up.  On a daily basis, the Contractor shall maintain the work site 

free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by performance of 

the Work. The Contractor shall remove all rubbish, tools, construction 

equipment, machinery, and surplus material from the work site. If the 

Contractor fails to maintain the work site in an appropriate condition, the City 

may, after notice to the Contractor, perform any necessary clean-up and charge 

the clean-up costs to the Contractor.  

3.5. Protection of Property.  All existing finishes, structures, utilities, services, 

roads, trees, shrubbery, etc. located on City property and adjacent property 

impacted by the Work shall be protected against damage or interrupted 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



services at all times by the Contractor during the term of the Work.  The 

Contractor shall be responsible for repairing or replacing any and all property 

which is damaged by reason of the Contractor’s operation on the property to 

the satisfaction of the City within three (3) weeks of the notification of such 

damage, which may be extended with written approval of the City. 

3.6. Utilities. The Contractor shall fully comply with the provisions of Article 1.5 of 

Title 9 of the Colorado Revised Statutes including, but not limited to, providing 

notices to the notification association. Unless otherwise provided in the Scope 

of Work, the Contractor shall be responsible for communicating and 

coordinating with utilities, as necessary.  The Contractor shall cooperate with 

utilities and the City as provided in this Agreement and as required by law. The 

Contractor shall be responsible for determining the exact location of utilities 

that may interfere with construction of the Work by exploratory excavation 

sufficiently in advance of beginning construction in an area so that potential 

conflicts may be resolved. The Contractor will consider in the Contract Price all 

of the utility appurtenances within the project; and the Contractor shall not 

make a claim for delay or additional compensation due to any relocation 

operations by a utility.  

3.7. Documents on Site. The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the City one 

electronic or hard copy of all drawings, specifications, addenda, change orders 

and other modifications, in good order and marked currently to record all 

changes made during construction. At the City’s option, the referenced record 

drawings will be reviewed monthly by the City for acceptability. If, in the 

judgment of the City, the Contractor fails or refuses to keep these documents 

current, the Contractor shall not be entitled to progress payments until it 

makes the necessary changes to the documents to make them current. 

3.8. Differing Site Conditions. The Contractor acknowledges that it has satisfied 

itself as to the character, quality, and quantity of surface and subsurface 

materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is 

reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the site and review of the 

Contract Documents. 

3.8.1. Contractor shall give immediate written notice to the City 

Representative if it encounters a “Differing Site Condition,” defined as 

either: 
 

3.8.1.1. Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which differ 

materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents; or 

3.8.1.2. Unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual nature, 

which differ materially from those ordinarily encountered and 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



generally recognized as inhering in work of the character 

provided for in this Agreement. 

3.8.2. Contractor acknowledges that no request for a change order or 

modification in Contract Price resulting from a Differing Site Condition 

shall be allowed unless immediate written notice is provided and the 

conditions remain undisturbed until the City has the opportunity to 

investigate. 

 

4. Completion Date. Within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of executed Agreement, the 

Contractor shall provide the City acceptable bonds, if applicable, and certificates of 

insurance. A Notice to Proceed will be issued upon City approval of the bonding and 

insurance. The Contractor shall perform no Work until the City Representative issues a 

Notice to Proceed. 

The Contractor shall begin the Work on or before the fifth (5th) calendar day after 

receipt of the Notice to Proceed. The Notice to Proceed will stipulate the date on 

which the contract time count commences (the “Start Date”).  The Contractor shall 

complete the Work and fulfill all of its other obligations within ninety (90) calendar 

days of the Start Date (the “Completion Date”).  The time between the Start Date and 

the Completion Date shall be known as the “Contract Time.” 

All time limits are of the essence in this Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges that 

a notice to proceed will not be issued until the City has received acceptable 

certificates of insurance and bonds, if applicable. 

5. CONTRACTOR’S PROJECT SCHEDULE.  The Contractor shall submit a completion 

schedule for the Work (the “Project Schedule”) beginning with receipt of the signed 

Agreement and concluding with Project Completion prior to the commencement of the 

Work and shall coordinate on a daily basis with the City’s project manager. The Project 

Schedule shall include all lead time for the order and delivery of equipment for the 

Work. Schedule updating shall be done on a weekly basis, or more often as necessary 

(each a “Schedule Update”). The revision shall indicate actual progress to date, 

changes resulting from change orders, and planned changes as necessary to complete 

the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. All costs associated with the 

development and maintenance of the Project Schedule shall be borne by the 

Contractor. Acceptance by the City of the Contractor’s Project Schedule does not 

relieve the Contractor of any of its responsibility whatsoever for the accuracy or 

feasibility of the Project Schedule, or of the Contractor’s ability to meet the Contract 

Time, nor does such acceptance expressly or impliedly warrant, acknowledge or admit 

the reasonableness of the activities, duration, or cost loading of the Contractor’s 

Project Schedule. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



6. UNUSUALLY SEVERE WEATHER CONDITIONS.  

6.1. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the Contractor and the 

City, that the Contract Time for the completion of the Work is a reasonable 

time, taking into consideration the climatic and economic conditions and other 

factors prevailing in the locality of the Work. The Contract Time anticipates 

“Normal” weather and climate conditions in and around the vicinity of the 

project site during the times of year that the construction will be carried out. 

Extensions of time based upon weather conditions shall be granted only if the 

Contractor demonstrates clearly that such conditions were “unusually severe,” 

would not have been reasonably anticipated, and that such conditions 

adversely affected the Contractor’s Work and thus required additional time to 

complete the Work. 

6.2. The following specifies the procedure for the determination of time extensions 

for unusually severe weather. The listing below defines the anticipated number 

of calendar days lost to adverse weather for each month and is based upon 

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) or similar data for 

the geographic location of the project. 
 

ANTICIPATED CALENDAR DAYS LOST TO ADVERSE WEATHER CONDITIONS: 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL 

7 5 4 3 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 7 43 day 

 

6.3. The above schedule of anticipated adverse weather will constitute the base 

line for monthly (or portion thereof) weather time evaluations. Upon 

acknowledgement of the notice to proceed and continuing throughout the 

Agreement on a monthly basis, actual adverse weather days and the impact of 

adverse weather days that delay the Work will be recorded on a day-to-day 

basis. It is assumed that the Work will be carried out Mondays through Fridays 

(holidays excepted); however, non-standard work hours will be required as 

specified in the Statement of Work and as shown on the Project Schedule. The 

number of calendar days of delayed Work due to adverse weather or the impact 

thereof will then be compared to the monthly adverse weather schedule above. 

6.4. An actual adverse weather day must prevent Work for 50 percent or more of 

the Contractor’s workday, delay Work critical to the timely completion of the 

Project, and be documented by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



City Representative in writing if work cannot proceed on a given date, within 

two calendar days of that date. The City will use the above written notification 

in determining the number of calendar days for which Work was delayed during 

each month. 

6.5. At the end of each month if the number of calendar days for which Work was 

delayed due to adverse weather exceeds that shown in the above schedule a 

change order will be executed which increases the Contract Time.  

6.6. The Contractor’s Project Schedule must reflect the above-anticipated adverse 

weather delays on all weather-dependent activities. While extension of time 

shall be granted for “unusually severe” weather or climate conditions, or the 

impact thereof, the City shall make no monetary compensation for any costs to 

the Contractor arising out of such delays. The Contractor shall comply with the 

portions of the Contract Documents relating to its Project Schedule and 

amendments thereto which result from the “unusually severe” weather 

condition. 

7. PRICE AND PAYMENT. The City shall pay the Contractor for performance of the Work an 

amount not to exceed $309,510 (the “Contract Price”) based upon the unit prices set 

forth on Contractor’s Cost Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit B and in accordance 

with the following schedule:   
 

7.1. If the Contractor is satisfactorily performing the Agreement, the City shall 

make partial payments at the end of each calendar month or as soon thereafter 

as practicable of ninety-five percent (95%) of the Contract Price based on the 

calculated value of the Work completed (the “Partial Payments”) and shall 

retain five percent (5%) of the amount due to the Contractor (the “Retained 

Amount”) until the Work is complete.  If applicable, the Contractor shall make 

payments to its subcontractors in accordance with C.R.S. §24-91-103.  

 

7.2. The City shall retain the Retained Amount until Final Acceptance (as defined in 

Final Acceptance and Final Payment below).  If the Contractor has completed 

the Work in a manner finally acceptable to the City, the City may authorize 

final payment from the Retained Amount upon written request by invoice of 

the Contractor (the “Final Payment”).  Before the Final Payment is made, the 

City and the Contractor, as applicable, shall comply with the Final Acceptance 

and Payment paragraph of this Agreement. 

 

7.3. The Contractor shall, as soon as practicable after the end of each calendar 

month during performance of the Work, submit an itemized invoice for services 

performed, stating the percentage of the Work that has been completed and 

the type of services performed.  Each invoice will also include an Application 

and Certificate of Payment form (AIA Document G702) or equivalent form 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



approved by the City. The Contractor shall prepare the invoices at its sole cost 

and shall include sufficient detail to enable the City to verify the 

appropriateness of the invoice. Each invoice shall be subject to review and 

approval by the City Representative. The City shall not be required to pay 

disputed items until the dispute is resolved.  Payment of any invoice shall not 

act as a waiver of the City’s right to recover in full any over-payment revealed 

by any subsequent audit or inspection.  No air travel, car rental, 

entertainment, education expense, meals or similar or related costs shall be 

payable without prior written approval of the City. Incorrect payments to the 

Contractor due to omission, error, fraud, or defalcation may be recovered from 

the Contractor by deduction from subsequent payments due the Contractor 

under this Contract or other contracts between City and Contractor. 

 

7.4. Change Orders. The Contractor will do nothing to cause the Contract Price to 

increase without prior execution of a change order by the City. The City will 

issue no change order requiring additional compensable work to be performed, 

which work causes the aggregate amount payable under this Agreement to 

exceed the amount appropriated for this Agreement. Except as provided below 

and as provided in C.R.S. 24-91-103.6, the City shall have no duty or obligation 

whatsoever to compensate or to reimburse the Contractor for any additional 

work not specifically authorized as provided herein. In the event (i) the City 

requires additional compensable work to be performed by the Contractor prior 

to the execution or other finalization of a change order or contract 

amendment, and (ii) the Contractor has submitted to the City an estimate of 

the cost for the additional compensable work, then the City shall reimburse the 

Contractor for the costs associated with such additional work on a periodic 

basis in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

8. FINAL INSPECTION AND FINAL PAYMENT.  

8.1. Final Inspection.  The Contractor shall notify the City when the Work is 

complete and ready for final inspection by means of a letter of completion (the 

“Letter of Completion”). Within ten (10) calendar days of the City’s receipt of 

the Letter of Completion, the City Representative shall make a final inspection 

to determine whether the Work has been completed in accordance with this 

Agreement and shall submit a written list of any defects to the Contractor (the 

“Punchlist”). The Contractor shall promptly correct all Punchlist items without 

additional cost to the City within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the 

Punchlist. If any Punchlist item cannot be corrected within ten (10) calendar 

days, the Contractor shall submit a letter to the City Representative for 

approval requesting an extension of time to complete such item (the “Request 

for Extension”). The Request for Extension must be received by the City 

Representative within seven (7) calendar days of the Contractor’s receipt of the 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



Punchlist and shall include the Contractor’s justification for the request and a 

schedule for completion of the Punchlist item. The Contractor shall also deliver 

to the City, all statements to support state sales and use tax refunds and any 

as-built drawings. The Contractor shall provide the City with a letter of 

approval for contract closure from any surety furnishing bonds for the Work 

provided on AIA Form G707 (Consent of Surety Letter) or equivalent form.  

8.2. Final Payment.  Upon satisfactory completion of the Work, the City 

Representative will provide the Contractor with a written acceptance of the 

Work (the “Final Acceptance”).  Payment shall not be made until the City 

Representative has approved the payment and a notice of contractor’s 

settlement has been published in accordance with C.R.S. §38-26-107. The City 

shall condition publication and final settlement upon receipt of any duly 

executed approvals of the corporate surety or sureties issuing the bonds 

required hereunder. Such final settlement shall be advertised as provided by 

statute at least twice, the last publication appearing at least ten (10) days 

prior to the date of final settlement. On the date of final settlement (or such 

later date as may be permitted by statute if claims are asserted or litigation is 

commenced alleging nonpayment of funds due for labor, materials, supplies, 

etc.), payment and final settlement shall be made in full.  

9. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS.  In order to induce the City to enter into this 

Agreement, the Contractor makes the following representations: 

9.1. The Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the 

Agreement, Work, the locality, and with all local conditions and federal, state 

and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner may affect 

cost, progress or performance of the Work.  The Contractor acknowledges an 

obligation to comply with all applicable laws, including the Broomfield 

Municipal Code, to respect property rights by working within the defined work 

limits or designated staging areas, and to work within the prescribed work 

hours.  The Contractor acknowledges that use of air compression brakes ("jake 

brakes") within City limits is prohibited, unless otherwise posted by the City 

Traffic Engineer. 

9.2. Before submitting a proposal, the Contractor has become fully informed 

regarding the Work and any materials or equipment required, including the 

amount or quantity thereof. No adjustment or modification shall be allowed for 

any misunderstanding of the Work or of equipment or material requirements, or 

of the provisions contained in this Contract and in the other Contract 

Documents.  

9.3. Contractor has given the City written notice of any conflicts, errors or 

discrepancies that he has discovered in the Agreement and exhibits 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



incorporated therein and the written resolution thereof by the City is 

acceptable to the Contractor. 

10. NOTICE AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. Any notice required or permitted by this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given for all purposes if sent by 

email to the authorized representative identified below.  Such notice shall be deemed 

to have been given when the email was sent and received. The City may change its 

representative at any time by notice to the Contractor.  The Contractor shall not 

replace the Contractor Representative unless:  (a) the City requests a replacement, or 

(b) the Contractor terminates the employment of the Contractor Representative and 

provides a satisfactory substitute.  The City must approve a substitute Contractor 

Representative, and, if no substitute is acceptable, the City may terminate this 

Agreement. The Parties each designate an authorized representative as follows: 

5.1  The City designates Kelly Behling as the authorized representative of the City 

under this Agreement.  Email address is kbehling@broomfield.org.     

5.2 The Contractor designates Daragh Goode as the authorized representative of 

the Contractor under this Agreement.  Email address is daragh@denverdirtworks.com.  
 
If the Contractor is alleging that the City is in breach of this Agreement or has violated 

any term of this Agreement, Legal Notice shall be made by making the notice above 

with a copy to citycountyattorney@broomfield.org.  
 
Failure of City’s on-site representative to call to the attention of the Contractor any 

defective work or deviations from the Contract Documents shall not constitute 

acceptance of such work by the City or relieve the Contractor of its obligation to 

perform the Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

11. TIME EXTENSIONS AND COMPENSATION FOR DELAY. 

11.1. Remedy. If the Contractor is delayed or disrupted in the performance of the 

Work, the Contractor’s exclusive remedy with respect to such delay or 

disruption shall be as stated in this Section. 

11.2. Time Extensions. Evaluation of all time extension requests shall be based upon 

the latest updated project schedule submitted to the City by the Contractor. 

11.3. Definitions. The following words shall have the meaning set forth below: 

11.3.1. “Contractor Delay” is defined as delay on a particular date resulting 

from acts or omissions within the control of the Contractor or its 

subcontractors, agents or suppliers, including any delay within their 

joint control. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 

mailto:kbehling@broomfield.org
mailto:daragh@denverdirtworks.com
mailto:cityandcountyattorney@broomfield.org


11.3.2. “No-Fault Delay” is defined as delay on a particular date resulting from 

events beyond the reasonable control of and without the fault or 

negligence of either the Contractor or the City or their agents, 

employees, contractors, subcontractors, sub-subcontractors or 

suppliers. 

11.3.3. “Owner Delay” is defined as delay on a particular date resulting from 

acts or omissions within the control of the City, its agents, employees or 

contractors, including the City’s Representative. 

11.3.4. “Concurrent Delay” is defined as the occurrence on a particular date of 

one or more instances of Owner Delay and Contractor Delay, Owner 

Delay and No-Fault Delay or Contractor Delay and No-Fault Delay. 

11.4. Completion Date Adjustment. An adjustment in the Completion Date for delay 

on a particular date shall be made under this subparagraph if any delay on such 

date is classified as either Owner, No-Fault or Concurrent Delay. The 

adjustment in the Completion Date shall only be in proportion to the amount of 

the delay, which is attributable to Owner, or No-Fault Delay. No adjustment in 

the Completion Date shall be allowed for the portion of the delay that is 

attributable to Contractor Delay, including but not limited to, that portion of a 

Concurrent Delay which includes Contractor Delay. 

11.5. Price Adjustment. An adjustment in the Contract Price for delay on a particular 

date shall be made under this subparagraph only if such delay is classified as 

either Owner Delay or Concurrent Delay when such Concurrent Delay includes 

Owner Delay. The adjustment in the Contract Price shall only be in proportion 

to the portion of the delay costs, which is directly attributable to Owner Delay. 

No adjustment in the Contract Price shall be made for the portion of the delay 

costs, which is attributable to Contractor Delay, or No-Fault Delay, or that 

portion of a Concurrent Delay which includes Contractor Delay or No-Fault 

Delay or both. 

11.6. Mitigation. An adjustment in Contract Price shall be made under this 

subparagraph only to the extent to which the Contractor can demonstrate that 

its time-related costs to complete the Work will be increased. The Contractor 

expressly acknowledges its obligation to minimize the cost impact of 

compensable delays. The Contractor shall, to the best of its ability, re-assign 

labor and equipment, commence unaffected portions of the Work, and 

otherwise minimize delay costs. In no event shall the City be liable for payment 

of delay costs, which could have been avoided or mitigated by any means 

reasonably available to the Contractor or for consequential damages. 

11.7. Notification of Delay and Recovery. The Contractor shall notify the City as soon 

as practicable regarding the nature and starting date of a delay, and the 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



activities affected, but in no case later than seven (7) calendar days after the 

event giving rise to the delay. In the case of a continuing delay, only one 

notification shall be necessary. Any claim for an extension of time for delay 

shall be made in writing to the City not more than ten (10) calendar days after 

the end of the delay; otherwise, such claim shall be waived. Recovery of delay 

costs shall be waived unless a request for a change order for delay costs is 

submitted within ten (10) calendar days after the end of the delay period. The 

Contractor must also provide a cost and time impact analysis with any request 

for a change order for delay costs. The cost impact analysis shall contain all 

direct and indirect labor costs, all material and equipment expenses, any and 

all documented impact costs related to, and/or occasioned by the Work 

described therein, as well as all taxes (if applicable under the provisions of this 

Contract), insurance and profit. Documentation supporting this cost impact 

analysis must be submitted at the time of the request for change order for 

delay costs. 

12. DEFAULT AND DAMAGES. If the Contractor fails to comply with any provision of this 

Agreement, the Contractor shall be liable for any and all damages, including without 

limitation, the cost of procuring similar supplies and services and all other costs and 

expenses incurred by the City because of such failure. If the Contractor fails or refuses 

to perform the Work on schedule, or to complete the Work in a timely and satisfactory 

manner, the City may terminate this Contract and the Contractor’s right to proceed 

hereunder. If the City terminates this Contract under this paragraph, the Contractor 

may, at the option of the City, be required to cease any or all Work provided for under 

this Contract and shall be liable for any additional cost to the City for services 

acceptable to the City from another contractor as well as any actual damages 

associated with such failure to perform. The cost to complete the Work or any portion 

thereof which remains unperformed at the time of such termination, together with 

any other damages, shall be deducted from any sum payable hereunder before final 

payment to the Contractor.  

13. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Time is of the essence in completing the Work.  Alternatively, 

and in lieu of actual damages for delay, in the event of delay in the completion of the 

Work as specified beyond the Completion Date, it would be difficult to determine the 

exact amount of the loss or damages suffered by the City due to delays in completion 

of the Work. However, the City has attempted to forecast a reasonable daily amount as 

compensation for the damages incurred due to late completion caused by the 

Contractor, based upon considerations which include, but are not limited to, public 

inconvenience and additional contract administration costs.  Therefore, the Contractor 

will be liable to the City, as liquidated damages (and not as a penalty), in the amount 

of $500 for each and every calendar day beyond the Completion Date.  The City 

reserves the right to deduct said liquidated damages from any amount due the 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



Contractor under this Agreement or, at its option, to collect such liquidated damages 

directly from the Contractor or its surety. 

14. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS. In accordance with C.R.S. §38-26-105, if the 

Contract Price exceeds $50,000, the Contractor shall furnish at its expense a separate 

performance bond and labor and materials bond, each for an amount not less than one 

hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price. The bonds shall be issued by a qualified 

corporate surety licensed to transact business in Colorado. If at any time during 

performance of the Work the surety on the bonds shall be disqualified from doing 

business in Colorado, or shall become insolvent or otherwise impaired, the Contractor 

shall furnish bonds from an alternate surety acceptable to the City. The bonds shall 

remain in effect through Final Acceptance, and continuing in effect through 

completion of all warranty and guaranty work and shall be delivered to the City prior 

to the commencement of the Work. The Contractor shall secure an increase in the 

bonds in an amount equal to the cost of any additional work authorized pursuant to a 

duly executed change order or contract amendment. 

15. COLORADO LABOR. If the Contract Price exceeds $500,000, the Contractor shall 

employ not less than eighty percent of Colorado labor of each type or class of labor in 

the several classifications of skilled and common labor to perform the work under this 

Agreement in accordance with the provisions of C.R.S. §8-17-101 et seq.  

16. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Contractor is an independent contractor as 

provided in C.R.S. § 8-40-202(2). The Contractor is not entitled to workers' 

compensation benefits and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state 

income tax on monies earned pursuant to this Agreement. 

17. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the City, its officers, employees and insurers from and against all claims, 

damages, losses, expenses and demands, including court costs, attorney’s fees and 

expenses, due to injuries, losses or damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any 

manner connected with the Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors or 

agents in connection with the performance of the services pursuant to this Agreement. 

Except for workers’ compensation, disability benefits or other similar employee 

benefit claims, Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the City hereunder for that 

portion of any claims, damages, losses, demands, and expenses arising out of or 

resulting from any negligent act or omission of the City, or its agents and employees.  

This indemnification is intended to comply with and be subject to C.R.S. 

13-50.5-102(8), as amended from time to time. In the event that any such suit or 

action is brought against the City, the City will give timely notice thereof to the other 

Party.  

18. INSURANCE.  To assure the City that the Contractor is always capable of fulfilling 

specified indemnification obligations, the Contractor shall purchase and maintain 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



insurance of the kind and in the amounts required by the City, from an insurer with an 

AM Best FSR rating of A- or higher as more particularly set forth on Exhibit C.  Current 

proof of such insurance is attached at Exhibit C, incorporated by this reference. 

However, proof of insurance attached as Exhibit C shall not be deemed to limit or 

define obligations of Contractor as provided elsewhere in this Agreement, and 

Contractor should rely on its expertise to obtain additional insurance coverage needed 

for the City and Contractor in its performance hereunder. 

19. APPROVAL OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND CONSULTANTS.  The Contractor shall not employ 

any subcontractors or consultants without the prior written approval of the City 

Representative.  Prior to commencing any work, each subcontractor or consultant shall 

provide the appropriate insurance as required for the Contractor under this 

Agreement.  The Contractor shall be responsible for coordination of the work and the 

acts and omissions of its agents, employees, subcontractors, consultants and suppliers, 

and shall bind each to the terms of this Agreement so far as are applicable.  This 

Agreement is voidable by the City if subcontracted by the Contractor without the 

express written consent of the City. 

20. WARRANTY.  

20.1. Warranty Period. The Contractor warrants that it will perform the Work in a 

timely, accurate and complete manner in accordance with the provisions of this 

Agreement. The Contractor warrants that the materials and/or workmanship 

will conform to the Contract Documents and that the materials used will be of 

good quality and new and that the Work shall be free from defects. The 

Contractor shall guarantee the Work against defects in workmanship and 

materials for a period of 2 years, commencing on the date of final acceptance 

of the Work by the City Representative (the “Warranty Period”). The Contractor 

shall also assign to the City any longer term guarantee of materials used by the 

Contractor as may be provided by the manufacturer. The Contractor shall 

promptly replace any materials or re-perform any portion of the Work found to 

be defective within the Warranty Period in accordance with this Agreement and 

without expense to the City. The time allowed for such corrective action shall 

be mutually agreed upon by the City and the Contractor. If the Contractor fails 

to proceed promptly in accordance with these guarantees, the City reserves 

the right to place the Contractor in default of its contractual obligations and 

may have the Work performed at the expense of the Contractor. This provision 

shall survive the completion of the Work and the termination of this 

Agreement. The above guarantee does not limit any claims that the City may 

otherwise have against the Contractor. 

20.2. Warranty Verification. At least 60 calendar days prior to the expiration of the 

Warranty Period, the City Representative shall have the option to make an 

inspection to determine whether the Work has been completed in accordance 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



with this Agreement and may submit a written list of any defects to the 

Contractor (the “Warranty Work”). In the event the City chooses this option, 

the Contractor shall promptly correct all Warranty Work without additional cost 

to the City within the Warranty Period. If any Warranty Work cannot be 

corrected within the Warranty Period, the Contractor shall submit a letter to 

the City Representative for approval requesting an extension of time to 

complete such item (the “Request for Extension of Warranty Work”). The 

Request for Extension of Warranty Work must be received by the City 

Representative within seven calendar days of the Contractor’s receipt of the 

Warranty Work and shall include the Contractor’s justification for the request 

and a schedule for completion of the Warranty. 

21. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is intended to describe the rights and 

responsibilities only as to the parties hereto.  This Agreement is not intended and shall 

not be deemed to confer any rights on any person or entity not named as a party 

hereto. 

22. FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY.  All financial obligations of the City under this 

Agreement are subject to appropriation, budgeting, and availability of funds to 

discharge such obligations.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to pledge the 

City’s credit or faith, directly or indirectly, to the Contractor. If funds for this 

Agreement are not appropriated and budgeted in any year subsequent to the fiscal 

year of execution of this Agreement as determined by the City, this Agreement may be 

terminated by the City upon written notice to the Contractor.  The City’s fiscal year is 

currently the calendar year. 

23. EXHIBITS.  All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are by reference incorporated 

herein for all purposes. 

24. INTEGRATION AND AMENDMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement 

between the Parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings.  

This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the 

Parties. For purposes of clarity, the terms and conditions of any Contractor invoice, 

Contractor timesheet, or other form, including but not limited to indemnification, 

limitation of liability, or cancellation fees, shall be void and of no effect against the 

City notwithstanding any signatures on such form by a City employee.  The 

Contractor’s rights and obligations shall be solely governed by the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement.  

25. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this agreement as applied to either Party or to any 

circumstance shall be adjudged by a court to be void or unenforceable, the same shall 

in no way affect any other provision of this Agreement, the application of any such 

provision in any other circumstances, or the validity or enforceability of the 

Agreement as a whole. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



26. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS OR ACTION. The parties agree to execute any additional 

documents or take any additional action that is necessary to carry out this Agreement. 

27. MINOR CHANGES. The Parties executing this Agreement are authorized to make 

nonsubstantive corrections to this Agreement and attached exhibits, if any, as they 

consider necessary. 

28. DOCUMENTS.  All drawings, analyses, plans, tests, maps, surveys, electronic files and 

written material of any kind generated in the performance of this Agreement or 

developed specifically for work performed under this Agreement shall remain the sole 

and exclusive property of the City, and the other Party shall not provide copies of any 

such material to anyone without the express written consent of the City. 

29. RECORDS RETENTION.  The Contractor shall maintain complete and accurate records of 

time spent and materials used for performance of the Work, together with any 

invoices, time cards, or other supporting data reasonably requested.  All records, data 

and documentation shall be retained by the Contractor for a period of not less than 

three (3) years after completion of the Work, and shall be subject to review, 

inspection and copying by the CIty upon reasonable notice.  

30. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT.  No elected or employed member of City government shall 

directly or indirectly be paid or receive any share or part of this Agreement or any 

benefit that may arise therefrom.  The Contractor warrants that it has not retained 

any entity or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 

Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  

31. SALES TAX EXEMPTION.  The Contractor and its subcontractors, consultants and 

suppliers will not be required to pay Colorado state sales and use taxes on property 

incorporated into the Work.  The Contractor shall obtain a sales tax exemption permit 

from the State of Colorado Department of Revenue, if necessary, to obtain materials 

for the Work without the payment of Colorado state sales tax.  

32. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party without the prior 

written consent of the other Party. 

33. BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 

parties and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns, 

provided that nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to permit the assignment of 

this Agreement except as otherwise expressly authorized herein. 

34. DAYS. If the day for any performance or event provided for herein is a Saturday, a 

Sunday, a day on which national banks are not open for the regular transactions of 

business, or a legal holiday pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-11-101(1), such day shall be 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



extended until the next day on which such banks and state offices are open for the 

transaction of business. 

35. NO PRESUMPTION. The Parties to this Agreement and their attorneys have had a full 

opportunity to review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this 

Agreement.  Accordingly, this Agreement shall be construed without regard to any 

presumption or other rule of construction against the Party causing the Agreement to 

be drafted. 

36. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES.  In the performance of this Agreement or in considering any 

requested approval, acceptance, or extension of time, the Parties agree that each will 

act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or 

unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, or extension of 

time required or requested pursuant to this Agreement. 

37. WAIVER OF BREACH. This Agreement or any of its provisions may not be waived except 

in writing by a Party’s authorized representative. A waiver by any party to this 

Agreement of the breach of any term or provision of this Agreement shall not operate 

or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by either party. 

38. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Colorado.  Any claims or litigation arising under this Agreement will be brought by the 

Parties solely in the District Court, Broomfield County, Colorado. 

39. LAWS TO BE OBSERVED.  The Contractor shall be cognizant of all federal and state laws 

and local ordinances and regulations that in any manner affect those engaged or 

employed in the work or which in any manner affect the conduct of the work, and of 

all such orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority 

over the same, and shall at all times observe and comply with all such existing laws, 

ordinances, regulations and decrees, and shall protect and indemnify the City against 

any claim or liability arising from or based on the violations of any such law, 

ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether by itself, its subcontractors, agents or 

employees. The Contractor shall procure all necessary approvals, licenses and permits 

at its own expense; provided, that, the Contractor will be able to receive no cost 

permits when such permits are issued by the City directly. 

40. TERMINATION.  The City reserves the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in 

part, with or without cause by written notice to the Contractor. In the event of 

termination, the Contractor shall incur no additional expenses and shall perform no 

further Work for the City under this Agreement after the date of receipt of the notice 

of termination, unless otherwise specified by the City. The City shall pay the 

Contractor for all work satisfactorily performed prior to receipt of the notice of 

termination and for other services required by the City to be completed prior to 

termination and satisfactorily performed. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



41. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Parties 

understand and agree that all terms and conditions of this Agreement that require 

continued performance or compliance beyond the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement, including without limitation the indemnification provision, shall survive 

such termination or expiration and shall be enforceable against a Party if such Party 

fails to perform or comply with such term or condition. 

42. DIGITAL ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS.  In 2021, the State of Colorado adopted HB21-1110 

relating to the digital accessibility standards required to be implemented under the 

Colorado Anti-Discrimination Act which makes it unlawful to discriminate against 

individuals with a disability. In order to comply with the law on or before July 1, 2024, 

the Contractor shall ensure that all digital deliverables and digital technology provided 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall comply with at least the Web Content 

Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.1 Level AA, or such updated standard as the 

Colorado Governor’s Office of Information Technology may adopt from time-to-time.   

43. EXECUTION; ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be executed in 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall 

constitute but one and the same instrument. This Agreement shall not be binding upon 

any Party hereto unless and until the Parties have executed this Agreement. The 

Parties approve the use of electronic signatures for execution of this Agreement. All 

documents must be properly notarized, if applicable.   

 

 

 

 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 

 

 

 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto in their respective names as 

of ___________________, 2025. 

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 

a Colorado municipal corporation and county 

_________________________________ 

Mayor 
One DesCombes Drive 

Broomfield, CO  80020 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 

City and County Attorney’s Office 

Construction Asset Replacement 

      Updated 4/16/2023 



CONTRACTOR: 

 

Denver Dirt Works, Inc. 

 

  

   

By: _____________________________________ 

Name: 

Address: 

 

  

 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 

Sean Shelbourn
8330 N Sundown Trail, Parker CO 80134



EXHIBIT A  

 
SCOPE OF WORK  

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



SCOPE OF WORK 

 

The Work includes, but is not limited to removal and replacement of sidewalk, removal and 

replacement of curb ramps, removal and replacement of curb and gutter, and installation of 

railing, median cover, signage and pavement marking at multiple separate locations 

throughout the City, together with all incidentals and miscellaneous items necessary to do the 

Work. 

 

 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



EXHIBIT B 

 
CONTRACTOR’S COST PROPOSAL 

 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



CONTRACT 

ITEM NO. 
CONTRACT ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL COST

1ST AVE 

MIDBLOCK

10TH AVE 

MIDBLOCK

HICKORY ST 

EAST

HICKORY ST 

WEST

CYPRESS 

LANE WEST

CYPRESS 

LANE EAST

SHERIDAN 

BLVD & 

ZENOBIA ST

ANTHEM 

RANCH RD & 

ALIANT DR

BELFORD 

CIR 

MIDBLOCK

SILVER 

MOUNTAIN 

LOOP

201-00000 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1 3,500.00$          3,500.00$                 

202-00200 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 301 14.70$               4,424.70$                 40 82 7 20 12 12 52 46 16 14

202-00203 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER LF 479 14.90$               7,137.10$                 90 101 16 30 32 32 128 16 18 16

202-00220 REMOVAL OF ASPHALT MAT (FULL DEPTH) SY 181 20.15$               3,647.15$                 83 21 4 7 10 10 34 4 4 4

202-00240 REMOVAL OF ASPHALT (PLANING) (2 INCH) SY 84 15.00$               1,260.00$                 84 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

202-00250 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT MARKING SF 120 11.25$               1,350.00$                 120 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

212-01200 LANDSCAPE RESTORATION LS 10 232.50$             2,325.00$                 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

403-00721 HOT MIX ASPHALT (PATCHING) (ASPHALT) SY 150 125.00$             18,750.00$               52 21 4 7 10 10 34 4 4 4

403-00729 HOT MIX ASPHALT (OVERLAY) (2 INCH) SY 84 37.50$               3,150.00$                 84 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

514-00042 PEDESTRIAN RAILING (42 INCH) LF 22 265.00$             5,830.00$                 0 22 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

608-00006 CONCRETE SIDEWALK (6 INCH) SY 249 102.25$             25,460.25$               40 69 5 15 6 9 36 46 13 10

608-00010 CONCRETE CURB RAMP SY 160 235.00$             37,600.00$               8 29 11 9 22 22 24 13 12 10

609-21020 VERTICAL CATCH CURB WITH 2' GUTTER LF 457 35.75$               16,337.75$               176 101 16 30 0 0 118 16 0 0

609-21900 MOUNTABLE CURB & GUTTER LF 98 32.35$               3,170.30$                 0 0 0 0 32 32 0 0 18 16

609-24006 CONCRETE CROSS PAN (GUTTER TYPE-2) LF 53 44.50$               2,358.50$                 0 0 0 0 0 0 53 0 0 0

609-71000 SIDEWALK CHASE LF 20 275.00$             5,500.00$                 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

610-00030 CONCRETE MEDIAN COVER SY 31 133.60$             4,141.60$                 8 0 0 0 0 0 23 0 0 0

614-00025 SIGN PANEL (CLASS 1) SF 173 31.25$               5,406.25$                 31 17 17 17 17 17 6 17 17 17

614-00214 STEEL SIGN POST (1.75X1.75 INCH TUBING) LF 147 57.70$               8,481.90$                 28 14 14 14 14 14 7 14 14 14

626-00000 MOBILIZATION LS 10 4,000.00$          40,000.00$               1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

627-00002 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING SF 688 17.50$               12,040.00$               48 96 0 0 80 80 160 224 0 0

630-00016 TRAFFIC CONTROL (SPECIAL) LS 1 12,500.00$        12,500.00$               

700-70010 F/A MINOR CONTRACT REVISIONS F/A 1 15,000.00$        15,000.00$               

239,370.50$       

QUANTITIES PROVIDED AT EACH LOCATION ARE ESTIMATES AND ARE MEANT TO ASSIST

PAY ITEM QUANTITY WAS NOT DEVELOPED FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL LOCATION

PAY ITEM QUANTITY WAS NOT DEVELOPED FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL LOCATION

PAY ITEM QUANTITY WAS NOT DEVELOPED FOR EACH INDIVIDUAL LOCATION

TOTAL COST    

Denver Dirt Works, Inc. - Cost Proposal ADA Ramp Program
1/21/2025

Base Bid



CONTRACT ITEM 

NO. CONTRACT ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

201-00000 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1  $            500.00  $                   500.00 

202-00200 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 38  $              20.00  $                   760.00 

202-00203 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER LF 56  $              20.00  $                1,120.00 

202-00220 REMOVAL OF ASPHALT MAT (FULL DEPTH) SY 14  $              50.00  $                   700.00 

212-01200 LANDSCAPE RESTORATION LS 1  $            500.00  $                   500.00 

403-00721 HOT MIX ASPHALT (PATCHING) (ASPHALT) SY 14  $            150.00  $                2,100.00 

514-00042 PEDESTRIAN RAILING (42 INCH) LF 14  $            250.00  $                3,500.00 

608-00006 CONCRETE SIDEWALK (6 INCH) SY 33  $            105.00  $                3,465.00 

608-00010 CONCRETE CURB RAMP SY 17  $            235.00  $                3,995.00 

609-21020 VERTICAL CATCH CURB WITH 2' GUTTER LF 56  $              35.00  $                1,960.00 

614-00025 SIGN PANEL (CLASS 1) SF 17  $              25.00  $                   425.00 

614-00214 STEEL SIGN POST (1.75X1.75 INCH TUBING) LF 14  $              43.00  $                   602.00 

626-00000 MOBILIZATION LS 1  $         3,000.00  $                3,000.00 

627-00002 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING SF 80  $              17.50  $                1,400.00 

630-00016 TRAFFIC CONTROL (SPECIAL) LS 1  $         1,000.00  $                1,000.00 

700-70010 F/A MINOR CONTRACT REVISIONS F/A 1  $         2,000.00  $                2,000.00 

 $         27,027.00 TOTAL COST    

Add Alternate 2



CONTRACT 

ITEM NO. 
CONTRACT ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

201-00000 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1  $             500.00  $                      500.00 

202-00200 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 46  $               20.00  $                      920.00 

202-00203 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER LF 32  $               20.00  $                      640.00 

202-00220 REMOVAL OF ASPHALT MAT (FULL DEPTH) SY 8  $               50.00  $                      400.00 

212-01200 LANDSCAPE RESTORATION LS 1  $             500.00  $                      500.00 

403-00721 HOT MIX ASPHALT (PATCHING) (ASPHALT) SY 8  $             150.00  $                   1,200.00 

608-00006 CONCRETE SIDEWALK (6 INCH) SY 37  $             105.00  $                   3,885.00 

608-00010 CONCRETE CURB RAMP SY 17  $             235.00  $                   3,995.00 

609-21900 MOUNTABLE CURB & GUTTER LF 32  $               32.00  $                   1,024.00 

614-00025 SIGN PANEL (CLASS 1) SF 17  $               25.00  $                      425.00 

614-00214 STEEL SIGN POST (1.75X1.75 INCH TUBING) LF 14  $               43.00  $                      602.00 

626-00000 MOBILIZATION LS 1  $          3,000.00  $                   3,000.00 

627-00002 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING SF 80  $               17.50  $                   1,400.00 

630-00016 TRAFFIC CONTROL (SPECIAL) LS 1  $          1,000.00  $                   1,000.00 

700-70010 F/A MINOR CONTRACT REVISIONS F/A 1  $          2,000.00  $                   2,000.00 

 $          21,491.00 TOTAL COST    

Add Alternate 3



CONTRACT 

ITEM NO. 
CONTRACT ITEM UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

201-00000 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1  $             500.00  $                     500.00 

202-00200 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 46  $               20.00  $                     920.00 

202-00203 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER LF 32  $               20.00  $                     640.00 

202-00220 REMOVAL OF ASPHALT MAT (FULL DEPTH) SY 8  $               50.00  $                     400.00 

212-01200 LANDSCAPE RESTORATION LS 1  $             500.00  $                     500.00 

403-00721 HOT MIX ASPHALT (PATCHING) (ASPHALT) SY 8  $             150.00  $                  1,200.00 

608-00006 CONCRETE SIDEWALK (6 INCH) SY 36  $             105.00  $                  3,780.00 

608-00010 CONCRETE CURB RAMP SY 18  $             235.00  $                  4,230.00 

609-21900 MOUNTABLE CURB & GUTTER LF 32  $               32.00  $                  1,024.00 

614-00025 SIGN PANEL (CLASS 1) SF 17  $               25.00  $                     425.00 

614-00214 STEEL SIGN POST (1.75X1.75 INCH TUBING) LF 14  $               43.00  $                     602.00 

626-00000 MOBILIZATION LS 1  $          3,000.00  $                  3,000.00 

627-00002 THERMOPLASTIC PAVEMENT MARKING SF 80  $               17.50  $                  1,400.00 

630-00016 TRAFFIC CONTROL (SPECIAL) LS 1  $          1,000.00  $                  1,000.00 

700-70010 F/A MINOR CONTRACT REVISIONS F/A 1  $          2,000.00  $                  2,000.00 

21,621.00$          TOTAL COST    

Add Alternate 4



EXHIBIT C 

 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
 



City and County of Broomfield Insurance Requirements

Including General Liability, Automobile, and Workers’ Compensation

General Requirements (Version dated December 2024)

1. All insurers shall be licensed or approved to do business within the State of Colorado.

2. Contractor/Vendor’s insurance carriers shall have an A.M. Best Company rating of at least A− Class VII.

3. Additional Insured. City and County of Broomfield, its officers, board members, agents, employees and

volunteers acting within the scope of their duties for the City and County of Broomfield shall be named as

Additional Insured on all Commercial General Liability, umbrella liability, excess liability, and Automobile

Liability Insurance policies (construction contracts require Additional Insured coverage for completed

operations).

4. Primacy of Coverage. Coverage required of Contractors and Subcontractors shall be primary and

non-contributory to any insurance carried by the City and County of Broomfield.

5. All subcontractors must meet the same insurance requirements for the Contract or Purchase Order unless

Risk Management has approved a deviation.

6. Subrogation Waiver. All insurance policies required under this Contract maintained by Contractor or its

Subcontractors shall waive all rights of recovery against City and County of Broomfield, its officers, board

members, agents, employees and volunteers acting within the scope of their duties for the City and County

of Broomfield.

7. Cancellation, Change in Coverage or Limits. The above insurance policies shall include provisions

preventing cancellation, non-renewal, or reduction in coverage or limits of any insurance, without at least

30 days prior notice to Contractor/Vendor and Contractor/Vendor shall forward such notice to within seven

days of receipt of such notice.

8. Certificates. Contractor and all Subcontractors shall provide certificates showing insurance coverage

required hereunder to the City and County of Broomfield within 5 days of:

a. the effective date of the Contract

b. the expiration date of any coverage

c. a request by the City and County of Broomfield

9. Separation of Insureds. All insurance policies shall include coverage for cross liability and contain a

“Separation of Insureds” provision in the general liability policy.

10. City and County of Broomfield in no way warrants that the limits required herein are sufficient to protect

the Contractor/Vendor from liabilities that may arise out of the performance of the work under this

Contract by the Contractor, its agents, representative, employees or subcontractors. The Contractor is not

relieved of any liability or other obligations assumed or pursuant to the Contract by reason of its failure to

obtain or maintain insurance in sufficient amounts, duration or type.

11. All parties understand and agree that the City and County of Broomfield is relying on, and does not waive

or intend to waive by any provision of this Contract, the monetary limitations, immunities, protections or

any other rights provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act.

12. The City and County of Broomfield reserves the right to negotiate additional specific insurance

requirements at the time of the Contract.

13. The City and County of Broomfield and Contractor shall cooperate with each other in the collection of any

insurance proceeds which may be payable in the event of any loss, including the execution and delivery of

any proof of loss or other actions required to effect recovery.



Insurance Requirements

The Vendor/Contractor/Subcontractor shall obtain and maintain, at its own expense, and for the duration of

the Agreement including any warranty periods under which the Agreement are satisfied, the following:

Commercial General Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance covering all operations by or on behalf of the contractor/vendor on an

occurrence basis against claims for bodily injury, property damage (including loss of use), advertising liability,

products and completed operations, and contractual liability. For contracts involving vendor/contractor contact

with minors or at risk adults, Sexual Abuse and Misconduct Coverage should be included in the coverage

requirements and listed on the certificate.

Minimum limits:

● $1,000,000 Each Occurrence

● $2,000,000 General Aggregate (per project aggregate for construction contracts)

● $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate (for construction projects, this coverage should

be maintained for a minimum of 3 years from the end of the project)

Automobile Liability

Automobile Liability Insurance covering any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos).

Minimum limits:

● $1,000,000 each accident combined single limit

● If hazardous materials are transported, an MCS 90 form shall be included on the policy

Workers’ Compensation

Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by State statute, covering all Vendors/Contractors employees

acting within the course and scope of their employment. This requirement shall not apply when a contractor or

subcontractor is exempt under the Colorado Workers’ Compensation Act and when such contractor or

subcontractor provides an appropriate sole proprietor letter.

Employer’s Liability with minimum limits:

● $100,000 Each Accident

● $100,000 Each Employee by Disease

● $500,000 Disease Aggregate

Deviations

Any deviations below the standards given above must be approved by the City and County of Broomfield’s Risk

Management office. Please direct any questions to RiskManagement@broomfield.org.

Certificate Holder/Certificate of Insurance (COI)

On all Certificates of Insurance the following shall be named an Additional Insured and included on the

Certificate provided:

The City and County of Broomfield, its officers, board members, agents, employees and volunteers acting

within the scope of their duties for the City and County of Broomfield shall be named as Additional Insured on

all Commercial General Liability, Umbrella Liability, Excess Liability, and Automobile Liability Insurance policies

(construction contracts require Additional Insured coverage for completed operations). A Waiver of Subrogation

is provided in favor of the Additional Insureds as respects to all policies.

City and County of Broomfield

One DesCombes Drive

Broomfield, CO 80020-2495

certificates@broomfield.org

mailto:RiskManagement@broomfield.org
mailto:certificates@broomfield.org


City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

C. Proposed Resolutions for DOLA Energy and Mineral Impact Grant Funds for Harvest Hill Affordable Housing
Development

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6C.

Presented By

Sharon Tessier, Housing Policy and Development Manager

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

View Correspondence

View Presentation

A resolution authorizing the City and County of Broomfield to accept $2 million in grant funding from the Colorado
Department of Local Affairs' Energy & Mineral Impact Assistance Program for the Harvest Hill Development
project. A second resolution approves a forgivable loan agreement between the City and County of Broomfield and
Harvest Hill Owner, LLC, for the disbursement of grant funds from the Energy & Mineral Impact Assistance Program
for the Harvest Hill project.

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo - Energy and Mineral Impact Grant for Harvest Hill Development
Resolution No. 2025-25
Resolution No. 2025-57
Ulysses Harvest Hill – DOLA Loan Agreement FINAL 2-25-2025.pdf
DOLA Award Letter - Energy & Mineral Grant for Ulysses Hill Connection Fees

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FMemo%20for%20Resolution%2025-25%20and%2025-57%20Accepting%20and%20allocating%20%242M%20in%20grant%20funding%20from%20DOLA_Energy%20and%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20for%20Harvest%20Hill%20Development.pdf?alt=media&token=29d9f5c0-ed64-47ef-bf96-9fd4859ac1a4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FMemo%20for%20Resolution%2025-25%20and%2025-57%20Accepting%20and%20allocating%20%242M%20in%20grant%20funding%20from%20DOLA_Energy%20and%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20for%20Harvest%20Hill%20Development.pdf?alt=media&token=29d9f5c0-ed64-47ef-bf96-9fd4859ac1a4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FMemo%20for%20Resolution%2025-25%20and%2025-57%20Accepting%20and%20allocating%20%242M%20in%20grant%20funding%20from%20DOLA_Energy%20and%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20for%20Harvest%20Hill%20Development.pdf?alt=media&token=29d9f5c0-ed64-47ef-bf96-9fd4859ac1a4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FResolution%202025-25%20Accepting%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20Funds%20and%20allocating%20the%20funds%20to%20the%20Harvest%20Hill%20Development%20.pdf?alt=media&token=d9e4bb02-4129-4b0b-8572-4b3716be5010
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FResolution%202025-25%20Accepting%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20Funds%20and%20allocating%20the%20funds%20to%20the%20Harvest%20Hill%20Development%20.pdf?alt=media&token=d9e4bb02-4129-4b0b-8572-4b3716be5010
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FResolution%202025-25%20Accepting%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20Funds%20and%20allocating%20the%20funds%20to%20the%20Harvest%20Hill%20Development%20.pdf?alt=media&token=d9e4bb02-4129-4b0b-8572-4b3716be5010
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FResolution%202025-57%20Loan%20Agreement%20to%20Harvest%20Hill%20for%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20Funds%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ee354821-9552-4fb0-9a70-bd86a5c1f16d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FResolution%202025-57%20Loan%20Agreement%20to%20Harvest%20Hill%20for%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20Funds%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ee354821-9552-4fb0-9a70-bd86a5c1f16d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FResolution%202025-57%20Loan%20Agreement%20to%20Harvest%20Hill%20for%20Mineral%20Impact%20Grant%20Funds%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ee354821-9552-4fb0-9a70-bd86a5c1f16d
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FUlysses%20Harvest%20Hill%20%E2%80%93%20DOLA%20Loan%20Agreement%20FINAL%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=bbcf7aef-e266-4d58-a876-79a37e3c81aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FUlysses%20Harvest%20Hill%20%E2%80%93%20DOLA%20Loan%20Agreement%20FINAL%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=bbcf7aef-e266-4d58-a876-79a37e3c81aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FUlysses%20Harvest%20Hill%20%E2%80%93%20DOLA%20Loan%20Agreement%20FINAL%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=bbcf7aef-e266-4d58-a876-79a37e3c81aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FEIAF%2010008%20MHN%20AWARD%20-%20City%20and%20County%20of%20Broomfield%20(5).pdf?alt=media&token=59c7f37c-24d9-4ad3-8d83-8bc2f2d26143
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FEIAF%2010008%20MHN%20AWARD%20-%20City%20and%20County%20of%20Broomfield%20(5).pdf?alt=media&token=59c7f37c-24d9-4ad3-8d83-8bc2f2d26143
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765ac2f5b76a80054c439fc%2FEIAF%2010008%20MHN%20AWARD%20-%20City%20and%20County%20of%20Broomfield%20(5).pdf?alt=media&token=59c7f37c-24d9-4ad3-8d83-8bc2f2d26143


Memo - Accepting the DOLA Energy & Mineral Impact Grant for the Harvest Hill Project; Approving a Loan Agreement 
Prepared By: Sharon Tessier, Housing Policy Manager 

Summary 

 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

On July 30, 2024 Broomfield City Council unanimously approved Resolution 2024-76, which provided Ulysses 

Development Group (Ulysses) with $2M in gap financing from the Housing Development Fund (HDF). The HDF 

was created from the Inclusionary Housing Ordinance and generates revenue from the cash-in-lieu payments 

from developers. City Council also provided direction to staff to apply for the Energy & Mineral Impact Grant 

through the Department of Local Affairs and funded with Proposition 123 dollars.  

 

Housing and Economic Development staff applied for the Impact Grant and were invited to present to the 

Energy and Mineral Impact Board in Wray, CO on October 30, 2024. The presentation included information 

supporting how the City and County of Broomfield is impacted by oil and gas (energy and mineral) 

operations and offered how the Impact Grant funds could go a long way in assisting Ulysses with water and 

sewer license fees for their Affordable Housing Development - Harvest Hill. Harvest Hill provides one, two, 

and three-bedroom homes with income averages at 60% Area Median Income (AMI). The project is located at 

11801 Wadsworth Blvd, Broomfield, CO 80020. 

 

In Early November of 2024, Broomfield was awarded the maximum award amount of $2M to assist with the 

Harvest Hill project. The grant award is a match award and will reimburse the City for $2M of the total of 

approximately $4.39M in water and sewer license fees incurred from the Harvest Hill project. Staff is 

needing City Council approval to accept the grant funds and allocate the $2M to reimburse Harvest Hill 

Owner, LLC (Harvest Hill) which is the entity Ulysses has formed to own the project for the fees. 

 

Harvest Hill will make the initial payment of approximately $4.39M to the City for the water and sewer 

license fees at permitting. This payment includes the $2M in gap financing awarded to Ulysses from the HDF. 

Upon payment for the license fees by Harvest Hill, Broomfield will request the $2M from DOLA and once 

received, will reimburse Harvest Hill the $2M in awarded grant funds.  

 

Additionally, staff is requesting approval of a loan agreement between Broomfield and Harvest Hill for the 

$2M in grant funds. The loan will be repayable to Broomfield upon expiration of Harvest Hill’s tax-exempt 

financing, similar to that of the HDF loan approved by the City Council in 2024. The loan is necessary since 

the grant funds may be recaptured by DOLA in the event the Harvest Hill project fails to be completed.   

 

The Harvest Hill Development will be instrumental in helping Broomfield achieve the required increase in 

affordable units related to opting into Proposition 123 with the State. The required unit count is 164 units.  

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-25, if approved, will accept the grant funds awarded by DOLA and allocate the 

$2M to reimburse Harvest Hill. 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-57, if approved, will approve a loan agreement with Harvest Hill for the 

Energy & Mineral Impact Grant funds and authorize the City and County Manager to sign any documents 

related to or necessary to secure the loan in a form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

 

 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1e-dz3bKZS0Msr5__p7FkqRf1XPjHlbPm/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/11JMmscQG8UfMlR4iwMsF32iRqVZdmSKs/view?usp=sharing


 

Financial Considerations 

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 

budgeted amount. 

 

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

Energy and Mineral Impact Grant (DOLA) (01-00000-43300) $2,000,000 

 

Ulysses - Harvest Hill Development (01-83200-59120) $2,000,000 

Projected Balance $0 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

July 30, 2024  Resolution 2024-76 -Approving $2M loan from Housing Development Fund to Ulysses 

April 11, 2023 Resolution 2023-42 and 2023-43-UR PUD Plan Amendment and Site Development 
 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

Highlight recommendations from Boards & Commissions if there are any. If not, N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to accept the grant funds awarded by DOLA and allocate the $2m to reimburse Harvest 

Hill, the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-25 be adopted. 

 

If Council desires to approve a loan agreement with Harvest Hill concerning the DOLA grant funds, the 

appropriate motion is… 

That Resolution 2025-57 be adopted. 

 

 

Alternatives 

Do not accept the DOLA grant funds and do not enter into a forgivable loan agreement with Harvest Hill. 

2 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AhDeiheX6PE8ArGfkOOel2M-8yRWRDFC/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pNOCTTMChhLU3C3RVjGAKCvf_627aVK4/view?usp=drivesdk


RESOLUTION NO.2025-25 

 

A resolution accepting $2M in grant funding from the Colorado Department of Local Affairs 

Energy & Mineral Impact Assistance Program for the Harvest Hill Development and allocating 

the $2M to Harvest Hill Owner, LLC  

Recitals. 

Whereas, on July 30, 2024 the City Council approved the request for the Housing 

Division to apply for the Mineral & Impact Grant through the Colorado Department of Local 

Affairs (DOLA) Proposition 123 funds. 

          Whereas, on October 30, 2024 the City and County of Broomfield (City) presented to 

the Energy & Mineral Impact Board requesting $2,000,000 in grant funding for the Harvest Hill 

project located at 11801 Wadsworth Blvd. and providing details regarding how Broomfield has 

been impacted by oil and gas operations and how the grant would provide funding to assist 

with paying the water and sewer license fees for 152 income-aligned housing units in 

Broomfield. 

 

          Whereas, on November 14, 2024 the City was awarded the full amount of $2M to 

provide support to the Harvest Hill project. 

 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, 

Colorado: 

Section 1.  
The City Council accepts on behalf of the City and County of Broomfield the $2,000,000 

awarded by the Colorado Department of Labor Energy & Mineral Impact Program for the 

Harvest Hill project. 

Section 2. 

The City and County Manager is authorized to allocate and pay the $2,000,000 in grant funds 

upon receipt to Harvest Hill Owner, LLC as reimbursement for water and sewer license fees 

paid to the City. 

Section 3. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

  

 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



Approved on February 25, 2025 

 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 2 

Revised 3/2024 



RESOLUTION NO.2025-57 

 

A resolution approving a loan agreement with Harvest Hill Owner, LLC for the Harvest Hill 

project for grant funds from the Energy & Mineral Impact Assistance Program and authorizing 

the City and County Manager to sign certain documents relating thereto 

Recitals. 

Whereas, on November 14, 2024 the City and County of Broomfield (City) was awarded 

$2M in grant funds by the Colorado Department of Labor Energy & Mineral Impact Assistance 

Program (DOLA) to support the Harvest Hill project. 

          Whereas, the grant award is a match award and will reimburse the City for $2M of the 

total of approximately $4.39M in water and sewer license fees incurred from the Harvest Hill 

project. 

 

 Whereas, Harvest Hill Owner, LLC (Harvest Hill) will make the initial payment of 

approximately $4.39M to the City for the water and sewer license fees at permitting. 

 

Whereas, upon payment of the water and sewer license fees by Harvest Hill, the City 

will request the $2M from DOLA and once received, will reimburse Harvest Hill the $2M in 

awarded grant funds. 

 

Whereas, a loan agreement between Broomfield and Harvest Hill for the $2M in grant 

funds is necessary since the grant funds may be recaptured by DOLA in the event the project 

fails to be completed. 

 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, 

Colorado: 

Section 1.  
The City Council approves a loan in the amount of $2M with Harvest Hill Owner, LLC for the 

Harvest Hill project. The loan is to be funded with the DOLA grant funds. 

Section 2. 

The City and County Manager is authorized to sign the loan and any documents necessary to 

secure the loan in a form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



 

 Approved on February 25, 2025 

 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 2 

Revised 3/2024 



LOAN AGREEMENT 
 

Harvest Hill Apartments — More Housing Now Loan 
 
 THIS LOAN AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is dated as of ____________, 
2025 between the CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO (“Lender”) 
and HARVEST HILL OWNER LLC, a Colorado limited liability company 
(“Borrower”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
 Lender and Borrower acknowledge the following: 
 
 A. Lender has agreed to lend Two Million and 00/100 Dollars ($2,000,000) 
(the “Loan”) to Borrower for Borrower’s use in connection with the acquisition, 
development, construction, ownership, and operation of a 152-unit affordable residential 
rental housing development (the “Project”), pursuant to the terms and conditions 
contained herein and in that certain Mortgage Note dated the date hereof, executed by 
Borrower payable to the order of Lender, together with all renewals, extensions, and 
modifications of the same (the “Note”), and  to be located in the City and County of 
Broomfield, Colorado (the “Property”), secured by that certain Deed of Trust, Security 
Agreement, Financing Statement, and Assignment of Rents and Revenues, dated as of the 
date hereof, by Borrower for the benefit of Lender and recorded against the Property (the 
“Mortgage”), the proceeds of such Loan are funded by the Colorado Department of Local 
Affairs (“DOLA”) pursuant to a State of Colorado Intergovernmental Grant Agreement 
(EIAF-10008) dated December 27, 2024 (“Grant Agreement”).  

 
B. The proceeds of the Loan are referred to herein as the “Loan Proceeds.”   

 
 C. Lender and Borrower desire to set forth their agreements regarding the 
Loan in writing. 
 

AGREEMENTS 
 

 In consideration of the Recitals and mutual agreements which follow, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, Lender and Borrower hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Borrower shall pay Lender for utility license and tap fees in accordance with the 
Lender’s municipal code and most recently published rate schedule on or about the date 
hereof. Thereafter, Lender shall submit actual expense documentation to the DOLA in 
accordance with the Grant Agreement. Upon receipt of reimbursement from the 
Department of Local Affairs, Lender shall disburse $1,900,000.00 of the Loan Proceeds 
to Borrower. Upon substantial completion of the Project, Lender shall submit any 
required reports in accordance with the Grant Agreement.  Upon receipt of the final 



payment from DOLA, Lender shall disburse the remaining $100,000.00 of the Loan 
Proceeds to Borrower. 

 
2. The Loan shall be secured and paid back in accordance with the terms of the 
Note.  The terms and provisions of the Loan Rider attached to this Agreement are 
incorporated herein by reference and shall prevail in the event of conflict or inconsistency 
between the terms of this Loan Agreement and the terms of the Loan Rider.  Borrower 
shall be in default of its obligations under this Agreement if Borrower is in default of any 
obligation, covenant, or representation or warranty set forth in any other document 
evidencing the Loan (collectively, the “Loan Documents”), beyond applicable notice and 
cure periods.  Furthermore, Borrower shall be in default under this Agreement if 
Borrower fails to meet any milestone performance measures in the Grant Agreement, 
subject to any extension terms under the Grant Agreement. Following such default, 
Lender shall be entitled to all remedies set forth in the Loan Documents. 

 
3. Borrower agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Lender against any liabilities 
which the Lender may incur in the exercise and performance of its powers and duties 
hereunder, under the Loan Agreement and the Restrictive Covenant and Agreement 
which are not due to its own negligence or willful misconduct, and to reimburse the 
Lender to any fees and expenses of the Lender to the extent they exceed funds available 
under this Agreement for the payment thereof, subject only to the right of the Borrower to 
contest the reasonableness of any such fees or the necessity for any such expenses. 
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing indemnity obligation, Borrower agrees to 
indemnity the Lender for any liabilities or losses the Lender may incur related to the 
Grant Agreement caused by Borrower’s failure to meet any milestone performance 
measures in the Grant Agreement, subject to any extension terms under the Grant 
Agreement  

 
4. Subject to the rights of U.S. Bank National Association (“Construction Lender”), 
a national banking association and/or Colorado Housing and Finance Authority, a body 
corporate and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Permanent Lender” and 
together with Construction Lender, as appliable “Senior Lender” pursuant to that certain 
Subordination Agreement, for so long as the Loan is outstanding, and other than 
conversion of indebtedness from construction to permanent financing (the “Conversion”), 
Borrower will not refinance any senior indebtedness in excess of $30,000,000.00 in a 
manner that permits a distribution of proceeds to Borrower or its members without 
Lender’s prior written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.   
“Subordination Agreement” as that term is defined herein shall mean (i) during the term 
of the construction loan, that certain Master Subordination Agreement dated as of the 
date hereof and recorded in the real estate records of Broomfield County, Colorado on or 
about the date hereof and (ii) during the term of the permanent financing, that certain 
Subordination of Deed of Trust to be entered into at Conversion and recorded in the real 
estate records of Broomfield County, Colorado following Conversion. 
 



5. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
an original and all of which shall be deemed one and the same instrument.  Signatures 
sent via facsimile or e-mail transmission shall be deemed original signatures for purposes 
of creating a binding Agreement. 
 
6. This Agreement may be amended only by a writing signed by all of the parties 
hereto and shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 
successors and assigns. 
 
7. If requested, Borrower shall pay all reasonable legal expenses and out-of-pocket 
expenses incurred by Lender in connection with the enforcement or protection of its 
rights in connection with this Agreement, or any amendment of this Agreement. 
 
8. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Colorado. 
 
 

[Signatures on next page] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of 
the date first above written. 

LENDER: 

CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD 

By:   
Name: Jennifer Hoffman 
Title: City and County Manager 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Office of the City and County Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City and County Attorney 

KF



BORROWER: 
 
Harvest Hill Owner LLC, a Colorado limited liability 
company 

  
  By: Harvest Hill UDG MM LLC, a Delaware 

limited liability company, its managing member 

       By     
     Jonathan A. Gruskin, Manager  

 



 

LOAN RIDER 
(Borrower’s Investor Member Provisions) 

 
 This Loan Rider (the “Rider”) is attached to and made a part of that certain Loan 
Agreement dated as of _____________, 2025 (the “Loan Agreement”) entered into by and 
between CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO (“Lender”) and 
HARVEST HILL OWNER LLC, a Colorado limited liability company ( “Borrower”), and 
modifies the Loan Agreement and all of the other documents entered into by Borrower in 
connection with the Loan (collectively, the “Loan Documents”) respecting that certain 
$2,000,000 loan from Lender (the “Loan”), all with respect to the development of an 
affordable residential development, situated in the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 
and known as Harvest Hill Apartments (the “Project”). Borrower and Lender hereto agree 
that the following terms and agreements shall be part of and shall modify or supplement each 
of the Loan Documents, and shall prevail in the event of conflict or inconsistency between 
this Rider and the Loan Documents, or any of them: 
 
 1. Non-recourse Obligation.  Payment and performance of the obligations set 
forth in the Loan Documents shall be non-recourse to Borrower and Borrower’s members, 
and the Lender’s sole recourse with respect to the Loan shall be the right to foreclose under 
the Mortgage and other collateral forming part of the Loan Documents, provided that this 
provision shall not restrict any exceptions to non-recourse liability set forth in the Loan 
Documents, respecting such matters as fraud, waste and similar matters respecting action of 
the managing member of borrower.   
 
 2. Managing Member Change.  The withdrawal, removal, transfer and/or 
replacement of the managing member of Borrower (the “Managing Member”) pursuant to 
the terms of that certain Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Borrower, dated on 
or about the date hereof, as may be amended from time to time (“Operating Agreement”) 
shall not require the consent of Lender nor constitute a default under any of the Loan 
Documents, and any such actions shall not accelerate the maturity of the Loan; provided that 
Borrower agrees to notify the Lender of any proposed replacement managing member prior 
to replacement, and, upon replacement, shall notify the Lender of the name and contact 
information of the replacement managing member with reasonable promptness.  Additionally, 
Lender hereby consents to the pledge to the Investor Member, as defined below, by the 
Managing Member of the Managing Member’s interest in the Operating Agreement, as 
security for the performance of all of the Managing Member’s obligations under the 
Operating Agreement and agrees that such pledge shall not constitute a default under the 
Loan Documents. 
 
 3. Transfer of Investor Member Interests.  Nothing in the Loan Documents 
shall limit or restrict the ability of Borrower’s Investor Member, U.S. Bancorp Community 
Development Corporation, a Minnesota corporation and its respective successors and assigns 
(the “Investor Member”) to transfer, sell  or assign its ownership interest in Borrower, from 
time to time, without the consent of or notice to Lender, provided that said Investor Member 
remains liable for payment of any then unpaid capital contributions to Borrower, as and when 
payable, as set forth in the Operating Agreement, notwithstanding any such transfer, sale or 



 

assignment.  In particular, Lender hereby consents to any transfers, sales, or assignments of 
Investor Member’s interests in Borrower to any affiliate of the Investor Member or any entity 
in which the Investor Member, or an affiliate, is the manager, managing member, or member 
and agrees that such transfers shall not constitute a default under the Loan Documents.  
Additionally, Lender hereby consents to the sale, transfer, conveyance, or pledge of any 
membership interest in the Investor Member and agrees that such transfers shall not 
constitute a default under the Loan Documents. 
 
 4. Replacement of Management Agent.  The Lender acknowledges that 
Borrower’s Investor Member has the right, under the Operating Agreement, to direct the 
managing member to remove the Project’s property management agent.  Borrower agrees to 
give Lender notice of the proposed replacement property management agent, and the Lender 
agrees to consent to same, assuming that such replacement property management agent is 
acceptable to Borrower’s Investor Member and has experience in managing projects occupied 
by low-income households pursuant to Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code.   
 
 5. Notice.  All notices to Borrower’s Investor Member shall be sent in 
accordance with the procedures for delivering notices set forth in the Loan Documents to the 
following address or such alternate or additional contact names and/or addresses of which 
Lender is so notified in writing by the Investor Member: 

 
U.S. Bancorp Impact Finance 
USB Colorado State Investor I, LLC 
505 North Seventh Street, 10th Floor 
SL-MO-T10P 
St. Louis, MO 63101 
USB Project No:  28475 
Attn: Director of LIHTC Asset Management 
Phone: (314) 335-2600 
 
With a copy to:  
 
Kutak Rock LLP 
1650 Farnam Street 
Omaha, NE 68102 
Attn: Jill H. Goldstein, Esq. 

 
 6. Notice and Cure Rights.  Lender agrees to give the Investor Member written 
notice of any and all defaults by Borrower under the Loan Documents, and an opportunity, 
at the Investor Member’s option, to cause the cure of such default within the cure periods 
set forth below, prior to exercising any remedies under the Loan Documents. However, 
Lender’s failure to send a default notice to Investor Member shall not prevent the exercise of 
Lender’s rights and remedies under the Loan Documents.  Lender agrees that except as 
otherwise set forth in the Loan Documents, the Investor Member will have ten (10) 
calendar days after the Investor Member’s receipt of notice of such default to cure, or cause 
the cure of a monetary default under the Loan Documents, and thirty (30) calendar days 



 

(or such longer period as is set forth in the Loan Documents) after the Investor Member’s 
receipt of such notice to cure any non-monetary defaults under the Loan Documents, or, as 
to non-monetary defaults, such longer period as is reasonably necessary for the Investor 
Member to effect a cure, provided that curative action is commenced within the above 
stated cure period and diligently prosecuted, including, without limitation, such time period 
as is necessary to remove the Managing Member, if necessary in order to effect a cure.  
Lender agrees to accept cure by the Investor Member as if such cure were made by 
Borrower.   
 
 7. Insurance and Condemnation Proceeds.  Provided Borrower is not then in 
default under the Loan Documents, Lender agrees that insurance and condemnation proceeds 
shall be used to rebuild or restore the Project provided that no event of default or event that 
with the passage of time, the giving of notice or both would constitute an event of default 
under any of the Loan Documents then exists, and further provided: (i) if such proceeds 
are not reasonably sufficient to so rebuild or repair, sufficient additional funds are provided 
from other sources to rebuild or restore the Project, and (ii) Lender shall have the right to 
reasonably approve plans and specifications for any major rebuilding and the right to 
reasonably approve disbursement of such proceeds under a construction escrow or similar 
arrangement, subject to the prior rights of any and all senior lenders, which rights shall 
prevail in the event of inconsistency or conflict. 
 
 8. Partial Subordination to Section 42 Extended Use Agreement.  
Notwithstanding anything in the Loan Documents to the contrary, if Lender takes title to 
the Project through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure, the Project shall remain 
subject to the provisions of Section 42(h)(6)(E)(ii) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
(“Code”) or any similar successor provision of the Code.  This section shall apply 
notwithstanding the order of recording of any of the Loan Documents and the Extended 
Use Agreement, executed in connection with the allocation of federal low-income housing 
tax credits to the Borrower for the Project pursuant to Section 42 of the Code. 
 
 9. Force Majeure.  There shall be no default under the Loan Documents for 
construction or rehabilitation delays beyond the reasonable control of Borrower, provided 
that such delays do not exceed 180 days or such longer period as may be specified in the 
Loan Documents. 
 
 10. Purchase Rights.  The Lender consents to those purchase options and rights 
of first refusal in favor of the Managing Member or its designee which are set forth in the 
Operating Agreement, and agrees that transfer of title to the Project in accordance therewith 
shall not constitute a default under the Loan Documents, provided that Borrower gives 
Lender prior written notice of such transfer and contact information for such transferee, 
and provided that the transferee agrees to assume the duties and obligations of the Borrower 
respecting the Loan on the same terms as those imposed on the Borrower. 
 



 

 11. Lender Approvals.  Lender agrees that all approvals and consents of the 
Lender under the Loan Documents shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or 
conditioned.  Further, amendments to Borrower’s Operating Agreement entered into in 
order to effect transfers or assignments of the Investor Member’s or the Managing 
Member’s interest pursuant to Sections 2, 3, and 11 above shall not require the consent or 
approval of Lender in its capacity as lender hereunder. 
 
 12. Third Party Beneficiary. Borrower’s Investor Member, and its successors 
and assigns, is a third party beneficiary of the rights of Borrower under the Loan 
Documents, as modified by this Rider and has the right to directly enforce such rights 
 
 13. Loan Sale or Assignment. Lender agrees that it shall not assign or transfer 
the Loan (or any interest therein) to any third party without the prior written consent of the 
Borrower and the Borrower’s Investor Member. 
 
 14.  Compliance with Section 42.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained in the Loan Documents, for a period commencing on the date hereof and 
continuing until the expiration of the tax credit compliance period as defined in Section 42 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and so long as Lender or an affiliate of 
Lender is a member of the managing member of Borrower, or if a removal event shall have 
occurred under the Operating Agreement, Lender shall have no right to declare a default, 
accelerate and/or collect any indebtedness or other amounts due under the Mortgage or the 
Note, commence foreclosure proceedings, or join with any other creditor in commencing 
insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings against the Borrower or pursue any other right or 
remedy under the Loan Documents without the consent of Borrower’s  Investor Member.    
 
 



 

Governor Jared S. Polis | Maria De Cambra, Executive Director | Eric H. Bergman, Division Director 

1313 Sherman St., Room 315, Denver, CO 80203 

Phone: 303-864-7720   Fax: 303-864-7719   dlg.colorado.gov 

Strengthening Colorado Communities 

November 14, 2024 
 

The Honorable Guyleen Castriotta, Mayor 

City and County of Broomfield 

1 Descombes Drive 

Broomfield, CO 80020 

RE: EIAF 10008 MHN Broomfield Harvest Hill Utility Connection Fees 
 

Dear Mayor Castriotta, 
 

Congratulations! After thorough review, I am excited to offer a grant award in the amount of 

$2,000,000 to assist with the above mentioned project. Please note that the project number 

has changed from 100017 to 10008. 
 

Your project was reviewed based on a variety of factors such as its connection to energy 

impact, degree of need, measurable outcomes, amount of request, relationship to 

community goals, level of local match and community support, management capacity, 

resiliency and readiness to go. Competition for these limited funds is intense and we are 

seeing great demand. These grant funds will be from state severance tax proceeds, which 

may cause you to go to election to receive and spend them. You should confer with your 

legal and budget advisors to determine if such an election is necessary. 

DOLA is excited to fund/support local governments who are partnering on affordable housing 

projects in their communities. Your jurisdiction's successful land use planning and other 

work that supports affordable housing development has made your jurisdiction/project more 

competitive for funding in this initiative. 

The More Housing Now Initiative is designed to fund those local governments who promote 

affordable housing development through close partnership, incentives, land use regulations, 



 

Governor Jared S. Polis | Maria De Cambra, Executive Director | Eric H. Bergman, Division Director 

1313 Sherman St., Room 315, Denver, CO 80203 

Phone: 303-864-7720   Fax: 303-864-7719   dlg.colorado.gov 

Strengthening Colorado Communities 

and/or other support for affordable housing projects in their communities. We are happy to 

be a funding partner in your project. 
 

Please contact your Regional Manager, Chris La May at 970-679-7679 for information on how 

to proceed. Expenditure of State funds prior to the contract being fully executed cannot be 

included in the contract budget or reimbursed by the State. Per our program guidelines, this 

offer is valid for one year from the date of this letter. 
 

Thank you for helping Colorado build an economy where all Coloradans can thrive. 
 

Sincerely, 

 
Maria De Cambra 

Executive Director 
 

cc: Faith Winter, Senator 

William Lindstedt, Representative 

Jeff Romine, City and County of Broomfield 

Chris La May, DOLA



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

D. Proposed Resolutions for 112th and Uptown Widening Construction Agreements

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6D.

Presented By

Brian Graham, CIP Manager

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence

View Presentation

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-46, would approve an agreement between the City and County of Broomfield and
American West Construction, LLC. for the construction of the W. 112th Ave. and Uptown Complete Streets
Improvements. The project will expand capacity on the corridor from two to four lanes with bike lanes, sidewalks,
intersection improvements and a trail access connection to the US 36 Bikeway.

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-47, would approve an agreement between the City and County of Broomfield and
Felsburg Holt & Ullevig (FHU) for construction management services and proposed Resolution No. 2025-48,would
approve an amendment to the agreement between the City and County of Broomfield and Felsburg Holt & Ullevig
(FHU) for construction administration services. 

 

 

 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


Attachments

NEW Construction Council Memo.pdf
Resolution 2025-46.pdf
Resolution 2025-47.pdf
Resolution 2025-48.pdf
Construction Agreement - 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements 2024 - Google Docs.pdf
112th Consulting Agreement - CM FHU - Google Docs.pdf
FHU Amendment for CA 112th No 4 -FHU Signed 012825.pdf
112th & Uptown Complete Streets Typical Sections.pdf
112th & Uptown Plan Sheets.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FNEW%20Construction%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=ad410766-04b3-4bd7-9c21-80aa1dbce203
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FNEW%20Construction%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=ad410766-04b3-4bd7-9c21-80aa1dbce203
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FNEW%20Construction%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=ad410766-04b3-4bd7-9c21-80aa1dbce203
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-46.pdf?alt=media&token=3a0c3e6f-57e4-47ef-9a15-51a35a29e32e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-46.pdf?alt=media&token=3a0c3e6f-57e4-47ef-9a15-51a35a29e32e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-46.pdf?alt=media&token=3a0c3e6f-57e4-47ef-9a15-51a35a29e32e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-47.pdf?alt=media&token=027e82a4-df75-435f-9b60-32d96cda5561
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-47.pdf?alt=media&token=027e82a4-df75-435f-9b60-32d96cda5561
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-47.pdf?alt=media&token=027e82a4-df75-435f-9b60-32d96cda5561
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-48.pdf?alt=media&token=7667bfa1-385c-4fb4-807a-26ff2873ea0f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-48.pdf?alt=media&token=7667bfa1-385c-4fb4-807a-26ff2873ea0f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FResolution%202025-48.pdf?alt=media&token=7667bfa1-385c-4fb4-807a-26ff2873ea0f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FConstruction%20Agreement%20-%20112th%20and%20Uptown%20Avenue%20Improvements%202024%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf?alt=media&token=3fad6296-0aaf-4807-ab82-a95e4bd30eac
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FConstruction%20Agreement%20-%20112th%20and%20Uptown%20Avenue%20Improvements%202024%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf?alt=media&token=3fad6296-0aaf-4807-ab82-a95e4bd30eac
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FConstruction%20Agreement%20-%20112th%20and%20Uptown%20Avenue%20Improvements%202024%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf?alt=media&token=3fad6296-0aaf-4807-ab82-a95e4bd30eac
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20Consulting%20Agreement%20-%20CM%20FHU%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf?alt=media&token=bc33e751-fd68-4396-9000-6961ca86281c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20Consulting%20Agreement%20-%20CM%20FHU%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf?alt=media&token=bc33e751-fd68-4396-9000-6961ca86281c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20Consulting%20Agreement%20-%20CM%20FHU%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf?alt=media&token=bc33e751-fd68-4396-9000-6961ca86281c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FFHU%20Amendment%20for%20CA%20112th%20No%204%20-FHU%20Signed%20012825.pdf?alt=media&token=988984a3-5b5e-4a53-85e6-249c79db6f71
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FFHU%20Amendment%20for%20CA%20112th%20No%204%20-FHU%20Signed%20012825.pdf?alt=media&token=988984a3-5b5e-4a53-85e6-249c79db6f71
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2FFHU%20Amendment%20for%20CA%20112th%20No%204%20-FHU%20Signed%20012825.pdf?alt=media&token=988984a3-5b5e-4a53-85e6-249c79db6f71
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20%26%20Uptown%20Complete%20Streets%20Typical%20Sections.pdf?alt=media&token=117a2ddd-8a9c-4108-a415-c38a6ededfc7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20%26%20Uptown%20Complete%20Streets%20Typical%20Sections.pdf?alt=media&token=117a2ddd-8a9c-4108-a415-c38a6ededfc7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20%26%20Uptown%20Complete%20Streets%20Typical%20Sections.pdf?alt=media&token=117a2ddd-8a9c-4108-a415-c38a6ededfc7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20%26%20Uptown%20Plan%20Sheets.pdf?alt=media&token=246478f5-64cc-4ebe-bf1b-60a33c836599
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20%26%20Uptown%20Plan%20Sheets.pdf?alt=media&token=246478f5-64cc-4ebe-bf1b-60a33c836599
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F669181ec11adbf0044dfa05b%2F112th%20%26%20Uptown%20Plan%20Sheets.pdf?alt=media&token=246478f5-64cc-4ebe-bf1b-60a33c836599


Memo for W. 112th Avenue and Uptown Complete Streets Construction Agreements 
Prepared By: Joliette Woodson, Transportation Engineer 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-46, will authorize an agreement between the City and County of 

Broomfield and American West Construction, LLC for the construction of the W. 112th Ave. and Uptown 

Complete Streets Improvements.  

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-47, will authorize an agreement between the City and County of 

Broomfield and Felsburg Holt & Ullevig (FHU) for construction management services.  

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-48, will authorize an amendment to the agreement between the City and 

County of Broomfield and Felsburg Holt & Ullevig (FHU) for construction administration services.  

 

The W. 112th Ave/Uptown Avenue Complete Streets and Railroad Safety Improvements project was 

awarded funding through the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) and the Denver Regional 

Council of Governments (DRCOG) Safer Main Streets Initiative grant program in 2020.  This project is 

consistent with the grant priorities of the Safer Main Streets Initiative and is summarized below. 

 

West 112th Ave./Uptown Avenue is a minor arterial connecting key residential areas, employment 

centers, and urban centers in Broomfield and Westminster, as well as providing connectivity over US 36 

and the Burlington Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) Railroad. US 36 and BNSF are two major transportation 

barriers limiting access to the US 36 Bikeway, which is designated as part of the DRCOG regional active 

transportation network and links to the US 36 & Broomfield Station Park N Ride with regional and local 

transit connections. 

 

The traffic on W. 112th Ave./Uptown Avenue is currently over capacity and the corridor lacks consistent 

facilities to safely support active transportation modes within the project area. West 112th 

Ave./Uptown has been identified as part of the DRCOG High Injury Network.  

 

Project improvements include expanded capacity on the corridor from two to four lanes with bike 

lanes, sidewalks, intersection improvements, and a trail access connection to the US 36 Bikeway. Cross 

sections and striping and signing plans can be viewed at the provided links. 

 

Broomfield was awarded an 80% share of the design and construction funding totaling $3,542,400 in 

federal funding, with a 20% share of $885,600 in local match funding, for a total of $4,428,000 for the 

project. Federal funding is reimbursable in compliance with applicable federal and state regulations. 

 

Construction management services by a consultant are necessary for this project due to the project’s 

complexity with multiple stakeholders, limited available working area, and potential traffic impacts. 

The construction manager’s duties will include daily inspections including traffic control inspections, 

materials testing, review of contractor's documentation, review of pay applications, coordination with 

the BNSF, and organization and submission of the required documentation to CDOT.  

 

A request for proposals to provide construction management services was advertised on October 30, 

2024 and seven proposals were received. Staff selected Fesburg Holt & Ullevig as they demonstrated 

the best understanding of the scope, specifically the work required with the BNSF, and have completed 

numerous similar projects.  

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1R4o1j4FBcY3o46J4y3TaLCXmwBD4wKL-/view?usp=sharing
https://drcog.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=58fc6bd5c81e4773bbf258bf26eaa279
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1le-mAtWhVFLFgvXXmj7-y7CQUWR8p1bn/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1le-mAtWhVFLFgvXXmj7-y7CQUWR8p1bn/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qd6VMZzyHbrTM08ouEktLtxEpE2cGeq3/view?usp=drive_link


 

 

Construction administration services by the design consultant, Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, are necessary for 

this project. Construction administration includes addressing any design issues that may arise during 

construction and assistance with final project documentation. 

 

The project was advertised for construction on October 22, 2024 and five bids were received. American 

West Construction, LLC submitted the lowest bid in the amount of $5,182,916. On January 30, 2025, 

staff received a concurrence to award from the Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT). 

 

If Resolutions Nos. 2025-46, 2025-47 and 2025-48 are approved, construction is anticipated to begin in 

Spring 2025. 

 

Financial Considerations 

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 

budgeted amount. 

 

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

CIP-2021 Transportation Project (21P0041) 

W. 112th Ave. and Uptown Ave. - Roadway Improvements- Safer Main 

Streets Grant Funds (80%) 
(21P0041; 20-70090-55200) 

$3,542,400 

 

 

W. 112th Ave. and Uptown Ave. - Roadway Improvements - CIP Funds 

(Local Match) (20%) 
(21P0041; 20-70090-55200) 

$885,600 

W. 112th Ave. and Uptown Ave. - Roadway Improvements - CIP Funds 

(Over Match) 
(21P0041; 20-70090-55200) 

$2,848,400 

Total Budget $7,276,400 

Design (FHU) -$500,000 

Design Contingency (10%) -$50,000 

BNSF Agreements -$818,585 

Utility Agreements and Miscellaneous -$42,275 

Construction (American West Construction, LLC) -$5,182,916 

Construction Contingency (2%) -$103,658 

Construction Administration (FHU) -$85,000 

Construction Administration Contingency (10%) -$8,500 

Construction Management (FHU)              -$426,433 

2 



 

Construction Management Contingency (10%) -$42,643 

Total Use of Funds –7,260,010 

Projected Balance $16,390 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

On December 1, 2020, Council approved authorized funds in the 2021 CIP Budget for the design and 

construction of the W. 112th Ave.and Uptown Complete Streets & Railroad Safety Improvements.  

 

On May 11, 2021, Council approved Resolution No. 2021-79, authorizing and approving an 

Intergovernmental Agreement with CDOT regarding funding contributions. 

 

On October 26, 2021, Council approved Resolution No. 2021-176, an Agreement Between the City and 

County of Broomfield and Felsburg Holt Ullevig, Inc. for the Design of the W. 112th Ave. and Uptown 

Complete Streets Project.  

 

On October 22, 2024, Council authorized funds in the 2025 Budget. 

  

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to proceed with the project, the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution Nos. 2025-46, 2025-47, and 2025-48, be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

Decide not to continue with the project which would mean that City and County of Broomfield will not 

be able to use Safer Main Street grant funds on this project.  

3 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-dWjtrMYmPnO-05X3Ocp2qURs3JXqp-R/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1UZnRCm6WCYtVWsdWPTjHfWmIKBrBUUKP/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gkQmmEB_MoOAmS3Gjj8CwK-XQtUsTB3Q/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BSnWMtJNlCtbCYzKAB7N55sBwloK3QWX/view


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-46 

A Resolution Approving a Construction Agreement with American West Construction, LLC for 

the 112th and Uptown Complete Streets Project 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The construction agreement by and between the City and County of Broomfield and American 

West Construction, LLC for the 112th and Uptown Complete Streets Project in an amount not 

to exceed $5,182,916.00 is approved. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro-Term is authorized to sign and the office of the City and County Clerk 

to attest the agreement, in form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

The City and County Manager or a designee thereof is authorized to approve change orders in 

an aggregate amount not to exceed ten percent. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective on the date of approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on February 25, 2025.  

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

      KKH 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-47 

A Resolution Approving a Consulting Agreement with Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. for 

Construction Management Services for the 112th and Uptown Complete Streets Project 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The consulting agreement by and between the City and County of Broomfield and Felsburg 

Holt & Ullevig, Inc., for construction management services for the 112th and Uptown 

Complete Streets Project in an amount not to exceed $426,433 is approved. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro-Term is authorized to sign and the office of the City and County Clerk 

to attest the agreement, in form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

The City and County Manager or a designee thereof is authorized to approve change orders in 

an aggregate amount not to exceed ten percent. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective on the date of approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on February 25, 2025.  

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

      KKH 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-48 

A Resolution Approving the Fourth Amendment to the Consulting Agreement with Felsburg 

Holt & Ullevig, Inc. for the 112th and Uptown Complete Streets Project 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The fourth amendment to the consulting agreement by and between the City and County of 

Broomfield and Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc., for the 112th and Uptown Complete Streets 

Project in an amount not to exceed $85,000 is approved. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro-Term is authorized to sign and the office of the City and County Clerk 

to attest the agreement, in form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

The City and County Manager or a designee thereof is authorized to approve change orders in 

an aggregate amount not to exceed ten percent. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective on the date of approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on February 25, 2025.  

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

      KKH 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



 CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD 
 AND AMERICAN WEST CONSTRUCTION, LLC FOR 112th AND UPTOWN AVENUE 

 IMPROVEMENTS 

 1.  PARTIES  .  The  parties  to  this  Construction  Agreement  (this  “Agreement”)  are  the  City 
 and  County  of  Broomfield,  a  Colorado  municipal  corporation  and  county,  (the  “City”) 
 and  American  West  Construction,  LLC  (the  “Contractor”),  collectively,  the  “Parties,” 
 or individually, a “Party.” 

 2.  RECITALS  .  The  Recitals  to  this  Agreement  are  incorporated  herein  by  this 
 reference as though fully set forth within the body of this Agreement. 

 2.1.  The  City  is  seeking  construction  services  for  the  112th  and  Uptown  Avenue 
 Improvements  and  completed  a  competitive  selection  process  by  Invitation  to 
 Bid  #24-IFB-CD-008  (“ITB”).  This  is  a  federally  funded  construction  project 
 which  also  requires  work  in  the  Burlington  Northern  Santa  Fe  (“BNSF”)  Railway 
 right of way. 

 2.2.  The  Contractor’s  response  to  the  above  referenced  ITB  was  determined  to  be 
 the  lowest,  responsible,  responsive  bidder  to  the  City  for  the  procurement  of 
 the services requested. 

 2.3.  The  Parties  therefore  desire  to  enter  into  this  Agreement  for  completion  of  the 
 services further described herein. 

 3.  TERMS  AND  CONDITIONS  .  In  consideration  of  the  mutual  covenants  and  promises  of 
 the  Parties  contained  herein,  and  other  valuable  consideration,  the  receipt  and 
 adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 3.1.  Work  .  The  Contractor  agrees  to  furnish  all  necessary  labor,  materials, 
 equipment,  tools,  and  services  necessary  to  perform  in  a  workmanlike  manner 
 the  work  (hereinafter  “Work”)  described  in  the  Scope  of  Work  as  defined 
 below.  The  Contractor  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  portions  of  the  work  will 
 be  taking  place  near  an  active  railroad  and  as  such  the  Contractor  shall  be 
 required  to  comply  with  and  sign  an  agreement  with  BNSF  Railway  in 
 substantially  the  form  attached  hereto  which  is  Exhibit  C  of  the  attached 
 Exhibit D  . 

 3.1.1.  Key  Personnel  .  The  Contractor’s  key  personnel  shall  include  (i)  the 
 Project  Executive  -  Brian  Schrameyer  and  (ii)  the  Project  Manager  -  Jon 
 Miklya.  The  Contractor's  obligation  to  provide  adequate  staffing  is  not 
 limited  to  providing  the  key  personnel,  but  is  determined  by  the  needs 
 of  the  Project.  The  Contractor  shall  not  replace  any  of  the  key 
 personnel  without  the  City’s  prior  written  approval,  which  shall  not  be 
 unreasonably  withheld.  If  any  of  the  key  personnel  become  unavailable 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 to  perform  services  in  connection  with  this  Agreement  due  to  death, 
 illness,  discharge  or  resignation,  then  the  Contractor  shall  promptly 
 appoint  a  replacement  acceptable  to  the  City.  The  City  shall  be  entitled 
 to  complete  information  on  each  such  replacement,  including  a  current 
 resume of his or her qualifications and experience. 

 3.2.  Contract Documents  .  The Contract Documents shall  consist of the following: 
 3.2.1.  This Agreement; and 
 3.2.2.  The  112th  and  Uptown  Avenue  Improvement  Plans  by  Felsburg  Holt  & 

 Ullevig,  stamped  January  3,  2025  and  Specifications  (the  “Scope  of 
 Work”); 

 3.2.3.  The  Contractor’s  Bid  dated  November  22,  2024,  attached  hereto  as 
 Exhibit A  ; and 

 3.2.4.  The ITB including any addendum; and 
 3.2.5.  Any change orders and contract amendments, as applicable; and 
 3.2.6.  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation  Standard  Specifications  for  Road 

 and Bridge Construction (2022), as amended; and 
 3.2.7.  Project Special Provisions for Project No. STU C800-005 (24284); and 
 3.2.8.  The Insurance Requirements attached hereto as  Exhibit  B  ; and 
 3.2.9.  Federal  Uniform  Grant  Guidance  Required  Contract  Clauses  attached  hereto 

 as  Exhibit C  ; and 
 3.2.10.  The  Construction  &  Management  Agreement  with  BNSF  Railway,  attached 

 hereto as  Exhibit D  ; and 
 3.2.11.  Exhibit I  - FHWA Form 1273; and 
 3.2.12.  Exhibit J  - Additional Federal Requirements; and 
 3.2.13.  Exhibit K  - FFATA Supplement Federal Provisions; and 
 3.2.14.  Exhibit M  - OMB Uniform Guidance, 

 all  of  which  are  incorporated  by  reference  as  though  set  forth  in  full  herein, 
 whether  or  not  attached  hereto  and  shall  form  an  integral  part  of  this 
 Contract.  If  there  is  any  conflict  between  this  Agreement  and  the  other 
 Contract Documents, this Agreement shall control. 

 3.3.  Access  and  Inspection.  The  City  and  its  representatives  shall  at  all  times  have 
 access  to  the  Work.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  proper  facilities  for  access  to  and 
 for  inspection  of  the  Work  for  the  purpose  of  determining  compliance  with  this 
 Agreement  and  quality  of  workmanship  and  material.  All  materials,  equipment  and 
 supplies  used  in  the  performance  of  the  Work  shall  be  subject  to  adequate 
 inspection  and  testing  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  standards.  The  City 
 Representative  may  order  that  portions  of  the  Work  be  uncovered,  exposed  or 
 made  available  for  observation,  inspection  or  testing  at  no  additional  cost.  The 
 Contractor  shall  provide  all  labor,  tools,  materials,  equipment  and  supplies 
 necessary  to  comply  with  the  request  of  the  City  Representative.  If  any  portion  of 
 the  Work  is  determined  to  be  defective,  the  Contractor  shall  bear  all  costs  involved 
 to  bring  the  Work  into  compliance  with  the  Agreement,  including  without 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  1 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 limitation  the  cost  to  replace  any  materials,  to  re-perform  or  to  reconstruct.  The 
 Contractor  shall  remove  from  the  work  site  all  work  or  materials  rejected  by  the 
 City  for  failure  to  comply  with  the  Contract  whether  incorporated  in  the  Work  or 
 not at no additional cost to the City. 

 3.4.  Site  Clean-Up.  On  a  daily  basis,  the  Contractor  shall  maintain  the  work  site 
 free  from  accumulation  of  waste  materials  or  rubbish  caused  by  performance  of 
 the  Work.  The  Contractor  shall  remove  all  rubbish,  tools,  construction 
 equipment,  machinery,  and  surplus  material  from  the  work  site.  If  the 
 Contractor  fails  to  maintain  the  work  site  in  an  appropriate  condition,  the  City 
 may,  after  notice  to  the  Contractor,  perform  any  necessary  clean-up  and  charge 
 the clean-up costs to the Contractor. 

 3.5.  Protection  of  Property  .  All  existing  finishes,  structures,  utilities,  services, 
 roads,  trees,  shrubbery,  etc.  located  on  City  property  and  adjacent  property 
 impacted  by  the  Work  shall  be  protected  against  damage  or  interrupted 
 services  at  all  times  by  the  Contractor  during  the  term  of  the  Work.  The 
 Contractor  shall  be  responsible  for  repairing  or  replacing  any  and  all  property 
 which  is  damaged  by  reason  of  the  Contractor’s  operation  on  the  property  to 
 the  satisfaction  of  the  City  within  three  (3)  weeks  of  the  notification  of  such 
 damage, which may be extended with written approval of the City. 

 3.6.  Utilities  .  The  Contractor  shall  fully  comply  with  the  provisions  of  Article  1.5  of 
 Title  9  of  the  Colorado  Revised  Statutes  including,  but  not  limited  to,  providing 
 notices  to  the  notification  association.  Unless  otherwise  provided  in  the  Scope 
 of  Work,  the  Contractor  shall  be  responsible  for  communicating  and 
 coordinating  with  utilities,  as  necessary.  The  Contractor  shall  cooperate  with 
 utilities  and  the  City  as  provided  in  this  Agreement  and  as  required  by  law.  The 
 Contractor  shall  be  responsible  for  determining  the  exact  location  of  utilities 
 that  may  interfere  with  construction  of  the  Work  by  exploratory  excavation 
 sufficiently  in  advance  of  beginning  construction  in  an  area  so  that  potential 
 conflicts  may  be  resolved.  The  Contractor  will  consider  in  the  Contract  Price  all 
 of  the  utility  appurtenances  within  the  project;  and  the  Contractor  shall  not 
 make  a  claim  for  delay  or  additional  compensation  due  to  any  relocation 
 operations by a utility. 

 3.7.  Documents  on  Site  .  The  Contractor  shall  maintain  at  the  site  for  the  City  one 
 electronic  or  hard  copy  of  all  drawings,  specifications,  addenda,  change  orders 
 and  other  modifications,  in  good  order  and  marked  currently  to  record  all 
 changes  made  during  construction.  At  the  City’s  option,  the  referenced  record 
 drawings  will  be  reviewed  monthly  by  the  City  for  acceptability.  If,  in  the 
 judgment  of  the  City,  the  Contractor  fails  or  refuses  to  keep  these  documents 
 current,  the  Contractor  shall  not  be  entitled  to  progress  payments  until  it 
 makes the necessary changes to the documents to make them current. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  2 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 3.8.  Differing  Site  Conditions  .  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  it  has  satisfied 
 itself  as  to  the  character,  quality,  and  quantity  of  surface  and  subsurface 
 materials  or  obstacles  to  be  encountered  insofar  as  this  information  is 
 reasonably  ascertainable  from  an  inspection  of  the  site  and  review  of  the 
 Contract Documents. 

 3.8.1.  Contractor  shall  give  immediate  written  notice  to  the  City 
 Representative  if  it  encounters  a  “Differing  Site  Condition,”  defined  as 
 either: 

 3.8.1.1.  Subsurface  or  latent  physical  conditions  at  the  site  which  differ 
 materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents; or 

 3.8.1.2.  Unknown  physical  conditions  at  the  site,  of  an  unusual  nature, 
 which  differ  materially  from  those  ordinarily  encountered  and 
 generally  recognized  as  inhering  in  work  of  the  character 
 provided for in this Contract. 

 3.8.2.  Contractor  acknowledges  that  no  request  for  a  change  order  or 
 modification  in  Contract  Price  resulting  from  a  Differing  Site  Condition 
 shall  be  allowed  unless  immediate  written  notice  is  provided  and  the 
 conditions  remain  undisturbed  until  the  City  has  the  opportunity  to 
 investigate. 

 4.  Completion  Date  .  Within  ten  (10)  calendar  days  of  receipt  of  executed  Agreement,  the 
 Contractor  shall  provide  the  City  acceptable  bonds,  if  applicable,  and  certificates  of 
 insurance.  A  Notice  to  Proceed  will  be  issued  upon  City  approval  of  the  bonding  and 
 insurance.  The  Contractor  shall  perform  no  Work  until  the  City  Representative  issues  a 
 Notice to Proceed. 

 The  Contractor  shall  begin  the  Work  on  or  before  the  fifth  (5th)  calendar  day  after 
 receipt  of  the  Notice  to  Proceed.  The  Notice  to  Proceed  will  stipulate  the  date  on 
 which  the  contract  time  count  commences  (the  “Start  Date”).  The  Contractor  shall 
 complete  the  Work  and  fulfill  all  of  its  other  obligations  within  Two  Hundred  and 
 Seventy  (270)  calendar  days  of  the  Start  Date  (the  “Completion  Date”).  The  time 
 between  the  Start  Date  and  the  Completion  Date  shall  be  known  as  the  “Contract 
 Time.” 

 All  time  limits  are  of  the  essence  in  this  Agreement.  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that 
 a  notice  to  proceed  will  not  be  issued  until  the  City  has  received  acceptable 
 certificates of insurance and bonds, if applicable. 

 5.  CONTRACTOR’S  PROJECT  SCHEDULE  .  The  Contractor  shall  submit  a  completion 
 schedule  for  the  Work  (the  “Project  Schedule”)  beginning  with  receipt  of  the  signed 
 Agreement  and  concluding  with  Project  Completion  prior  to  the  commencement  of  the 
 Work  and  shall  coordinate  on  a  daily  basis  with  the  City’s  project  manager.  The  Project 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  3 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Schedule  shall  include  all  lead  time  for  the  order  and  delivery  of  equipment  for  the 
 Work.  Schedule  updating  shall  be  done  on  a  weekly  basis,  or  more  often  as  necessary 
 (each  a  “Schedule  Update”).  The  revision  shall  indicate  actual  progress  to  date, 
 changes  resulting  from  change  orders,  and  planned  changes  as  necessary  to  complete 
 the  Work  in  accordance  with  the  Contract  Documents.  All  costs  associated  with  the 
 development  and  maintenance  of  the  Project  Schedule  shall  be  borne  by  the 
 Contractor.  Acceptance  by  the  City  of  the  Contractor’s  Project  Schedule  does  not 
 relieve  the  Contractor  of  any  of  its  responsibility  whatsoever  for  the  accuracy  or 
 feasibility  of  the  Project  Schedule,  or  of  the  Contractor’s  ability  to  meet  the  Contract 
 Time,  nor  does  such  acceptance  expressly  or  impliedly  warrant,  acknowledge  or  admit 
 the  reasonableness  of  the  activities,  duration,  or  cost  loading  of  the  Contractor’s 
 Project Schedule. 

 6.  UNUSUALLY SEVERE WEATHER CONDITIONS  . 

 6.1.  It  is  expressly  understood  and  agreed,  by  and  between  the  Contractor  and  the 
 City,  that  the  Contract  Time  for  the  completion  of  the  Work  is  a  reasonable 
 time,  taking  into  consideration  the  climatic  and  economic  conditions  and  other 
 factors  prevailing  in  the  locality  of  the  Work.  The  Contract  Time  anticipates 
 “Normal”  weather  and  climate  conditions  in  and  around  the  vicinity  of  the 
 project  site  during  the  times  of  year  that  the  construction  will  be  carried  out. 
 Extensions  of  time  based  upon  weather  conditions  shall  be  granted  only  if  the 
 Contractor  demonstrates  clearly  that  such  conditions  were  “unusually  severe,” 
 would  not  have  been  reasonably  anticipated,  and  that  such  conditions 
 adversely  affected  the  Contractor’s  Work  and  thus  required  additional  time  to 
 complete the Work. 

 6.2.  The  following  specifies  the  procedure  for  the  determination  of  time  extensions 
 for  unusually  severe  weather.  The  listing  below  defines  the  anticipated  number 
 of  calendar  days  lost  to  adverse  weather  for  each  month  and  is  based  upon 
 National  Oceanic  and  Atmospheric  Administration  (NOAA)  or  similar  data  for 
 the geographic location of the project. 

 ANTICIPATED CALENDAR DAYS LOST TO ADVERSE WEATHER CONDITIONS: 

 JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUN  JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC  TOTAL 

 7  5  4  3  3  2  2  2  2  3  3  7  43 day 

 6.3.  The  above  schedule  of  anticipated  adverse  weather  will  constitute  the  base 
 line  for  monthly  (or  portion  thereof)  weather  time  evaluations.  Upon 
 acknowledgement  of  the  notice  to  proceed  and  continuing  throughout  the 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  4 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Agreement  on  a  monthly  basis,  actual  adverse  weather  days  and  the  impact  of 
 adverse  weather  days  that  delay  the  Work  will  be  recorded  on  a  day-to-day 
 basis.  It  is  assumed  that  the  Work  will  be  carried  out  Mondays  through  Fridays 
 (holidays  excepted);  however,  non-standard  work  hours  will  be  required  as 
 specified  in  the  Statement  of  Work  and  as  shown  on  the  Project  Schedule.  The 
 number  of  calendar  days  of  delayed  Work  due  to  adverse  weather  or  the  impact 
 thereof will then be compared to the monthly adverse weather schedule above. 

 6.4.  An  actual  adverse  weather  day  must  prevent  Work  for  50  percent  or  more  of 
 the  Contractor’s  workday,  delay  Work  critical  to  the  timely  completion  of  the 
 Project,  and  be  documented  by  the  Contractor.  The  Contractor  shall  notify  the 
 City  Representative  in  writing  if  work  cannot  proceed  on  a  given  date,  within 
 two  calendar  days  of  that  date.  The  City  will  use  the  above  written  notification 
 in  determining  the  number  of  calendar  days  for  which  Work  was  delayed  during 
 each month. 

 6.5.  At  the  end  of  each  month  if  the  number  of  calendar  days  for  which  Work  was 
 delayed  due  to  adverse  weather  exceeds  that  shown  in  the  above  schedule  a 
 change order will be executed which increases the Contract Time. 

 6.6.  The  Contractor’s  Project  Schedule  must  reflect  the  above-anticipated  adverse 
 weather  delays  on  all  weather-dependent  activities.  While  extension  of  time 
 shall  be  granted  for  “unusually  severe”  weather  or  climate  conditions,  or  the 
 impact  thereof,  the  City  shall  make  no  monetary  compensation  for  any  costs  to 
 the  Contractor  arising  out  of  such  delays.  The  Contractor  shall  comply  with  the 
 portions  of  the  Contract  Documents  relating  to  its  Project  Schedule  and 
 amendments  thereto  which  result  from  the  “unusually  severe”  weather 
 condition. 

 7.  PRICE  AND  PAYMENT  .  The  City  shall  pay  the  Contractor  for  performance  of  the  Work  an 
 amount  not  to  exceed  $5,182,916  (the  “Contract  Price”)  based  upon  the  unit  prices 
 set  forth  on  Contractor’s  Bid  attached  hereto  as  Exhibit  A  and  in  accordance  with  the 
 following schedule: 

 7.1.  If  the  Contractor  is  satisfactorily  performing  the  Agreement,  the  City  shall 
 make  partial  payments  at  the  end  of  each  calendar  month  or  as  soon  thereafter 
 as  practicable  of  ninety-five  percent  (95%)  of  the  Contract  Price  based  on  the 
 calculated  value  of  the  Work  completed  (the  “Partial  Payments”)  and  shall 
 retain  five  percent  (5%)  of  the  amount  due  to  the  Contractor  (the  “Retained 
 Amount”)  until  the  Work  is  complete.  If  applicable,  the  Contractor  shall  make 
 payments to its subcontractors in accordance with C.R.S. §24-91-103. 

 7.2.  The  City  shall  retain  the  Retained  Amount  until  Final  Acceptance  (as  defined  in 
 Final  Acceptance  and  Final  Payment  below).  If  the  Contractor  has  completed 
 the  Work  in  a  manner  finally  acceptable  to  the  City,  the  City  may  authorize 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  5 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 final  payment  from  the  Retained  Amount  upon  written  request  by  invoice  of 
 the  Contractor  (the  “Final  Payment”).  Before  the  Final  Payment  is  made,  the 
 City  and  the  Contractor,  as  applicable,  shall  comply  with  the  Final  Acceptance 
 and Payment paragraph of this Agreement. 

 7.3.  The  Contractor  shall,  as  soon  as  practicable  after  the  end  of  each  calendar 
 month  during  performance  of  the  Work,  submit  an  itemized  invoice  for  services 
 performed,  stating  the  percentage  of  the  Work  that  has  been  completed  and 
 the  type  of  services  performed.  Each  invoice  will  also  include  an  Application 
 and  Certificate  of  Payment  form  (AIA  Document  G702)  or  equivalent  form 
 approved  by  the  City.  The  Contractor  shall  prepare  the  invoices  at  its  sole  cost 
 and  shall  include  sufficient  detail  to  enable  the  City  to  verify  the 
 appropriateness  of  the  invoice.  Each  invoice  shall  be  subject  to  review  and 
 approval  by  the  City  Representative.  The  City  shall  not  be  required  to  pay 
 disputed  items  until  the  dispute  is  resolved.  Payment  of  any  invoice  shall  not 
 act  as  a  waiver  of  the  City’s  right  to  recover  in  full  any  over-payment  revealed 
 by  any  subsequent  audit  or  inspection.  No  air  travel,  car  rental, 
 entertainment,  education  expense,  meals  or  similar  or  related  costs  shall  be 
 payable  without  prior  written  approval  of  the  City.  Incorrect  payments  to  the 
 Contractor  due  to  omission,  error,  fraud,  or  defalcation  may  be  recovered  from 
 the  Contractor  by  deduction  from  subsequent  payments  due  the  Contractor 
 under this Contract or other contracts between City and Contractor. 

 7.4.  Change  Orders  .  The  Contractor  will  do  nothing  to  cause  the  Contract  Price  to 
 increase  without  prior  execution  of  a  change  order  by  the  City.  The  City  will 
 issue  no  change  order  requiring  additional  compensable  work  to  be  performed, 
 which  work  causes  the  aggregate  amount  payable  under  this  Agreement  to 
 exceed  the  amount  appropriated  for  this  Agreement.  Except  as  provided  below 
 and  as  provided  in  C.R.S.  24-91-103.6,  the  City  shall  have  no  duty  or  obligation 
 whatsoever  to  compensate  or  to  reimburse  the  Contractor  for  any  additional 
 work  not  specifically  authorized  as  provided  herein.  In  the  event  (i)  the  City 
 requires  additional  compensable  work  to  be  performed  by  the  Contractor  prior 
 to  the  execution  or  other  finalization  of  a  change  order  or  contract 
 amendment,  and  (ii)  the  Contractor  has  submitted  to  the  City  an  estimate  of 
 the  cost  for  the  additional  compensable  work,  then  the  City  shall  reimburse  the 
 Contractor  for  the  costs  associated  with  such  additional  work  on  a  periodic 
 basis in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 8.  FINAL INSPECTION AND FINAL PAYMENT  . 

 8.1.  Final  Inspection  .  The  Contractor  shall  notify  the  City  when  the  Work  is 
 complete  and  ready  for  final  inspection  by  means  of  a  letter  of  completion  (the 
 “Letter  of  Completion”).  Within  ten  (10)  calendar  days  of  the  City’s  receipt  of 
 the  Letter  of  Completion,  the  City  Representative  shall  make  a  final  inspection 
 to  determine  whether  the  Work  has  been  completed  in  accordance  with  this 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  6 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Agreement  and  shall  submit  a  written  list  of  any  defects  to  the  Contractor  (the 
 “Punchlist”).  The  Contractor  shall  promptly  correct  all  Punchlist  items  without 
 additional  cost  to  the  City  within  ten  (10)  calendar  days  after  receipt  of  the 
 Punchlist.  If  any  Punchlist  item  cannot  be  corrected  within  ten  (10)  calendar 
 days,  the  Contractor  shall  submit  a  letter  to  the  City  Representative  for 
 approval  requesting  an  extension  of  time  to  complete  such  item  (the  “Request 
 for  Extension”).  The  Request  for  Extension  must  be  received  by  the  City 
 Representative  within  seven  (7)  calendar  days  of  the  Contractor’s  receipt  of  the 
 Punchlist  and  shall  include  the  Contractor’s  justification  for  the  request  and  a 
 schedule  for  completion  of  the  Punchlist  item.  The  Contractor  shall  also  deliver 
 to  the  City,  all  statements  to  support  state  sales  and  use  tax  refunds  and  any 
 as-built  drawings.  The  Contractor  shall  provide  the  City  with  a  letter  of 
 approval  for  contract  closure  from  any  surety  furnishing  bonds  for  the  Work 
 provided on AIA Form G707 (Consent of Surety Letter) or equivalent form. 

 8.2.  Final  Payment  .  Upon  satisfactory  completion  of  the  Work,  the  City 
 Representative  will  provide  the  Contractor  with  a  written  acceptance  of  the 
 Work  (the  “Final  Acceptance”).  Payment  shall  not  be  made  until  the  City 
 Representative  has  approved  the  payment  and  a  notice  of  contractor’s 
 settlement  has  been  published  in  accordance  with  C.R.S.  §38-26-107.  The  City 
 shall  condition  publication  and  final  settlement  upon  receipt  of  any  duly 
 executed  approvals  of  the  corporate  surety  or  sureties  issuing  the  bonds 
 required  hereunder.  Such  final  settlement  shall  be  advertised  as  provided  by 
 statute  at  least  twice,  the  last  publication  appearing  at  least  ten  (10)  days 
 prior  to  the  date  of  final  settlement.  On  the  date  of  final  settlement  (or  such 
 later  date  as  may  be  permitted  by  statute  if  claims  are  asserted  or  litigation  is 
 commenced  alleging  nonpayment  of  funds  due  for  labor,  materials,  supplies, 
 etc.), payment and final settlement shall be made in full. 

 9.  CONTRACTOR'S  REPRESENTATIONS.  In  order  to  induce  the  City  to  enter  into  this 
 Agreement, the Contractor makes the following representations: 

 9.1.  The  Contractor  has  familiarized  itself  with  the  nature  and  extent  of  the 
 Agreement,  Work,  the  locality,  and  with  all  local  conditions  and  federal,  state 
 and  local  laws,  ordinances,  rules  and  regulations  that  in  any  manner  may  affect 
 cost,  progress  or  performance  of  the  Work.  The  Contractor  acknowledges  an 
 obligation  to  comply  with  all  applicable  laws,  including  the  Broomfield 
 Municipal  Code,  to  respect  property  rights  by  working  within  the  defined  work 
 limits  or  designated  staging  areas,  and  to  work  within  the  prescribed  work 
 hours.  The  Contractor  acknowledges  that  use  of  air  compression  brakes  ("jake 
 brakes")  within  City  limits  is  prohibited,  unless  otherwise  posted  by  the  City 
 Traffic Engineer. 

 9.2.  Before  submitting  a  proposal,  the  Contractor  has  become  fully  informed 
 regarding  the  Work  and  any  materials  or  equipment  required,  including  the 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  7 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 amount  or  quantity  thereof.  No  adjustment  or  modification  shall  be  allowed  for 
 any  misunderstanding  of  the  Work  or  of  equipment  or  material  requirements,  or 
 of  the  provisions  contained  in  this  Contract  and  in  the  other  Contract 
 Documents. 

 9.3.  Contractor  has  given  the  City  written  notice  of  any  conflicts,  errors  or 
 discrepancies  that  he  has  discovered  in  the  Agreement  and  exhibits 
 incorporated  therein  and  the  written  resolution  thereof  by  the  City  is 
 acceptable to the Contractor. 

 10.  FEDERALLY  FUNDED  SERVICES  .  The  City  has  received  federal  funding  for  this  Work  from 
 the  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation  through  the  Federal  Highway 
 Administration  (“FHWA”)  pursuant  to  an  Intergovernmental  Agreement  with  the  State 
 of  Colorado  dated  April  8,  2021  which  is  incorporated  by  this  reference.  For  any  Work 
 subject  to  funding  by  the  Federal  Government,  the  Contractor  agrees  to  comply  with 
 all  applicable  Federal  contracting  requirements  in  Exhibits  C,  I,  J,  K  and  M  and  any 
 other federal or state contracting terms which may be applicable to the Work. 

 11.  NOTICE  AND  AUTHORIZED  REPRESENTATIVES  .  Any  notice  required  or  permitted  by  this 
 Agreement  shall  be  in  writing  and  shall  be  sufficiently  given  for  all  purposes  if  sent  by 
 email  to  the  authorized  representative  identified  below.  Such  notice  shall  be  deemed 
 to  have  been  given  when  the  email  was  sent  and  received.  The  City  may  change  its 
 representative  at  any  time  by  notice  to  the  Contractor.  The  Contractor  shall  not 
 replace  the  Contractor  Representative  unless:  (a)  the  City  requests  a  replacement,  or 
 (b)  the  Contractor  terminates  the  employment  of  the  Contractor  Representative  and 
 provides  a  satisfactory  substitute.  The  City  must  approve  a  substitute  Contractor 
 Representative,  and,  if  no  substitute  is  acceptable,  the  City  may  terminate  this 
 Agreement.  The Parties each designate an authorized  representative as follows: 

 5.1  The  City  designates  Joliette  Woodson  as  the  authorized  representative  of  the 
 City under this Agreement.  Email address is  jwoodson@broomfield.org  . 

 5.2  The  Contractor  designates  Jon  Miklya  as  the  authorized  representative  of  the 
 Contractor under this Agreement.  Email address is jmiklya@trustawc.com. 

 If  the  Contractor  is  alleging  that  the  City  is  in  breach  of  this  Agreement  or  has  violated 
 any  term  of  this  Agreement,  Legal  Notice  shall  be  made  by  making  the  notice  above 
 with a copy to  citycountyattorney@broomfield.org  . 

 Failure  of  City’s  on-site  representative  to  call  to  the  attention  of  the  Contractor  any 
 defective  work  or  deviations  from  the  Contract  Documents  shall  not  constitute 
 acceptance  of  such  work  by  the  City  or  relieve  the  Contractor  of  its  obligation  to 
 perform the Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 12.  TIME EXTENSIONS AND COMPENSATION FOR DELAY  . 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  8 

mailto:jwoodson@broomfield.org
mailto:cityandcountyattorney@broomfield.org


 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 12.1.  Remedy  .  If  the  Contractor  is  delayed  or  disrupted  in  the  performance  of  the 
 Work,  the  Contractor’s  exclusive  remedy  with  respect  to  such  delay  or 
 disruption shall be as stated in this Section. 

 12.2.  Time  Extensions  .  Evaluation  of  all  time  extension  requests  shall  be  based  upon 
 the latest updated project schedule submitted to the City by the Contractor. 

 12.3.  Definitions  . The following words shall have the meaning  set forth below: 

 12.3.1.  “Contractor  Delay”  is  defined  as  delay  on  a  particular  date  resulting 
 from  acts  or  omissions  within  the  control  of  the  Contractor  or  its 
 subcontractors,  agents  or  suppliers,  including  any  delay  within  their 
 joint control. 

 12.3.2.  “No-Fault  Delay”  is  defined  as  delay  on  a  particular  date  resulting  from 
 events  beyond  the  reasonable  control  of  and  without  the  fault  or 
 negligence  of  either  the  Contractor  or  the  City  or  their  agents, 
 employees,  contractors,  subcontractors,  sub-subcontractors  or 
 suppliers. 

 12.3.3.  “Owner  Delay”  is  defined  as  delay  on  a  particular  date  resulting  from 
 acts  or  omissions  within  the  control  of  the  City,  its  agents,  employees  or 
 contractors, including the City’s Representative. 

 12.3.4.  “Concurrent  Delay”  is  defined  as  the  occurrence  on  a  particular  date  of 
 one  or  more  instances  of  Owner  Delay  and  Contractor  Delay,  Owner 
 Delay and No-Fault Delay or Contractor Delay and No-Fault Delay. 

 12.4.  Completion  Date  Adjustment  .  An  adjustment  in  the  Completion  Date  for  delay 
 on  a  particular  date  shall  be  made  under  this  subparagraph  if  any  delay  on  such 
 date  is  classified  as  either  Owner,  No-Fault  or  Concurrent  Delay.  The 
 adjustment  in  the  Completion  Date  shall  only  be  in  proportion  to  the  amount  of 
 the  delay,  which  is  attributable  to  Owner,  or  No-Fault  Delay.  No  adjustment  in 
 the  Completion  Date  shall  be  allowed  for  the  portion  of  the  delay  that  is 
 attributable  to  Contractor  Delay,  including  but  not  limited  to,  that  portion  of  a 
 Concurrent Delay which includes Contractor Delay. 

 12.5.  Price  Adjustment  .  An  adjustment  in  the  Contract  Price  for  delay  on  a  particular 
 date  shall  be  made  under  this  subparagraph  only  if  such  delay  is  classified  as 
 either  Owner  Delay  or  Concurrent  Delay  when  such  Concurrent  Delay  includes 
 Owner  Delay.  The  adjustment  in  the  Contract  Price  shall  only  be  in  proportion 
 to  the  portion  of  the  delay  costs,  which  is  directly  attributable  to  Owner  Delay. 
 No  adjustment  in  the  Contract  Price  shall  be  made  for  the  portion  of  the  delay 
 costs,  which  is  attributable  to  Contractor  Delay,  or  No-Fault  Delay,  or  that 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  9 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 portion  of  a  Concurrent  Delay  which  includes  Contractor  Delay  or  No-Fault 
 Delay or both. 

 12.6.  Mitigation  .  An  adjustment  in  Contract  Price  shall  be  made  under  this 
 subparagraph  only  to  the  extent  to  which  the  Contractor  can  demonstrate  that 
 its  time-related  costs  to  complete  the  Work  will  be  increased.  The  Contractor 
 expressly  acknowledges  its  obligation  to  minimize  the  cost  impact  of 
 compensable  delays.  The  Contractor  shall,  to  the  best  of  its  ability,  re-assign 
 labor  and  equipment,  commence  unaffected  portions  of  the  Work,  and 
 otherwise  minimize  delay  costs.  In  no  event  shall  the  City  be  liable  for  payment 
 of  delay  costs,  which  could  have  been  avoided  or  mitigated  by  any  means 
 reasonably available to the Contractor or for consequential damages. 

 12.7.  Notification  of  Delay  and  Recovery  .  The  Contractor  shall  notify  the  City  as  soon 
 as  practicable  regarding  the  nature  and  starting  date  of  a  delay,  and  the 
 activities  affected,  but  in  no  case  later  than  seven  (7)  calendar  days  after  the 
 event  giving  rise  to  the  delay.  In  the  case  of  a  continuing  delay,  only  one 
 notification  shall  be  necessary.  Any  claim  for  an  extension  of  time  for  delay 
 shall  be  made  in  writing  to  the  City  not  more  than  ten  (10)  calendar  days  after 
 the  end  of  the  delay;  otherwise,  such  claim  shall  be  waived.  Recovery  of  delay 
 costs  shall  be  waived  unless  a  request  for  a  change  order  for  delay  costs  is 
 submitted  within  ten  (10)  calendar  days  after  the  end  of  the  delay  period.  The 
 Contractor  must  also  provide  a  cost  and  time  impact  analysis  with  any  request 
 for  a  change  order  for  delay  costs.  The  cost  impact  analysis  shall  contain  all 
 direct  and  indirect  labor  costs,  all  material  and  equipment  expenses,  any  and 
 all  documented  impact  costs  related  to,  and/or  occasioned  by  the  Work 
 described  therein,  as  well  as  all  taxes  (if  applicable  under  the  provisions  of  this 
 Contract),  insurance  and  profit.  Documentation  supporting  this  cost  impact 
 analysis  must  be  submitted  at  the  time  of  the  request  for  change  order  for 
 delay costs. 

 13.  DEFAULT  AND  DAMAGES  .  If  the  Contractor  fails  to  comply  with  any  provision  of  this 
 Agreement,  the  Contractor  shall  be  liable  for  any  and  all  damages,  including  without 
 limitation,  the  cost  of  procuring  similar  supplies  and  services  and  all  other  costs  and 
 expenses  incurred  by  the  City  because  of  such  failure.  If  the  Contractor  fails  or  refuses 
 to  perform  the  Work  on  schedule,  or  to  complete  the  Work  in  a  timely  and  satisfactory 
 manner,  the  City  may  terminate  this  Contract  and  the  Contractor’s  right  to  proceed 
 hereunder.  If  the  City  terminates  this  Contract  under  this  paragraph,  the  Contractor 
 may,  at  the  option  of  the  City,  be  required  to  cease  any  or  all  Work  provided  for  under 
 this  Contract  and  shall  be  liable  for  any  additional  cost  to  the  City  for  services 
 acceptable  to  the  City  from  another  contractor  as  well  as  any  actual  damages 
 associated  with  such  failure  to  perform.  The  cost  to  complete  the  Work  or  any  portion 
 thereof  which  remains  unperformed  at  the  time  of  such  termination,  together  with 
 any  other  damages,  shall  be  deducted  from  any  sum  payable  hereunder  before  final 
 payment to the Contractor. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  10 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 14.  LIQUIDATED  DAMAGES  .  Time  is  of  the  essence  in  completing  the  Work.  Alternatively, 
 and  in  lieu  of  actual  damages  for  delay,  in  the  event  of  delay  in  the  completion  of  the 
 Work  as  specified  beyond  the  Completion  Date,  it  would  be  difficult  to  determine  the 
 exact  amount  of  the  loss  or  damages  suffered  by  the  City  due  to  delays  in  completion 
 of  the  Work.  However,  the  City  has  attempted  to  forecast  a  reasonable  daily  amount  as 
 compensation  for  the  damages  incurred  due  to  late  completion  caused  by  the 
 Contractor,  based  upon  considerations  which  include,  but  are  not  limited  to,  public 
 inconvenience  and  additional  contract  administration  costs.  Therefore,  the  Contractor 
 will  be  liable  to  the  City,  as  liquidated  damages  (and  not  as  a  penalty),  in  the  amount 
 of  $4,500  for  each  and  every  calendar  day  beyond  the  Completion  Date.  The  City 
 reserves  the  right  to  deduct  said  liquidated  damages  from  any  amount  due  the 
 Contractor  under  this  Agreement  or,  at  its  option,  to  collect  such  liquidated  damages 
 directly from the Contractor or its surety. 

 15.  PERFORMANCE  AND  PAYMENT  BONDS  .  In  accordance  with  C.R.S.  §38-26-105,  if  the 
 Contract  Price  exceeds  $50,000,  the  Contractor  shall  furnish  at  its  expense  a  separate 
 performance  bond  and  labor  and  materials  bond,  each  for  an  amount  not  less  than  one 
 hundred  percent  (100%)  of  the  Contract  Price.  The  bonds  shall  be  issued  by  a  qualified 
 corporate  surety  licensed  to  transact  business  in  Colorado.  If  at  any  time  during 
 performance  of  the  Work  the  surety  on  the  bonds  shall  be  disqualified  from  doing 
 business  in  Colorado,  or  shall  become  insolvent  or  otherwise  impaired,  the  Contractor 
 shall  furnish  bonds  from  an  alternate  surety  acceptable  to  the  City.  The  bonds  shall 
 remain  in  effect  through  Final  Acceptance.  The  Contractor  shall  secure  an  increase  in 
 the  bonds  in  an  amount  equal  to  the  cost  of  any  additional  work  authorized  pursuant 
 to a duly executed change order or contract amendment. 

 16.  INDEPENDENT  CONTRACTOR  .  The  Contractor  is  an  independent  contractor  as 
 provided  in  C.R.S.  §  8-40-202(2).  The  Contractor  is  not  entitled  to  workers' 
 compensation  benefits  and  the  Contractor  is  obligated  to  pay  federal  and  state 
 income tax on monies earned pursuant to this Agreement. 

 17.  INDEMNIFICATION  .  The  Contractor  expressly  agrees  to  indemnify,  defend  and  hold 
 harmless  the  City  and  the  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation,  its  officers, 
 employees  and  insurers  from  and  against  all  claims,  damages,  losses,  expenses  and 
 demands,  including  court  costs,  attorney’s  fees  and  expenses,  due  to  injuries,  losses  or 
 damages  arising  out  of,  resulting  from,  or  in  any  manner  connected  with  the 
 Contractor,  its  officers,  employees,  subcontractors  or  agents  in  connection  with  the 
 performance  of  the  services  pursuant  to  this  Agreement.  Except  for  workers’ 
 compensation,  disability  benefits  or  other  similar  employee  benefit  claims,  Contractor 
 is  not  obligated  to  indemnify  the  City  or  the  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation 
 hereunder  for  that  portion  of  any  claims,  damages,  losses,  demands,  and  expenses 
 arising  out  of  or  resulting  from  any  negligent  act  or  omission  of  the  City,  the  Colorado 
 Department  of  Transportation,  or  its  agents  and  employees.  This  indemnification  is 
 intended  to  comply  with  and  be  subject  to  C.R.S.  13-50.5-102(8),  as  amended  from 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  11 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 time  to  time.  In  the  event  that  any  such  suit  or  action  is  brought  against  the  City,  the 
 City will give timely notice thereof to the other Party. 

 18.  INSURANCE  .  To  assure  the  City  that  the  Contractor  is  always  capable  of  fulfilling 
 specified  indemnification  obligations,  the  Contractor  shall  purchase  and  maintain 
 insurance  of  the  kind  and  in  the  amounts  required  by  the  City,  from  an  insurer  with  an 
 AM  Best  FSR  rating  of  A-  or  higher  as  more  particularly  set  forth  on  Exhibit  B  .  Current 
 proof  of  such  insurance  is  attached  at  Exhibit  B  ,  incorporated  by  this  reference  and 
 should  list  both  the  City  and  the  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation  as  additional 
 insureds.  However,  proof  of  insurance  attached  as  Exhibit  B  shall  not  be  deemed  to 
 limit  or  define  obligations  of  Contractor  as  provided  elsewhere  in  this  Agreement,  and 
 Contractor  should  rely  on  its  expertise  to  obtain  additional  insurance  coverage  needed 
 for  the  City  and  Contractor  in  its  performance  hereunder.  The  Contractor 
 acknowledges  and  agrees  that  BNSF  Railway  requires  additional  insurance  coverage 
 above  the  limits  set  forth  in  Exhibit  B  ,  and  the  Contractor  will  be  required  to  meet 
 such  limits  for  that  portion  of  the  work.  The  Construction  &  Management  Agreement 
 attached  as  Exhibit  D  has  additional  information  about  the  insurance  required  by  BNSF 
 Railway. 

 19.  APPROVAL  OF  SUBCONTRACTORS  AND  CONSULTANTS  .  The  Contractor  shall  not  employ 
 any  subcontractors  or  consultants  without  the  prior  written  approval  of  the  City 
 Representative.  Prior  to  commencing  any  work,  each  subcontractor  or  consultant  shall 
 provide  the  appropriate  insurance  as  required  for  the  Contractor  under  this 
 Agreement.  The  Contractor  shall  be  responsible  for  coordination  of  the  work  and  the 
 acts  and  omissions  of  its  agents,  employees,  subcontractors,  consultants  and  suppliers, 
 and  shall  bind  each  to  the  terms  of  this  Agreement  so  far  as  are  applicable.  This 
 Agreement  is  voidable  by  the  City  if  subcontracted  by  the  Contractor  without  the 
 express written consent of the City. 

 20.  THIRD  PARTY  BENEFICIARIES  .  This  Agreement  is  intended  to  describe  the  rights  and 
 responsibilities  only  as  to  the  parties  hereto.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  and  shall 
 not  be  deemed  to  confer  any  rights  on  any  person  or  entity  not  named  as  a  party 
 hereto,  except  for  the  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation.  The  parties 
 acknowledge  and  agree  that  the  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation,  although  not 
 a party to this Agreement, is a third party beneficiary to this Agreement. 

 21.  FINANCIAL  OBLIGATIONS  OF  THE  CITY  .  All  financial  obligations  of  the  City  under  this 
 Agreement  are  subject  to  appropriation,  budgeting,  and  availability  of  funds  to 
 discharge  such  obligations.  Nothing  in  this  Agreement  shall  be  deemed  to  pledge  the 
 City’s  credit  or  faith,  directly  or  indirectly,  to  the  Contractor.  If  funds  for  this 
 Agreement  are  not  appropriated  and  budgeted  in  any  year  subsequent  to  the  fiscal 
 year  of  execution  of  this  Agreement  as  determined  by  the  City,  this  Agreement  may  be 
 terminated  by  the  City  upon  written  notice  to  the  Contractor.  The  City’s  fiscal  year  is 
 currently the calendar year. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  12 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 22.  EXHIBITS  .  All  exhibits  referred  to  in  this  Agreement  are  by  reference  incorporated 
 herein for all purposes. 

 23.  INTEGRATION  AND  AMENDMENT  .  This  Agreement  represents  the  entire  agreement 
 between  the  Parties  and  there  are  no  oral  or  collateral  agreements  or  understandings. 
 This  Agreement  may  be  amended  only  by  an  instrument  in  writing  signed  by  the 
 Parties.  For  purposes  of  clarity,  the  terms  and  conditions  of  any  Contractor  invoice, 
 Contractor  timesheet,  or  other  form,  including  but  not  limited  to  indemnification, 
 limitation  of  liability,  or  cancellation  fees,  shall  be  void  and  of  no  effect  against  the 
 City  notwithstanding  any  signatures  on  such  form  by  a  City  employee.  The 
 Contractor’s  rights  and  obligations  shall  be  solely  governed  by  the  terms  and 
 conditions of this Agreement. 

 24.  SEVERABILITY  .  If  any  provision  of  this  agreement  as  applied  to  either  Party  or  to  any 
 circumstance  shall  be  adjudged  by  a  court  to  be  void  or  unenforceable,  the  same  shall 
 in  no  way  affect  any  other  provision  of  this  Agreement,  the  application  of  any  such 
 provision  in  any  other  circumstances,  or  the  validity  or  enforceability  of  the 
 Agreement as a whole. 

 25.  ADDITIONAL  DOCUMENTS  OR  ACTION  .  The  parties  agree  to  execute  any  additional 
 documents or take any additional action that is necessary to carry out this Agreement. 

 26.  MINOR  CHANGES  .  The  Parties  executing  this  Agreement  are  authorized  to  make 
 nonsubstantive  corrections  to  this  Agreement  and  attached  exhibits,  if  any,  as  they 
 consider necessary. 

 27.  DOCUMENTS  .  All  drawings,  analyses,  plans,  tests,  maps,  surveys,  electronic  files  and 
 written  material  of  any  kind  generated  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement  or 
 developed  specifically  for  work  performed  under  this  Agreement  shall  remain  the  sole 
 and  exclusive  property  of  the  City,  and  the  other  Party  shall  not  provide  copies  of  any 
 such material to anyone without the express written consent of the City. 

 28.  RECORDS  RETENTION  .  The  Contractor  shall  maintain  complete  and  accurate  records  of 
 time  spent  and  materials  used  for  performance  of  the  Work,  together  with  any 
 invoices,  time  cards,  or  other  supporting  data  reasonably  requested.  All  records,  data 
 and  documentation  shall  be  retained  by  the  Contractor  for  a  period  of  not  less  than 
 three  (3)  years  after  completion  of  the  Work,  and  shall  be  subject  to  review, 
 inspection and copying by the CIty upon reasonable notice. 

 29.  OFFICIALS  NOT  TO  BENEFIT  .  No  elected  or  employed  member  of  City  government  shall 
 directly  or  indirectly  be  paid  or  receive  any  share  or  part  of  this  Agreement  or  any 
 benefit  that  may  arise  therefrom.  The  Contractor  warrants  that  it  has  not  retained 
 any  entity  or  person,  other  than  a  bona  fide  employee  working  solely  for  the 
 Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  13 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 30.  SALES  TAX  EXEMPTION  .  The  Contractor  and  its  subcontractors,  consultants  and 
 suppliers  will  not  be  required  to  pay  Colorado  state  sales  and  use  taxes  on  property 
 incorporated  into  the  Work.  The  Contractor  shall  obtain  a  sales  tax  exemption  permit 
 from  the  State  of  Colorado  Department  of  Revenue,  if  necessary,  to  obtain  materials 
 for the Work without the payment of Colorado state sales tax. 

 31.  ASSIGNMENT  .  This  Agreement  shall  not  be  assigned  by  either  Party  without  the  prior 
 written consent of the other Party. 

 32.  BINDING  EFFECT  .  This  Agreement  shall  inure  to  the  benefit  of  and  be  binding  upon  the 
 parties  and  their  respective  legal  representatives,  successors,  heirs,  and  assigns, 
 provided  that  nothing  in  this  paragraph  shall  be  construed  to  permit  the  assignment  of 
 this Agreement except as otherwise expressly authorized herein. 

 33.  DAYS  .  If  the  day  for  any  performance  or  event  provided  for  herein  is  a  Saturday,  a 
 Sunday,  a  day  on  which  national  banks  are  not  open  for  the  regular  transactions  of 
 business,  or  a  legal  holiday  pursuant  to  C.R.S.  §  24-11-101(1),  such  day  shall  be 
 extended  until  the  next  day  on  which  such  banks  and  state  offices  are  open  for  the 
 transaction of business. 

 34.  NO  PRESUMPTION  .  The  Parties  to  this  Agreement  and  their  attorneys  have  had  a  full 
 opportunity  to  review  and  participate  in  the  drafting  of  the  final  form  of  this 
 Agreement.  Accordingly,  this  Agreement  shall  be  construed  without  regard  to  any 
 presumption  or  other  rule  of  construction  against  the  Party  causing  the  Agreement  to 
 be drafted. 

 35.  GOOD  FAITH  OF  PARTIES  .  In  the  performance  of  this  Agreement  or  in  considering  any 
 requested  approval,  acceptance,  or  extension  of  time,  the  Parties  agree  that  each  will 
 act  in  good  faith  and  will  not  act  unreasonably,  arbitrarily,  capriciously,  or 
 unreasonably  withhold,  condition,  or  delay  any  approval,  acceptance,  or  extension  of 
 time required or requested pursuant to this Agreement. 

 36.  WAIVER  OF  BREACH  .  This  Agreement  or  any  of  its  provisions  may  not  be  waived  except 
 in  writing  by  a  Party’s  authorized  representative.  A  waiver  by  any  party  to  this 
 Agreement  of  the  breach  of  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  shall  not  operate 
 or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by either party. 

 37.  GOVERNING  LAW.  This  Agreement  shall  be  governed  by  the  laws  of  the  State  of 
 Colorado.  Any  claims  or  litigation  arising  under  this  Agreement  will  be  brought  by  the 
 Parties solely in the District Court, Broomfield County, Colorado. 

 38.  LAWS  TO  BE  OBSERVED  .  The  Contractor  shall  be  cognizant  of  all  federal  and  state  laws 
 and  local  ordinances  and  regulations  that  in  any  manner  affect  those  engaged  or 
 employed  in  the  work  or  which  in  any  manner  affect  the  conduct  of  the  work,  and  of 
 all  such  orders  and  decrees  of  bodies  or  tribunals  having  any  jurisdiction  or  authority 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  14 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 over  the  same,  and  shall  at  all  times  observe  and  comply  with  all  such  existing  laws, 
 ordinances,  regulations  and  decrees,  and  shall  protect  and  indemnify  the  City  and  the 
 Colorado  Department  of  Transportation  against  any  claim  or  liability  arising  from  or 
 based  on  the  violations  of  any  such  law,  ordinance,  regulation,  order  or  decree, 
 whether  by  itself,  its  subcontractors,  agents  or  employees.  The  Contractor  shall 
 procure  all  necessary  approvals,  licenses  and  permits  at  its  own  expense;  provided, 
 that,  the  Contractor  will  be  able  to  receive  no  cost  permits  when  such  permits  are 
 issued by the City directly. 

 39.  TERMINATION  .  The  City  reserves  the  right  to  terminate  this  Contract,  in  whole  or  in 
 part,  with  or  without  cause  by  written  notice  to  the  Contractor.  In  the  event  of 
 termination,  the  Contractor  shall  incur  no  additional  expenses  and  shall  perform  no 
 further  Work  for  the  City  under  this  Agreement  after  the  date  of  receipt  of  the  notice 
 of  termination,  unless  otherwise  specified  by  the  City.  The  City  shall  pay  the 
 Contractor  for  all  work  satisfactorily  performed  prior  to  receipt  of  the  notice  of 
 termination  and  for  other  services  required  by  the  City  to  be  completed  prior  to 
 termination and satisfactorily performed. 

 40.  SURVIVAL  OF  OBLIGATIONS  .  Notwithstanding  anything  to  the  contrary,  the  Parties 
 understand  and  agree  that  all  terms  and  conditions  of  this  Agreement  that  require 
 continued  performance  or  compliance  beyond  the  termination  or  expiration  of  this 
 Agreement,  including  without  limitation  the  indemnification  provision,  shall  survive 
 such  termination  or  expiration  and  shall  be  enforceable  against  a  Party  if  such  Party 
 fails to perform or comply with such term or condition. 

 41.  EXECUTION;  ELECTRONIC  SIGNATURES  .  This  Agreement  may  be  executed  in 
 counterparts,  each  of  which  shall  be  deemed  an  original  and  all  of  which  shall 
 constitute  but  one  and  the  same  instrument.  This  Agreement  shall  not  be  binding  upon 
 any  Party  hereto  unless  and  until  the  Parties  have  executed  this  Agreement.  The 
 Parties  approve  the  use  of  electronic  signatures  for  execution  of  this  Agreement.  All 
 documents must be properly notarized, if applicable. 

 [  The remainder of this page is intentionally left  blank  .] 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  15 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 This  Agreement  is  executed  by  the  Parties  hereto  in  their  respective  names  as  of 
 __________________  ___, 2025. 

 THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 
 a Colorado municipal corporation and county 

 _________________________________ 
 Mayor 
 One DesCombes Drive 
 Broomfield, CO  80020 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 _________________________________ 
 City and County Attorney’s Office 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  16 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 CONTRACTOR: 

 American West Construction, LLC 

 By: _____________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Address: 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  17 

bschrameyer
Text Box
Brian D. SchrameyerSenior Vice President275 E. 64th AveDenver, CO 80221



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 SCOPE OF WORK 

 The  Contractor  shall  construct  the  roadway  widening,  pavement  reconstruction, 
 concrete  work,  traffic  signal  modification,  including  all  incidentals  and  miscellaneous 
 items  necessary  to  complete  the  work  within  the  112th  Avenue  and  Uptown  Avenue 
 corridor  (“Project”),  as  more  particularly  described  in  the  112th  and  Uptown  Avenue 
 Improvement  Plans  by  Felsburg  Holt  &  Ullevig,  stamped  January  3,  2025,  Specifications  and 
 Bid Addenda  . 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  18 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 EXHIBIT A 
 CONTRACTOR’S BID 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  19 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  20 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  21 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  22 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 EXHIBIT B 
 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

	CITY	and	COUNTY	of	BROOMFIELD	INSURANCE	REQUIREMENTS	for	CCOB	&	
	CDOT	Contracts	
 1.  All insurers must be licensed or approved to do business within the State of Colorado. 
 2.  Contractor/Vendor’s insurance carriers should have an A.M. Best Company ra�ng of at least A- VII. 
 3.  Addi�onal Insured - City and County of Broomfield, its officers, board members, agents, employees 

 and volunteers ac�ng within the scope of their du�es for the City and County of Broomfield shall be 
 named as Addi�onal Insured on all Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance 
 policies (construc�on contracts require Addi�onal Insured coverage for completed opera�ons). 

 4.  Primacy of Coverage – Coverage required of Contractors and Subcontractors shall be primary and 
 non-contributory to any insurance carried by the City and County of Broomfield. 

 5.  All subcontractors must meet the same insurance requirements for the Contract or Purchase Order 
 unless Risk Management has approved a devia�on. 

 6.  Subroga�on Waiver – All insurance policies required under this Contract maintained by Contractor or 
 its Subcontractors shall waive all rights of recovery against City and County of Broomfield, its officers, 
 board members, agents, employees and volunteers ac�ng within the scope of their du�es for the 
 City and County of Broomfield. 

 7.  Cancella�on, Change in Coverage or Limits– The above insurance policies shall include provisions 
 preven�ng cancella�on, non-renewal, or reduc�on in coverage or limits of any insurance, without at 
 least 30 days prior no�ce to Contractor/Vendor and Contractor/ Vendor shall forward such no�ce to 
 within seven days of receipt of such no�ce. 

 8.  Cer�ficates – Contractor and all Subcontractors shall provide cer�ficates showing insurance coverage 
 required hereunder to the City and County of Broomfield within 5 days of: 

 a.  the effec�ve date of the Contract 
 b.  the expira�on date of any coverage 
 c.  a request by the City and County of Broomfield 
 9.  Separa�on of Insureds. All insurance policies shall include coverage for cross liability and contain a 

 “Separa�on of Insureds” provision in the general liability policy. 
 10.  City and County of Broomfield in no way warrants that the limits required herein are sufficient to 

 protect the Contractor/Vendor from liabili�es that may arise out of the performance of the work 
 under this Contract by the Contractor, its agents, representa�ve, employees or subcontractors. The 
 Contractor is not relieved of any liability or other obliga�ons assumed or pursuant to the Contract by 
 reason of its failure to obtain or maintain insurance in sufficient amounts, dura�on or type. 

 11.  All par�es understand and agree that the City and County of Broomfield is relying on, and does not 
 waive or intend to waive by any provision of this Contract, the monetary limita�ons, immuni�es, 
 protec�ons or any other rights provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act. 

 12.  The City and County of Broomfield reserves the right to nego�ate addi�onal specific insurance 
 requirements at the �me of the Contract. 

 13.  The City and County of Broomfield and Contractor shall cooperate with each other in the collec�on 
 of any insurance proceeds which may be payable in the event of any loss, including the execu�on 
 and delivery of any proof of loss or other ac�ons required to effect recovery. 

 14.  Contractors must carry all insurance or purchase the below insurance. No insurance will be waived 
 for CDOT contracts. 

 Vendor/Contractor/Subcontractor shall obtain and maintain, at its own expense and for the dura�on of 
 the contract including any warranty periods under which the Contract are sa�sfied, the following: 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  23 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Insurance Requirements for CCOB & CDOT Contracts 
 COVERAGES AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE  Required 

 1.  Commercial General Liability 
 ●  Commercial General Liability insurance covering all opera�ons 

 by or on behalf of the contractor/vendor on an occurrence basis 
 against claims for bodily injury, property damage (including 
 loss of use), adver�sing liability, products and completed 
 opera�ons, and contractual liability. 

 Minimum Limits: 
 ●  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 ●  $  2,000,000 General Aggregate (Per project 

 aggregate for construc�on contracts) 
 ●  $  2,000,000 Products/Completed 

 Opera�ons Aggregate (for construc�on 
 projects, this coverage should be 
 maintained for a minimum of 3 years from 
 the end of the project) 

 ●  $50,000 any 1 fire 
 2.  Automobile Liability 

 ●  Automobile Liability Insurance covering any auto (including 
 owned, hired and non-owned autos). 

 Minimum Limit: 
 ●  $1,000,000 each accident combined single 

 limit. 
 ●  If hazardous materials are transported, an 

 MCS 90 form shall be included on the policy. 
 3.  Workers’ Compensa�on 

 ●  Workers’ Compensa�on Insurance as required by State statute, 
 covering all Vendors/Contractors employees ac�ng within the 
 course and scope of their employment. 

 Note: This requirement shall not apply when a contractor or subcontractor is exempt 
 under the  Colorado Workers’ Compensa�on Act AND when such contractor or 
 subcontractor provides an appropriate sole proprietor le�er. 

 Employer’s Liability with Minimum Limits: 
 ●  $100,000 Each Accident 
 ●  $100,000 Each Employee by Disease 
 ●  $500,000 Disease Aggregate 

 4.  Professional Liability 
 ●  Contractor will purchase and maintain professional liability 

 insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission 
 or negligent professional act to include the following coverages: 
 ●  Limited Contractual Liability 
 ●  I  f coverage is Claims Made, a retroac�ve date prior  to the 

 incep�on of the work 
 ●  If coverage is Claims Made, similar coverage must be 

 maintained for three years following the comple�on of the 
 work or an extended repor�ng period of 36 months must be 
 purchased 

 Minimum Limit: 
 ●  $1,000,000 Per Claim /Aggregate 

 5.  Umbrella or Excess Liability Coverage 
 ●  Policy shall provide liability coverage over the specified 

 Workers Compensa�on/Employers Liability, Commercial 
 General Liability and Auto Liability. 

 Minimum Limit: 
 ●  Limits of at least: $1,000,000 per 

 occurrence 

 Addi�onal Insured - The following shall be named an Addi�onal Insured:  The State of Colorado - Colorado  Department of 
 Transporta�on and The City and County of Broomfield, its officers, board members, agents, employees and volunteers ac�ng 
 within the scope of their du�es for the City and County of Broomfield shall be named as Addi�onal Insured on all  Commercial 
 General Liability, Automobile Liability Insurance policies (construc�on contracts require Addi�onal Insured coverage for 
 completed opera�ons), and Umbrella or Excess Liability insurance policies. A Waiver of Subroga�on is provided in favor of the 
 Addi�onal Insureds as respects to all policies. 
 Cer�ficate Holders are: 
 City and County of Broomfield                        Colorado Department of Transporta�on, CDOT Region 1 
 One DesCombes Drive                                      2829 W. Howard Place 
 Broomfield, CO 80020-2495                            Denver, CO 80204 
 cer�ficates@broomfield.org  A�n: Maria Hajiaghaee  Maria.hajiaghaee@state.co.us 

 No devia�ons  below  the standards given above will  be approved by the City and County of Broomfield’s Risk 
 Management office for CDOT contracts. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  24 

mailto:certificates@broomfield.org


 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 EXHIBIT C 
 FEDERAL UNIFORM GRANT GUIDANCE REQUIRED CONTRACT CLAUSES 

 The Parties to the Agreement to which this Exhibit is attached hereby acknowledge that the 
 Agreement is subject to the provisions of 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Uniform Administrative 
 Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.  In accordance 
 with 2 C.F.R. 200.327 the following provisions are hereby added and incorporated into the 
 Agreement; to the extent that the terms of the Agreement and this exhibit conflict, the terms 
 of this exhibit shall control. During the performance of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees 
 as follows: 

 A.  SUPPLEMENTAL DEFAULT AND REMEDY PROVISIONS  .  (Applicable  to all contracts and 
 subcontracts in excess of $150,000, the simplified acquisition threshold.  S  ee 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix  II(A)  )  In 
 addition to the contractual, administrative and legal provisions within the Agreement to 
 which this Exhibit is attached and incorporated into, the following Default and Remedy 
 provisions apply. 

 1.  Contractor’s failure to perform or observe any  term, covenant or condition of this 
 document or failure to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this 
 Agreement shall constitute an event of default under this Agreement.  Each of the 
 following shall also constitute an event of default ("Event of Default") under this 
 Agreement: 

 (a) Contractor fails or refuses to perform or observe any other term, covenant or 
 condition contained in this Agreement, and such default continues for a period of 
 ten days after written notice thereof from City to Contractor. 

 (b) Contractor (i) is generally not paying its debts as they become due, (ii) files, or 
 consents by answer or otherwise to the filing against it of a petition for relief or 
 reorganization or arrangement or any other petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation 
 or to take advantage of any bankruptcy, insolvency or other debtors' relief law of any 
 jurisdiction, (iii) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, (iv) consents 
 to the appointment of a custodian, receiver, trustee or other officer with similar 
 powers of Contractor or of any substantial part of Contractor's property or (v) takes 
 action for the purpose of any of the foregoing. 

 (c) A court or government authority enters an order (i) appointing a custodian, receiver, 
 trustee or other officer with similar powers with respect to Contractor or with 
 respect to any substantial part of Contractor's property, (ii) constituting an order for 
 relief or approving a petition for relief or reorganization or arrangement or any other 
 petition in bankruptcy or for liquidation or to take advantage of any bankruptcy, 
 insolvency or other debtors' relief law of any jurisdiction or (iii) ordering the 
 dissolution, winding-up or liquidation of Contractor. 

 2.  On and after any Event of Default, City shall  have the right to exercise its legal and 
 equitable remedies, including, without limitation, the right to terminate this Agreement 
 or to seek specific performance of all or any part of this Agreement. In addition, City shall 
 have the right (but no obligation) to cure (or cause to be cured) on behalf of Contractor 
 any Event of Default; Contractor shall pay to City on demand all costs and expenses 
 incurred by City in effecting such cure, with interest thereon from the date of incurrence 
 at the maximum rate then permitted by law. City shall have the right to offset from any 
 amounts due to Contractor under this Agreement or any other agreement between City 
 and Contractor all damages, losses, costs or expenses incurred by City as a result of such 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  25 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Event of Default and any liquidated damages due from Contractor pursuant to the terms 
 of this Agreement or any other agreement. 

 3.  All remedies provided for in this Agreement may be exercised individually or in 
 combination with any other remedy available hereunder or under applicable laws, rules 
 and regulations. The exercise of any remedy shall not preclude or in any way be deemed 
 to waive any other remedy Except as modified herein, all terms and conditions of the 
 existing contract between the parties remain in full force and effect. 

 B.  TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF CITY.  (Applicable  to all contracts and subcontracts in 
 excess $10,000. se  e  2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(B)  ) 

 1.  City shall have the option, in its sole discretion,  to terminate this Agreement, at any 
 time during the term hereof, for convenience and without cause. City shall exercise this 
 option by giving Contractor written notice of termination. The notice shall specify the 
 date on which termination shall become effective 

 2.  Upon receipt of the notice, Contractor shall commence  and perform, with diligence, 
 all actions necessary on the part of Contractor to effect the termination of this Agreement 
 on the date specified by City and to minimize the liability of Contractor and City to third 
 parties as a result of termination. All such actions shall be subject to the prior approval of 
 the City. Such actions shall include, without limitation: 

 (a) Halting the performance of all services and other work under this Agreement on 
 the date(s) and in the manner specified by City. 

 (b) Not placing any further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, equipment 
 or other items. 

 (c) Terminating all existing orders and subcontracts. 
 (d) At City's direction, assigning to City any or all of Contractor's right, title, and 

 interest under the orders and subcontracts terminated. Upon such assignment, City 
 shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to settle or pay any or all claims arising 
 out of the termination of such orders and subcontracts. 

 (e) Subject to City's approval, settling all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising 
 out of the termination of orders and subcontracts. 

 (f) Completing performance of any services or work that City designates to be 
 completed prior to the date of termination specified by City. 

 (g) Taking such action as may be necessary, or as the City may direct, for the 
 protection and preservation of any property related to this Agreement which is in 
 the possession of Contractor and in which City has or may acquire an interest. 

 3.  Within 30 days after the specified termination  date, Contractor shall submit to City an 
 invoice, which shall set forth each of the following as a separate line item: 

 (a) The reasonable cost to Contractor, without profit, for all services and other work 
 City directed Contractor to perform prior to the specified termination date, for 
 which services or work City has not already tendered payment. Reasonable costs 
 may include a reasonable allowance for actual overhead, not to exceed a total of 
 10% of Contractor's direct costs for services or other work. Any overhead allowance 
 shall be separately itemized. Contractor may also recover the reasonable cost of 
 preparing the invoice. Taking such action as may be necessary, or as the City may 
 direct, for the protection and preservation of any property related to this 
 Agreement which is in the possession of Contractor and in which City has or may 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  26 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 acquire an interest. 
 (b) A reasonable allowance for profit on the cost of the services and other work 

 described in the immediately preceding subsection (1), provided that Contractor 
 can establish, to the satisfaction of City, that Contractor would have made a profit 
 had all services and other work under this Agreement been completed, and 
 provided further, that the profit allowed shall in no event exceed 5% of such cost. 

 (c) The reasonable cost to Contractor of handling material or equipment returned to 
 vendor, delivered to the City or otherwise disposed of as directed by the City. 

 4.  In no event shall City be liable for costs incurred  by Contractor or any of its 
 subcontractors after the termination date specified by City, except for those costs 
 specifically enumerated and described in the immediately preceding subsection 3. Such 
 non-recoverable costs include, but are not limited to, anticipated profits on this 
 Agreement, post-termination employee salaries, post-termination administrative 
 expenses, post-termination overhead or unabsorbed overhead, attorneys’ fees or other 
 costs related to the prosecution of a claim or lawsuit, prejudgment interest, or any other 
 expense which is not reasonable or authorized under such subsection 3. 

 5.  In arriving at the amount due to Contractor under  this Section, City may deduct: 
 (a) All payments previously made by City for work or other services covered by 

 Contractor’s final invoice; 
 (b) Any claim which City may have against Contractor in connection with this 

 Agreement; 
 (c) Any invoiced costs or expenses excluded pursuant to the immediately preceding 

 subsection 4; and 
 (d) In instances in which, in the opinion of the City, the cost of any service or other 

 work performed under this Agreement is excessively high due to costs incurred to 
 remedy or replace defective or rejected services or other work, the difference 
 between the invoiced amount and City’s estimate of the reasonable cost of 
 performing the invoiced services or other work in compliance with the 
 requirements of this Agreement. 

 6.  City’s payment obligation under this Section shall  survive termination of this 
 Agreement. 

 C.  EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMPLIANCE.  (Applicable  to all federally assisted 
 construction contracts as defined in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 by grantees and their contractors and subcontractors, in 
 excess of $10,000; see 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(C)). 

 During the performance of this  contract  , the  contractor  agrees as follows: 

 1.  The  contractor  will not discriminate against any  employee  or  applicant  for 
 employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or 
 national origin. The  contractor  will take affirmative  action to ensure that  applicants  are 
 employed, and that  employees  are treated during employment,  without regard to their 
 race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such 
 action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, 
 demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
 of  pay  or other forms of  compensation  ; and selection  for training, including 
 apprenticeship. The  contractor  agrees to post in conspicuous  places, available to 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  27 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0NGM1OjRmODIzMGZhNjgyYzZkZmYzOGY0NGI3MDZmMzljODI3MGE5NDVmZDNkY2I2MjNjZjYzYTc1MjgzYjMyZTA1ZWQ6cDpUOkY


 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 employees  and  applicants  for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting 
 officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

 2.  The  contractor  will, in all solicitations or advertisements  for  employees  placed by or 
 on behalf of the  contractor  , state that all qualified  applicants  will receive consideration 
 for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
 identity, or national origin. 

 3.  The  contractor  will not discharge or in any other  manner discriminate against any 
 employee  or  applicant  for employment because such  employee  or  applicant  has inquired 
 about, discussed, or disclosed the  compensation  of  the  employee  or  applicant  or another 
 employee  or  applicant  . This provision shall not apply  to instances in which an  employee 
 who has access to the  compensation information  of  other  employees  or  applicants  as a 
 part of such  employee  's  essential job functions  discloses  the  compensation  of such other 
 employees  or  applicants  to individuals who do not  otherwise have access to such 
 information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in 
 furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation 
 conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the  contractor  's legal duty to furnish 
 information. 

 4.  The  contractor  will send to each labor union or  representative of workers with which it 
 has a collective bargaining agreement or other  contract  or understanding, a notice to be 
 provided by the  agency  contracting officer advising  the labor union or workers' 
 representative of the  contractor  's commitments under  section 202  of Executive Order 
 11246  of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies  of the notice in conspicuous places 
 available to  employees  and  applicants  for employment. 

 5.  The  contractor  will comply with all provisions  of Executive Order 11246  of September 
 24, 1965, as amended and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the  Secretary 
 of Labor. 

 6.  The  contractor  will furnish all information and  reports required by  Executive Order 
 11246  of September 24, 1965, as amended, and by the  rules, regulations, and orders of 
 the  Secretary  of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will  permit access to his books, records, 
 and accounts by the  contracting agency  and the  Secretary  of Labor for purposes of 
 investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

 7.  In the event of the  contractor  's non-compliance  with the nondiscrimination clauses of 
 this  contract  or with any of such rules, regulations,  or orders, this  contract  may be 
 canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the  contractor  may be 
 declared ineligible for further  Government contracts  in accordance with procedures 
 authorized in  Executive Order 11246  of September 24,  1965, and such other sanctions may 
 be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in  Executive  Order 11246  of September 24, 
 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the  Secretary  of Labor, or as otherwise provided 
 by law. 

 8.  The  contractor  will include the provisions of  paragraphs (1) through (8) in every 
 subcontract  or purchase order unless exempted by rules,  regulations, or orders of the 
 Secretary  of Labor issued pursuant to section 204  of Executive Order 11246  of September 
 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each  subcontractor  or vendor. The 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  28 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.govinfo.gov/link/cpd/executiveorder/11246___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpiNzQ3OjU2ZWZlMjQzOTU0MGFiN2M1YWJjMzNjMTUwMmYzOGZmOTY3MWE2YmQwMDdlZWVhYjRhZTNiMmRkYjhkNGViZTg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.govinfo.gov/link/cpd/executiveorder/11246___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpiNzQ3OjU2ZWZlMjQzOTU0MGFiN2M1YWJjMzNjMTUwMmYzOGZmOTY3MWE2YmQwMDdlZWVhYjRhZTNiMmRkYjhkNGViZTg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.govinfo.gov/link/cpd/executiveorder/11246___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpiNzQ3OjU2ZWZlMjQzOTU0MGFiN2M1YWJjMzNjMTUwMmYzOGZmOTY3MWE2YmQwMDdlZWVhYjRhZTNiMmRkYjhkNGViZTg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.govinfo.gov/link/cpd/executiveorder/11246___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpiNzQ3OjU2ZWZlMjQzOTU0MGFiN2M1YWJjMzNjMTUwMmYzOGZmOTY3MWE2YmQwMDdlZWVhYjRhZTNiMmRkYjhkNGViZTg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.govinfo.gov/link/cpd/executiveorder/11246___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpiNzQ3OjU2ZWZlMjQzOTU0MGFiN2M1YWJjMzNjMTUwMmYzOGZmOTY3MWE2YmQwMDdlZWVhYjRhZTNiMmRkYjhkNGViZTg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.govinfo.gov/link/cpd/executiveorder/11246___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpiNzQ3OjU2ZWZlMjQzOTU0MGFiN2M1YWJjMzNjMTUwMmYzOGZmOTY3MWE2YmQwMDdlZWVhYjRhZTNiMmRkYjhkNGViZTg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.govinfo.gov/link/cpd/executiveorder/11246___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpiNzQ3OjU2ZWZlMjQzOTU0MGFiN2M1YWJjMzNjMTUwMmYzOGZmOTY3MWE2YmQwMDdlZWVhYjRhZTNiMmRkYjhkNGViZTg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.govinfo.gov/link/cpd/executiveorder/11246___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpiNzQ3OjU2ZWZlMjQzOTU0MGFiN2M1YWJjMzNjMTUwMmYzOGZmOTY3MWE2YmQwMDdlZWVhYjRhZTNiMmRkYjhkNGViZTg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkOTVkOmNkM2E0ZjRlMGJjOTlhZjJiYmZiOTJhYWMwN2VjNWUxNmI2NmJhMjI0NTgwZTcwYzhjZGEyMTU3N2Y0MTMyMWI6cDpUOkY


 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 contractor  will take such action with respect to any  subcontract  or purchase order as may 
 be directed by the  Secretary  of Labor as a means of  enforcing such provisions including 
 sanctions for noncompliance: Provided  ,  however, that  in the event the  contractor 
 becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a  subcontractor  or vendor as a 
 result of such direction, the  contractor  may request  the  United States  to enter into such 
 litigation to protect the interests of the  United  States  . 

 D.  DAVIS-BACON ACT COMPLIANCE  .  (Applicable to prime  construction contracts exceeding $2,000; 
 see 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(D)) 

 1.  The Contractor shall comply with  40  U.S.C.  3141  -  3148  as supplemented by 29 C.F.R. 
 Part 5. 

 2.  All laborers and mechanics employed by the Contractor on construction work pursuant 
 to this Agreement, and subject to the provisions of the federal acts and regulations listed 
 herein, shall be paid wages at rates not less than the prevailing wages on similar 
 construction in the locality as determined by the Secretary of Labor in accordance with 
 the Davis-Bacon Act.  In addition, the Contractor must pay wages not less than once a 
 week. 

 3.  The parties acknowledge that the City must report all suspected or reported violations 
 to the Federal awarding agency. 

 4.  The Contractor shall also comply and ensure subcontractor compliance with the 
 Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (  40 U.S.C. 3145  ), as  supplemented by Department of Labor 
 regulations (  29 CFR Part 3  , “Contractors and Subcontractors  on Public Building or Public 
 Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). As such 
 Contractor and any subcontractors thereof are prohibited from inducing, by any means, 
 any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up 
 any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The City must 
 report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency. 

 E.  CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT COMPLIANCE  .  (Applicable to 
 agreement is in excess of $100,000 and involving the employment of mechanics or laborers; see 2 CFR Part 200, 
 Appendix II(E)). 

 The Contractor shall comply with the following: 
 1.  Overtime requirements  . No Contractor or subcontractor  employing laborers or 
 mechanics (see Federal Acquisition Regulation  22.300  )  shall require or permit them to 
 work over 40 hours in any workweek unless they are paid at least 1 and 1/2 times the 
 basic rate of pay for each hour worked over 40 hours. 

 2.  Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated  damages  . The responsible Contractor 
 and subcontractor are liable for unpaid wages if they violate the terms in paragraph (a) of 
 this clause. In addition, the Contractor and subcontractor are liable for liquidated 
 damages payable to the Government. The Contracting Officer will assess liquidated 
 damages at the rate specified at 29 CFR 5.5(b)(2) per affected employee for each 
 calendar day on which the employer required or permitted the employee to work in 
 excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without paying overtime wages required by 
 the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards statute (found at  40 U.S.C. chapter 37  ). In 
 accordance with the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990 (  28 U.S.C. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  29 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoxM2E3OjNlN2Y2MTY2NWM3NjVjMGFlZWVhZDhiYmJmNTBhYjg5NTVkMjU5OTk3M2E2YzcyZTY0OTJlNWNiZWFkOTg2ZjM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoxM2E3OjNlN2Y2MTY2NWM3NjVjMGFlZWVhZDhiYmJmNTBhYjg5NTVkMjU5OTk3M2E2YzcyZTY0OTJlNWNiZWFkOTg2ZjM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoxM2E3OjNlN2Y2MTY2NWM3NjVjMGFlZWVhZDhiYmJmNTBhYjg5NTVkMjU5OTk3M2E2YzcyZTY0OTJlNWNiZWFkOTg2ZjM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoxM2E3OjNlN2Y2MTY2NWM3NjVjMGFlZWVhZDhiYmJmNTBhYjg5NTVkMjU5OTk3M2E2YzcyZTY0OTJlNWNiZWFkOTg2ZjM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoxM2E3OjNlN2Y2MTY2NWM3NjVjMGFlZWVhZDhiYmJmNTBhYjg5NTVkMjU5OTk3M2E2YzcyZTY0OTJlNWNiZWFkOTg2ZjM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoxM2E3OjNlN2Y2MTY2NWM3NjVjMGFlZWVhZDhiYmJmNTBhYjg5NTVkMjU5OTk3M2E2YzcyZTY0OTJlNWNiZWFkOTg2ZjM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoxM2E3OjNlN2Y2MTY2NWM3NjVjMGFlZWVhZDhiYmJmNTBhYjg5NTVkMjU5OTk3M2E2YzcyZTY0OTJlNWNiZWFkOTg2ZjM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/41/60-1.4___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoxM2E3OjNlN2Y2MTY2NWM3NjVjMGFlZWVhZDhiYmJmNTBhYjg5NTVkMjU5OTk3M2E2YzcyZTY0OTJlNWNiZWFkOTg2ZjM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/40/___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjplMzQyOmZiMmYwMzgzNWU2NDFiNDVjYzVjNGYwYTA4N2MxZDNiNDlkMDQ5N2VmN2U3NGY1MWQ2MjQwMGRmNTE1NzQ1NWU6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/40/3141___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo1OTMwOjQzOWJhYTg1ZWEwOWFlNDRkNDVkOGU3Mzk4MzkyYmZkMWFmOTQzMjYxMThkNjg4MzE4ZTBlMzcyODVmNTNlYjI6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/40/3148___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo0ZTc5OmRhNmJhMjIzYTQxYTJmZDQwZTA4NDQzYzIyYmE3ZWUyMGU2YmUwYjdkOTI2MWQ1NGU4OTg1OWRiYjVjM2M0MmU6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/40/3145___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo4ZTc2OjAzZDE1MjQxMWYwMWY5MTAxZTBiMWRmMTZlYjhiOWFmMWRkYTRmMmU3NTIxMzM2Mjc4MWFjODQ2ZmM0YmM2NDM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/29/part-3___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpjZjRkOjRhNGQ1NzU3ZGJkOWMxZDRmNTcyYjhjYmM1NWM0ZmRmODFiNzQ5YmI3ZTZhNTk1OTFhZmFjYWQ5ZWQwZDVmNDk6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.acquisition.gov/content/22300-scope-subpart%23i1098306___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoyMDU5OmQ2YWI2OTlhYmU5MmMxZmJhMDRkZTA2MjMwNGQ0Y2RkMmMwYzBhMjEyNzgwZTdmY2NiNzc1NmNhOTdmZDg5OTM6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http://uscode.house.gov/browse.xhtml;jsessionid=114A3287C7B3359E597506A31FC855B3___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpjODAyOjc1NTgzYzBkNGQ1NTM5OWVhNmMzODM2ZjA4N2RjM2M4NmI2MzBlZjdkNGUxZWNjZGZiZDQxNTgwODRjNjc0MDE6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http://uscode.house.gov/browse.xhtml;jsessionid=114A3287C7B3359E597506A31FC855B3___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpjODAyOjc1NTgzYzBkNGQ1NTM5OWVhNmMzODM2ZjA4N2RjM2M4NmI2MzBlZjdkNGUxZWNjZGZiZDQxNTgwODRjNjc0MDE6cDpUOkY


 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 2461 Note  ), the Department of Labor adjusts this civil monetary penalty for inflation no 
 later than January 15 each year. 

 3.  Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages  .  The Contracting Officer will 
 withhold from payments due under the contract sufficient funds required to satisfy any 
 Contractor or subcontractor liabilities for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. If 
 amounts withheld under the contract are insufficient to satisfy Contractor or 
 subcontractor liabilities, the Contracting Officer will withhold payments from other 
 Federal or federally assisted contracts held by the same Contractor that are subject to the 
 Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards statute 

 4.  Payrolls and basic records  . 
 (a) The Contractor and its subcontractors shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll 

 records for all laborers and mechanics working on the contract during the contract 
 and shall make them available to the Government until 3 years after contract 
 completion. The records shall contain the name and address of each employee, 
 social security number, labor classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and 
 weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. The 
 records need not duplicate those required for construction work by Department of 
 Labor regulations at 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3) implementing the Construction Wage Rate 
 Requirements statute. 

 (b) The Contractor and its subcontractors shall allow authorized representatives of the 
 Contracting Officer or the Department of Labor to inspect, copy, or transcribe 
 records maintained under paragraph (a) of this clause. The Contractor or 
 subcontractor also shall allow authorized representatives of the Contracting 
 Officer or Department of Labor to interview employees in the workplace during 
 working hours. 

 5.  Subcontracts  . The Contractor shall insert the provisions  set forth in paragraphs (1) 
 through (5) of this clause in subcontracts that may require or involve the employment of 
 laborers and mechanics and require subcontractors to include these provisions in any such 
 lower tier subcontracts. The Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
 subcontractor or lower-tier subcontractor with the provisions set forth in paragraphs (1) 
 through (5) of this clause. 

 6.  Work Conditions  . Contractor shall comply with 40  U.S.C. 3704 as it is applicable to 
 construction work.  No laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
 under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous.  These 
 requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily 
 available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of 
 intelligence. 

 F.  INVENTIONS MADE UNDER THE AGREEMENT  .  (Applicable  to federally funded contracts for the 
 performance of experimental, developmental, or research work; see 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(F) ) 

 If the Federal award providing funding for this Agreement meets the definition of “funding 
 Agreement” under  37 CFR § 401.2  (a) and this Agreement  is between the City and a small 
 business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or 
 performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that Funding 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  30 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http://uscode.house.gov/browse.xhtml;jsessionid=114A3287C7B3359E597506A31FC855B3___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpmYjkwOjA3MWJmNzcwZDFhYTc5ODY3N2MyODYxZjJkMDg4Y2UzMmM3Nzg2MDA5YzRhZmE3ZGE2NWMwMjUyYmNmNzY4Zjg6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/37/401.2___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpmYmJlOjM0MDczMTg3NDgzZjM1Yjk4NzkxZmQ1YzhjOGNkMjVlOTBlMzFlNjA0Y2M3YzNhNjJlMmI2OTgwYmFjODNhMjA6cDpUOkY


 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 Agreement, the City and Contractor shall comply with the requirements of  37 CFR Part 401  , 
 “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under 
 Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing 
 regulations issued by the awarding agency. 

 G.  CLEAN AIR AND CLEAN WATER ACTS COMPLIANCE  .  (Applicable  to all contracts and 
 subcontracts in excess $150,000; see 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(G)) 

 1. Clean Air Act. 
 (a) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 

 regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act at 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et. seq. 
 (b) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the County and understands and 

 agrees that the County will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure 
 notification to the State of Colorado, the Federal reporting agency, and the 
 appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

 (c) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 
 exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance. 

 2. Federal Water Pollution Control Act. 
 (a) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or 

 regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
 amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et. seq. 

 (b) The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the County and understands and 
 agrees that the County will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure 
 notification to the State of Colorado, the Federal reporting agency, and the 
 appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 

 (c) The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract 
 exceeding $150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance. 

 H.  DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION  .  (Applicable to  all contracts  and subcontracts; see 2 CFR Part 200, 
 Appendix II(H))  Contractor acknowledges that a contract  utilizing Federal funding may not be 
 awarded to parties listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award 
 Management (SAM). 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(H). 

 In addition, Contractor affirms that neither it nor its principals are suspended or debarred or 
 otherwise excluded from procurement by the Federal Government and do not appear in the 
 SAM Exclusions, which is a list maintained by the General Services Administration. 

 I.  BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT COMPLIANCE  .  (Applicable  to awards or contracts of 
 $100,000; see 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(I))  Contractors  who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 
 or more shall file the required certification set forth in CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING, 
 44 C.F.R. Part 18, Appendix A. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not 
 used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or 
 attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer 
 or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with 
 obtaining a Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier 
 shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with 
 obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the 
 recipient. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  31 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/37/part-401___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo2Y2E1Ojc5OWI3MzBlMWMwNjlhNjMyMWI4NjM0YmJkY2JlM2I3MzU3N2JjOTZlYzVkZjc4MjhiMGZlMDRjOWU0ZjhkMGM6cDpUOkY


 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 J.  PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS  .  (  To the extent applicable by law; See 2 CFR Part 
 200, Appendix II(J))  In the performance of this Agreement,  the Contractor shall make maximum 
 use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the 
 product cannot be acquired: 

 (a)    Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the 
 contract performance schedule; 

 (b)    Meeting contract performance requirements; or 

 (c)    At a reasonable price. 

 Contractor also agrees to comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, 
 as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. 

 Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPAdesignated items, is available at 
 EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, 
 https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensiveprocurement-guideline-cpg-program. 

 K.  PROHIBITED TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE  SERVICES OR 
 EQUIPMENT  .  (To the extent applicable by law; See 2  CFR Part 200, Appendix II(K))  Contractor and 
 subcontractor, if applicable are prohibited from expending funds arising from this contract to: 

 (a)  Procure or obtain; 
 (b)  Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or 
 (c)  Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain 

 equipment, services, or systems that use covered telecommunications 
 equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or 
 as critical technology as part of any system.  As described in Public Law 
 115-232, section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is 
 telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company of 
 ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities. 

 (i)  For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical 
 security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security 
 purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications, equipment produced 
 by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital 
 technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or 
 affiliate of such entities). 

 (ii)  telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities 
 or using such equipment. 

 (iii)  Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services 
 produced by an entity that the Secretary of Defense in consultation with 
 the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal 
 Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or 
 controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered 
 foreign country. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  32 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), 
 paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan, grant, or subsidy programs 
 shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, 
 institutions and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to 
 transition from covered communications equipment and services, to procure replacement 
 equipment and services, and to ensure that communications service to users and customers is 
 sustained. 

 See Public Law 115-232, section 889 for additional information.  See also 2 CFR 200.471. 

 L.  DOMESTIC PREFERENCE  .  (To the extent applicable  by law; See 2 CFR Part 200, Appendix II(L)) 

 As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Contractor should, to the greatest 
 extent practicable under a Federal award, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, 
 or use of goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not 
 limited to iron, aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The 
 requirements of this section must be included in all subawards including all contracts and 
 purchase orders for work or products under this award.  For purposes of this section: 

 (a)  “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all 
 manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the application 
 of coatings, occurred in the United States. 

 (b)  “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in 
 whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and 
 polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pie; aggregates such as 
 concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 

 N.  CONTRACTING WITH SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESSES,  WOMEN’S BUSINESS 
 ENTERPRISES, AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS  . 

 1.  If subcontracts are to be let, Contractor must take the following affirmative steps to 
 assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor 
 surplus firms are used when possible: 

 (a)  Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women’s business 
 enterprises on solicitation lists. 

 (b)  Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises 
 are solicited whenever they are potential sources; 

 (c)  Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or 
 quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, 
 and women’s business enterprises; 

 (d)  Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which 
 encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women’s 
 business enterprises; and 

 (e)  Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the 
 Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of 
 the Department of Commerce. 

 M.  ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS OF FUNDING SOURCE AGENCY  .  Finally, the Parties 
 additionally agree that Federal Funding source agency rules and regulations may require the 
 incorporation and additional legal or regulatory references or contract provisions and nothing 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  33 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 herein by this Exhibit is intended to revise, negate or conflict with any such necessary 
 provision, rather the intent is to summarize and memorialize all applicable provisions, to the 
 extent possible. 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  34 



 Construction Agreement                                                                                 Project Number 
 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements  #STU C800-005 (24284) 

 EXHIBIT D 
 BNSF Construction & Management Agreement 

 EXHIBIT I 
 FHWA Form 1273 

 EXHIBIT J 
 Additional Federal Provisions 

 EXHIBIT K 
 FFATA Supplemental Federal Provisions 

 EXHIBIT M 
 OMB Uniform Guidance 

 Updated 7/30/2024 

 Page  35 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://drive.google.com/file/d/1eKrErO08GwnbOmHcSnMpCc3Jg5Jz-k7U/view?usp=drive_link___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjoyMmMyOmFlNzhlN2ZjNWNmMTc1MjZiNGY3MjgyZDdkYWY0ZDI1MmI5YzQxMTQ4MTEzMjEyZTdiNjkzYzk2MWQ3NmU4ZmY6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://drive.google.com/file/d/1p6HwjfysEyoWS2HYUjuBl7d5bEE4Eiia/view?usp=drive_link___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjpkNGUxOmEwMjJhMzhiOTcyZTgwY2I0ODk4MDE3MzllNDYwOGFhMTMzZDM3Mjc5M2IyMWFiMjc1ZTZmNDA3ZDJiYzQ4Nzk6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mDT2yBqmhlrdRct-atlLP1jbXLI5spEy/view?usp=drive_link___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjozNTMwOjAzNjc5NjMxM2Y2ZDMxZDU3MTY5YWQzZTU2MDIxZGUyY2FhY2ViM2M1NjhmOWJmMWMwMDY0MjZlYzhiNmI2YmQ6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DKgBZJfabd3DQlD_P83heRVeIgZRxszR/view?usp=drive_link___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6Njo2NWMyOmU0ZDcxZmY3ZWFmY2NiZmZmYzkxNDRhOTU3OTRmNmNhYTBkNzYyNDJhNzYwZDJjMjkwZDFjNTA2NzE2NmVlZDA6cDpUOkY
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qfSLXtm7H-4ETYX9k--6PPey4qMMWrgx/view?usp=drive_link___.YXAzOmFtZXJpY2Fud2VzdGNvbnN0cnVjdGlvbjphOm86MDgwNDhjZDU4NWFmMTI0ZWViYTFiNDNiZjA3MDIzMjc6NjplMmQzOjViMmJiZjgzZWQ5YTk1YTAzNWUyMzgzYzNiMDk1NDEyYTJiYWZkMWI1NmM4YmM0YTdlYTZiMWNjMDUyMDZhMDA6cDpUOkY


 CONSULTING AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
 THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD AND FELSBURG HOLT & ULLEVIG, INC. 

 FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR 112TH AND UPTOWN COMPLETE STREETS 
 AND RAILROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS 

 1.  PARTIES  .  The  parties  to  this  Consulting  Agreement  for  Construction  Management 
 Services  for  112th  and  Uptown  Complete  Streets  and  Railroad  Safety  Improvements 
 (this  “Agreement”)  are  the  City  and  County  of  Broomfield,  a  Colorado  municipal 
 corporation  and  county,  (the  “City”)  and  Felsburg  Holt  &  Ullevig,  Inc.  (the 
 “Consultant”), collectively, the “Parties,” or individually, a “Party.” 

 2.  RECITALS  .  The  recitals  to  this  Agreement  are  incorporated  herein  by  this  reference  as 
 though fully set forth in the body of this Agreement. 

 2.1.  The  City,  seeking  construction  management  services  for  the  112th  and  Uptown 
 Complete  Streets  And  Railroad  Safety  Improvement  Project  #STU 
 C800-005/24284  (the  “Project”),  completed  a  competitive  selection  process  by 
 Request for Proposals #24-RFP-CD-007 (“RFP”). 

 2.2.  The  City  has  received  federal  funding  to  offset  some  of  the  costs  of  this 
 Project;  however,  no  federal  funds  will  be  used  to  pay  for  the  services  provided 
 under  this  Agreement,  the  funds  will  be  spent  on  the  actual  construction  of  the 
 Project. 

 2.3.  The  Consultant  provides  professional  services  and  is  qualified  to  perform 
 services required by the City for the Project. 

 3.  TERMS  AND  CONDITIONS  .  In  consideration  of  the  mutual  covenants  and  promises  of 
 the  Parties  contained  herein,  and  other  valuable  consideration,  the  receipt  and 
 adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 3.1.  Obligations of the Consultant  . 

 3.1.1.  General  .  The  Consultant  shall  consult  with,  advise,  and  represent  the 
 City  as  the  City  requires  during  the  term  of  this  Agreement.  The 
 Consultant  shall  act  at  the  direction  of  the  City  employee  assigned  by 
 the  City  to  the  Project  as  Project  Manager.  The  Consultant  shall 
 communicate  with  the  City  about  the  Project  only  through  the  Project 
 Manager. 

 3.1.2.  Basic  Services  .  The  Consultant  shall  perform  the  Basic  Services 
 described  in  Exhibit  A  attached  hereto  and  incorporated  by  this 
 reference and elsewhere in this Agreement. 

 3.1.3.  Extra  Services  .  Upon  the  express,  written  approval  of  the  City,  the 
 Consultant  shall  perform  Extra  Services.  The  Consultant  shall  charge  the 
 City  for  such  Extra  Services,  if  any,  in  accordance  with  such  terms  as  the 
 City may agree to in writing. 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 3.1.4.  Authorization  to  Proceed  .  No  work  on  the  Project  shall  be  performed  by 
 the  Consultant  until  written  Authorization  to  Proceed  has  been  issued  by 
 the  City.  If  the  Consultant  proceeds  with  any  work  prior  to  receipt  of 
 said  Authorization,  the  City  is  not  responsible  for  payment  for  such 
 work. 

 3.1.5.  Completion  Date  .  The  Consultant  shall  complete  the  services  of  this 
 Agreement  within  approximately  270  calendar  days  following  the  date  of 
 the  Authorization  to  Proceed,  or  such  time  as  the  construction  work  for 
 the  Project  is  complete  and  all  documentation  has  been  filed  and 
 completed  with  the  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation  for  the 
 Project. 

 3.2.  Obligations of the City  . 

 3.2.1.  General  .  The  City  shall  direct  the  work  and  coordinate  reviews, 
 approvals,  and  authorizations  of  all  stages  of  work.  All  approvals  and 
 authorizations shall be in writing. 

 3.2.2.  Changes  in  Work  .  Any  changes  with  regard  to  the  Consultant’s  cost, 
 time  requirements  of  performance,  or  scope  of  the  work  must  be  in 
 writing  and  approved  by  the  Parties  hereto  prior  to  any  work  or  services 
 being performed in contemplation of said change. 

 3.2.3.  Materials  and  Services  to  be  Furnished  by  the  City  .  The  City  agrees  to 
 furnish  the  Consultant  any  material  in  the  possession  of  the  City  to  the 
 extent  that  such  material,  in  the  opinion  of  the  Project  Manager,  is 
 readily  available  and  will  assist  the  Consultant  in  performing  the  work. 
 The  Consultant  agrees  to  request  such  material  in  advance  so  as  not  to 
 jeopardize  the  work  schedule  or  meeting  arrangements.  The  City  shall 
 not unreasonably withhold such material. 

 3.3.  Commencement and Completion  . 

 3.3.1.  The  Consultant  shall  commence  work  on  the  first  working  day  following 
 receipt  of  a  written  Authorization  to  Proceed  issued  by  the  City,  or  such 
 later date as indicated in the Authorization to Proceed. 

 3.3.2.  If  due  to  Acts  of  God,  public  emergency,  or  acts  of  a  public  enemy,  it 
 becomes  apparent  that  this  Agreement  cannot  be  fully  completed  within 
 the  agreed  time,  the  Consultant  shall  so  notify  the  City  in  writing  at 
 least  thirty  days  prior  to  any  scheduled  completion  date,  in  order  that 
 the  Consultant  and  the  City  may  review  the  work  accomplished  to  date 
 and  determine  whether  to  amend  this  Agreement  to  provide  additional 
 time for completion. 

 3.4.  Payments to Consultant  . 

 2 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 3.4.1.  Aggregate  Limit  .  Unless  extra  services  are  approved  in  writing,  the 
 amount  paid  by  the  City  to  the  Consultant  under  this  Agreement  will  not 
 exceed  $426,433,  including  reimbursables.  The  Consultant  will  complete 
 the Work for the amount shown. 

 3.4.2.  Billing  .  The  Consultant  shall  bill  the  City  monthly  for  work  done  in 
 accordance  with  the  terms  and  conditions  of  this  Agreement,  using  the 
 pay request form provided by the City. 

 3.4.3.  Payment  by  City  .  The  City  will  pay  each  bill  in  full  within  30  days  of 
 receipt  of  payment  request  and  supporting  documentation.  Consultant 
 shall  furnish  such  additional  documentation  as  the  City  shall  reasonably 
 require.  Incorrect  payments  to  the  Consultant  due  to  omission,  error, 
 fraud,  or  defalcation  may  be  recovered  from  the  Consultant  by 
 deduction  for  subsequent  payments  due  to  the  Consultant  under  this 
 Agreement or other contracts between the City and the Consultant. 

 3.4.4.  Inspection  of  Records  .  The  Consultant  will  permit  the  authorized  agents 
 and  employees  of  the  City  at  reasonable  hours,  to  inspect,  review,  and 
 audit  all  records  of  the  Consultant  related  to  this  project  and  the  work 
 to be performed hereunder. 

 3.5.  Termination  . 

 3.5.1.  For  Cause  .  This  Agreement  may  be  terminated  by  either  party  for  a 
 material  breach  of  this  Agreement  by  the  other  party  not  caused  by  any 
 action  or  omission  of  the  terminating  party  by  giving  the  other  party 
 written  notice  at  least  five  (5)  days  in  advance  of  the  termination  date. 
 The  termination  notice  shall  specify  in  reasonable  detail  each  such 
 material breach. 

 3.5.2.  Without  Cause  .  In  addition  to  the  foregoing,  this  Agreement  may  be 
 terminated  by  the  City,  in  whole  or  in  part,  for  its  convenience  and 
 without  cause  of  any  nature  by  written  notice  to  the  Consultant.  In  the 
 event  of  termination,  the  Consultant  shall  incur  no  additional  expenses 
 and  shall  perform  no  further  services  for  the  City  under  this  Agreement 
 after  the  date  of  receipt  of  the  notice  of  termination,  unless  otherwise 
 specified  by  the  City.  The  City  shall  pay  the  Consultant  for  all  work 
 satisfactorily  performed  prior  to  receipt  of  the  notice  of  termination  and 
 for  other  services  required  by  the  City  to  be  completed  prior  to 
 termination and satisfactorily performed. 

 3.5.3.  Upon  Termination  .  In  the  event  of  such  termination,  the  Consultant  will 
 be  paid  for  all  services  rendered  to  the  date  of  termination,  and  upon 
 such  payment,  all  obligations  of  the  City  to  Consultant  under  this 
 Agreement  will  cease.  Furthermore,  in  the  event  of  such  termination, 
 the  Consultant  shall  promptly  deliver  to  the  City  all  drawings,  electronic 
 data,  computer  programs,  computer  input  and  output,  plans, 
 photographic  images,  analyses,  tests,  maps,  surveys,  and  written 

 3 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 materials  of  any  kind  generated  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement 
 up  to  and  including  the  date  of  termination.  Termination  pursuant  to 
 this  subsection  shall  not  prevent  either  party  from  exercising  any  other 
 legal remedies which may be available to it. 

 3.5.4.  Dispute  Resolution.  A  Party  seeking  to  terminate  for  cause  must  notify 
 the  other  Party  of  its  intent  and  provide  written  notice  specifying  the 
 facts  supporting  any  alleged  material  breach.  Within  fourteen  (14)  days 
 after  receipt  of  such  notice,  the  Parties  shall  meet  to  resolve  the 
 matters  described  in  the  written  notice.  If  either  Party  believes  that 
 mediation  would  assist  in  resolving  the  matters  described  in  the  written 
 notice,  the  Parties  shall  participate  in  mediation  with  a  mutually 
 acceptable  mediator,  to  be  conducted  no  later  than  sixty  (60)  days  after 
 receipt  of  the  written  notice  of  intent  to  terminate  for  cause.  Mediation 
 shall  take  place  in  Broomfield,  Colorado  and  the  Parties  agree  to  split 
 the costs of mediation. 

 3.6.  Suspension  .  Without  terminating  this  Agreement  or  breaching  its  obligations 
 hereunder,  the  City  may,  at  its  pleasure,  suspend  the  services  of  the  Consultant 
 hereunder.  Such  suspension  may  be  accomplished  by  giving  the  Consultant 
 written  notice  one  (1)  day  in  advance  of  the  suspension  date.  Upon  receipt  of 
 such  notice,  the  Consultant  shall  cease  its  work  in  as  efficient  a  manner  as 
 possible  so  as  to  keep  his  total  charges  to  the  City  for  services  under  the 
 Agreement to the minimum. 

 3.7.  Laws  to  be  Observed  .  The  Consultant  shall  be  cognizant  of  all  federal  and  state 
 laws  and  local  ordinances  and  regulations  that  in  any  manner  affect  those 
 engaged  or  employed  in  the  work  or  which  in  any  manner  affect  the  conduct  of 
 the  work,  and  of  all  such  orders  and  decrees  of  bodies  or  tribunals  having  any 
 jurisdiction  or  authority  over  the  same,  and  shall  at  all  times  observe  and 
 comply  with  all  such  existing  laws,  ordinances,  regulations  and  decrees,  and 
 shall  protect  and  indemnify  the  City  against  any  claim  or  liability  arising  from 
 or  based  on  the  violations  of  any  such  law,  ordinance,  regulation,  order  or 
 decree, whether by itself, its subcontractors, agents or employees. 

 3.8.  Permits  and  Licenses  .  The  Consultant  shall  procure  all  permits  and  licenses, 
 pay  all  charges,  fees  and  taxes  and  give  all  notices  necessary  and  incidental  to 
 the due and lawful prosecution of its services. 

 3.9.  Patented  Devices,  Materials,  and  Processes  .  The  Consultant  shall  hold  and  save 
 harmless  the  City  from  any  and  all  claims  for  infringement,  by  reason  of  the 
 use  of  any  patented  design,  device,  material,  process,  any  trademark,  or 
 copyright  and  shall  indemnify  the  City  for  any  costs,  attorney’s  fees,  expenses 
 and  damages  which  it  might  be  obligated  to  pay  by  reason  of  infringement,  at 
 any time during the prosecution or after completion of the work. 

 4.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION  . 

 4.1.  Standard of Care  . 

 4 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 4.1.1.  Professional  Liability  .  The  Consultant  shall  exercise  in  its  performance 
 of  the  Basic  Services  and  Extra  Services,  if  any,  the  standard  of  care 
 normally  exercised  by  locally  recognized  consulting  organizations 
 engaged  in  performing  comparable  services.  The  Consultant  shall  be 
 liable  to  the  City  for  any  loss,  damage,  or  cost  incurred  by  the  City  for 
 the  repair,  replacement,  or  correction  of  any  part  of  the  Project  that  is 
 deficient  or  defective  as  a  result  of  any  failure  of  the  Consultant  to 
 comply with this standard. 

 4.1.2.  Indemnification  .  The  Consultant  shall  indemnify,  defend  and  hold 
 harmless  the  City  and  the  Colorado  Department  of  Transportation  and  its 
 agents  and  employees  from  and  against  all  claims,  damages,  losses,  and 
 expenses,  including,  but  not  limited  to,  reasonable  attorneys’  fees, 
 arising  out  of  or  resulting  from  the  performance  of  the  Basic  Services  or 
 Extra  Services,  provided  that  any  such  claim,  damage,  loss  or  expense 
 (1)  is  attributable  to  bodily  injury,  sickness,  disease,  or  death  or  injury 
 to  or  destruction  of  tangible  property  (other  than  the  Project  itself), 
 including  the  loss  of  use  resulting  therefrom,  and  (2)  is  caused  by  any 
 negligent  act  or  error  or  omission  of  the  Consultant,  any  subconsultant 
 of  the  Consultant,  anyone  directly  or  indirectly  employed  by  any  of 
 them,  or  anyone  for  whose  acts  any  of  them  may  be  liable.  Such 
 obligation  shall  not  be  construed  to  negate,  abridge,  or  otherwise 
 reduce  any  other  right  or  obligation  of  indemnity  which  would  otherwise 
 exist as to any party or person described in this paragraph 4.1.2. 

 4.1.3.  No  Limitation  on  Claims  .  In  any  and  all  claims  against  the  City  or 
 against  any  of  its  agents  or  employees  by  any  employee  of  the 
 Consultant,  any  subconsultant  of  the  Consultant,  anyone  directly  or 
 indirectly  employed  by  any  of  them,  or  anyone  for  whose  acts  any  of 
 them  may  be  liable,  the  indemnification  obligation  under  subparagraph 
 4.1.2  shall  not  be  limited  in  any  way  by  any  limitation  on  the  amount  or 
 type  of  damages,  compensation,  or  benefits  payable  by  or  for  the 
 Consultant  or  any  subconsultant  under  Workers’  Compensation  Act  of 
 Colorado or other employee benefit legislation. 

 4.2.  Insurance  . 

 4.2.1.  Purchase  and  Maintain  Insurance  .  In  order  to  assure  the  City  that  the 
 Consultant  is  always  capable  of  fulfilling  specified  indemnification 
 obligations,  Consultant  shall  purchase  and  maintain  insurance,  from  an 
 insurer  with  an  AM  Best  FSR  rating  of  A-  or  higher,  of  the  kind,  in  the 
 amounts,  and  subject  to  the  conditions  shown  in  the  Insurance 
 Requirements attached as  Exhibit B  . 

 4.2.2.  Coverage  .  Said  insurance  shall  be  maintained  in  full  force  and  effect 
 during  the  term  of  this  Agreement  and  shall  protect  the  Consultant,  its 
 employees,  subconsultant,  agents  and  representatives,  and  the  City  from 
 claims  for  damages  for  personal  injury  and  wrongful  death  and  for 

 5 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 damages  to  property  arising  in  any  manner  from  acts  or  omissions  of  the 
 Consultant,  its  employees,  agents  or  representatives,  in  the 
 performance  of  the  services  covered  herein.  The  insuring  company  will 
 provide  thirty-day  written  notice  prior  to  any  alteration  or  cancellation 
 of the above-referenced insurance. 

 4.2.3.  Valuable  Papers  .  Furthermore,  the  Consultant  shall  carry  valuable 
 papers  insurance  in  an  amount  sufficient  to  assure  the  restoration  of  any 
 plans,  drawings,  field  notes  or  other  similar  data  related  to  the  services 
 covered  by  this  Agreement  in  the  event  of  their  loss  or  destruction  until 
 such  time  as  the  final  submission  by  the  Consultant  has  been  made  and 
 accepted by the City. 

 5.  NOTICE  AND  AUTHORIZED  REPRESENTATIVES  .  Any  notice  required  or  permitted  by  this 
 Agreement  shall  be  in  writing  and  shall  be  sufficiently  given  for  all  purposes  if  sent  by 
 email  to  the  authorized  representative  identified  below.  Such  notice  shall  be  deemed 
 to  have  been  given  when  the  email  was  sent  and  received.  The  City  may  change  its 
 representative  at  any  time  by  notice  to  the  Consultant.  The  Consultant  shall  not 
 replace  the  Consultant  Representative  unless:  (a)  the  City  requests  a  replacement,  or 
 (b)  the  Consultant  terminates  the  employment  of  the  Consultant  Representative  and 
 provides  a  satisfactory  substitute.  The  City  must  approve  a  substitute  Consultant 
 Representative,  and,  if  no  substitute  is  acceptable,  the  City  may  terminate  this 
 Agreement.  The Parties each designate an authorized  representative as follows: 

 5.1.  The  City  designates  Joliette  Woodson  as  the  authorized  representative  of  the 
 City under this Agreement.  Email address is  jwoodson@broomfield.org  . 

 5.2.  The  Consultant  designates  Jenny  Young  as  the  authorized  representative  of  the 
 Consultant under this Agreement.  Email address is jenny.young@fhueng.com. 

 If  the  Consultant  is  alleging  that  the  City  is  in  breach  of  this  Agreement  or  has 
 violated  any  term  of  this  Agreement,  Legal  Notice  shall  be  made  by  making  the  notice 
 above with a copy to  citycountyattorney@broomfield.org  . 

 6.  INDEPENDENT  CONTRACTOR  .  The  Consultant  is  an  independent  contractor  as 
 described  in  C.R.S.  §  8-40-202(2).  The  Consultant  is  not  entitled  to  workers’ 
 compensation  benefits  and  is  obligated  to  pay  federal  and  state  income  tax  on 
 monies earned pursuant to this Agreement. 

 7.  APPROVAL  OF  SUBCONTRACTORS  AND  CONSULTANTS  .  The  Consultant  shall  not  employ 
 any  subcontractors  or  consultants  without  the  prior  written  approval  of  the  City 
 Representative.  Prior  to  commencing  any  work,  each  subcontractor  or  consultant 
 shall  provide  the  appropriate  insurance  as  required  for  the  Consultant  under  this 
 Agreement.  The  Consultant  shall  be  responsible  for  coordination  of  the  work  and  the 
 acts  and  omissions  of  its  agents,  employees,  subcontractors,  consultants  and 
 suppliers,  and  shall  bind  each  to  the  terms  of  this  Agreement  so  far  as  are  applicable. 
 This  Agreement  is  voidable  by  the  City  if  subcontracted  by  the  Consultant  without  the 
 express written consent of the City. 

 6 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 

mailto:jwoodson@broomfield.org
mailto:cityandcountyattorney@broomfield.org


 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 8.  THIRD-PARTY  BENEFICIARIES  .  This  Agreement  is  intended  to  describe  the  rights  and 
 responsibilities  only  as  to  the  Parties  hereto.  This  Agreement  is  not  intended  and  shall 
 not  be  deemed  to  confer  any  rights  on  any  person  or  entity  not  named  as  a  Party 
 hereto, except for the Colorado Department of Transportation. 

 9.  FINANCIAL  OBLIGATIONS  OF  THE  CITY.  All  financial  obligations  of  the  City  under  this 
 Agreement  are  subject  to  appropriation,  budgeting,  and  availability  of  funds  to 
 discharge  such  obligations.  Nothing  in  this  Agreement  shall  be  deemed  to  pledge  the 
 City’s  credit  or  faith,  directly  or  indirectly,  to  the  Consultant.  If  funds  for  this 
 Agreement  are  not  appropriated  and  budgeted  in  any  year  subsequent  to  the  fiscal 
 year  of  execution  of  this  Agreement  as  determined  by  the  City,  this  Agreement  may 
 be  terminated  by  the  City  upon  written  notice  to  the  Consultant.  The  City’s  fiscal 
 year is currently the calendar year. 

 10.  EXHIBITS  .  All  exhibits  referred  to  in  this  Agreement  are  by  reference  incorporated 
 herein for all purposes. 

 11.  CONFLICTS  WITHIN  THE  CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS  .  In  the  event  that  conflicts  exist 
 within  the  terms  and  conditions  of  this  Agreement  and  the  attached  or  referenced 
 Agreement documents or exhibits the former shall supersede  . 

 12.  INTEGRATION  AND  AMENDMENT  .  This  Agreement  represents  the  entire  agreement 
 between  the  Parties  and  there  are  no  oral  or  collateral  agreements  or  understandings. 
 This  Agreement  may  be  amended  only  by  an  instrument  in  writing  signed  by  the 
 Parties.  For  purposes  of  clarity,  the  terms  and  conditions  of  any  Consultant  invoice, 
 Consultant  timesheet,  or  other  form,  including  but  not  limited  to  indemnification, 
 limitation  of  liability,  or  cancellation  fees,  shall  be  void  and  of  no  effect  against  the 
 City  notwithstanding  any  signatures  on  such  form  by  a  City  employee.  The 
 Consultant’s  rights  and  obligations  shall  be  solely  governed  by  the  terms  and 
 conditions of this Agreement. 

 13.  SEVERABILITY  .  If  any  provision  of  this  agreement  as  applied  to  either  Party  or  to  any 
 circumstance  shall  be  adjudged  by  a  court  to  be  void  or  unenforceable,  the  same  shall 
 in  no  way  affect  any  other  provision  of  this  Agreement,  the  application  of  any  such 
 provision  in  any  other  circumstances  or  the  validity,  or  enforceability  of  the 
 Agreement as a whole. 

 14.  ADDITIONAL  DOCUMENTS  OR  ACTION  .  The  Parties  agree  to  execute  any  additional 
 documents  or  take  any  additional  action  that  is  necessary  to  carry  out  this 
 Agreement. 

 15.  MINOR  CHANGES  .  The  Parties  executing  this  Agreement  are  authorized  to  make 
 nonsubstantive  corrections  to  this  Agreement  and  attached  exhibits,  if  any,  as  they 
 consider necessary. 

 16.  DOCUMENTS.    All  drawings,  computer  programs,  computer  input  and  output,  analyses, 
 plans,  photographic  images,  tests,  maps,  surveys,  electronic  files,  and  written 
 material  of  any  kind  generated  in  the  performance  of  this  Agreement  or  developed  by 
 the  Consultant  specifically  for  the  Project  are  and  shall  remain  the  exclusive  property 

 7 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 of  the  City.  The  Consultant  shall  not  provide  copies  of  any  such  material  to  any  other 
 party without the prior written consent of the City. 

 17.  RECORDS  RETENTION  .  The  Consultant  shall  maintain  complete  and  accurate  records  of 
 time  spent  and  materials  used  for  performance  of  the  Work,  together  with  any 
 invoices,  time  cards,  or  other  supporting  data  reasonably  requested.  All  records,  data 
 and  documentation  shall  be  retained  by  the  Consultant  for  a  period  of  not  less  than 
 three  (3)  years  after  completion  of  the  Work,  and  shall  be  subject  to  review, 
 inspection and copying by the CIty upon reasonable notice. 

 18.  OFFICIALS  NOT  TO  BENEFIT  .  No  elected  or  employed  member  of  City  government 
 shall  directly  or  indirectly  be  paid  or  receive  any  share  or  part  of  this  Agreement  or 
 any  benefit  that  may  arise  therefrom.  The  Contractor  warrants  that  it  has  not 
 retained  any  entity  or  person,  other  than  a  bona  fide  employee  working  solely  for  the 
 Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement. 

 19.  ASSIGNMENT  .  This  Agreement  shall  not  be  assigned  by  the  other  Party  without  the 
 prior written consent of the City. 

 20.  BINDING  EFFECT  .  This  Agreement  shall  inure  to  the  benefit  of  and  be  binding  upon 
 the  Parties  and  their  respective  legal  representatives,  successors,  heirs,  and  assigns, 
 provided  that  nothing  in  this  paragraph  shall  be  construed  to  permit  the  assignment  of 
 this Agreement except as otherwise expressly authorized herein. 

 21.  DAYS  .  If  the  day  for  any  performance  or  event  provided  for  herein  is  a  Saturday,  a 
 Sunday,  a  day  on  which  national  banks  are  not  open  for  the  regular  transactions  of 
 business,  or  a  legal  holiday  pursuant  to  C.R.S.  §  24-11-101(1),  such  day  shall  be 
 extended  until  the  next  day  on  which  such  banks  and  state  offices  are  open  for  the 
 transaction of business. 

 22.  DELAYS  .  Any  delays  in  or  failure  of  performance  by  any  Party  of  its  obligations  under 
 this  Agreement  shall  be  excused  if  such  delays  or  failure  are  a  result  of  acts  of  God, 
 fires,  floods,  strikes,  labor  disputes,  accidents,  regulations  or  orders  of  civil  or 
 military  authorities,  shortages  of  labor  or  materials,  or  other  causes,  similar  or 
 dissimilar, which are beyond the control of such Party. 

 23.  NO  PRESUMPTION  .  The  Parties  to  this  Agreement  and  their  attorneys  have  had  a  full 
 opportunity  to  review  and  participate  in  the  drafting  of  the  final  form  of  this 
 Agreement.  Accordingly,  this  Agreement  shall  be  construed  without  regard  to  any 
 presumption  or  other  rule  of  construction  against  the  Party  causing  the  Agreement  to 
 be drafted. 

 24.  GOOD  FAITH  OF  PARTIES  .  In  the  performance  of  this  Agreement  or  in  considering  any 
 requested  approval,  acceptance,  or  extension  of  time,  the  Parties  agree  that  each 
 will  act  in  good  faith  and  will  not  act  unreasonably,  arbitrarily,  capriciously,  or 
 unreasonably  withhold,  condition,  or  delay  any  approval,  acceptance,  or  extension  of 
 time required or requested pursuant to this Agreement. 

 8 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 25.  WAIVER  OF  BREACH  .  This  Agreement  or  any  of  its  provisions  may  not  be  waived 
 except  in  writing  by  a  Party’s  authorized  representative.  A  waiver  by  any  Party  to  this 
 Agreement  of  the  breach  of  any  term  or  provision  of  this  Agreement  shall  not  operate 
 or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by either Party. 

 26.  GOVERNING  LAW  .  This  Agreement  shall  be  governed  by  the  laws  of  the  State  of 
 Colorado.  Any  claims  or  litigation  arising  under  this  Agreement  will  be  brought  by  the 
 Parties solely in the District Court, Broomfield County, Colorado. 

 27.  SURVIVAL  OF  OBLIGATIONS  .  Notwithstanding  anything  to  the  contrary,  the  Parties 
 understand  and  agree  that  all  terms  and  conditions  of  this  Agreement  that  require 
 continued  performance  or  compliance  beyond  the  termination  or  expiration  of  this 
 Agreement,  including  without  limitation  the  indemnification  provision,  shall  survive 
 such  termination  or  expiration  and  shall  be  enforceable  against  a  Party  if  such  Party 
 fails to perform or comply with such term or condition. 

 28.  LAWS  TO  BE  OBSERVED  .  The  Consultant  shall  be  cognizant  of  all  federal  and  state  laws 
 and  local  ordinances  and  regulations  that  in  any  manner  affect  those  engaged  or 
 employed  in  the  work  or  which  in  any  manner  affect  the  conduct  of  the  work,  and  of 
 all  such  orders  and  decrees  of  bodies  or  tribunals  having  any  jurisdiction  or  authority 
 over  the  same,  and  shall  at  all  times  observe  and  comply  with  all  such  existing  laws, 
 ordinances,  regulations  and  decrees,  and  shall  protect  and  indemnify  the  City  against 
 any  claim  or  liability  arising  from  or  based  on  the  violations  of  any  such  law, 
 ordinance,  regulation,  order  or  decree,  whether  by  itself,  its  subcontractors,  agents 
 or employees. 

 29.  DIGITAL  ACCESSIBILITY  STANDARDS  .  In  2021,  the  State  of  Colorado  adopted  HB21-1110 
 relating  to  the  digital  accessibility  standards  required  to  be  implemented  under  the 
 Colorado  Anti-Discrimination  Act  which  makes  it  unlawful  to  discriminate  against 
 individuals  with  a  disability.  The  Contractor  shall  ensure  that  all  digital  deliverables 
 and  digital  technology  provided  pursuant  to  the  terms  of  this  Agreement  shall  comply 
 with  at  least  the  Web  Content  Accessibility  Guidelines  (WCAG)  2.1  Level  AA,  or  such 
 updated  standard  as  the  Colorado  Governor’s  Office  of  Information  Technology  may 
 adopt from time-to-time. 

 30.  EXECUTION;  ELECTRONIC  SIGNATURES  .  This  Agreement  may  be  executed  in  several 
 counterparts,  each  of  which  shall  be  deemed  an  original  and  all  of  which  shall 
 constitute  but  one  and  the  same  instrument.  This  Agreement  shall  not  be  binding 
 upon  any  Party  hereto  unless  and  until  the  Parties  have  executed  this  Agreement.  The 
 Parties  approve  the  use  of  electronic  signatures  for  execution  of  this  Agreement.  All 
 documents must be properly notarized, if applicable. 

 [  The remainder of this page is intentionally left  blank  .] 

 9 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 This  Agreement  is  executed  by  the  Parties  hereto  in  their  respective  names  as  of 
 _________________________, 2025. 

 THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 
 a Colorado municipal corporation and county 

 ________________________________ 
 City and County Manager 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 ________________________________ 
 City and County Attorney 

 10 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 CONSULTANT: 

 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 By: ____________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Address: 

 11 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 

Jenny Young, PE, AICP
6400 S. Fiddlers Green Cir, #1500 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 EXHIBIT A 
 SCOPE OF WORK 

 1.  Scope  of  Work.  The  Consultant  shall  provide  professional  services  in  construction 
 management,  including  facilitating  the  work  of  the  City’s  construction  contractor 
 (“Construction  Contractor”)  and  communication  with  the  design  engineers 
 (“Engineers”)  for  road  widening,  pavement  reconstruction,  and  concrete  work  on 
 112th  and  Uptown  Avenue  between  Reed  Way  and  Parkland  Street  (the  “Project”)  as 
 more  particularly  described  herein  and  in  the  Project  plans  .  The  design  and 
 construction  of  this  Project  is  administered  as  a  CDOT  Local  Agency  Project  and  the 
 Consultant  shall  comply  with  all  CDOT  Local  Agency  Project  requirements  and  the 
 Consultant shall complete all required paperwork. 

 1.1.  The  Consultant  will  serve  as  the  City’s  representative  and  will  be  responsible 
 for  coordination  with  the  Construction  Contractor,  BNSF  Railway  Company, 
 Colorado  Department  of  Transportation  (“CDOT”),  affected  utilities  and 
 affected businesses or properties for this Project. 

 1.2.  The  Consultant  is  expected  to  work  independently  and  be  knowledgeable  in 
 preparing  and  collecting  documentation  to  assist  the  City  with  CDOT 
 reimbursement  requirements,  other  required  documentation  submittals, 
 including  but  not  limited  to  BNSF  Railway  requests,  and  any  audits.  The  City 
 will  not  expect  the  Consultant  to  process  and  submit  invoices  to  CDOT  for 
 reimbursement. 

 1.2.1.  The  Consultant  will  be  responsible  for  completing  and  submitting  all 
 required  CDOT  forms,  to  ensure  compliance  with  all  of  the 
 documentation  requirements  as  specified  by  CDOT,  including  any 
 requirements  as  a  result  of  the  federal  funding  received  for  the 
 construction project. 

 1.2.2.  The  Consultant  shall  provide  materials  testing  services  per  any  CDOT 
 requirements. 

 1.2.3.  The  Consultant  shall  also  help  coordinate  the  work  with  the  BNSF 
 Railway  as  more  particularly  described  in  the  Construction  & 
 Management  Agreement  by  and  between  the  City  and  BNSF  Railway 
 attached hereto as  Exhibit D  . 

 1.3.  The  work  hours  are  Monday  through  Friday  from  8:30  AM  to  4:30  PM.  Saturday 
 work  is  allowed  with  an  approved  Saturday  work  request.  Start  date  and 
 completion  may  be  modified  at  the  discretion  of  CDOT  or  the  City,  as  deemed 

 12 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 in  its  best  interest.  The  Project  will  also  need  to  be  coordinated  with  BNSF 
 which could cause further delays. 

 2.  Meetings  and  Communication.  The  Consultant  shall  conduct  a  pre-construction 
 meeting,  weekly  progress  meetings,  prepare  agenda  and  minutes  and  reports,  and  the 
 following items: 

 2.1.  Provide  bi-weekly  progress  reports  to  the  City  on  the  status  of  the  Project, 
 indicating  major  work  activities,  provide  an  status  update  for  any  requests  for 
 information  (RFIs),  submittals,  change  orders  and  any  other  information  that 
 may be required by CDOT, BNSF or the City. 

 2.2.  Coordinate  as  needed  with  City  staff,  the  Construction  Contractor, 
 subcontractors,  regulatory  agencies,  utility  companies,  CDOT,  BNSF,  and  other 
 identified project stakeholders. 

 2.3.  Advise  the  City  of  all  complaints  and  inquiries  from  property  owners,  citizens, 
 officials,  or  others.  Assist  in  the  investigation  and  answering  of  such  complaints 
 and  inquiries.  Maintain  a  log  showing  the  disposition  of  each  complaint  and 
 inquiry. 

 3.  Maintaining  Documentation.  The  Consultant  shall  maintain  Project  documentation  and 
 files  per  state,  federal  and  requirement  as  listed  in  the  CDOT  Local  Agency  Desk 
 Reference as amended. 

 3.1.  The  Consultant  shall  document  issues,  findings,  changes,  and  help  develop 
 solutions. 

 3.2.  The  Consultant  will  complete  verification  and  documentation  of  the 
 Construction  Contractor  fulfillment  of  the  required  construction  including 
 Disadvantaged  Business  Goals  (DBE),  On  the  Job  Training  Goals  (OJT)  and 
 Davis-Bacon Act documentation. 

 4.  Oversight  and  Monitoring.  The  Consultant  shall  provide  oversight,  monitoring  and 
 ensure the following is completed: 

 4.1.  Ensure  the  Construction  Contractor  complies  with  all  local,  state,  and  federal 
 laws,  ordinances,  rules,  regulations,  regulatory  or  resource  agency  permits, 
 orders  as  provided  by  the  contract,  plan  documents,  and  any  method  of 
 handling traffic plans. 

 4.2.  Review  and  approve  the  Construction  Contractor's  safety  program  per  federal 
 and state requirements. 

 13 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 4.3.  Collect  documentation  as  required,  coordinate  and  assist  the  City  with 
 reviewing submittals, shop drawings and CDOT invoicing as needed. 

 4.4.  Review  Construction  Contractor  payment  requests  for  accuracy  and  recommend 
 either approval or propose changes. 

 4.5.  Evaluate  the  merit  of  any  potential  claims,  or  requests  for  equitable 
 adjustment submitted by the Construction Contractor. 

 4.6.  Review and coordinate with the Engineer to respond to all RFIs. 

 4.7.  Review  the  Project’s  as-built  redlined  drawings.  These  will  be  provided  to  the 
 Engineer at the end of the project for the development of as-built plans. 

 5.  Testing/Inspections Oversight. 

 5.1.  Provide  the  necessary  personnel  and  equipment  to  facilitate  the  performance 
 of  testing  and  inspection  services,  including  any  testing  as  requested  by  CDOT 
 or the City. 

 5.2.  Monitor  inspection  documentation  and  testing  results,  as  well  as  enforce 
 corrections. 

 6.  Labor Compliance. 

 6.1.  Perform  labor  compliance  in  accordance  with  CDOT  Local  Agency  Desk 
 Reference,  including  compliance  with  Davis-Bacon  Act  and  other  federal 
 requirements as applicable. 

 7.  Completion  and  Closeout.  At  the  completion  of  the  construction,  the  Consultant  shall 
 ensure the following: 

 7.1.  Coordinate  a  final  walk-through  with  the  City  and  all  affected  stakeholders, 
 prepare  a  punch  list,  certify  completion  of  the  Project,  and  recommend 
 acceptance. 

 7.1.1.  Prepare  all  final  reports,  including  report  of  completion  for  acceptance 
 of the Project. 

 7.2.  Coordinate  and  provide  Engineer’s  approved  As-Builts  to  incorporate  into 
 record drawings. 

 7.3.  Finalize  construction  contract  bid  items,  claims,  change  orders  and  punch  list 
 items. Reconcile all accounting. 

 14 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 7.4.  Finalize  and  deliver  all  construction  files  to  the  City.  All  files  shall  be  digitized 
 and provided both in electronic and hardcopy format. 

 7.5.  Complete  documentation  as  required  by  CDOT  and  the  CDOT  Local  Agency  Desk 
 Reference  (“LADR”).  Work  with  the  City  to  ensure  all  documents  are  properly 
 collected and submitted. 

 7.6.  Assist with any audit of the Project. 

 8.  Material Testing 

 8.1.  Perform  all  material  testing  in  conformance  with  all  CDOT  requirements  and 
 those of the LADR. 

 8.2.  Review  and  approve  mix  designs  in  accordance  with  CDOT  guidelines,  the 
 Project Plans  , and the  Project Specifications  . 

 8.3.  Provide  all  testing  and  ensure  compliance  for  any  incorporated  materials  as 
 required  by  the  latest  version  of  CDOT’s  Field  Material  Manual  (“FMM”), 
 included as  CDOT Field Materials Manual  . 

 8.4.  Provide  the  City  with  a  schedule  of  materials  to  be  tested  and  estimate  the 
 dates  when  these  services  will  be  necessary.  Take  samples  and  perform  field 
 and  source-controlled  tests  of  construction  materials  for  quality  assurance  in 
 accordance with the FMM. 

 9.  Construction  Inspection.  The  Consultant  must  provide  an  experienced  construction 
 inspector  who  is  currently  CDOT  certified  to  perform  required  quality  assurance  tests 
 (“Construction Inspector”).  The Construction Inspector’s tasks will include: 

 9.1.  Complete  and  maintain  accurate  daily  records  including  photographs,  any 
 required  forms  to  describe  work  accomplished,  weather  conditions,  number 
 and  type  of  personnel,  quantities  of  materials,  quantities  of  bid  item  work 
 completed,  construction  equipment  at  the  site,  deliveries  of  construction 
 materials,  material  shortages,  tests,  labor  disputes,  general  observations,  any 
 unusual occurrences, and any delays including reason and length of time. 

 9.2.  Inspect  the  Construction  Contractor’s  quality  and  quantity  of  work  completed 
 in accordance with the Project Plans and Specifications. 

 9.3.  Ensure  that  materials  delivered  onsite  and  incorporated  into  the  work  are 
 acceptable and of good quality. 

 9.4.  Obtain  Certificates  of  Compliance  or  complete  field  releases  of  material, 
 where appropriate. 

 15 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1wSHxAmoVnbR_7bxC6b9ZyvST4bJOMC0r/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/14ybK55ZJxyVyKtwwwdmiVKp5c2nSvLAA/view?usp=drive_link
https://www.codot.gov/business/designsupport/materials-and-geotechnical/manuals/field-material-manuals


 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 9.5.  Monitor  Construction  Contractor’s  operations  including  safety  and  traffic 
 control. 

 9.6.  In  coordination  with  the  City,  resolve  conflicts  between  the  Project  Plans, 
 Project  Specifications,  and  actual  site  conditions.  Recommend  engineering 
 changes  in  the  design  of  the  Project  Plans  and  Specifications  which  are  then 
 referred to the City for approval and change order if necessary. 

 9.7.  Assist in tracking approved changes for as-built records. 

 9.8.  Attend  all  Project  meetings  such  as  preconstruction,  field,  and  progress 
 meetings and document such meetings. 

 9.9.  Provide  complete  and  documented  measurements  and  calculations  to 
 administer  progress  payments,  change  orders,  extra  work,  and  any  other 
 necessary documentation. 

 9.9.1.  Prepare monthly quantity estimates for use in progress payments. 

 9.10.  Verify concrete and asphalt mix designs and collect weight tickets. 

 9.11.  Each  working  day,  meet  with  the  Construction  Contractor  to  review  proposed 
 work plans, including specific details that may affect progress. 

 9.12.  Maintain  copies  of  all  permits  needed  to  construct  the  Project  and  enforce 
 special requirements of each. 

 9.13.  Perform  Stormwater  Management  Plan  compliance  inspections  and  related 
 duties  with  the  Construction  Contractor.  Document  and  take  appropriate  action 
 to correct any best management practices deficiencies. 

 9.14.  Conduct federally required contractor employee interviews. 

 9.15.  Document  and  ensure  that  the  required  posters  and  wage  rates  are  displayed  at 
 the job site. 

 9.16.  And  any  other  work  reasonably  required  to  complete  the  work  described  herein 
 if not specifically identified. 

 16 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 EXHIBIT B 
 CONSULTANT’S RATE SHEET 

 17 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



Date:

Client:

Contact:

Address:

E-mail:

Phone:

Project Name:

Location:

Activity Unit Rate-per HR Total

Project Manager 100 $170.00 $17,000.00

Field Inspector/Technician 750 $75.00 $56,250.00

Daily Equipment Fee 195 $50.00 $9,750.00

Administrative 20 $70.00 $1,400.00

$84,400.00

Item Unit Unit Rate Total

Proctor 6 $200.00 $1,200.00

Gradation 10 $100.00 $1,000.00

Atterberg 10 $85.00 $850.00

R Value 2 $400.00 $800.00

LA Abrasion 2 $175.00 $350.00

Concrete Compression 35 $20.00 $700.00

Rice 6 $100.00 $600.00

Specific Gravity 6 $50.00 $300.00

AC/Gradation 6 $250.00 $1,500.00

Coring Equipment (per day) 6 $200.00 $1,200.00 HMA Joint Density + PCCP Thickness

$8,500.00

$92,900.00

Proposal prepared by:  

Project Description

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES COST ESTIMATE 
Project Information

Monday, November 11, 2024

FHU

Tom Nead

112th and Uptown

Broomfield, CO

Project Description: 112th Ave and Uptown Complete Streets and RR Safety Improvements

Scope of Work: QC testing services for the project elements.

Testing Labor

Notes

Contract Information: Work will be performed in accordance with mutually agreed upon task order or contract. This proposal doesn't include overtime 

 charges. Overtime will be billed for more than 12 hours in a day, hours over 40 in a week, weekends, and night work are billed at 1.3 times the straight-

time rate.  Additional services needed will be per the attached rate table.

Includes review of materials books

On-Call Testing

Subtotal

Assume 195 working days, will only charge for days when 

testing needed

cell: 303-263-8934

Estimated Total 

________________________________________________

Chad Phillips

Construction Services Manager
cphillips@vivideg.com

Assumptions: Testing work is considered on call.  Materials oversight by PM to provide CDOT LA compliant documentation

No Form 250 was available, actual tests to be per the Form 250 once provided (lab testing is estimated based on FMM frequencies).  Assumed 

gradation acceptance on HMA

Lab Testing

Notes

Subtotal

3885 Forest Street, Denver, CO 80207
Ph:303-478-9087



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 EXHIBIT C 
 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

	CITY	and	COUNTY	of	BROOMFIELD	INSURANCE	REQUIREMENTS	for	CCOB	&	CDOT	
	Contracts	
 1.  All insurers must be licensed or approved to do business within the State of Colorado. 
 2.  Contractor/Vendor’s insurance carriers should have an A.M. Best Company ra�ng of at least A- VII. 
 3.  Addi�onal Insured - City and County of Broomfield, its officers, board members, agents, employees and 

 volunteers ac�ng within the scope of their du�es for the City and County of Broomfield shall be named as 
 Addi�onal Insured on all Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance policies 
 (construc�on contracts require Addi�onal Insured coverage for completed opera�ons). 

 4.  Primacy of Coverage – Coverage required of Contractors and Subcontractors shall be primary and 
 non-contributory to any insurance carried by the City and County of Broomfield. 

 5.  All subcontractors must meet the same insurance requirements for the Contract or Purchase Order unless 
 Risk Management has approved a devia�on. 

 6.  Subroga�on Waiver – All insurance policies required under this Contract maintained by Contractor or its 
 Subcontractors shall waive all rights of recovery against City and County of Broomfield, its officers, board 
 members, agents, employees and volunteers ac�ng within the scope of their du�es for the City and County 
 of Broomfield. 

 7.  Cancella�on, Change in Coverage or Limits– The above insurance policies shall include provisions preven�ng 
 cancella�on, non-renewal, or reduc�on in coverage or limits of any insurance, without at least 30 days prior 
 no�ce to Contractor/Vendor and Contractor/ Vendor shall forward such no�ce to within seven days of 
 receipt of such no�ce. 

 8.  Cer�ficates – Contractor and all Subcontractors shall provide cer�ficates showing insurance coverage 
 required hereunder to the City and County of Broomfield within 5 days of: 

 a.  the effec�ve date of the Contract 
 b.  the expira�on date of any coverage 
 c.  a request by the City and County of Broomfield 
 9.  Separa�on of Insureds. All insurance policies shall include coverage for cross liability and contain a 

 “Separa�on of Insureds” provision in the general liability policy. 
 10.  City and County of Broomfield in no way warrants that the limits required herein are sufficient to protect the 

 Contractor/Vendor from liabili�es that may arise out of the performance of the work under this Contract by 
 the Contractor, its agents, representa�ve, employees or subcontractors. The Contractor is not relieved of any 
 liability or other obliga�ons assumed or pursuant to the Contract by reason of its failure to obtain or 
 maintain insurance in sufficient amounts, dura�on or type. 

 11.  All par�es understand and agree that the City and County of Broomfield is relying on, and does not waive or 
 intend to waive by any provision of this Contract, the monetary limita�ons, immuni�es, protec�ons or any 
 other rights provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act. 

 12.  The City and County of Broomfield reserves the right to nego�ate addi�onal specific insurance requirements 
 at the �me of the Contract. 

 13.  The City and County of Broomfield and Contractor shall cooperate with each other in the collec�on of any 
 insurance proceeds which may be payable in the event of any loss, including the execu�on and delivery of 
 any proof of loss or other ac�ons required to effect recovery. 

 14.  Contractors must carry all insurance or purchase the below insurance. No insurance will be waived for CDOT 
 contracts. 

 Vendor/Contractor/Subcontractor shall obtain and maintain, at its own expense and for the dura�on of the 
 contract including any warranty periods under which the Contract are sa�sfied, the following: 

 18 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 



 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 Insurance Requirements for CCOB & CDOT Contracts 
 COVERAGES AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE  Required 

 1.  Commercial General Liability 
 ●  Commercial General Liability insurance covering all opera�ons 

 by or on behalf of the contractor/vendor on an occurrence basis 
 against claims for bodily injury, property damage (including 
 loss of use), adver�sing liability, products and completed 
 opera�ons, and contractual liability. 

 Minimum Limits: 
 ●  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 ●  $  2,000,000 General Aggregate (Per project 

 aggregate for construc�on contracts) 
 ●  $  2,000,000 Products/Completed 

 Opera�ons Aggregate (for construc�on 
 projects, this coverage should be 
 maintained for a minimum of 3 years from 
 the end of the project) 

 ●  $50,000 any 1 fire 
 2.  Automobile Liability 

 ●  Automobile Liability Insurance covering any auto (including 
 owned, hired and non-owned autos). 

 Minimum Limit: 
 ●  $1,000,000 each accident combined single 

 limit. 
 ●  If hazardous materials are transported, an 

 MCS 90 form shall be included on the policy. 
 3.  Workers’ Compensa�on 

 ●  Workers’ Compensa�on Insurance as required by State statute, 
 covering all Vendors/Contractors employees ac�ng within the 
 course and scope of their employment. 

 Note: This requirement shall not apply when a contractor or subcontractor is exempt 
 under the  Colorado Workers’ Compensa�on Act AND when such contractor or 
 subcontractor provides an appropriate sole proprietor le�er. 

 Employer’s Liability with Minimum Limits: 
 ●  $100,000 Each Accident 
 ●  $100,000 Each Employee by Disease 
 ●  $500,000 Disease Aggregate 

 4.  Professional Liability 
 ●  Contractor will purchase and maintain professional liability 

 insurance covering any damages caused by an error, omission 
 or negligent professional act to include the following coverages: 
 ●  Limited Contractual Liability 
 ●  I  f coverage is Claims Made, a retroac�ve date prior  to the 

 incep�on of the work 
 ●  If coverage is Claims Made, similar coverage must be 

 maintained for three years following the comple�on of the 
 work or an extended repor�ng period of 36 months must be 
 purchased 

 Minimum Limit: 
 ●  $1,000,000 Per Claim /Aggregate 

 5.  Umbrella or Excess Liability Coverage 
 ●  Policy shall provide liability coverage over the specified 

 Workers Compensa�on/Employers Liability, Commercial 
 General Liability and Auto Liability. 

 Minimum Limit: 
 ●  Limits of at least: $1,000,000 per 

 occurrence 

 Addi�onal Insured - The following shall be named an Addi�onal Insured:  The State of Colorado - Colorado  Department of 
 Transporta�on and The City and County of Broomfield, its officers, board members, agents, employees and volunteers ac�ng 
 within the scope of their du�es for the City and County of Broomfield shall be named as Addi�onal Insured on all  Commercial 
 General Liability, Automobile Liability Insurance policies (construc�on contracts require Addi�onal Insured coverage for 
 completed opera�ons), and Umbrella or Excess Liability insurance policies. A Waiver of Subroga�on is provided in favor of the 
 Addi�onal Insureds as respects to all policies. 
 Cer�ficate Holders are: 
 City and County of Broomfield                        Colorado Department of Transporta�on, CDOT Region 1 
 One DesCombes Drive                                      2829 W. Howard Place 
 Broomfield, CO 80020-2495                            Denver, CO 80204 
 cer�ficates@broomfield.org  A�n: Maria Hajiaghaee  Maria.hajiaghaee@state.co.us 

 No devia�ons  below  the standards given above will  be approved by the City and County of Broomfield’s Risk Management 
 office for CDOT contracts. 

 19 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 

mailto:certificates@broomfield.org


 Consulting Agreement for Construction Management Services 112th and Uptown #STU C800-005/24284 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 EXHIBIT D 

 CONSTRUCTION & MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH BNSF 

 20 
 Revised: 04/12/2024 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1qEbunVT7Uh1rDAWTDQNTOT0Dbj6QEp2t/view?usp=drive_link


INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSR WVD

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$

PRO-

OTHER:

LOCJECT

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO
OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED PROPERTY DAMAGE $

AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

POLICY

NON-OWNED

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION   DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE   WITH   THE   POLICY   PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW  HAVE BEEN ISSUED  TO THE  INSURED  NAMED ABOVE  FOR THE  POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.   NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY   REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR  OTHER  DOCUMENT  WITH  RESPECT  TO  WHICH  THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,   THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN  IS  SUBJECT  TO  ALL  THE  TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS  AND  CONDITIONS  OF  SUCH  POLICIES.   LIMITS  SHOWN  MAY  HAVE  BEEN  REDUCED  BY  PAID  CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2016/03)

ACORDTM CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Travelers Indemnity Co of America

Travelers Property Cas. Co. of America

Travelers Indemnity Company

XL Specialty Insurance Company

1/29/2025

USI Insurance Services, LLC
4600 S. Ulster Street, Suite 1200
Denver, CO  80237
800 873-8500

800 873-8500
den.certificate@usi.com

Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc.
6400 S. Fiddler's Green Circle, #1500
Greenwood Village, CO  80111

25666
25674
25658
37885

A X
X

X

X X 6802J252902 06/21/2024 06/21/2025 1,000,000
1,000,000
10,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

B
X

X X

X X BA8R607590 06/21/2024 06/21/2025 1,000,000

B X X

X 10000

X X CUP6540Y22A 06/21/2024 06/21/2025 7,000,000
7,000,000

C

N

X UB6K434639 06/21/2024 06/21/2025 X
1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

D Professional Liab
Incl. Pollution
Claims Made

X DPR5030765 06/21/2024 06/21/2025 $2,000,000 per claim
$5,000,000 annl aggr.

As required by written contract or written agreement, the following provisions apply subject to the policy 
terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions: The Certificate Holder and owner are included as Automatic  
Additional Insured's for ongoing and completed operations under General Liability; Designated Insured under
Automobile Liability; and Additional Insureds under Umbrella / Excess Liability but only with respect to  
liability arising out of the Named Insured work performed on behalf of the certificate holder and owner.  
(See Attached Descriptions)

City and County of Broomfield
One DesCombes Drive
Broomfield, CO  80020-2495

1 of 2
#S47974262/M45149802

FELSBHOLClient#: 1084418

DXJZP



SAGITTA 25.3 (2016/03)      

DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)
The General Liability, Automobile Liability, Umbrella/Excess insurance applies on a primary and non  
contributory basis. A Blanket Waiver of Subrogation applies for General Liability, Automobile Liability,  
Umbrella/Excess Liability and Workers Compensation. The Umbrella / Excess Liability policy provides excess 
coverage over the General Liability, Automobile Liability and Employers Liability.  
 
Please note that Additional Insured status does not apply to Professional Liability or Workers'  
Compensation.  

RE: Proposals #24-RFP-CD-007, 112th and Uptown Complete Streets and Railroad Safety Improvement Project
#STU C800-005/24284.
Additional Insured Includes: The State of Colorado - Colorado Department of Transportation and The City and
County of Broomfield, its officers, board members, agents, employees and volunteers acting within the scope
of their duties for the City and County of Broomfield 

2 of 2

#S47974262/M45149802




6802J252902





6802J252902



6802J252902













000516 

COMMERCIAL AUTO 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

AUTO COVERAGE PLUS ENDORSEMENT 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGE - This endorsement broadens coverage. However, coverage for any 
injury, damage or medical expenses described in any of the provisions of this endorsement may be excluded or 
limited by another endorsement to the Coverage Part, and these coverage broadening provisions do not apply to 
the extent that coverage is excluded or limited by such an endorsement. The following listing is a general cover
age description only. Limitations and exclusions may apply to these coverages. Read all the provisions of this en
dorsement and the rest of your policy carefully to determine rights, duties, and what is and is not covered. 

A. BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED

B. EMPLOYEE HIRED AUTO

C. EMPLOYEES AS INSURED

D. SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS - INCREASED
LIMITS

E. TRAILERS - INCREASED LOAD CAPACITY

F. HIRED AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE

G. PHYSICAL DAMAGE - TRANSPORTATION
EXPENSES - INCREASED LIMIT

A. BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED

The following is added to Paragraph A.1., Who Is
An Insured, of SECTION II - COVERED AUTOS
LIABILITY COVERAGE:

Any person or organization who is required under
a written contract or agreement between you and
that person or organization, that is signed and
executed by you before the "bodily injury" or
"property damage" occurs and that is in effect
during the policy period, to be named as an addi
tional insured is an "insured" for Covered Autos
Liability Coverage, but only for damages to which
this insurance applies and only to the extent that
person or organization qualifies as an "insured"
under the Who Is An Insured provision contained
in Section II.

8. EMPLOYEE HIRED AUTO

1. The following is added to Paragraph A.1.,
Who Is An Insured, of SECTION II - COV
ERED AUTOS LIABILITY COVERAGE:

An "employee" of yours is an "insured" while
operating a covered "auto" hired or rented
under a contract or agreement in an "em
ployee's" name, with your permission, while

H. AUDIO, VISUAL AND DATA ELECTRONIC
EQUIPMENT - INCREASED LIMIT

I. WAIVER OF DEDUCTIBLE - GLASS 

J. PERSONAL PROPERTY

K. AIRBAGS

L. AUTO LOAN LEASE GAP

M. BLANKET WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

performing duties related to the conduct of 
your business. 

2. The following replaces Paragraph b. in 8.5.,
Other Insurance, of SECTION IV - BUSI
NESS AUTO CONDITIONS:

b. For Hired Auto Physical Damage Cover
age, the following are deemed to be cov
ered "autos" you own:

(1) Any covered "auto" you lease, hire,
rent or borrow; and

(2) Any covered "auto" hired or rented by
your "employee" under a contract in
an "employee's" name, with your
permission, while performing duties
related to the conduct of your busi
ness.

However, any "auto" that is leased, hired, 
rented or borrowed with a driver is not a 
covered "auto". 

C. EMPLOYEES AS INSURED

The following is added to Paragraph A.1., Who Is
An Insured, of SECTION II - COVERED AUTOS
LIABILITY COVERAGE:

CA T4 20 02 15 © 2015 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved. Page 1 of 3 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission. 

BA8R607590





000517 

K. AIRBAGS

The following is added to Paragraph 8.3., Exclu
sions, of SECTION Ill - PHYSICAL DAMAGE
COVERAGE:

Exclusion 3.a. does not apply to "loss" to one or
more airbags in a covered "auto" you own that in
flate due to a cause other than a cause of "loss"
set forth in Paragraphs A.1.b. and A.1.c., but
only:

a. If that "auto" is a covered "auto" for Compre
hensive Coverage under this policy;

b. The airbags are not covered under any war-
ranty; and

c. The airbags were not intentionally inflated.

We will pay up to a maximum of $1,000 for any 
one "loss". 

L. AUTO LOAN LEASE GAP

The following is added to Paragraph A.4., Cover
age Extensions, of SECTION Ill - PHYSICAL
DAMAGE COVERAGE:

Auto Loan Lease Gap Coverage for Private
Passenger Type Vehicles

In the event of a total "loss" to a covered "auto" of
the private passenger type shown in the Schedule
or Declarations for which Physical Damage Cov
erage is provided, we will pay any unpaid amount
due on the lease or loan for such covered "auto"
less the following:

(1) The amount paid under the Physical Damage
Coverage Section of the policy for that "auto";
and

COMMERCJAL AUTO 

(2) Any:

(a) Overdue lease or loan payments at the
time of the "loss";

(b) Financial penalties imposed under a
lease for excessive use, abnormal wear
and tear or high mileage;

(c) Security deposits not returned by the les
sor;

(d) Costs for extended warranties, Credit Life
Insurance, Health, Accident or Disability
Insurance purchased with the loan or
lease; and

(e) Carry-over balances from previous loans
or leases.

M. BLANKET WAIVER OF SUBROGATION

The following replaces Paragraph A.5., Transfer
Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us,
of SECTION IV - BUSINESS AUTO CONDI
TIONS:

5. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against
Others To Us

We waive any right of recovery we may have
against any person or organization to the ex
tent required of you by a written contract exe
cuted prior to any "accident" or "loss", pro
vided that the "accident" or "loss" arises out of
the operations contemplated by such con
tract. The waiver applies only to the person or
organization designated in such contract.

CA T4 20 0215 © 2015 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved. Page 3 of 3 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission. 



COMMERCIAL AUTO

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED – PRIMARY AND

NON-CONTRIBUTORY WITH OTHER INSURANCE

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM

PROVISIONS 2. The following is added to Paragraph B.5., Other

Insurance of SECTION IV – BUSINESS AUTO1. The following is added to Paragraph A.1.c., Who
CONDITIONS:Is An Insured, of SECTION Il – LIABILITY

COVERAGE: Regardless of the provisions of paragraph a. and
paragraph d. of this part 5. Other Insurance, thisThis includes any person or organization who you
insurance is primary to and non-contributory withare required under a written contract or
applicable other insurance under which anagreement between you and that person or
additional insured person or organization is theorganization, that is signed by you before the
first named insured when the written contract or"bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs and
agreement between you and that person orthat is in effect during the policy period, to name
organization, that is signed by you before theas an additional insured for Liability Coverage,
"bodily injury" or "property damage" occurs andbut only for damages to which this insurance
that is in effect during the policy period, requiresapplies and only to the extent of that person's or
this insurance to be primary and non-contributory.organization's liability for the conduct of another

"insured".

CA T4 74 08 17 ú 2016 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved. Page 1 of 1
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

BA8R607590



TRAVELERS't 

POLICY NUMBER: 

WORKERS COMPENSATION 
AND 

EMPLOYERS LIABILITY POLICY 

ENDORSEMENT WC 00 03 13 (00) _ OJ 

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT 

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not 
enforce our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. (This agreement applies only to the 
extent that you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.) 

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit anyone not named in the Schedule. 

SCHEDULE 

DESIGNATED PERSON: 

DESIGNATED ORGANIZATION: 

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION FOR walCH THE INSURED HAS 
COMPLETED A WRITTEN AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE THIS WAIVER. 

DATE OF ISSUE: ST ASSIGN: 

UB6K434639



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage. Read 
the entire policy carefully to determine rights, duties and 
what is and is not covered. 

Throughout this policy the words "you" and "your" refer 
to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations, and 
any other person or organization qualifying as a Named 
Insured under this policy. The words "we", "us" and 
"our" refer to the company providing this insurance. 

The word "insured" means any person or organization 

qualifying as such under Section II - Who Is An 
Insured. 

Other words and phrases that appear in quotation 

marks have special meaning. Refer to Section V -
Definitions. 

SECTION I - COVERAGES 

COVERAGE A - BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY 
DAMAGE LIABILITY 

1. Insuring Agreement

a. We will pay those sums that the insured
becomes legally obligated to pay as damages
because of "bodily injury" or "property damage"
to which this insurance applies. We will have
the right and duty to defend the insured against
any "suit" seeking those damages. However,
we will have no duty to defend the insured
against any "suit" seeking damages for "bodily
injury" or "property damage" to which this
insurance does not apply. We may, at our 
discretion, investigate any "occurrence" and
settle any claim or "suit" that may result. But:

(1) The amount we will pay for damages is 
limited as described in Section Ill - Limits
Of Insurance; and

(2) Our right and duty to defend end when we
have used up the applicable limit of
insurance in the payment of judgments or

settlements under Coverages A or B or

medical expenses under Coverage C.

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or 
perform acts or services is covered unless 
explicitly provided for under Supplementary 
Payments. 

b. This insurance applies to "bodily injury" and
"property damage" only if:

(1) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" is
caused by an "occurrence" that takes place
in the "coverage territory";

(2) The "bodily injury" or "property damage"
occurs during the policy period; and

(3) Prior to the policy period, no insured listed

under Paragraph 1. of Section II - Who Is
An Insured and no "employee" authorized
by you to give or receive notice of an
"occurrence" or claim knew that the "bodily
injury" or "property damage" had occurred,
in whole or in part. If such a listed insured
or authorized "employee" knew, prior to the
policy period, that the "bodily injury" or
"property damage" occurred, then any 
continuation, change or resumption of such
"bodily injury" or "property damage" during
or after the policy period will be deemed to
have been known prior to the policy period.

c. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" which
occurs during the policy period and was not,
prior to the policy period, known to have
occurred by any insured listed under Paragraph

1. of Section II - Who Is An Insured or any
"employee" authorized by you to give or receive
notice of an "occurrence" or claim, includes any
continuation, change or resumption of that
"bodily injury" or "property damage" after the
end of the policy period.

d. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" will be 
deemed to have been known to have occurred
at the earliest time when any insured listed

under Paragraph 1. of Section II - Who Is An
Insured or any "employee" authorized by you to
give or receive notice of an "occurrence" or
claim:

(1) Reports all, or any part, of the "bodily
injury" or "property damage" to us or any
other insurer;

(2) Receives a written or verbal demand or
claim for damages because of the "bodily
injury" or "property damage"; or

(3) Becomes aware by any other means that
"bodily injury" or "property damage" has
occurred or has begun to occur.

CG T100 0219 © 2017 The Travelers Indemnity Company . All rights reserved. Page 1 of 21 
Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission. 

6802J252902





SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

1/30/2025

Edgewood Partners Insurance Agency
3780 Mansell Rd. Suite 370
Alpharetta GA 30022

ACEC Certificate Specialist
770-552-4225

greylingcerts@greyling.com

Sentinel Insurance Company, Ltd. 11000
VIVIENG Nutmeg Insurance Company 39608

Vivid Engineering Group, Inc
1053 Elkton Dr
Colorado Spring CO 80907

Hartford Fire Insurance Company 19682
U.S. Specialty Insurance Company 29599

1052782876

A X 1,000,000
X 1,000,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000
X

20SBWBE4SNZ 5/17/2024 5/17/2025

2,000,000

B 1,000,000

X

X X

20UEGEK0437 5/17/2024 5/17/2025

A X X 9,000,00020SBWBE4SNZ 5/17/2024 5/17/2025

9,000,000
X 10,000

C X

N

20WEGIC7439 5/17/2024 5/17/2025

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
D Professional Liability

incl. Pollution Liability
USS2434706 5/17/2024 5/17/2025 Per Claim

Aggregate
$2,000,000
$2,000,000

Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, City and County of Broomfield (One DesCombes Drive, Broomfield, CO 80020) its officers, board members, agents, employees and
volunteers acng within the scope of their dues for the City and County of Broomfield are named as Additional Insureds with respects to General & Automobile
Liability where required by written contract. Waiver of Subrogation in favor of Additional Insureds where required by written contract & allowed by law. Umbrella
Follows Form with respects to General, Automobile & Employers Liability Policies.

Felsburg Holt & Ullevig
6400 S. Fiddlers Green Circle
Suite 1500
Greenwood Village, CO 80111



 FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 
 THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD AND FELSBURG HOLT & ULLEVIG, INC. 
 FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RELATED TO 112TH AND UPTOWN COMPLETE 

 STREETS AND RAILROAD IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 1.  PARTIES  .  The  parties  to  this  Fourth  Amendment  are  The  City  and  County  of
 Broomfield,  a  Colorado  municipal  corporation  and  county,  (the  “City”)  and
 Felsburg  Holt  &  Ullevig,  Inc.,  a  Colorado  Corporation  (the  “Consultant”),
 collectively, the “Parties”, individually, the “Party”.

 2.  RECITALS  .  The  recitals  to  this  Fourth  Amendment  are  incorporated  herein  by
 this reference as though fully set forth in the body of this Fourth Amendment.

 2.1.  The  Parties  entered  into  a  Consulting  Agreement  dated  October  26,  2021
 (Agreement),  in  which  the  Consultant  agreed  to  provide  consulting 
 services  for  the  112th  and  Uptown  Complete  Streets  and  Railroad 
 Improvements Project. 

 2.2.  The  parties  to  this  Fourth  Amendment  desire  to  amend  paragraph  3.1(b) 
 Basic  Services,  and  paragraph  3.4(a)  Billing,  of  the  Agreement  relating  to 
 the  scope  of  work,  project  schedule,  and  fee.  Exhibit  B  is  the  increase  in 
 the scope of services with a not-to-exceed fee and scope of services. 

 3.  THE  AMENDMENT  .  In  consideration  of  the  mutual  covenants  and  promises  of
 the  Parties  contained  herein,  and  other  valuable  consideration,  the  receipt  and
 adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows:

 3.1  Paragraph  3.1(b),  Basic  Services,  of  the  Agreement  is  hereby  amended  to
 add  the  following:  The  Consultant  shall  perform  duties  in  Exhibit  A,  and  the 
 additional  duties  and  responsibilities  as  described  in  Exhibit  B  (attached 
 hereto and made part hereof). 

 3.2  Paragraph  3.4(a),  Aggregate  Limit,  of  the  Agreement  is  hereby  amended  to 
 read  as  follows:  Pricing  for  additional  services  shall  be  as  noted  on  Exhibit  B, 
 attached  hereto  and  incorporated  by  this  reference.  Unless  extra  services 
 are  approved  in  writing,  the  amount  paid  by  the  City  to  the  Consultant  under 
 this  Agreement  shall  not  exceed  $635,000.00  ($500,000  original  agreement, 
 $30,000  Second  Amendment,  $20,000  Third  Agreement,  $85,000  Fourth 
 Agreement),  including  reimbursables.  The  Consultant  will  complete  the  Work 
 for the amount shown  .

 4.  AGREEMENT  IN  FULL  FORCE  AND  EFFECT.  Except  as  amended  herein,  all
 other  terms,  conditions,  and  provisions  of  the  Agreement  shall  remain  in  full  force
 and effect and are hereby ratified and reaffirmed by the Parties in their entirety.



 Consulting Amendment for 112th and Uptown Complete Streets and Railroad Improvements 

 #STU C800-005 (24284) 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 [  The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank  .] 

 IN  WITNESS  WHEREOF,  this  Agreement  is  executed  by  the  Parties  hereto  in 
 their respective names as of _________________, 20___. 

 THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 
 a Colorado municipal corporation and county 

 _____________________________ 
 Mayor 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 ______________________________ 
 City and County Attorney 

 2  Consulting Amendment Mayor 
 Revised: 02/23/2021 



 Consulting Amendment for 112th and Uptown Complete Streets and Railroad Improvements 

 #STU C800-005 (24284) 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc., 
 a Colorado corporation 

 ____________________________________ 
 By:___________________________________ 
 Title: _________________________________ 

 3  Consulting Amendment Mayor 
 Revised: 02/23/2021 

Thomas W. Anzia
Principal



 Consulting Amendment for 112th and Uptown Complete Streets and Railroad Improvements 

 #STU C800-005 (24284) 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 4  Consulting Amendment Mayor 
 Revised: 02/23/2021 



 Consulting Amendment for 112th and Uptown Complete Streets and Railroad Improvements 

 #STU C800-005 (24284) 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 5  Consulting Amendment Mayor 
 Revised: 02/23/2021 



 Consulting Amendment for 112th and Uptown Complete Streets and Railroad Improvements 

 #STU C800-005 (24284) 
 Felsburg Holt & Ullevig, Inc. 

 6  Consulting Amendment Mayor 
 Revised: 02/23/2021 





























City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

E. Proposed Resolutions for Norman Smith Service Center Construction and Design Agreement Amendments

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6E.

Presented By

Brian Graham, CIP Manager

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

The Norman Smith Remodel Project addresses essential deferred maintenance while adapting and modernizing
the facility. The project scope is proposed to expand with the addition of the tank removal project adjacent to the
building. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for Norm Smith Remodel.pdf
Resolution 2025-18 Amendment 2.pdf
Resolution 2025-50 CO2.pdf
Consulting Amendment #2 - SEH Norm Smith Remodel - Signed.pdf
NSSC Remodel - AD Miller - Amendment 01 - SIGNED.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FMemo%20for%20Norm%20Smith%20Remodel.pdf?alt=media&token=8dcd05f0-4a00-4d8a-bd05-03d79acbc8fd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FMemo%20for%20Norm%20Smith%20Remodel.pdf?alt=media&token=8dcd05f0-4a00-4d8a-bd05-03d79acbc8fd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FMemo%20for%20Norm%20Smith%20Remodel.pdf?alt=media&token=8dcd05f0-4a00-4d8a-bd05-03d79acbc8fd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FResolution%202025-18%20Amendment%202.pdf?alt=media&token=63dbac7c-66c4-4cc2-b684-ef0ce48c3f21
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FResolution%202025-18%20Amendment%202.pdf?alt=media&token=63dbac7c-66c4-4cc2-b684-ef0ce48c3f21
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FResolution%202025-18%20Amendment%202.pdf?alt=media&token=63dbac7c-66c4-4cc2-b684-ef0ce48c3f21
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FResolution%202025-50%20CO2.pdf?alt=media&token=88bf2bd7-5ec7-4d68-a25e-48260a2b90a9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FResolution%202025-50%20CO2.pdf?alt=media&token=88bf2bd7-5ec7-4d68-a25e-48260a2b90a9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FResolution%202025-50%20CO2.pdf?alt=media&token=88bf2bd7-5ec7-4d68-a25e-48260a2b90a9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FConsulting%20Amendment%20%232%20-%20SEH%20Norm%20Smith%20Remodel%20-%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=5a5621e5-5c8b-4970-8543-37daa51d3218
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FConsulting%20Amendment%20%232%20-%20SEH%20Norm%20Smith%20Remodel%20-%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=5a5621e5-5c8b-4970-8543-37daa51d3218
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FConsulting%20Amendment%20%232%20-%20SEH%20Norm%20Smith%20Remodel%20-%20Signed.pdf?alt=media&token=5a5621e5-5c8b-4970-8543-37daa51d3218
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FNSSC%20Remodel%20-%20AD%20Miller%20-%20Amendment%2001%20-%20SIGNED.pdf?alt=media&token=784d6f41-cfce-41a4-baf2-8dbb0d434e8e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FNSSC%20Remodel%20-%20AD%20Miller%20-%20Amendment%2001%20-%20SIGNED.pdf?alt=media&token=784d6f41-cfce-41a4-baf2-8dbb0d434e8e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F673609ea186c4500543113f8%2FNSSC%20Remodel%20-%20AD%20Miller%20-%20Amendment%2001%20-%20SIGNED.pdf?alt=media&token=784d6f41-cfce-41a4-baf2-8dbb0d434e8e


Memo for Norm Smith Remodel Consulting Amendment and Construction Amendment 

Prepared By: Ed Thompson, CIP Project Manager 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-50 will approve the First Amendment to the Construction Agreement with AD 

Miller Services, Inc. for additional construction work related to the Norman Smith Service Center Remodel, 

including the addition of Fuel Site Upgrades.  

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-18 will approve the Second Amendment to the Consulting Agreement with 

Short Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. (SEH) for additional design services related to the Norman Smith Service 

Center Remodel. 

 

Broomfield’s Norman Smith Service Center is at 3001 W. 124th Avenue. The remodel project, which is in 

construction, is addressing essential deferred maintenance while adapting and modernizing the facility. 

Since Council approved the construction agreement with AD Miller on October 1, 2024 the project has 

progressed with demolition, electrical, and mechanical work. The project is anticipated to be completed in 

September 2025. Here is a vicinity map showing the project location. 

 

The Norman Smith Service Center Fuel Site Upgrade is a separate CIP project that was approved in the 2024 

Budget. In addition to providing design services for the remodel, SEH was also selected to provide design 

documents for the Fuel Site Upgrade project.  A separate design agreement with SEH was approved by the 

City and County Manager per her contract authority. It became clear that there is significant overlap and 

necessary coordination between the building remodel project and the fuel site upgrade projects. Staff 

believes the most efficient way to complete the fuel site upgrades is to add that work under the building 

remodel project scope. To that end, AD Miller solicited competitive bids from subcontractors that were 

prequalified for the fuel tank improvements in 2024. This work includes the removal of underground tanks at 

the fueling station, adjacent to the Service Center, and places them above ground.  The underground tanks 

are at the end of their life-cycle and above-ground tanks have become the standard for environmental 

reasons.  

 

In addition to the fuel site upgrades, the project team identified opportunities to make additional 

improvements to the building within the project budget.  These improvements include increasing the size of 

a conference room, re-working ductwork to allow for future growth, replacing the sprinkler system, and 

additional improvements to the plumbing and mechanical systems.   

 

These additional improvements, including the fuel site upgrades,  exceed the City and County Manager’s ten 

percent change order authority approved by Council with Resolution 2024-137.  The First Amendment to the 

Construction Agreement with AD Miller Services, Inc. adds an additional scope of work to AD Miller’s 

construction agreement. 

 

The Second Amendment to the Short Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. Consulting Agreement adds design services for 

the additional improvements and construction administration services needed for continued coordination of 

the design and construction with the contractor.  The City and County Manager approved the original design 

Agreement for $143,639, on December 13, 2021, and the First Amendment to the Consulting Agreement, for 

$47,493, on September 12, 2023, for value engineering changes to ensure the project met budget 

constraints. The work included changes to the architectural design, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing, 

and roofing systems.  The Second Amendment is needed for design and consulting services related to 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/16tw7pPRdg25d8s2eoTRgiSxFBP9mX15V/view?usp=drive_link


 

demand metering, construction administration services, relocation and mounting of AHUs, and removal of 

existing shaft walls.  

 

If proposed Resolution Nos. 2025-18 and 2025-50 are approved, construction will continue with the 

additional scope of work with an anticipated project completion in September 2025. 

 

Financial Considerations 

The sources and uses of funds summary below show that the project can be completed within the budgeted 

amount.   

 

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

Norman Smith Service Center Remodel 
(20P0003; 20-70010-55200) 

$3,634,890 

Norman Smith Service Center Fuel Site Upgrade 
(24T0001; 20-70010-55200) 

$581,680 

Total Budget $4,216,570 

Consulting Agreement, including Amendment #1 (Remodel) (SEH, Inc.) -$191,132 

Consulting Agreement (Fuel Site) (SEH, Inc.) -$40,132 

Proposed Consulting Amendment #2 (Remodel) (SEH, Inc.) -$84,552 

Construction Agreement (AD Miller Services, Inc.) -$2,283,570 

Construction Contingency  (AD Miller Services, Inc.) -$208,419 

Proposed Construction Amendment #1  (AD Miller Services, Inc.) -$895,746 

Furniture (estimated) -$490,000 

Total Use of Funds -$4,193,551 

Projected Balance $23,019 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

On October 1, 2024, Council approved Resolution No. 2024-137, a construction agreement with AD Miller 

Services, Inc.  

 

On October 22, 2024 Council authorized funds in the 2025 Budget. 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

2 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cRIgLdjzEBt654p9BKzUvFWvl4_Z8w3x/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BSnWMtJNlCtbCYzKAB7N55sBwloK3QWX/view


 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to proceed with the project, the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-18 and Resolution 2025-50 be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

Decide not to proceed with the additional improvements. 

3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-18 

A Resolution Approving the Second Amendment to the Consulting Agreement with Short Elliot 

Hendrickson, Inc. for the Norm Smith Service Center Remodel 

Section 1.   

The Second Amendment to the Consulting Amendment by and between the City and County of 

Broomfield and Short Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. for the Norman Smith Service Center Remodel in 

an amount not to exceed $84,552 is hereby approved; the new not-to-exceed consulting 

agreement amount is $275,684.09. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem is authorized to sign and the Office of the City and County Clerk 

to attest the amendment, in a form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

The City and County Manager or a designee thereof is authorized to approve change orders in 

the aggregate amount not to exceed ten percent of the contract value. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective on the date of approval by the City Council. 

 

Approved on February 25, 2025. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form 

            KKH  

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-50 

A Resolution Approving the First Amendment to a Construction Agreement with AD Miller 

Services, Inc. for the Norm Smith Service Center Remodel Project 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The First Amendment to the Construction Agreement by and between the City and County of 

Broomfield and A.D. Miller Services, Inc. for the Norman Smith Service Center Remodel, 

adding the amount of $895,746, for a new total not to exceed the amount of $3,387,733.58, is 

hereby approved. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem is authorized to sign the Amendment and the Office of the City 

and County Clerk to attest the Amendment, in a form approved by the City and County 

Attorney. 

Section 3. 

The City and County Manager or a designee thereof is authorized to approve change orders in 

the aggregate amount not to exceed ten percent of the contract value. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective on the date of approval by the City Council. 

 

Approved on February 25, 2025. 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form 

             

            KKH 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



����������������	�	������
�	����������	����������	�����
�	�����	��������
�	������������������������	������		��������������

����������	�������������	�������������	�����������������	�

���� ���� !"#����� $%��&'()*%+��),��)$*+��#%-,./���0%./0%.)��'(%��)$%��1*)2��'./��1,3.)2��,4�
�5(,,04*%6/7��'��1,6,('/,��03.*-*&'6��-,(&,(')*,.��'./��-,3.)27��8)$%��91*)2:;��'./��#$,()�
�"66*,)��<%./(*-=+,.7��!.-���'��1,6,('/,��1,(&,(')*,.��8)$%��91,.+36)'.):;7��-,66%-)*>%627�
�)$%�9�'()*%+:7�*./*>*/3'6627�)$%�9�'()2:��

�?�� ��"1! �@#����� $%��(%-*)'6+��),��)$*+��#%-,./���0%./0%.)��'(%��*.-,(&,(')%/��$%(%*.��A2�
�)$*+�(%4%(%.-%�'+�)$,3B$�43662�+%)�4,()$�*.�)$%�A,/2�,4�)$*+�#%-,./��0%./0%.)��

�?���� $%���'()*%+��%.)%(%/��*.),��'��1,.+36)*.B���B(%%0%.)��/')%/��C%-%0A%(���D7��?E?��
�8�B(%%0%.);7��*.��F$*-$��)$%��1,.+36)'.)��'B(%%/��),��&(,>*/%��-,.+36)*.B��+%(>*-%+�
�4,(�)$%��G,(0'.�#0*)$�#%(>*-%�1%.)%(��%0,/%6��(,H%-)��

�?�?�� $%��&'()*%+��),��)$*+��#%-,./���0%./0%.)��/%+*(%��),��'0%./��&'('B('&$��D��8A;�
�5'+*-��#%(>*-%+7��'./��&'('B('&$��D�I8';��5*66*.B7��,4��)$%���B(%%0%.)��(%6')*.B��),��)$%�
�+-,&%��,4��F,(=7��&(,H%-)��+-$%/36%7��'./��4%%���"J$*A*)�����*+��)$%��*.-(%'+%��*.��)$%�
�+-,&%�,4�+%(>*-%+�F*)$�'�.,)K),K%J-%%/�4%%�'./�+-,&%�,4�+%(>*-%+��

�D�� � <"���L"GCL"G �����!.��-,.+*/%(')*,.��,4��)$%��03)3'6��-,>%.'.)+��'./��&(,0*+%+��,4�
�)$%���'()*%+��-,.)'*.%/��$%(%*.7��'./��,)$%(��>'63'A6%��-,.+*/%(')*,.7��)$%��(%-%*&)��'./�
�'/%M3'-2�,4�F$*-$�'(%�$%(%A2�'-=.,F6%/B%/7�)$%��'()*%+�'B(%%�'+�4,66,F+N�

�D���� ��'('B('&$��D��8A;7��5'+*-��#%(>*-%+7��,4��)$%���B(%%0%.)��*+��$%(%A2��'0%./%/��),�
�'//�)$%�4,66,F*.BN�� $%�1,.+36)'.)�+$'66�&%(4,(0�/3)*%+�*.�"J$*A*)����

�D�?�� ��'('B('&$��D�I8A;7��5*66*.B7��,4��)$%���B(%%0%.)��*+��$%(%A2��'0%./%/��),��(%'/��'+�
�4,66,F+N��1,.+36)'.)��+$'66��A*66��)$%��1*)2��0,.)$62��4,(��)$%��F,(=��/,.%��*.�
�'--,(/'.-%��F*)$��)$%��)%(0+��'./��-,./*)*,.+��,4��)$*+���B(%%0%.)7��"J$*A*)���7�
�3+*.B��)$%��&'2��(%M3%+)��4,(0��&(,>*/%/��A2��)$%��1*)2��� $%��),)'6��'0,3.)��+$'66�
�.,)�%J-%%/�O?PQ7RSI�ET�*.-63/*.B�(%*0A3(+'A6%+��

�I�� ��U�""L"G ��!G��VW@@��VX�1"���GC��"VV"1 ���"J-%&)��'+��'0%./%/��$%(%*.7��'66�
�,)$%(��)%(0+7��-,./*)*,.+7��'./��&(,>*+*,.+��,4��)$%���B(%%0%.)��+$'66��(%0'*.��*.��4366��4,(-%�
�'./�%44%-)�'./�'(%�$%(%A2�(')*4*%/�'./�(%'44*(0%/�A2�)$%��'()*%+�*.�)$%*(�%.)*(%)2��

�Y�Z[\]Ẑ]_̀ abc]̂ZdeZf\agZh̀i]ZagZabf]bfadb̀jjkZj]efZZlj̀bmZ��n�



Consulting Agreement for Norman Smith Service Center Remodel and Lighting Upgrades (20P0003) 

Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc.

 

 
 
This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto in their respective names as of 

_________________, 2025. 
 

     THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 
      a Colorado municipal corporation and county 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City and County Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City and County Attorney 

 
 
 

 

 

 2 Consulting Amendment Mayor 
Revised: 02/23/2021 



����������	�
	��������������������������������������������������	����	���	���������������� !��"�#�
�������$�������%������&���'�(��)�

*@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@@*

�ABCDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�

�E����C�DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD�

*F* *G-59H1/25I*JK456K45/*G>L*

*M4N2946O*PQRQSTSS*

Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc.
a Minnesota Corportation

Rob Ekstrom AIA

Principal



 

 

 

Engineers   |   Architects   |   Planners   |   Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 2000 South Colorado Boulevard, Suite 6000, Colorado Center Tower One, Denver, CO 80222-7938 

SEH is 100% employee-owned   |   sehinc.com   |   720.540.6800   |   800.490.4966   |   888.908.8166 fax 

January 23, 2025 RE: City and County of Broomfield 
  Norman Smith Service Center Remodel  
  Additional Services Request #2 
 
Mr. Ed Thompson 
City and County of Broomfield 
CIP Project Manager 
 
Dear Ed: 
 
Please see attached SEH’s proposal for requested additional services regarding improvements to the 
Norman Smith Service Center Remodel. 
 
Scope of Additional Services 
The basic scope of services are as listed and summarized generally as follows: 

 
1. Demand metering required by building department and existing building code to ensure existing 

meters that are being re-purposed are not exceeding capacity. This was an unforeseen additional 
service to not knowing the exact number of panels and specific panels needed to be metered at the 
time of our initial proposal. This includes metering company fee and electrical engineering hours to 
process the data.  

2. It has been requested to provide enhanced construction administration services throughout the 
duration of the construction of the project. This will include the following: 

a. Weekly OAC meeting attendance. 
b. Bi-weekly observation reports provided to CCoB, with detailed on-going punch list items as 

necessary.  
3. Due to fire suppression delegated design taking the General Contractor’s team longer than 

expected, the contractor has extended the schedule and additional 12 weeks. Additional services 
have been included for this extension.  

4. Due to existing conditions it has been discussed to relocate and mount the AHUs on the roof 
instead of the mezzanine level, as was originally requested and designed. Broomfield initially 
preferred to avoid using the roof due to concerns about maintenance access. 

5. Request for the removal of existing shaft walls on mezzanine level which will include additional 
structural engineering for the slab infill. Refer to RFI #21. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ethompson
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



Mr. Ed Thompson  
Norman Smith Service Center Additional Services Request #2 
January 23, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 

2 
 

Fee Proposal for Additional Services 
 
Original Fee:     $143,639.09 
Additional Service #1:  $47,493.00 
Additional Service #2:   

1. Demand Metering: $8,852 
2. Enhanced CA:  $40,000 
3. Schedule Extension: $26,000 
4. AHU Changes: $8.000 
5. Floor Infill: $1,700 

Total Revised Fee: $275,684.09 
 
 

Please contact Rob Ekstrom at 720.540.6833; rekstrom@sehinc.com or Alex Jauch at 720.540.6812; 
ajauch@sehinc.com with any questions about this proposal.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
SHORT ELLIOTT HENDRICKSON INC. 

 
 
Rob Ekstrom, AIA Alex Jauch, AIA 
Principal Project Manager / Architect 















































































































City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

F. Proposed Resolution Approving a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License for Northwest Cascade Inc.
DBA Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6F.

Presented By

Crystal Clemens, City Clerk

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

 

The City Clerk’s Office received an application for a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License from Northwest
Cascade Inc. dba Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc.  Each applicant has applied to the City
and County of Broomfield for a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License to provide roll-offs in Broomfield.
Resolution 2025-43 would approve the licenses. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc .pdf
Resolution No. 2025-43 - Approval of trash, rubbish and garbage hauling license for Northwest Cascade Inc. DBAHoney Bucket.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67854dd890248a005480d6ad%2FMemo%20for%20Honey%20Bucket%20and%20Aspen%20Waste%20Systems%20of%20Colorado%20Inc%20.pdf?alt=media&token=a20a1fbe-7c75-4ff5-9186-baf782542d2a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67854dd890248a005480d6ad%2FMemo%20for%20Honey%20Bucket%20and%20Aspen%20Waste%20Systems%20of%20Colorado%20Inc%20.pdf?alt=media&token=a20a1fbe-7c75-4ff5-9186-baf782542d2a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67854dd890248a005480d6ad%2FMemo%20for%20Honey%20Bucket%20and%20Aspen%20Waste%20Systems%20of%20Colorado%20Inc%20.pdf?alt=media&token=a20a1fbe-7c75-4ff5-9186-baf782542d2a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67854dd890248a005480d6ad%2FResolution%20No.%202025-43%20-%20Approval%20of%20trash%2C%20rubbish%20and%20garbage%20hauling%20license%20for%20Northwest%20Cascade%20Inc.%20DBA%20Honey%20Bucket.pdf?alt=media&token=22dcf251-ee04-4a1c-9412-e647ea087893
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67854dd890248a005480d6ad%2FResolution%20No.%202025-43%20-%20Approval%20of%20trash%2C%20rubbish%20and%20garbage%20hauling%20license%20for%20Northwest%20Cascade%20Inc.%20DBA%20Honey%20Bucket.pdf?alt=media&token=22dcf251-ee04-4a1c-9412-e647ea087893
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67854dd890248a005480d6ad%2FResolution%20No.%202025-43%20-%20Approval%20of%20trash%2C%20rubbish%20and%20garbage%20hauling%20license%20for%20Northwest%20Cascade%20Inc.%20DBA%20Honey%20Bucket.pdf?alt=media&token=22dcf251-ee04-4a1c-9412-e647ea087893
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67854dd890248a005480d6ad%2FResolution%20No.%202025-43%20-%20Approval%20of%20trash%2C%20rubbish%20and%20garbage%20hauling%20license%20for%20Northwest%20Cascade%20Inc.%20DBA%20Honey%20Bucket.pdf?alt=media&token=22dcf251-ee04-4a1c-9412-e647ea087893


Memo for Approval and Authorization of an Application for a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License for Northwest 

Cascade Inc. DBA Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc 

Prepared By: Cathy Pai 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

The City Clerk’s Office received an application for a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License from 

Northwest Cascade Inc. dba Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc.  Each applicant has 

applied to the City and County of Broomfield for a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License to provide 

roll-offs in Broomfield.   

 

Chapter 8-04 of the Broomfield Municipal Code (B.M.C.) outlines the application and license requirements.  

The applicant submitted the required application and supplemental materials.  

 

Section 8-04-110, B.M.C. outlines when a license can be denied: “a license shall be denied on the basis of 

applicant's character as it may be relevant to likely compliance with B.M.C Chapter 8-04 or if the City 

Council determines that licenses granted for a particular locality are adequate for the reasonable needs of 

the community.”   

 

The applicants have supplied the names of three persons to contact for references which complies with the 

requirements of Chapter 8-04, B.M.C.  The City Clerk’s staff contacted those references and none of these 
persons raised issues of concern with regard to the Applicant’s character, or the character of the Applicant’s 
officers or directors, as it may be relevant to compliance with the requirements of Chapter 8-04 BMC. 
 

Council has previously approved the licensed trash haulers for the City and County of Broomfield as shown in 

the table below that offer various services.     

 

 

Licensed Trash Haulers 

Company Name 

(click for company website) 

Residential Commercial/Industrial Services 

Trash Recycling Composti

ng 
Roll Off 

Services Trash Recycling Composti

ng 
Roll Off 

Services 

   

Allied Waste Systems dba Republic 

Services x x  x x x  x 

Alpine Waste & Recycling x x  x x x   

Best Cleaner Disposal Inc x x   x x   

Blue Bear Waste Services    x    x 

Clementine Curbside   x    x  

Compost Colorado   x    x  

Curbside Roll-Off    x    x 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19qbImjdCvAG90Wbk17OISFiD36whOhdX/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Q5IZ5-1PV925QAnixh8ZlyJJOQFbHEdT/view?usp=sharing
https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT8HESA_CH8-04GA
https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT8HESA_CH8-04GA_8-04-110LIREWH
https://www.republicservices.com/
https://www.republicservices.com/
https://gflenv.com/welcome-to-new-gfl-experience/
http://bestcleanerdisposal.com/
https://bluebearwaste.com/
https://www.clementinecurbside.com/
https://www.compost-colorado.com/
https://www.curbsideco.com/


 

Eco-Cycle      x   

Elite Hauling Services        x 

Home Builders Services, Inc.      x   

Ridwell Inc.  x       

Sam's Hauling    x    x 

Scraps   x      

Total Disposal, LLC    x    x 

Waste Connections of Colorado x x  x x x  x 

Waste Management of Colorado - 

North Division x x  x x x  x 

Western Disposal x x  x x x  x 

Northwest Cascade Inc. dba Honey 

Bucket - Proposed 
   x    

 

Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc. 

- Proposed 
   x x x  x 

 

 

Financial Considerations 

Minimal fiscal impact for applicable license fees collected by the City Clerk.  

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

Proposed Resolution No. 2023-111 Approving and Authorizing an Application for Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage 

Hauling Licenses for Wompost, LLC dba Wompost. 

Proposed Resolution No. 2021-153 Approving an Application for a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling 

License for Best Cleaner Disposal, Inc dba BCD  

Proposed Resolution 2021-154 Approving an Application for a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License 

Bluterra Inc. dba Clementine Curbside 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to approve the applications, the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-43 be adopted. 

 

2 

http://www.ecocycle.org/
http://eliterolloff.com/
http://hbswaste.com/dumpster/
https://www.ridwell.com/
https://samshauling.com/
https://scrapsmilehigh.com/
https://www.totaldisposalofdenver.com/
https://www.wcdenver.com/
https://www.wm.com/us/en/location/co/denver/trash-pickup-denver-co?utm_source=gmb&utm_medium=organic&utm_campaign=S04206
https://www.wm.com/us/en/location/co/denver/trash-pickup-denver-co?utm_source=gmb&utm_medium=organic&utm_campaign=S04206
https://www.westerndisposal.com/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1UPZGP8mZ-BxYLbyMgBWfjkzQbldc2Ozo/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pOpFIBGkQGTRIkTlpKPr2quuL7WoYUNd/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1pOpFIBGkQGTRIkTlpKPr2quuL7WoYUNd/view?usp=drivesdk


 

Alternatives 

If Council does not wish to authorize issuance of the licenses, Council may continue action on the resolution 

and application to a date certain to request that additional information be provided in order to make a 

decision; or set the matter for a public hearing and decision on the applications. 

 

3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-43 

 

A resolution approving a Trash, Rubbish, and Garbage Hauling License for  
Northwest Cascade Inc. dba Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

 

A trash, rubbish and garbage hauling license is approved for Northwest Cascade Inc. dba 

Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc. 

Section 2. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on February 25, 2025. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

G. Board of Equalization - Proposed Resolution for the Adoption of Hearing Officer Recommendations for
Abatement Petitions

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6G.

Presented By

Crystal Clemens

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

Staff is requesting that Council, sitting as the Board of Equalization, approve actions on three abatement petitions. 

 

 

 

Attachments

BOE Memo for Action on Abatement Petitions - Denials - 2.25.25.pdf
Resolution 2025-38-BOE - Action on Abatement Petitions - 2.25.2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6794270caf20c40054b210c7%2FBOE%20Memo%20for%20Action%20on%20Abatement%20Petitions%20-%20Denials%20-%202.25.25.pdf?alt=media&token=96594126-a5f0-4dcb-857f-83c613ba44d0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6794270caf20c40054b210c7%2FBOE%20Memo%20for%20Action%20on%20Abatement%20Petitions%20-%20Denials%20-%202.25.25.pdf?alt=media&token=96594126-a5f0-4dcb-857f-83c613ba44d0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6794270caf20c40054b210c7%2FBOE%20Memo%20for%20Action%20on%20Abatement%20Petitions%20-%20Denials%20-%202.25.25.pdf?alt=media&token=96594126-a5f0-4dcb-857f-83c613ba44d0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6794270caf20c40054b210c7%2FResolution%202025-38-BOE%20-%20Action%20on%20Abatement%20Petitions%20-%202.25.2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a2683563-618a-4895-8025-6351956ffcef
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6794270caf20c40054b210c7%2FResolution%202025-38-BOE%20-%20Action%20on%20Abatement%20Petitions%20-%202.25.2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a2683563-618a-4895-8025-6351956ffcef
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6794270caf20c40054b210c7%2FResolution%202025-38-BOE%20-%20Action%20on%20Abatement%20Petitions%20-%202.25.2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a2683563-618a-4895-8025-6351956ffcef


Memo for Action on Abatement Petitions 
Prepared By: Cathy Pai, Recording and Licensing Specialist 

        Jay Yamashita, Assessor 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

 

 

Staff is requesting that Council, sitting as the Board of Equalization, approve actions on several abatement 

petitions.  

 

Abatements can be received at any time throughout the year, but the deadline for filing is the first working 

day in January within two years of the date the taxes were levied. As a result, Broomfield tends to see most 

abatements filed in late December to early January each year; however, petitions may be received at any 

time throughout the year. Pursuant to C.R.S. §39-1-113(1.7), every abatement or refund petition shall be 

acted upon within six months of the date of filing of the petition.     

 

The taxpayers identified below have filed abatement petitions alleging that their property has been 

overvalued or that their tax levy is illegal. Council appointed hearing officers with experience in property 

valuations to hear protest and abatement cases and make recommendations to City Council on such 

proceedings.   

 

In some instances the property owner or tax agent declines to participate in the hearing (also known as an 

“administrative denial”) and elect to forgo the hearing process understanding that the petition will be 

denied since no evidence was presented supporting the property owner’s position. The property owners and 

tax agents are willing to take an “administrative denial” because they still have an opportunity to appeal 

the decision to the State Board of Assessment appeals at the next level.   

 

An administrative denial was requested for the following petitions:  

 

a. Petitioner Schedule No.: HOLMAN BROOMFIELD REAL ESTATE R8874105 

b. Petitioner Schedule No.: LONNSBURRY PROPERTIES R1015948  

 

On January 23, 2024, an abatement hearing was held by an appointed hearing officer and neither the 

petitioner, nor their tax agent attended the hearing. After reviewing all of the evidence presented in the 

case, the hearing officer is recommending denial of the following petition:  

  

c. Petitioner Schedule No.: PERRY FAMILY LLC R2404108 

 

The Assessor’s Office will continue to work with the petitioners as these items are appealed to the State 

Board of Assessment Appeals, but a formal action of the County Board of Equalization is required before the 

appeal to the next level may be granted.      

Financial Considerations 

While there is a financial implication to Broomfield with the adjustment of property valuations, the 

valuation of property is handled at the individual property level. The hearing officers are well versed in 

property valuation and will look at each property individually to determine the actual value of the taxable 

property based on Colorado statutes by using the appropriate valuation method - the cost approach, sales 

comparison (market) approach or income approach. The findings presented represent the individual 

assessment of each property, and not the overall impact to Broomfield’s finances.      

                 

Page 1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FH42yrlUxNF9-zOeVwPIKEt1x-j9HcIp/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tqKx4R8u7X-JCS1God3TCLfKYADmJwFD/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bBOIEcc6OKHym43tRnkMyMyspdNaKf5m/view?usp=drive_link


 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

On February 13, 2024, Council approved Ordinance 2225 transferring the Board of Equalization (BOE) duties 

from a separate resident board to Council.  

 

On May 28, 2024, Council approved Resolution No. 2024-41-BOE confirming the appointment of existing 

hearing officers, appointing a new hearing officer and two new arbitrators.  

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

Staff recommends Council approve Resolution 2025-38-BOE to formally deny the above referenced 

abatement petitions. To do so, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Resolution 2025-38-BOE be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

Do not adopt the Resolution. This is not advised and will result in Broomfield not meeting its statutory 

deadlines for these petitions.      

 

The City and County Attorney’s Office recommends that Council adopt the recommendations of the hearing 

officer as a final action of the Board of Equalization. The taxpayers will be notified of the decision and will 

have an opportunity to appeal this decision.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 

https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/ordinances/municipal_code?nodeId=1274802
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZFtmic6r_RScpbH0rKI3Mm5wGZajRbz8/view?usp=drivesdk


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-38-BOE 

A Resolution Denying Certain Abatement Petitions 

Recitals. 

Whereas, City Council sits as the Broomfield Board of Equalization; and 

Whereas, pursuant to C.R.S. §39-1-113 and §39-10-114, City Council appointed 

independent referees, or hearing officers, experienced in property valuation to conduct 

hearings on behalf of Broomfield’s board of equalization and submit final recommendations to 

Council for approval; and 

Whereas, the petitioners identified below have submitted petitions for abatements or 

refunds for taxes alleging taxes have been levied erroneously or illegally, whether due to 

erroneous valuation for assessment, irregularity in levying, clerical error, or overvaluation and 

the petitioners have submitted evidence of the proposed value for the subject property;  

Whereas, two petitioners identified below elected to forgo a formal hearing with a 

hearing officer with the understanding that a decision of denial of the petition would be 

entered by the County Board of Equalization (i.e. an Administrative Denial);  

Whereas, on January 23, 2025 a hearing was conducted on the valuation of the 

remaining property at issue; and  

Whereas, the hearing officer made findings and recommendations detailed below to 

Council.    

      Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of 

Broomfield, Colorado sitting as the Board of Equalization: 

Section 1.   

The findings and recommendations of the hearing officer on attached Exhibit A are hereby 

adopted by Council, and based on those recommendations, Council hereby denies the 

petitions listed in Exhibit A. 

Section 2. 

This resolution is effective on the date of approval by the City Council of the City and County 

of Broomfield.  

 

Page 1 

 



 

 

Approved on February 25, 2025 

 

Board of Equalization 
 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

     NCR 

       

City and County Attorney 

 

 

Page 2 

 



Exhibit A 

Resolution 2025-38-BOE 

Denials 

 

1. Petitioner Schedule No.: PERRY FAMILY LLC R2404108 

 

 

 

Administrative Denials 

 

 

1. Petitioner Schedule No.: HOLMAN BROOMFIELD REAL ESTATE R8874105 

2. Petitioner Schedule No.: LONNSBURRY PROPERTIES R1015948  

 

 

 

 
 

Page 3 

 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bBOIEcc6OKHym43tRnkMyMyspdNaKf5m/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FH42yrlUxNF9-zOeVwPIKEt1x-j9HcIp/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1tqKx4R8u7X-JCS1God3TCLfKYADmJwFD/view?usp=drive_link


City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

H. Proposed Resolution Almost Home Third Amendment for 2025 Services

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6H.

Presented By

Lisana Muñoz, Director of Human Services

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

Almost Home provides emergency assistance through its Severe Weather Activation Plan (SWAP) Program

to Broomfield County.  SWAP is an extreme weather hotel/motel voucher program that provides temporary

housing for persons experiencing unsheltered homelessness during severe weather.  Unsheltered homelessness is

defined as a "primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place not designed for human habitation". 

Severe weather is defined as at or below 32°F and wet, or 20°F and dry. This resolution to approve Amendment

3 would increase the SWAP contract from $200,000 to $275,000 as already included in the 2025 budget. 

 

Attachments

Memo for Almost Home Amendment 3 2025 2025-2-25.pdf
Resolution 2025-51 Approving a Third Amendment with Almost Home Inc.pdf
Almost Home Amendment 3 2025 (SWAP).pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FMemo%20for%20Almost%20Home%20Amendment%203%202025%202025-2-25.pdf?alt=media&token=87e8a0ed-5246-4e50-ac3d-326b8c420918
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FMemo%20for%20Almost%20Home%20Amendment%203%202025%202025-2-25.pdf?alt=media&token=87e8a0ed-5246-4e50-ac3d-326b8c420918
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FMemo%20for%20Almost%20Home%20Amendment%203%202025%202025-2-25.pdf?alt=media&token=87e8a0ed-5246-4e50-ac3d-326b8c420918
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FResolution%202025-51%20Approving%20a%20Third%20Amendment%20with%20Almost%20Home%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=754314dc-90d1-43f4-bc21-f6c79f06150a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FResolution%202025-51%20Approving%20a%20Third%20Amendment%20with%20Almost%20Home%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=754314dc-90d1-43f4-bc21-f6c79f06150a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FResolution%202025-51%20Approving%20a%20Third%20Amendment%20with%20Almost%20Home%20Inc.pdf?alt=media&token=754314dc-90d1-43f4-bc21-f6c79f06150a
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FAlmost%20Home%20Amendment%203%202025%20(SWAP).pdf?alt=media&token=c7800086-2512-4417-9199-cce45d7c4024
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FAlmost%20Home%20Amendment%203%202025%20(SWAP).pdf?alt=media&token=c7800086-2512-4417-9199-cce45d7c4024
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6791772baf20c40054aec8d9%2FAlmost%20Home%20Amendment%203%202025%20(SWAP).pdf?alt=media&token=c7800086-2512-4417-9199-cce45d7c4024


Memo for Almost Home Amendment 3 2025 
Prepared By: Mandy Walke 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

 

Almost Home, Inc. has provided emergency assistance through its Severe Weather Activation Plan (SWAP) 

Program to Broomfield County since October 2022. SWAP is an extreme weather hotel/motel voucher 

program that provides temporary housing for persons experiencing unsheltered homelessness during severe 

winter weather. Unsheltered homelessness is defined as a “primary nighttime residence that is a public or 

private place not designed for human habitation.” (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development) 

Severe weather is defined as at or below 32°F and wet, or 20°F and dry.  The 2022 Agreement was amended 

twice for program services through the end of 2023.  In 2024, Broomfield and Almost Home entered into a 

new base-year agreement for program services through the end of 2024. 

 

In the fall of 2024, the Department of Human Service (DHS) had been partnering with Adams County to 

execute an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for a regional approach to these efforts for 2025. However, 

in December 2024, Adams County informed DHS that due to operational logistics, the IGA couldn’t be 

completed at this time. Instead, DHS completed a Second Amendment to the current base-year agreement 

that would allow for program services in 2025 with Almost Home. The Second Amendment established the 

initial allotment of $200,000 of the $275,000 2025 budget for SWAP services for calendar year 2025. This was 

approved by the City and County Manager per her contract authority.   

 

The proposed Third Amendment would adjust the contract maximum amount to $275,000 for 2025. 

Currently, DHS has $275,000 budgeted for SWAP in the existing 2025 budget. The budgeted amount  is based 

on the average number of activations and hotel vouchers issued. Generally, this assumes 35 vouchers needed 

per activation at $100 per night. Of note, between January 17th to 21st there was extreme weather with 

five inches of snow and 90 straight hours of below-freezing temperatures, resulting in more SWAP activations 

than average.   

 

Financial Considerations 

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 

budgeted amount. 

 

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

Human Services Fund: Operations & Admin-Professional Services-Misc 

(08-40100-53170) 

$275,000 

 

Almost Home (08-40100-53170) - 2025 Amendment 2 -$200,000 

Almost Home (08-40100-53170) - Proposed Resolution 2025-51 for 

Amendment 3 

-$75,000 

Projected Balance $0 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://www.almosthomeonline.org/
https://www.almosthomeonline.org/swap
https://www.almosthomeonline.org/swap
https://www.hudexchange.info/homelessness-assistance/coc-esg-virtual-binders/coc-esg-homeless-eligibility/four-categories/category-1/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1CwU7kAXBEI9QXCBXb9850n--IpsdwqQL/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1CwU7kAXBEI9QXCBXb9850n--IpsdwqQL/view?usp=sharing


 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

Oct. 31, 2022: Agreement with Almost Home for Severe Weather Activation Plan program services approved 

by the City and County Manager. 

  

June 13, 2023: Resolution 2023-83 for First Amendment to the 2022 Almost Home agreement. 

 

Oct. 24, 2023: Resolution 2023-149 for Second Amendment to the 2022 Almost Home agreement 

 

Jan. 1, 2024: New Base-Year Agreement with Almost Home for SWAP program services approved by the City 

and County Manager. 

 

Dec. 10, 2024: Resolution 2024-173 for First Amendment to the Base-Year Agreement with Almost Home.  

 

Jan. 1, 2025: Second Amendment to the Base-Year Agreement with Almost Home to extend the term to 2025 

approved by the City and County Manager. 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If the Council desires to approve the Third Amendment to the contract with Almost Home, Inc., the 

appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-51 be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

Do not approve the contract amendment. Amendment 2 with a cap of $200,000 will remain in effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/10sOiW0O8aS1RI3ybMCAX_9hRbPrtITJr/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1407dxzsz425hfuP5KvrAs-wEVCs1Zn_s/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xyxLxYZ5CGVkSYrJjLFDcFHlPT4tjOZv/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BZzRJMDv7ggleK043Yoon4RkkCybelD6/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1p9zro06CsAaGfElMQv3KL5zmv8escQat/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1CwU7kAXBEI9QXCBXb9850n--IpsdwqQL/view


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-51 

A resolution approving a Third Amendment to the Agreement for Severe Weather Activation 

Program Services with Almost Home, Inc. 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The Third Amendment to the Agreement for Severe Weather Activation Program Services 

between the City and County of Broomfield and Almost Home, Inc., increasing the 

not-to-exceed price to $275,000, for 2025 Severe Weather Activation Program services is 

hereby approved.   

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem is authorized to sign and the Office of the City and County Clerk 

to attest the Third Amendment, in form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on February 25, 2025. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

NCR 
 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



 
THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR SEVERE WEATHER ACTIVATION PROGRAM SERVICES 

BETWEEN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD AND ALMOST HOME, INC. 

1. PARTIES. The parties to this Third Amendment (this “Third Amendment”) are the City and 

County of Broomfield, a Colorado municipal corporation and county (the “City”), and 

Almost Home, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit corporation (the “Contractor”) collectively, the 

“Parties”, or individually, a “Party.” 

2. RECITALS. The Recitals to this Third Amendment are incorporated herein by this reference 

as though fully set forth in the body of this Third Amendment. 

2.1. The Parties entered into a service Agreement for Severe Weather Activation 

Program Services, dated January 1, 2024 (the “Agreement”) and previously 

amended on December 10, 2024, and January 1, 2025. 

2.2. The Parties to this Third Amendment desire to amend the Agreement to provide  

additional funding for services in 2025. 

3. THE AMENDMENT. In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the Parties 

contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which 

are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

3.1. The Term of this Amendment shall be from January 1, 2025, through December 31, 

2025, which is unchanged. The Contractor agrees to continue to provide all 

services required in accordance with the Agreement throughout this Term.  

3.2. The not-to-exceed price for the 2025 term of the Agreement shall be increased by 

Seventy-Five Thousand dollars ($75,000.00) from Two Hundred Thousand dollars 

($200,000.00) to Two Hundred and Seventy-Five Thousand dollars ($275,000.00).  

4. AGREEMENT IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. Except as amended herein, all other terms, 

conditions, and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are 

hereby ratified and reaffirmed by the Parties in their entirety. 

This Third Amendment is executed by the Parties hereto in their respective names as 

of February 25, 2025. 

 

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 

a Colorado Municipal Corporation and County 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

     NCR 
      
____________________________________ 

City and County Attorney’s Office 

Page 1  
Updated 4/16/2024 

 
 
 



 
 

       CONTRACTOR: 

 

Almost Home, Inc. 

  

   

By: _____________________________________ 

Name: __________________________________ 

Address: 22 S. 4th Ave., Suite 102, Brighton, CO 
80601 

 

 

Page 2  
Updated 4/16/2024 

 
 
 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

A. Ordinance for the Business Improvement District Formation for Broomfield Town Square - First Reading

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7A.

Presented By

Jeff Romine, Economist - CMO

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

 

Proposed Ordinance 2263,  would establish a Business Improvement District (BID) related to the Broomfield Town
Square (BTS) project.   The BID is the third component of financing the BTS project contemplated in the 2019
Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement (Redevelopment Agreement).

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo - Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 1st Reading 2-25-2024.pdf
Ordinance No. 2263 Broomfield Town Square BID Formation .pdf
BTS -- Operating Plan and Budget BID FINAL 2-25-2025.pdf
BTS -- Petition to form BID DRAFT 2-14-2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FMemo%20-%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%201st%20Reading%202-25-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ade2400c-530f-4800-a90e-e347dc684485
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FMemo%20-%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%201st%20Reading%202-25-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ade2400c-530f-4800-a90e-e347dc684485
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FMemo%20-%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%201st%20Reading%202-25-2024.pdf?alt=media&token=ade2400c-530f-4800-a90e-e347dc684485
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FOrdinance%20No.%202263%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%20.pdf?alt=media&token=f2c843fd-d7f0-4089-bc7f-7a523db1d87f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FOrdinance%20No.%202263%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%20.pdf?alt=media&token=f2c843fd-d7f0-4089-bc7f-7a523db1d87f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FOrdinance%20No.%202263%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%20.pdf?alt=media&token=f2c843fd-d7f0-4089-bc7f-7a523db1d87f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FBTS%20--%20Operating%20Plan%20and%20Budget%20BID%20FINAL%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=9c86ccbf-08f5-4c5a-a99c-2089a93daff4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FBTS%20--%20Operating%20Plan%20and%20Budget%20BID%20FINAL%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=9c86ccbf-08f5-4c5a-a99c-2089a93daff4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FBTS%20--%20Operating%20Plan%20and%20Budget%20BID%20FINAL%202-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=9c86ccbf-08f5-4c5a-a99c-2089a93daff4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20DRAFT%202-14-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ac83ef4b-e4a3-4123-af89-ecfd63b11548
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20DRAFT%202-14-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ac83ef4b-e4a3-4123-af89-ecfd63b11548
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d7340abff690054446844%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20DRAFT%202-14-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ac83ef4b-e4a3-4123-af89-ecfd63b11548


Memo - Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 1st Reading 
Prepared By: Jeff Romine, Economist; Karl Frundt, Senior Attorney 

Summary 

 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Proposed Ordinance 2263, if approved, would establish a Business Improvement District (BID) related to the 

Broomfield Town Square (BTS) project.    

 

The BID is the third component of financing for the BTS project, as outlined in the 2019 Redevelopment and 

Reimbursement Agreement (Redevelopment Agreement). Other components of public or district financing to 

support the development include the establishment of the Metropolitan District (formed in 2020) and the 

amendment and formation of an Urban Renewal Area (which will be considered by the City Council and the 

Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority on March 25, 2025).  Note: The Redevelopment Agreement, approved 

on November 12, 2019, established the financial commitments of the City and County of Broomfield, such as 

committed shares of annual tax revenue resulting from the development, net and gross maximum 

reimbursement limits, other contributions, and commitments to support the proposed BTS development.     

 

Business Improvement District 

 

Background and Requirement for Formation: 

A BID is a legal governmental entity that can be created by a municipality pursuant to Colorado’s “Business 

Improvement District Act”, CRS 31-25-1201 et seq. to promote the vitality of commercial business areas 

within a municipality.  A BID has the power to own property, impose a tax levy, and provide the following 

services within its boundaries: consult on planning or managing development activities; maintenance of 

improvements; promotion or marketing of district activity or public events; activities in support of business 

recruitment, management, and development; security for businesses and public areas; and snow removal or 

refuse collection.  

 

A BID can be formed by the City Council upon approval of an ordinance. In order for the City Council to 

consider an ordinance forming the BID, first a petition seeking the formation of BID must be submitted to 

the City that is signed by persons who own real or personal property within the proposed district having a 

valuation for assessment of not less than fifty percent (50%) of the valuation of all real and personal 

property in the service area of the proposed district. Accompanying the petition shall be an operating plan 

and proposed budget for the district. Each year the BID must submit to the City its operating plan and 

proposed budget no later than September 30th. 

 

Once established, a BID is governed by a board of directors of no less than five (5) individuals appointed by 

the City Council and who serve at the pleasure of the Council.  Board members must be eligible electors who 

live within the district’s boundaries or own taxable real or personal property within the district.  

 

Transfer of Property and Qualification as Petitioners: 

On or about February 13, 2025, the City transferred by Special Warranty Deed to Bryon White, Tim 

Fredregill, Patricia McHenry, Rod Wagner, and Joseph Vostrejs (the Grantees), each as to a 1/5th interest, as 

tenants in common Lot 2, Broomfield Town Square, Filing No. 1 in the City and County of Broomfield. This 

transfer was authorized by Ordinance No. 2108 approved by the City Council on November 12, 2009. 

Pursuant to the Special Warranty Deed, the property is subject to be reclaimed by the City if the Grantees 

or their successors or assigns have not on or before December 31, 2026, either (i) commenced construction 

of horizontal infrastructure of the Broomfield Town Square development north of 1st Avenue; or (ii) issued 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WN754Yqg91xIRknNkOYWHEKGvhT_0mE5/view?usp=sharing


 

bonds or otherwise obtained sufficient financing to allow for the commencement of construction of all 

horizontal infrastructure required for the Broomfield Town Square development within 60 days of obtaining 

all necessary permits from the City and County of Broomfield. Acceptance of the deed qualified the 

Grantees to petition the City for the formation of the Broomfield Town Square BID. 

 

Subsequent to acceptance of the Lot 2, the Grantees submitted to the City a proposed Petition* to Organize 

a BID together with a 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget for the Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District. The proposed boundary of the BID at its formation is limited to Lot 2.  The developer 

is expected to request that the City Council expand the boundary upon further transfer of property by the 

City to include the entire Broomfield Town Square development.  

 

*Proposed Petition to Organize a BID: At the time of publication of this memo, the petition remains 

proposed and unsigned.  A final petition, signed by the Grantees, will be added to the agenda packet when 

received.  This is expected before the first reading scheduled for February 25, 2025.   

 

Operating Plan and Budget: 

The proposed 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget identify: (1) the composition of the Board of 

Directors; (2) the temporary boundary and service area of the BID; (3) the services and improvements to be 

provided by the BID together with the proposed 2025 and 2026 budget; and (4) the estimated taxes, fees, 

and assessments to be imposed by the BID. 

 

As submitted, the Petition and the proposed plan names Bryon White, Tim Fredregill, Patricia McHenry, Rod 

Wagner, and Joseph Vostrejs (the Grantees) to the Board of Directors.  The Grantees are the only qualified 

electors able to serve at the time of formation.  

 

The proposed plan and budget anticipate the BID will construct, install or cause to be constructed or 

installed, certain public improvements including, without limitation, water services, safety protection 

devices and services, sanitation services, marketing, streetscape improvements, street improvements, 

gutters, culverts, drainage facilities, sidewalks, parking facilities, paving, lighting, grading, landscaping, 

storm and wastewater management facilities, and associated land acquisition and remediation. The costs of 

the public improvements include the costs of design, acquisition, construction, and financing. A preliminary 

estimate of the costs is approximately $68M.  The proposed 2025 and 2026 budgets for the BID total $50,000 

annually. 

 

The BID is anticipated to hold an election on May 6, 2025 for the purposes of authorizing debt, taxes, 

revenue limits, spending limits, and special assessments. The initial maximum debt authorization for the BID 

shall be $104M.  This debt limit is an aggregate limit with the Metropolitan Districts so that, collectively, the 

BID and the Metropolitan Districts may not issue bonds in excess of $104M. Similarly, the BID’s taxing ability 

shall be constrained to debt service mill levy limitations of 50 mills in the aggregate when combined with 

the debt service mill levies of the Metropolitan Districts. An additional 15 mills is permitted for operations 

and administrative expenses. The maximum voted interest rate permitted for any debt issued by the BID 

shall be eight percent (8%) which may be increased to ten percent 10% with administrative approval of the 

City and County Manager and the City and County Attorney. The maximum underwriting discount shall be 

three percent (3%). 

 

The BID may consider issuing debt beginning in 2026 if the issuance of debt is approved by the electors of 

the BID at the May 6, 2025 election.  

 

2 



 

Proposed Ordinance No. 2263:   

Proposed Ordinance No. 2263, if approved, finds that the Petition submitted by the Grantees meets the 

statutory criteria for the creation of a Business Improvement District and establishes the Broomfield Town 

Square Business Improvement District.  It also (1) establishes the Board of Directors; (2) establishes the 

temporary boundary; and (3) approves the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget. 

Financial Considerations 

 

The formation of the BID is expected to have limited financial impact to the City and County.  The BID will 

cause some additions to regular activities of both the City and County and BURA, such as the collection of 

funds through imposing certain tax levies. It is anticipated that, like other taxing entities, the BID will seek 

to have Broomfield collect and disperse any taxes levied by the BID.  This process is similar to that used for 

other taxing entities. The City will be provided a fee for this service.  

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

September 12, 2023 - Approved the Broomfield Town Square Filing No. 1 Site Development Plan and Urban 

Renewal Site Plan, Improvement Agreement, and Ownership and Maintenance Agreement. 

 

September 13, 2022 - Approved the Broomfield Town Square PUD Plan, Final Plat, and the Ninth Amendment 

to the 2016 Comprehensive Plan for a Land Use Map Amendment related the BTS property.  

 

November 12, 2020 - City Council and BURA approved a Supplemental Cost Sharing Agreement with 

Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC. 

 

August 25, 2020 - Approved Service Plans for Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2. 

 

November 12, 2019 - City Council and BURA approved a Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement with 

Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC. 

 

May 21, 2019 - City Council and BURA approved a Predevelopment Agreement with Broomfield Town Square 

Alliance, LLC. 

  

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

 

March 22, 2021 - Land Use Review Commission found and declared the Broomfield Town Square URA Plan to 

be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommended approval of the plan.  

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

 

If Council desires to approve the petition and approved on first reading the ordinance that would create the 

Business Improvement District, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Ordinance No. 2263  be adopted on first reading and ordered published in full and that a 

second reading and public hearing be held on March 25, 2025. 

 

 

Alternatives 

Do not establish the Business Improvement District at this time.  This would not preclude the developer from 

resubmitting the petition at a later date.  

 

3 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n3C2q-1CfiSWSS3Z2fK64D1Pm6kB3Xrm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WH3VUwM1vpIIdZ7iY9jcJNJpoOxJApWP/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15eJc4IIOwZzz0cdxWMuRJ1t6Hg9M7NaC/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NiHK8LgeUuEJ30D_s50606te4b3wdXkN/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WeSfSsoT6aKMXAHS6eyR6PCYNbIekONL/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gmIkckTyUqFFpH1ruOsmBzm2QcAI4ROd/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BfO-eBqI7XCNlyYFw8uG48Dvx4OvJi1/view?usp=sharing


 

 

 

 

Broomfield Town Square Development Background 

 

Approved Development Plans  

On September 12, 2023, the City Council approved a site development plan, improvement agreement and 

other related agreements for the Broomfield Town Square development which comprises approximately 39 

acres and is generally located northeast of Main Street and West 120th Avenue. Broomfield currently owns 

the properties and Broomfield’s master planning documents have long envisioned a town square in this 

location. 

 

The approved site development plan allows up to 491 residential units including 12 townhomes and 479 

rental apartments and anticipates up to 63,590 square feet of commercial development including a 

redevelopment of the former grocery store in the initial phase. Significant public improvements, including a 

4 acre lake, plaza and walk areas, and publicly accessible parking garage are also included in Phase 1. 

Future phases could include up to 152 additional residential units for a total of 643 residential units and up 

to 187,000 square feet of total commercial uses across the property. 

 

Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement  

On November 12, 2019, City Council approved a Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement concerning 

the Broomfield Town Square development. This Redevelopment Agreement addresses the sharing of 

revenues generated from within the property by Broomfield and the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority 

(BURA) with the developer to assist with financing the public improvements included within the 

development.  

 

Specifically, the Redevelopment Agreement commits Broomfield to sharing with the Developer the maximum 

net reimbursement amount of $20M in tax increment revenue generated by the City and County from the 

project. If the developer issues bonds for development project financing, the reimbursement amount will 

include eligible financing costs for a gross maximum reimbursement total of up to $54.0M.  If the 

development financing does not include bond financing maximum gross reimbursement shall not exceed 

$48M.  In addition to the revenue sharing provisions, the Redevelopment calls for the transfer of the land 

owned by Broomfield, including the former grocery store and parking areas, to the developer for the 

purposes of redevelopment and development. This commitment extends until December 31, 2044.  

In addition to the sharing of tax increment revenue and property transfer, the City agreed in the 

Redevelopment Agreement to cooperate with the developer to form and/or adopt an Urban Renewal Plan, 

Business Improvement District, and Metropolitan District for the project. Such action will aid the developer 

in financing the public improvements required for the project. 

 

Metropolitan District 

On August 25, 2020, City Council approved Service Plans for Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District 

Nos. 1 and 2. The Service Plans include interest rate caps and a provision that an analysis of interest rates 

will be performed prior to the issuance of debt to assess reasonableness of the proposed interest rates. A 

maximum of $104M of debt is authorized by the Service Plans.  Any issuance of debt by the Metropolitan 

Districts will require the approval of the City and County Manager and City and County Attorney. 

 

Urban Renewal Plan 

The Broomfield Town Square project is partly within the existing Broomfield Plaza Civic Center Urban 

Renewal Area (Broomfield Plaza URA). The developer has proposed a new Broomfield Town Square Urban 

Renewal Area (Town Square URA) encompassing the entire project area. Consequently, staff will be 

4 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n3C2q-1CfiSWSS3Z2fK64D1Pm6kB3Xrm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WeSfSsoT6aKMXAHS6eyR6PCYNbIekONL/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NiHK8LgeUuEJ30D_s50606te4b3wdXkN/view


 

presenting for City Council consideration on March 25, 2025 resolutions to amend the impacted Broomfield 

Plaza URA and approve the new Town Square URA. The tax increment revenue (reimbursement amount) 

pledged by Broomfield in the 2019 Redevelopment Agreement will annually flow through the newly created 

Town Square URA, until either the gross reimbursement amount has been met or the agreement expires at 

the end of 2044.  

 

In coordination with the proposed amended and new URA plans, staff will also request on March 25, 2025 

that BURA approve tax revenue sharing agreements with Boulder Valley School District (BVSD), Broomfield 

Town Square Metropolitan District, North Metro Fire & Rescue District, and Northern Colorado Water 

Conservation District (Northern Water). The anticipated financial contribution to the Broomfield Town 

Square project by BVSD is estimated to be approximately $20.0M through 2050.  There is no financial impact 

to North Metro or Northern Water as BURA will not retain any of the taxes levied by either entity and each 

will receive 100% of any tax increment generated by the project.  Mile High Flood District had previously 

consented to the formation of the Town Square URA in 2022 and will renew its letter of approval upon the 

City Council’s approval of the new URA plan.  

5 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2263 

 

An ordinance declaring the organization of the Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement 

District, establishing and appointing a Board of Directors, and approving the 2025 and 2026 

Operating Plan and Budget 

Recitals. 

 Whereas, a Petition for the Organization of the Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District (the “Petition”) was filed with the Clerk of the City and County of 

Broomfield (the “City”) on or about February 19 , 2025.  

 

 Whereas, on February 25, 2025, the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield 

(“City Council”) fixed by order the time and place for a hearing on the Petition. 

 

 Whereas, on March 25, 2025, the City Council held a public hearing on the Petition. 

 

 Now, therefore, be it ordained by the City Council of the City and County of 

Broomfield, Colorado: 

 

Section 1.   

 

The City Council hereby makes the following findings regarding the Petition for the proposed 

Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement District (the “BID”): 

 

(1) Notice of place and time of the hearing on the Petition was published in the Broomfield 

Enterprise and mailed to each property owner within the service area and the boundaries of 

the proposed BID at such property owner’s last known address, as disclosed by county tax 

records. 

 

(2)  The Petitioners are the owners of real or personal property in the service area of the 

proposed BID (a) having a valuation for assessment of not less than fifty percent (50%) of the 

valuation for assessment of all real and personal property in the service area of the proposed 

BID; and (b) which comprises at least fifty percent (50%) of the acreage in the legal 

boundaries of the proposed BID. 

 

(3)  The signatures of the Petitioners are genuine. 

 

(4)  The Petition was accompanied by a bond with security approved by the City Council or a 

cash deposit sufficient to cover all expenses connected with the proceedings in case the 

organization of the BID is not effected. 

 

 

Page 1 



 

(5)  The corporate name of the proposed BID is Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement 

District. 

(6)  A general description of the boundaries and service area of the proposed BID is as follows: 

(a) The legal description of the BID is set forth in Exhibit A, attached here to and 

incorporated herein. A map of the BID is on file with the City and County Clerk. 

(b) The legal description of the Service Area of the BID is set forth Exhibit B, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein. A map of the Service Area is on file 

with the City and County Clerk.  

(c) Pursuant to Section 31-25-1208(3), C.R.S., if at any time, the tax classification 

of property within the Service Area is changed from residential or agricultural 

to business or commercial uses, such property shall no longer be excluded from 

the boundaries of the BID. 

(7)  The property within the boundaries and the service area of the proposed BID is located 

within the boundaries of the City; therefore, the City has jurisdiction to organize the BID. 

(8)  None of the taxable real or personal property to be included in the boundaries of the 

proposed BID is classified for property tax purposes as either residential or agricultural. 

(9)  No property to be included in the boundaries of the proposed BID is within the boundaries 

of another business improvement district authorized under Title 31, C.R.S. 

(10)  All of property within the service area of the BID is a location hereby designated for new 

business or commercial development pursuant to Section 31-25-1203(10), C.R.S. 

(11)  The Petition was duly signed and presented in conformity with Sections 31-25-1201, et 

seq., C.R.S., as amended (the “Business Improvement District Act”), the allegations of the 

Petition are true, and the types of services or improvements to be provided by the proposed 

BID are those services or improvements which best satisfy the purposes set forth in the 

Business Improvement District Act. 

Section 2.  

 

The City Council hereby declares the above-described Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District organized in accordance with the Business Improvement District Act, 

and all other applicable statutes and laws of the State of Colorado. The BID shall be a 

quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State with all powers and 

responsibilities thereof. 

 

 

 

Page 2 



 

Section 3.   

 

Pursuant to Section 31-25-1209(1)(b), C.R.S., the City Council may appoint the initial 

members for the Board of Directors of the BID (the “Board”) to serve at the pleasure of the 

City Council.  Each member of the Board shall be an elector of the BID as “elector” is defined 

in Section 31-25-1203(4)(a), C.R.S. 

(1)  The City Council hereby establishes the Board of Directors of five (5) members and hereby 

appoints as directors the individuals named in the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan to serve as 

the initial members of the Board of Directors. 

(2)  Members of the Board of Directors shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council pursuant 

to Section 31-25-1209(1)(b), C.R.S.  Any subsequent members of the Board of Directors shall 

be appointed by resolution of the City Council. 

(3)  The Board of Directors shall carry out the responsibilities required of such Board by the 

Business Improvement District Act, any Operating Plan and Budget, and all other applicable 

ordinances and laws. 

 

Section 4.   

In accordance with Section 31-25-1211, C.R.S., the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget 

is hereby approved.  A copy of the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget is available on 

file with the City and County Clerk. Given the date of this Ordinance, the 2025 and 2026 

Operating Plan and Budget shall apply to the BID’s activities for the remainder of 2025 and for 

2026.  If the BID amends the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan or either the 2025 Budget or 2026 

Budget after this Ordinance is effective, the amendment must be approved by the City 

Council in substantially the same manner as the process for formulating the operating plan 

and budget for each year.  Beginning on September 30, 2026 (for use in 2027), an annual 

Operating Plan and Budget will be submitted to the City Council on or before September 30th 

of each year. 

 

Section 5.  

  

All acts, orders, resolutions, or parts thereof, of the City that are inconsistent or in conflict 

with this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict. 

 

Section 6.  

 

 

Page 3 



 

Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be adjudged unenforceable or invalid, such 

judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, it 

being the intention that the various provisions hereof are severable.  

 
Section 7.   

The City and County Clerk is hereby directed to advise the representatives of the BID in 

writing of this action and to attach a certified copy of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 8. 

This ordinance is effective seven days after publication following final passage. 

 

 

Introduced and approved after first reading on February 25, 2025, and ordered published in 

full. 

 

Introduced a second time and approved on March 25, 2025, and ordered published. 

 

 

      The City And County Of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

    
_______________________________ 

      Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Office of the City and County Clerk 

      Approved As To Form: 

            

            
 

      ________________________________ 

      City and County Attorney  

 

 

Page 4 



 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description and Map of the Boundaries of the BID 

 

Lot 2, Broomfield Town Square, Filing No. 1,City and County of Broomfield, State of Colorado

 

 

Page 5 



 

EXHIBIT B 

Legal Description and Map of the Service Area of the BID 

 

Lot 2, Broomfield Town Square, Filing No. 1, City and County of Broomfield, State of Colorado 

 

 

 

Page 6 



DRAFT
McGEADY BECHER P.C.

February 17, 2025

2025 AND 2026 OPERATING PLAN AND BUDGET

FOR

BROOMFIELD TOWN SQUARE BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO

Prepared

By

McGEADY BECHER CORTESE WILLIAMS P.C.
450 E. 17th Ave., Suite 400
Denver, CO  80203-1254

Submitted:  __________________

Approved:  __________________



i
4875-1647-3301, v. 11

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF BID.......................................................................................1
A. Requirement for this Operating Plan. ......................................................................1
B. Required Content of Operating Plan........................................................................1
C. Purpose of BID. .......................................................................................................1
D. Ownership of Property or Major Assets. .................................................................1
E. Contracts and Agreements. ......................................................................................2

II. ORGANIZATION AND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS..............2
A. Organization.............................................................................................................2
B. Governance. .............................................................................................................2
C. Board of Directors....................................................................................................2
D. Term Limits. ............................................................................................................2
E. Advisory Board........................................................................................................2

III. BOUNDARIES, INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS ......................................................3

IV. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS...............................................................................................3

V. ADMINISTRATION, OPERATIONS, SERVICES AND MAINTENANCE ...................4

VI. FINANCIAL PLAN AND BUDGET..................................................................................4
A. 2025 and 2026 Budget. ............................................................................................4
B. Authorized Indebtedness..........................................................................................4
C. Property Tax and Mill Levy Caps............................................................................4
D. BID Revenues. .........................................................................................................5
E. Existing Indebtedness. .............................................................................................5
F. Anticipated Future Indebtedness..............................................................................5
G. Other Financial Obligations.....................................................................................5
H. BID Debt Is Not City Debt. .....................................................................................5
I. Limitations on Developer Reimbursements.............................................................6

VII. 2025 and 2026 ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS, AND CHANGES ...........................................6

VIII. DISSOLUTION ...................................................................................................................6

IX. CONCLUSION....................................................................................................................6



ii
4875-1647-3301, v. 11

LIST OF EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT A Board of Directors and Other Contact Information

EXHIBIT B BID Boundaries / Service Area Legal Description and Map

EXHIBIT C Cost Estimate of Public Improvements

EXHIBIT D 2025 and 2026 Budgets

EXHIBIT E Financial Plan



1
4875-1647-3301, v. 11

I. PURPOSE AND SCOPE OF BID

A. Requirement for this Operating Plan.

Section 31-25-1211, Colorado Revised Statutes (“C.R.S.”) requires the Broomfield Town 
Square Business Improvement District (the “BID”) to file an Operating Plan and Budget with the 
Clerk of the City and County of Broomfield (the “City”) no later than September 30 of each year.

Pursuant to Sections 31-25-1201, et seq., C.R.S., as amended (the “Business 
Improvement District Act”), the City is to approve or disapprove the Operating Plan and Budget 
within thirty (30) days of submittal of all required information. After approval, the services, 
improvements, and financial arrangements of the BID shall conform so far as practicable to the 
approved Operating Plan and Budget, pursuant to Section 31-25-1211, C.R.S.

The BID will operate under the authorities and powers allowed under the Business 
Improvement District Act, as further described and limited by this Operating Plan.

B. Required Content of Operating Plan.

The Business Improvement District Act requires this Operating Plan to specifically 
identify: (1) the composition of the Board of Directors; (2) the services and improvements to be 
provided by the BID; (3) the taxes, fees, and assessments to be imposed by the BID; (4) the 
estimated principal amount of the bonds to be issued by the BID; and (5) such other information 
as the City may require.  

This Operating Plan and any subsequent operating plans that are approved by the City, will 
be incorporated herein by reference, and shall remain in full force and effect, except as specifically 
or necessarily modified hereby by amendment approved by the City Council pursuant to Section 
31-25-1211, C.R.S.

C. Purpose of BID.

As may be further articulated in succeeding years’ Operating Plans, the ongoing and/or 
contemplated purposes of the BID for 2025 and 2026 include services related to the acquisition, 
construction, completion, installation, replacement and/or operation and maintenance of all of the 
services and improvements allowed under Colorado law for business improvement districts, 
including any “Improvements,” as defined in Section 31-12-1203(15), C.R.S., and the BID shall 
be authorized to exercise all powers as set forth in Section 31-12-1212, C.R.S., except as otherwise 
limited in any Operating Plan approved by the City.

D. Ownership of Property or Major Assets. 

The BID may own public improvements, easements, real property and facilities not 
otherwise dedicated to other public entities for ownership, operation and maintenance.



2
4875-1647-3301, v. 11

E. Contracts and Agreements. 

It is anticipated that the BID may enter into various agreements with private parties to 
facilitate the funding, construction, operation and maintenance of public improvements. The BID 
is not currently a party to any contracts or agreements. The BID may also enter into agreements 
with the City, metropolitan districts, authorities, business improvement districts or other public 
entities encompassing adjacent developments in order to cooperate on infrastructure projects. It is 
anticipated that the BID will enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Broomfield Town 
Square Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2 (collectively, the “Metro Districts”) concerning the 
financing, construction, ownership and operation of public improvements.

II. ORGANIZATION AND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Organization.

The District has been organized by the City as requested in the Petition for Organization.

B. Governance. 

Pursuant to Section 31-25-1209(1)(d), C.R.S., it is anticipated that the City Council of the 
City will appoint the initial Board of Directors for the BID (“Board of Directors”), which shall 
have up to five (5) members, and shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council.

C. Board of Directors. 

The BID will be managed by a Board of Directors consisting of five (5) members all of 
whom shall be voting members. The initial Board members are:

Tim Fredregill;

Patricia McHenry;

Joseph Vostrejs;

Rod Wagner; and

Bryon White.

Board member and other pertinent contact information is provided in Exhibit A.

D. Term Limits.

Pursuant to Section 31-25-1209(1)(b), C.R.S., the Directors shall serve at the pleasure of 
the City Council.

E. Advisory Board.

The Board of Directors may appoint one or more advisory boards of owners of property 
within the boundaries of the BID to assist the Board of Directors on such matters as the Board of 



3
4875-1647-3301, v. 11

Directors desires assistance. The Board of Directors shall, upon the appointment of an advisory 
board, set forth its duties, duration and membership. The Board of Directors may provide rules of 
procedure for the advisory board or may delegate to the advisory board the authority to provide 
such rules.

III. BOUNDARIES, INCLUSIONS AND EXCLUSIONS

The initial BID boundaries and Service Area of the BID are approximately 1.5 acres as 
described and depicted in Exhibit B. 

If any property is excluded from the boundaries of the BID pursuant to Section 31-25-
1208(3), C.R.S., and if at any time, the tax classification of such property within the Service Area 
is changed from residential or agricultural to commercial or business use, such property shall no 
longer be excluded from the boundaries of the BID.

IV. PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The BID will provide public improvements and services within the boundaries of the BID; 
however, there may be instances where the BID will provide public improvements and services 
outside of the boundaries of the BID as part of the project.  The BID shall have the authority to 
provide these public improvements and services.  

The public improvements that the BID anticipates it will construct, install or cause to be 
constructed or installed, include those public improvements the cost of which may, in accordance 
with the Business Improvement District Act, lawfully be paid for by the BID, including, without 
limitation, water services, safety protection devices, sanitation services, marketing, streetscape 
improvements, street improvements, curbs, gutters, culverts, drainage facilities, sidewalks, parking 
facilities, paving, lighting, grading, landscape and storm and wastewater management facilities 
and associated land acquisition and remediation (collectively, the “Public Improvements”).  The 
costs of such Public Improvements include the costs of design, acquisition, construction, and 
financing.

A preliminary estimate of the costs of Public Improvements to be provided by the BID is 
attached hereto as Exhibit C.

The BID shall have the power and authority to provide the Public Improvements and 
related operation and maintenance services within and without the boundaries of the District as 
such power and authority is described in the Business Improvement District Act, and other 
applicable statutes, common law and the Constitution of the State of Colorado.  Plans and 
specifications of proposed Public Improvements shall be approved by the City before construction 
or installation of improvements is commenced, as required by Section 31-25-1212(1)(j), C.R.S.

The property owners within the BID request that the City designate the territory within the 
BID as a location for new business or commercial development pursuant to Section 31-25-
1203(10), C.R.S.



4
4875-1647-3301, v. 11

V. ADMINISTRATION, OPERATIONS, SERVICES AND MAINTENANCE

The BID shall provide for ownership, operation, and maintenance of those Public 
Improvements not being dedicated to another governmental entity, whether directly or pursuant to 
contracts with other parties.  

VI. FINANCIAL PLAN AND BUDGET

A. 2025 and 2026 Budgets.

The proposed 2025 and 2026 Budgets for the BID are attached as Exhibit D.

B. Authorized Indebtedness.

The BID is anticipated to hold an election on May 6, 2025, for the purpose of authorizing 
debt, taxes, revenue limits, spending limits, special assessments, and such other matters as may be 
necessary or convenient for the implementation of Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado 
Constitution (“TABOR”).  The initial maximum debt authorization for the BID shall be 
$104,000,000 (“Debt Limit”).  This Debt Limit shall be an aggregate Debt Limit with the Metro 
Districts so that, collectively, the BID and the Metro Districts may not issue bonds in excess of the 
Debt Limit. 

A Financial Plan which supports the initial maximum debt authorization stated above is 
attached hereto as Exhibit E.  No special assessments will be imposed without City Council 
approval of an amended Operating Plan.

C. Property Tax and Mill Levy Caps.

The BID’s taxing ability shall be constrained to a mill levy limitation of up to 50 mills for 
debt service purposes (“Debt Mill Levy Cap”); provided that if, on or after August 25, 2020, there 
are changes in the method of calculating assessed valuation or any constitutionally mandated tax 
credit, cut or abatement, the mill levy limitation applicable to such debt may be increased or 
decreased to reflect such changes, such increases or decreases to be determined by the Board of 
Directors in good faith so that, to the extent possible, the actual tax revenues generated by the mill 
levy, as adjusted for changes occurring after the date the City’s approval to organize the BID, are 
neither diminished nor enhanced as a result of such changes. For purposes of the foregoing, a 
change in the ratio of actual valuation shall be deemed to be a change in the method of calculating 
assessed valuation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the aggregate debt service mill levies of any 
properties located within both the BID and a Metro District will not at any time exceed the Debt 
Mill Levy Cap.

Further, the BID is authorized to impose a mill levy of up to fifteen (15) mills for general 
operations and administrative expenses, given the on-going operations and maintenance to be 
undertaken by the BID within its boundaries”); provided that if, on or after August 25, 2020, there 
are changes in the method of calculating assessed valuation or any constitutionally mandated tax 
credit, cut or abatement, the mill levy limitation applicable to such debt may be increased or 
decreased to reflect such changes, such increases or decreases to be determined by the Board of 
Directors in good faith so that, to the extent possible, the actual tax revenues generated by the mill 



5
4875-1647-3301, v. 11

levy, as adjusted for changes occurring after the date the City’s approval to organize the BID, are 
neither diminished nor enhanced as a result of such changes. For purposes of the foregoing, a 
change in the ratio of actual valuation shall be deemed to be a change in the method of calculating 
assessed valuation.

D. BID Revenues.

The BID anticipates developer funding for initial revenue sources and thereafter revenues 
derived from bonds, property taxes, fees, and any other legally available revenues of the BID.  

The BID may also be the beneficiary of revenues derived from a privately imposed public 
improvement fee (“PIF”), including without limitation, an add-on PIF for retail, sales or lodging.

E. Existing Indebtedness.

The BID has no outstanding debt obligations.

F. Anticipated Future Indebtedness.

The BID may consider issuing debt in 2026 if the issuance of debt is approved by the 
electors of the BID at the May 6, 2025 election.  

The interest rate on any debt is expected to be the market rate at the time the debt is 
incurred. In the event of a default, the maximum interest rate on any debt is not permitted to exceed 
twelve percent (12%). The maximum underwriting discount shall be three percent (3%).  
Notwithstanding the maximum voted interest rate, the maximum interest rate that may accrue on 
District debt shall be eight percent (8%). If current market conditions support an interest rate 
greater than eight percent (8%), the maximum interest rate on District debt may be increased up to 
ten percent (10%) with administrative approval of the City and County Manager and the City and 
County Attorney.

Prior to the issuance of any privately placed debt, the BID shall obtain the certification of 
an external financial advisor stating that the net effective interest rate does not exceed a reasonable 
current market interest rate, given the structure of the financing.

G. Other Financial Obligations.

The BID may enter into agreements including developer reimbursement agreements or 
other agreements and leases; as well as agreements for ongoing services such as legal, 
administration, compliance, budget, audit, or for any other purpose related to the BID’s activities.

H. BID Debt Is Not City Debt.

The BID’s debt will not constitute a debt or obligation of the City in any manner.  The 
City’s full faith and credit will not be pledged for the repayment of the BID’s debt. These 
statements shall be clearly stated on all offering documents and disclosure statements associated 
with any debt issued by the BID.



6
4875-1647-3301, v. 11

I. Limitations on Developer Reimbursements.

In the event the BID procures or pays for Public Improvements outside of a public bid 
process, prior to reimbursement to the developer of property within the BID or payment to a third 
party on behalf of the developer, a qualified independent third-party engineer or accountant, as 
applicable, shall certify to the BID that the costs of the Public Improvements are reasonable.

A qualified independent third-party engineer or accountant, as applicable, shall certify to 
the BID that Public Improvements financed by the BID are fit for their intended purposes.

In the event the BID agrees to reimburse the developer for an advance of money, property, 
or services, then the BID shall not pay a rate of simple interest that exceeds eight percent (8%).

VII. 2025 AND 2026 ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS, AND CHANGES

The City approved the BID’s organization in Spring of 2025; therefore, this Operating Plan 
shall apply to both 2025 and 2026, and there are no changes from the prior year.  Additionally, 
Exhibit D includes budgets for both 2025 and 2026.  The BID anticipates that it will undertake the 
financing and operation and maintenance of Public Improvements commencing in 2026, subject 
to the needs of the development.

VIII. DISSOLUTION

The BID is anticipated to have ongoing operations and maintenance obligations that will 
necessitate a perpetual existence.  If the BID no longer has such obligations, the BID may seek to 
dissolve pursuant to Section 31-25-1225, C.R.S.

In no event shall the BID be dissolved until the BID has provided for the payment or 
discharge of all outstanding indebtedness and other financial obligations as required pursuant to 
State statutes.

IX. CONCLUSION

It is submitted that this Operating Plan and Budget for the BID meets the requirements of 
the Business Improvement District Act, the Colorado Constitution, and the additional information 
required by the City.  

It is further submitted that the types of services and improvements to be provided by the 
BID are those services and improvements which satisfy the purposes of Part 12 of Article 25 of 
Title 31, C.R.S.



Exhibit A
Page 1 of 1

4875-1647-3301, v. 11

EXHIBIT A

Board of Directors and Other Contact Information

Directors:
Timothy Fredregill
Milender White Inc.
tfredregill@milenderwhite.com

Joseph Vostrejs
City Street Investors LLC
jvostrejs@citystreetinvestors.com

Bryon White
Milender White Inc.
bw@milenderwhite.com

Patricia McHenry
City Street Investors LLC
pmchenry@citystreetinvestors.com

Rod Wagner 
City Street Investors LLC
rwagner@citystreetinvestors.com



Exhibit B
Page 1 of 2

4875-1647-3301, v. 11

EXHIBIT B

BID Boundaries Legal Description and Map

LOT 2, BROOMFIELD TOWN SQUARE, FILING NO. 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 16, 2022 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 20220131184, 
CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, STATE OF COLORADO.



Exhibit B
Page 2 of 2

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit C
Page 1 of 2

4875-1647-3301, v. 11

EXHIBIT C

Cost Estimate of Public Improvements

An estimate of the costs of the Public Improvements which may be planned for, designed, acquired, 
constructed, installed, relocated, redeveloped, maintained or financed was prepared based upon a 
preliminary engineering survey and estimates derived from the zoning and anticipated 
development of the property in the Service Area. The exact design, sub-phasing of construction 
and location of the Public Improvements will be determined at the time of the submittal of one or 
more site development plans for the property within the Service Area and will be considered for 
approval by Broomfield in accordance with all applicable governing requirements.



Exhibit C
Page 2 of 2

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit D
Page 1 of 1

4875-1647-3301, v. 11

EXHIBIT D

2025 and 2026 Budgets



Exhibit E
Page 1 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11

EXHIBIT E

Financial Plan



Exhibit E
Page 2 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 3 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 4 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 5 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 6 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 7 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 8 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 9 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 10 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 11 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 12 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 13 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 14 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 15 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 16 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 17 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 18 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 19 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 20 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 21 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 22 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 23 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 24 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 25 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 26 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 27 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 28 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 29 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 30 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 31 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 32 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 33 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 34 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 35 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 36 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 37 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 38 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



Exhibit E
Page 39 of 39

4875-1647-3301, v. 11



CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO 

PETITION 

FOR THE ORGANIZATION OF THE BROOMFIELD TOWN SQUARE BUSINESS 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
TO THE HONORABLE COUNCILORS OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY AND 
COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO: 

Pursuant to Part 12, Article 25, Title 31, of the Colorado Revised Statutes(“C.R.S.”), the 
undersigned, who are the owners of taxable real or personal property (collectively, the 
“Petitioners”) within the Service Area of the proposed Broomfield Town Square Business 
Improvement District (the “BID”) respectfully Petition the Town Council (“Town Council”) for 
the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado (the “City”) for the organization of the BID.  In 
support of this Petition, Petitioners state as follows: 

1. The name of the proposed BID is “Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement 
District,” which is located in the City. 

2. A legal description of the proposed BID’s boundaries is set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached to and incorporated into this Petition by this reference.  A map of the proposed BID’s 
boundaries and Service Area is set forth in Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated into this 
Petition by this reference. 

(a) The BID’s Service Area shall be the commercial property within the 
boundaries.  Pursuant to Section 31-12-1203(10), C.R.S., the proposed Service Area 
includes property that the Petitioners request the City, following notice and a public 
hearing, designate for new business or commercial development.  

(b) None of the taxable real or personal property to be included in the 
boundaries of the BID is classified for property tax purposes as either residential or 
agricultural.  No property to be included into the boundaries of the BID is within another 
business improvement district authorized under Title 31, C.R.S. 

(c) Pursuant to Section 31-25-1220, C.R.S., the BID shall be entitled to expand 
its boundaries. 

3. The BID shall be authorized to undertake and provide services related to the 
acquisition, construction, completion, installation, replacement and/or operation and maintenance 
of all of the services and improvements allowed under Colorado law for business improvement 
districts, including any “Improvements,” as defined in Section 31-12-1203(15), C.R.S., and the 



 2 
4891-2702-0501, v. 7 

BID shall be authorized to exercise all powers as set forth in Section 31-12-1212, C.R.S., except 
as otherwise limited in any operating plan approved by the City. 

4. The names of three (3) persons to represent the Petitioners, who have the power to 
enter into agreements relating to the organization of the BID are: 

(a) Tim Fredregill; 

(b) Joseph Vostrejs; and  

(c) Patricia McHenry. 

5. Pursuant to Section 3l-25-1205(2), C.R.S, this Petition is signed by persons who 
own real or personal property in the Service Area of the BID having a valuation for assessment of 
not less than fifty percent (50%) of the valuation for the assessment of all real and personal 
property in the Service Area of the BID; and who own at least fifty percent (50%) of the acreage 
within the boundaries of the BID. 

6. Pursuant to Section 31-25-1205(3), C.R.S., this Petition is accompanied by a Bond, 
attached to and incorporated into this Petition by this reference as Exhibit C, with security 
approved by the City or a cash deposit sufficient to cover all expenses in connection with the 
proceedings in case the organization of the BID is not effected.  If at any time during the 
organization proceedings the City determines that the bond first executed or the amount of the cash 
deposited is insufficient in amount, it may require the Petitioners to execute an additional bond or 
the deposit of additional cash within a time to be fixed, not less than ten (10) days thereafter, and 
Petitioners acknowledge that upon failure of the Petitioners to file or deposit the same, the Petition 
may be dismissed. 

7. Pursuant to Section 31-25-1209(1), C.R.S, the City may provide by ordinance for 
a Board of Directors of the BID consisting of five (5) members. The five-member Board of 
Directors of the proposed BID will be appointed by the Mayor/City Council and will serve at the 
pleasure of the City. Petitioners request that the City pass such an ordinance and that the initial 
Board of Directors be the following electors of the BID: 

(a) Tim Fredregill; 

(b) Patricia McHenry; 

(c) Joseph Vostrejs; 

(d) Rod Wagner; and 

(e) Bryon White. 

Each member shall fulfill all statutory requirements prior to undertaking official duties. 



 3 
4891-2702-0501, v. 7 

8. Pursuant to Section·31-25-1213, C.R.S., Board of Directors of the BID shall have 
the power to issue indebtedness, and to levy and collect ad valorem taxes on and against all taxable 
commercial property within the boundaries of the BID in an amount authorized by election and 
allowed by the operating plan and budget to be approved by the City. The Board of Directors of 
the BID shall, in accordance with Sections 31-25-1214 and 39-5-128, C.R.S., certify the mill levy 
to the County Board of County Commissioners as appropriate. 

9. The Board of Directors of the BID shall have all other powers as may be necessary, 
convenient, and authorized by statute and as set forth in the operating plan and budget of the BID.  
Given the date of this Petition, the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget shall apply to the 
BID’s activities for the remainder of 2025 and for 2026.  If the BID amends the 2025 and 2026 
Operating Plan or either the 2025 Budget or 2026 Budget after City approval, the amendment must 
be approved by the City Council in substantially the same manner as the process for formulating 
the operating plan and budget for each year.  Beginning on September 30, 2026 (for use in 2027), 
an annual Operating Plan and Budget will be submitted to the City Council on or before September 
30th of each year, as provided in Section 31-25-1211, C.R.S. 

10. Petitioners respectfully request the City to organize the proposed BID. 

WHEREFORE, the undersigned Petitioners respectfully request the Honorable Councilors 
of the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield to: 

A. Organize the Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement District in 
accordance with Part 12, Article 25, Title 31, C.R.S., and other applicable statutes and laws 
of the State of Colorado; and  

B. Take all steps and procedures required by law for the organization of the 
BID, including adoption of an Ordinance declaring the BID organized. 

DATED: ___________, 2025. 

 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



WARNING: 

IT IS AGAINST THE LAW: 

FOR ANYONE TO SIGN THIS PETITION WITH ANY NAME OTHER THAN ONE’S 
OWN OR TO KNOWINGLY SIGN ONE’S NAME MORE THAN ONCE FOR THE 

SAME MEASURE OR TO KNOWINGLY SIGN THE PETITION WHEN NOT 
ELIGIBLE TO DO SO. 

DO NOT SIGN THIS PETITION UNLESS YOU ARE A PERSON WHO OWNS REAL 
OR PERSONAL PROPERTY IN THE SERVICE AREA OF THE PROPOSED 

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT. 

DO NOT SIGN THIS PETITION UNLESS YOU HAVE READ, OR HAVE HAD READ 
TO YOU, THE PETITION IN ITS ENTIRETY AND UNDERSTAND ITS MEANING. 

By signing this petition, I hereby certify that I, or the entity for which I have authority to 
sign, own(s) real or personal property within the proposed business improvement district: 

 
  NAME  ADDRESS 

(Street, Number, City and 
Zip Code) 

1.     
  Print Name   
     
  Signature   
     
2.     
  Print Name   
     
  Signature   
     

 
  



 5 
4891-2702-0501, v. 7 

3.     
  Print Name   
     
  Signature   
     
4.     
  Print Name   
     
  Signature   
     
5.     
  Print Name   
     
  Signature   
     



 6 
4891-2702-0501, v. 7 

STATE OF COLORADO )  
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ___________ )  

 
AFFIDAVIT 

I, __________________, being first duly sworn on oath, depose and state that: 

1. That I was a resident of the State of Colorado, a citizen of the United States, and at 
least eighteen (18) years of age at the time I circulated the Petition for Organization (the 
“Petition”) of the proposed Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement District (the “BID”); 

2. Each signature on the Petition was affixed in my presence, and that each signature 
thereon is the true, genuine, and correct signature of the person it purports to be; 

3. To the best of my knowledge and belief, each of the persons signing the Petition 
was, at the time of signing, an owner, or an authorized signatory on behalf of an entity that owns, 
taxable real or personal property within the boundaries of the BID; 

4. I have not paid and will not in the future pay, and to the best of my knowledge 
and belief, no other person has paid or will pay, directly or indirectly, any money or other thing 
of value to any signatory of the Petition for the purpose of inducing or causing the signatory to 
sign the Petition.  

5. I am one of the Petitioners named in the foregoing Petition; that I have read said 
Petition and know the contents thereof; and that the same is true to the best of my knowledge, 
information, and belief. 

 
Affiant 
 
 
 
Address 

 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____ day of ___________, 2025. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires:   
  
  
 Notary Public 
 
 



 A-1 
4891-2702-0501, v. 7 

EXHIBIT A 

LOT 2, BROOMFIELD TOWN SQUARE, FILING NO. 1, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT 
THEREOF RECORDED NOVEMBER 16, 2022 UNDER RECEPTION NO. 20220131184, 
CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, STATE OF COLORADO. 



 B-1 
4891-2702-0501, v. 7 

EXHIBIT B 

Map of the Boundaries and Service Area of the BID 



  
4891-2702-0501, v. 7 

EXHIBIT C 

Bond for Organization of the BID 

CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO 

BOND 

IN RE THE ORGANIZATION OF THE BROOMFIELD TOWN SQUARE BUSINESS 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT: 

Pursuant to Section 31-25-1205, C.R.S., the undersigned, on behalf of Petitioners, agrees to pay 
all expenses connected with these proceedings in the event the organization of Broomfield Town 
Square Business Improvement District is not effected. 

DATED: February ____, 2025.  

 

 
 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by __________ on this _____ day of February, 2025. 

Witness my hand and official seal. 

My commission expires:   
  
  
  
 Notary Public 
 

 

 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

B. Proposed Resolution for 2025 Waterline Replacement Construction Contract Award

Meeting

Tuesday, February 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7B.

Presented By

Ken Rutt, Director of Public Works

Community Goals

☑ Financial Sustainability and Resilience

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

 

Water distribution systems are large complex networks that represent the vast majority of the physical
infrastructure for water systems and serve as the final barrier against contamination from external or internal
sources such as microbial growth or corrosion within the system. Key reasons for replacing water distribution lines
include:  Deterioration and aging pipes, water quality issues, pressure fluctuations, cost effectiveness, and public
health protection.  The 2025 Waterline Replacement Project includes three main areas:  Westlake Community,
136th Avenue, and Lowell Blvd. & W 136th Avenue PRV.  If Proposed Resolution No. 2025-05 is approved,
construction would begin in late spring or early summer 2025 depending on the contractor's availability as included
in the bid documents and weather conditions.

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for 2025 Waterline Replacement Construction Contract Award.pdf
Resolution No. 2025-05.pdf
2025 Waterline Replacement Construction Agreement with Diamond Contraction Corp updated.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2FMemo%20for%202025%20Waterline%20Replacement%20Construction%20Contract%20Award.pdf?alt=media&token=79ca0f81-25ab-4c74-ba5a-3f008c0b2a08
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2FMemo%20for%202025%20Waterline%20Replacement%20Construction%20Contract%20Award.pdf?alt=media&token=79ca0f81-25ab-4c74-ba5a-3f008c0b2a08
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2FMemo%20for%202025%20Waterline%20Replacement%20Construction%20Contract%20Award.pdf?alt=media&token=79ca0f81-25ab-4c74-ba5a-3f008c0b2a08
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2FResolution%20No.%202025-05.pdf?alt=media&token=57ce3002-6965-4322-8b46-8c6f1f691a82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2FResolution%20No.%202025-05.pdf?alt=media&token=57ce3002-6965-4322-8b46-8c6f1f691a82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2FResolution%20No.%202025-05.pdf?alt=media&token=57ce3002-6965-4322-8b46-8c6f1f691a82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2F2025%20Waterline%20Replacement%20Construction%20Agreement%20with%20Diamond%20Contraction%20Corp%20updated.pdf?alt=media&token=8de47751-22a7-4443-a63c-57b4c8db1681
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2F2025%20Waterline%20Replacement%20Construction%20Agreement%20with%20Diamond%20Contraction%20Corp%20updated.pdf?alt=media&token=8de47751-22a7-4443-a63c-57b4c8db1681
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66df237fe8c4a1006294cd97%2F2025%20Waterline%20Replacement%20Construction%20Agreement%20with%20Diamond%20Contraction%20Corp%20updated.pdf?alt=media&token=8de47751-22a7-4443-a63c-57b4c8db1681


Memo for 2025 Waterline Replacement Construction Contract Award 

Prepared By:  Ken Rutt, Director of Public Works, Ronda Jo Ackerman Alford, CIP & Construction Superintendent, and 

Shawn DeSotel, Utilities Superintendent  

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Overview 
Water distribution systems are large complex networks that represent the vast majority of the physical 

infrastructure for water systems and serve as the final barrier against contamination from external or 

internal sources such as microbial growth or corrosion within the system.  

 

Municipal Water Distribution Systems have several essential components to include:  

● Pipes - Broomfield currently maintains 447 miles of transmission mains (larger lines) and distribution 

mains (smaller lines) ranging from 36-inch diameter to 8-inch diameter to bring treated water from 

the Water Treatment Facility to the consumers. 

● Storage tanks - help to ensure water is available to meet peak demands and maintain pressure during 

fluctuations in usage. 

● Pressure Reducing Valves (PRVs)- Broomfield maintains 81 PRVs and has 18 pressure zones. Pressure 

monitoring and management are integral to proper drinking water distribution system operations to 

include both minimum and maximum pressures under varying demand conditions.  The key functions 

of the PRVs are to lower water pressure from the main lines, ensuring a consistent and safe water 

pressure for homes and businesses, preventing leaks by regulating the pressure to a safe level, 

protecting plumbing fixtures and appliances, and conserving water by reducing unnecessary flow 

rates.   

● Valves - Broomfield maintains 14,869 valves. These valves are used to control the flow of water and 

isolate sections of water distribution pipes for maintenance or repairs. 

● Pumps - Due to the elevation difference throughout Broomfield, Broomfield has five water pump 

(booster) stations and 23 pumps to provide the necessary pressure to move water through the system 

between elevated areas. 

● Water meters - Broomfield has 22,943 active meters used to measure the usage of water and ensure 

accurate billing of usage by each consumer. 

● Service connections - are the connection between the main distribution line to each individual home, 

building, and user.  

● Fire hydrants - Broomfield maintains 4,415 fire hydrants that provide access points for firefighting 

purposes. 

 

Together the system delivers high-quality treated water from the Water Treatment Facility to Broomfield 

consumers with adequate pressure and flow rate.  

 

Key reasons for replacing water distribution lines include: 

 

● Deterioration and Aging - over time pipes can corrode, crack and weaken due to exposure to 

elements like water pressure, ground movement, freezing and thawing cycles that lead to leaks and 

breaks. 

● Water Quality Issues - damaged pipes can introduce contaminants like bacteria, sediment and other 

particles into the drinking water supplied to consumers. 

● Pressure Fluctuations - deteriorating pipes can cause inconsistent water pressure, impacting water 

flow and fire safety. Sudden starting or stopping of a pump, closing or opening a hydrant too quickly 

or sudden starting and stopping of water usage by a large customer also known as water hammer. For 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


 

every 1 ft per second in flow velocity change, the pressure within a water pipe can change by 43.3 

psi.  

● Cost Effectiveness - reducing emergency repairs and water loss due to leaks. Ensures a consistent 

supply of clean drinking water and minimizes disruptions to the consumer and operations of the 

water system.  

● Public Health Protection - maintaining a reliable and clean water distribution system is crucial for 

safeguarding public health.  

 

Project 
The 2025 Waterline Replacement Project includes three main areas. 

 

1. Westlake Community - Replace the 

existing 12-inch waterline with a 

new 12-inch waterline in Westlake 

Drive from S Princess Circle to Grove 

Way/W 134th Place. The total 

length of the waterline to be 

replaced is approximately 4,900 

feet. Additionally, three irrigation 

service taps, two fire hydrants and 

22 mainline valves will be replaced 

to ensure proper functionality and 

maintenance capabilities for the 

new waterline infrastructure. The 

12" waterline replacement is 

necessary due to a history of 

frequent water breaks and the 

failure of existing valves, which 

have proven inadequate for proper 

isolation. The current pipe and 

valves are original, dating back to 

1974, and are approximately 50 years old, which has contributed to their diminished reliability. The 

existing line is sized appropriately and was confirmed by Broomfield's existing water model. 

 

2. 136th Avenue - Rehabilitate the existing 20-inch waterline in 136th Avenue with 3,720 feet of  

16-inch line from Red Deer Trail to Lowell Blvd.  Staff worked with the engineering team who 

maintains Broomfield's water model to determine the appropriate size that would allow for a 

technique known as pipe bursting without diminishing the volume or water pressure in the vicinity. 

This technique allows the contractor to pull a new smaller-sized diameter pipe through the existing 

line. Due to the multiple underground infrastructures in 136th Avenue and the narrow/limited right 

of way through the Sunnyslope neighborhood, pipe bursting will minimize the impact to the road, 

reduce the overall work schedule in the area and reduce overall cost of the project.  

 

3. Lowell Blvd and W. 136th Avenue PRV - This project involves the rehabilitation of an existing PRV that 

has become obsolete due to failures and age. The current PRV, which is over 50 years old, is no 

longer supported with available replacement parts and has experienced multiple failures over time. 

As a result, the system needs to be upgraded to ensure continued functionality, reliability, and 

compliance with current standards. 

 

2 



 

An outside geotechnical testing firm will be contracted to complete geotechnical observations, inspections, 

and testing as required by Broomfield’s Standards and Specifications.  Construction will be overseen by 

Broomfield Utilities staff.      

 

These waterline replacements are the highest priority for replacement due to age, multiple water breaks, 

and effects on the distribution system in the event of a failure.   

 

Bidding Process 
The bid documents were published on September 30, 2024, and provided to the seven prequalified utility 

contractors specializing in water utility projects.  A pre-bid project meeting was held on October 8, 2024, 

and was attended by four firms. Two bids were received by the deadline on November 7, 2024.  Two of the 

firms who attended the pre bid meeting elected not to submit a bid due to workload and unavailability of 

crews.   

 

The lowest bid was submitted by Diamond Contracting Corporation (Diamond) in the amount of $2,972,331.   

 

In an effort to efficiently use the available funds, the low-bid contractor extended the original unit pricing 

in the bid to add the 132nd Court to Grove Way/W 134th Place in the amount of $788,318.  

  

The budget available for the 2025 Waterline Project is $4,100,000.   

 

Proposed resolution No 2025-05 would approve a construction agreement with Diamond Contracting 

Corporation in the amount of $3,760,655 for the 2025 Waterline Replacement Project and authorize the City 

and County Manager or a designee to approve change orders in an aggregate amount not to exceed $299,345 

for a total of $4,060,000.    

 

The remaining $40,000 is set aside for Geotechnical Inspections, Testing. 

 

If the agreement is approved, construction would begin in late spring or early summer 2025 depending on 

the contractor’s availability as included in the bid documents and weather conditions.  Construction is 

expected to be completed for both by fall 2025 with contract time of 160 calendar days.  If the construction 

agreement is approved, the contractor will begin procurement of materials and an exact start date will be 

determined.   

 

Public Notice  
● Postcard Notification - Residents will be notified of the upcoming construction two weeks prior to 

construction starting with postcard notifications to residents within 1000 ft of the project area.  

● Variable Message Boards - Variable message boards (VMB) will be placed in the vicinity of the project 

at least 1 week prior to the start of the project. 

● Webpage - The 2025 Waterline Project will be available as part of Broomfield’s Current CIP Projects 

page.   

 

All traffic control plans will be approved by Broomfield’s Traffic Engineer.  Due to the location of the 

existing waterlines within the street sections, detours, flagging, and minor street closures may be required. 

 

Financial Considerations 

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 

budgeted amount. 

 

3 



 

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

Fund 1 (20P0030, 40-70531-552000) Waterline Replacement 

136th Ave and Lowell Blvd -  

$1,800,000 

Fund 2 (0AZ001, 40-70531-552000) Waterline Replacements and 

Extensions (Westlake Drive) 

$2,300,000 

 

Proposed Agreement with Diamond Contracting Corporation -$3,760,655 

Construction Contingency (8%) -$299,345 

Geotechnical Inspections, Testing, etc -$40,000 

Projected Balance $0 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

Council authorized funds in the 2025 Budget for the annual waterline replacement program. 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to proceed with the project and approve the contract, the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-05 be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

Do not approve the contract, which would delay the needed work on the waterlines. Not approving the 

contract is not recommended by staff as these waterline replacements are the highest priority for 

replacement due to age, multiple water breaks, and effects on the distribution system in the event of a 

failure.  

4 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/19y486pNOPIucQm46czNvOMn2NViF0411/view


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-05 

A resolution approving the Construction Agreement by and between Broomfield and Diamond 

Contracting Corp, for the 2025 Waterline Replacement Project  

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The Construction Agreement by and between the City and County of Broomfield and Diamond 

Contracting Corp, in the amount of $3,760,655 for construction services for the 2025 

Waterline Replacement Project is approved. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem is authorized to sign and the office of the City and County Clerk 

to attest the Agreement, in form approved by the City and County Attorney.  

Section 3. 

The City and County Manager or a designee thereof is authorized to approve change orders in 

an aggregate amount not to exceed $299,345. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on February 25, 2025 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



A CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD  

AND DIAMOND CONTRACTION CORP FOR THE 2025 WATERLINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

  

1. PARTIES.  The parties to this Construction Agreement (this “Agreement”) are the City 

and County of Broomfield, a Colorado municipal corporation and county, (the “City”) 

and Diamond Contracting Corp (the “Contractor”), collectively, the “Parties,” or 

individually, a “Party.” 

2. RECITALS. The Recitals to this Agreement are incorporated herein by this 

reference as though fully set forth within the body of this Agreement. 

2.1. The City, seeking construction services for the 2025 Waterline Replacement 

Project completed a competitive selection process by Invitation to Bid (ITB) 

issued on September 30, 2024.  

2.2. The Contractor’s response to the above referenced ITB was determined to be of 

best value, responsible, responsive bidder to the City for the procurement of 

the services requested. 

2.3. The Parties therefore desire to enter into this Agreement for completion of the 

services further described herein. 

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of 

the Parties contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and 

adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

3.1. Work. The Contractor agrees to furnish all necessary labor, materials, 

equipment, tools, and services necessary to perform in a workmanlike manner 

the work (hereinafter “Work”) described in the Scope of Work attached hereto 

as Exhibit A and incorporated by this reference. 

3.2. Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents shall consist of the following:  

3.2.1. This Agreement; and 

3.2.2. The Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A;  

3.2.3. The Contractor’s Cost Proposal dated November 7, 2024, attached 

hereto as Exhibit B; and 

3.2.4. The Invitation to Bid; and 

3.2.5. The Construction Plans for the 136th Ave Reuse Line Project; and 

3.2.6. The Insurance Requirements attached hereto as Exhibit C, all of which are 

incorporated by reference as though set forth in full herein, whether or not 

attached hereto and shall form an integral part of this Contract.  If there is 

any conflict between this Agreement and the other Contract Documents, 

this Agreement shall control. 

3.3. Access and Inspection.  The City and its representatives shall at all times have 

access to the Work. The Contractor shall provide proper facilities for access to and 

 



 

for inspection of the Work for the purpose of determining compliance with this 

Agreement and quality of workmanship and material. All materials, equipment and 

supplies used in the performance of the Work shall be subject to adequate 

inspection and testing in accordance with generally accepted standards. The City 

Representative may order that portions of the Work be uncovered, exposed or 

made available for observation, inspection or testing at no additional cost. The 

Contractor shall provide all labor, tools, materials, equipment and supplies 

necessary to comply with the request of the City Representative. If any portion of 

the Work is determined to be defective, the Contractor shall bear all costs involved 

to bring the Work into compliance with the Agreement, including without 

limitation the cost to replace any materials, to re-perform or to reconstruct. The 

Contractor shall remove from the work site all work or materials rejected by the 

City for failure to comply with the Contract whether incorporated in the Work or 

not at no additional cost to the City. 

3.4. Site Clean-Up.  On a daily basis, the Contractor shall maintain the work site 

free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by performance of 

the Work. The Contractor shall remove all rubbish, tools, construction 

equipment, machinery, and surplus material from the work site. If the 

Contractor fails to maintain the work site in an appropriate condition, the City 

may, after notice to the Contractor, perform any necessary clean-up and charge 

the clean-up costs to the Contractor.  

3.5. Protection of Property.  All existing finishes, structures, utilities, services, 

roads, trees, shrubbery, etc. located on City property and adjacent property 

impacted by the Work shall be protected against damage or interrupted 

services at all times by the Contractor during the term of the Work.  The 

Contractor shall be responsible for repairing or replacing any and all property 

which is damaged by reason of the Contractor’s operation on the property to 

the satisfaction of the City within three (3) weeks of the notification of such 

damage, which may be extended with written approval of the City. 

3.6. Utilities. The Contractor shall fully comply with the provisions of Article 1.5 of 

Title 9 of the Colorado Revised Statutes including, but not limited to, providing 

notices to the notification association. Unless otherwise provided in the Scope 

of Work, the Contractor shall be responsible for communicating and 

coordinating with utilities, as necessary.  The Contractor shall cooperate with 

utilities and the City as provided in this Agreement and as required by law. The 

Contractor shall be responsible for determining the exact location of utilities 

that may interfere with construction of the Work by exploratory excavation 

sufficiently in advance of beginning construction in an area so that potential 

conflicts may be resolved. The Contractor will consider in the Contract Price all 

of the utility appurtenances within the project; and the Contractor shall not 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 1 



 

make a claim for delay or additional compensation due to any relocation 

operations by a utility.  

3.7. Documents on Site. The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the City one 

electronic or hard copy of all drawings, specifications, addenda, change orders 

and other modifications, in good order and marked currently to record all 

changes made during construction. At the City’s option, the referenced record 

drawings will be reviewed monthly by the City for acceptability. If, in the 

judgment of the City, the Contractor fails or refuses to keep these documents 

current, the Contractor shall not be entitled to progress payments until it 

makes the necessary changes to the documents to make them current. 

3.8. Differing Site Conditions. The Contractor acknowledges that it has satisfied 

itself as to the character, quality, and quantity of surface and subsurface 

materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is 

reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the site and review of the 

Contract Documents. 

3.8.1. Contractor shall give immediate written notice to the City 

Representative if it encounters a “Differing Site Condition,” defined as 

either: 

3.8.1.1. Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which differ 

materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents; or 

3.8.1.2. Unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual nature, 

which differ materially from those ordinarily encountered and 

generally recognized as inhering in work of the character 

provided for in this Agreement. 

3.8.2. Contractor acknowledges that no request for a change order or 

modification in Contract Price resulting from a Differing Site Condition 

shall be allowed unless immediate written notice is provided and the 

conditions remain undisturbed until the City has the opportunity to 

investigate 

4. Completion Date. Within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of executed Agreement, the 

Contractor shall provide the City acceptable bonds, if applicable, and certificates of 

insurance. A Notice to Proceed will be issued upon City approval of the bonding and 

insurance. The Contractor shall perform no Work until the City Representative issues a 

Notice to Proceed. 

The Contractor shall begin the Work on or before the fifth (5th) calendar day after 

receipt of the Notice to Proceed. The Notice to Proceed will stipulate the date on 

which the contract time count commences (the “Start Date”) which shall be no earlier 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 2 



 

than March 1, 2025, and no later than May 31, 2025.  The Contractor shall complete 

the Work and fulfill all of its other obligations within 160 (one hundred and sixty) 

calendar days of the Start Date (the “Completion Date”).  The time between the Start 

Date and the Completion Date shall be known as the “Contract Time.” 

All time limits are of the essence in this Agreement. The Contractor acknowledges that 

a notice to proceed will not be issued until the City has received acceptable 

certificates of insurance and bonds, if applicable. 

5. CONTRACTOR’S PROJECT SCHEDULE.  The Contractor shall submit a completion 

schedule for the Work (the “Project Schedule”) beginning with receipt of the signed 

Agreement and concluding with Project Completion prior to the commencement of the 

Work and shall coordinate on a daily basis with the City’s project manager. The Project 

Schedule shall include all lead time for the order and delivery of equipment for the 

Work. Schedule updating shall be done on a biweekly basis, or more often as necessary 

(each a “Schedule Update”). The revision shall indicate actual progress to date, 

changes resulting from change orders, and planned changes as necessary to complete 

the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. All costs associated with the 

development and maintenance of the Project Schedule shall be borne by the 

Contractor. Acceptance by the City of the Contractor’s Project Schedule does not 

relieve the Contractor of any of its responsibility whatsoever for the accuracy or 

feasibility of the Project Schedule, or of the Contractor’s ability to meet the Contract 

Time, nor does such acceptance expressly or impliedly warrant, acknowledge or admit 

the reasonableness of the activities, duration, or cost loading of the Contractor’s 

Project Schedule. 

6. UNUSUALLY SEVERE WEATHER CONDITIONS.  

6.1. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the Contractor and the 

City, that the Contract Time for the completion of the Work is a reasonable 

time, taking into consideration the climatic and economic conditions and other 

factors prevailing in the locality of the Work. The Contract Time anticipates 

“Normal” weather and climate conditions in and around the vicinity of the 

project site during the times of year that the construction will be carried out. 

Extensions of time based upon weather conditions shall be granted only if the 

Contractor demonstrates clearly that such conditions were “unusually severe,” 

would not have been reasonably anticipated, and that such conditions 

adversely affected the Contractor’s Work and thus required additional time to 

complete the Work. 

6.2. The following specifies the procedure for the determination of time extensions 

for unusually severe weather. The listing below defines the anticipated number 

of calendar days lost to adverse weather for each month and is based upon 

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) or similar data for 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 3 



 

the geographic location of the project. 
 

ANTICIPATED CALENDAR DAYS LOST TO ADVERSE WEATHER CONDITIONS: 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL 

7 5 4 3 3 2 2 2 2 3 3 7 43 day 

 

6.3. The above schedule of anticipated adverse weather will constitute the base 

line for monthly (or portion thereof) weather time evaluations. Upon 

acknowledgement of the notice to proceed and continuing throughout the 

Agreement on a monthly basis, actual adverse weather days and the impact of 

adverse weather days that delay the Work will be recorded on a day-to-day 

basis. It is assumed that the Work will be carried out Mondays through Fridays 

(holidays excepted); however, non-standard work hours will be required as 

specified in the Statement of Work and as shown on the Project Schedule. The 

number of calendar days of delayed Work due to adverse weather or the impact 

thereof will then be compared to the monthly adverse weather schedule above. 

6.4. An actual adverse weather day must prevent Work for 50 percent or more of 

the Contractor’s workday, delay Work critical to the timely completion of the 

Project, and be documented by the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the 

City Representative in writing if work cannot proceed on a given date, within 

two calendar days of that date. The City will use the above written notification 

in determining the number of calendar days for which Work was delayed during 

each month. 

6.5. At the end of each month if the number of calendar days for which Work was 

delayed due to adverse weather exceeds that shown in the above schedule a 

change order will be executed which increases the Contract Time.  

6.6. The Contractor’s Project Schedule must reflect the above-anticipated adverse 

weather delays on all weather-dependent activities. While extension of time 

shall be granted for “unusually severe” weather or climate conditions, or the 

impact thereof, the City shall make no monetary compensation for any costs to 

the Contractor arising out of such delays. The Contractor shall comply with the 

portions of the Contract Documents relating to its Project Schedule and 

amendments thereto which result from the “unusually severe” weather 

condition. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 4 



 

7.  PRICE AND PAYMENT. The City shall pay the Contractor for performance of the Work 

an amount not to exceed $3,760,655 (the “Contract Price”) based upon the unit prices 

set forth on Contractor’s Cost Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit B and in accordance 

with the following schedule:   
 

7.1. If the Contractor is satisfactorily performing the Agreement, the City shall 

make partial payments at the end of each calendar month or as soon thereafter 

as practicable of ninety-five percent (95%) of the Contract Price based on the 

calculated value of the Work completed (the “Partial Payments”) and shall 

retain five percent (5%) of the amount due to the Contractor (the “Retained 

Amount”) until the Work is complete.  If applicable, the Contractor shall make 

payments to its subcontractors in accordance with C.R.S. §24-91-103.  

 

7.2. The City shall retain the Retained Amount until Final Acceptance (as defined in 

Final Acceptance and Final Payment below).  If the Contractor has completed 

the Work in a manner finally acceptable to the City, the City may authorize 

final payment from the Retained Amount upon written request by invoice of 

the Contractor (the “Final Payment”).  Before the Final Payment is made, the 

City and the Contractor, as applicable, shall comply with the Final Acceptance 

and Payment paragraph of this Agreement. 

 

7.3. The Contractor shall, as soon as practicable after the end of each calendar 

month during performance of the Work, submit an itemized invoice for services 

performed, stating the percentage of the Work that has been completed and 

the type of services performed.  Each invoice will also include an Application 

and Certificate of Payment form (AIA Document G702) or equivalent form 

approved by the City. The Contractor shall prepare the invoices at its sole cost 

and shall include sufficient detail to enable the City to verify the 

appropriateness of the invoice. Each invoice shall be subject to review and 

approval by the City Representative. The City shall not be required to pay 

disputed items until the dispute is resolved.  Payment of any invoice shall not 

act as a waiver of the City’s right to recover in full any over-payment revealed 

by any subsequent audit or inspection.  No air travel, car rental, 

entertainment, education expense, meals or similar or related costs shall be 

payable without prior written approval of the City. Incorrect payments to the 

Contractor due to omission, error, fraud, or defalcation may be recovered from 

the Contractor by deduction from subsequent payments due the Contractor 

under this Contract or other contracts between City and Contractor. 

 

7.4. Change Orders. The Contractor will do nothing to cause the Contract Price to 

increase without prior execution of a change order by the City. The City will 

issue no change order requiring additional compensable work to be performed, 

which work causes the aggregate amount payable under this Agreement to 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 5 



 

exceed the amount appropriated for this Agreement. Except as provided below 

and as provided in C.R.S. 24-91-103.6, the City shall have no duty or obligation 

whatsoever to compensate or to reimburse the Contractor for any additional 

work not specifically authorized as provided herein. In the event (i) the City 

requires additional compensable work to be performed by the Contractor prior 

to the execution or other finalization of a change order or contract 

amendment, and (ii) the Contractor has submitted to the City an estimate of 

the cost for the additional compensable work, then the City shall reimburse the 

Contractor for the costs associated with such additional work on a periodic 

basis in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

8. FINAL INSPECTION AND FINAL PAYMENT.  

8.1. Final Inspection.  The Contractor shall notify the City when the Work is 

complete and ready for final inspection by means of a letter of completion (the 

“Letter of Completion”). Within ten (10) calendar days of the City’s receipt of 

the Letter of Completion, the City Representative shall make a final inspection 

to determine whether the Work has been completed in accordance with this 

Agreement and shall submit a written list of any defects to the Contractor (the 

“Punchlist”). The Contractor shall promptly correct all Punchlist items without 

additional cost to the City within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the 

Punchlist. If any Punchlist item cannot be corrected within ten (10) calendar 

days, the Contractor shall submit a letter to the City Representative for 

approval requesting an extension of time to complete such item (the “Request 

for Extension”). The Request for Extension must be received by the City 

Representative within seven (7) calendar days of the Contractor’s receipt of the 

Punchlist and shall include the Contractor’s justification for the request and a 

schedule for completion of the Punchlist item. The Contractor shall also deliver 

to the City, all statements to support state sales and use tax refunds and any 

as-built drawings. The Contractor shall provide the City with a letter of 

approval for contract closure from any surety furnishing bonds for the Work 

provided on AIA Form G707 (Consent of Surety Letter) or equivalent form.  

8.2. Final Payment.  Upon satisfactory completion of the Work, the City 

Representative will provide the Contractor with a written acceptance of the 

Work (the “Final Acceptance”).  Payment shall not be made until the City 

Representative has approved the payment and a notice of contractor’s 

settlement has been published in accordance with C.R.S. §38-26-107. The City 

shall condition publication and final settlement upon receipt of any duly 

executed approvals of the corporate surety or sureties issuing the bonds 

required hereunder. Such final settlement shall be advertised as provided by 

statute at least twice, the last publication appearing at least ten (10) days 

prior to the date of final settlement. On the date of final settlement (or such 

later date as may be permitted by statute if claims are asserted or litigation is 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 6 



 

commenced alleging nonpayment of funds due for labor, materials, supplies, 

etc.), payment and final settlement shall be made in full.  

9. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS.  In order to induce the City to enter into this 

Agreement, the Contractor makes the following representations: 

9.1. The Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the 

Agreement, Work, the locality, and with all local conditions and federal, state 

and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that in any manner may affect 

cost, progress or performance of the Work.  The Contractor acknowledges an 

obligation to comply with all applicable laws, including the Broomfield 

Municipal Code, to respect property rights by working within the defined work 

limits or designated staging areas, and to work within the prescribed work 

hours.  The Contractor acknowledges that use of air compression brakes ("jake 

brakes") within City limits is prohibited, unless otherwise posted by the City 

Traffic Engineer. 

9.2. Before submitting a proposal, the Contractor has become fully informed 

regarding the Work and any materials or equipment required, including the 

amount or quantity thereof. No adjustment or modification shall be allowed for 

any misunderstanding of the Work or of equipment or material requirements, or 

of the provisions contained in this Contract and in the other Contract 

Documents.  

9.3. Contractor has given the City written notice of any conflicts, errors or 

discrepancies that he has discovered in the Agreement and exhibits 

incorporated therein and the written resolution thereof by the City is 

acceptable to the Contractor. 

10. NOTICE AND AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. Any notice required or permitted by this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given for all purposes if sent by 

email to the authorized representative identified below.  Such notice shall be deemed 

to have been given when the email was sent and received. The City may change its 

representative at any time by notice to the Contractor.  The Contractor shall not 

replace the Contractor Representative unless:  (a) the City requests a replacement, or 

(b) the Contractor terminates the employment of the Contractor Representative and 

provides a satisfactory substitute.  The City must approve a substitute Contractor 

Representative, and, if no substitute is acceptable, the City may terminate this 

Agreement. The Parties each designate an authorized representative as follows: 

5.1  The City designates the CIP & Construction Superintendent as the authorized 

representative of the City under this Agreement.  Email address is 

ralford@broomfield.org. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 7 



 

5.2 The Contractor designates Shane Hoerig as the authorized representative of the 

Contractor under this Agreement.  Email address is shoerig.dcc@gmail.com. 
 
If the Contractor is alleging that the City is in breach of this Agreement or has violated 

any term of this Agreement, Legal Notice shall be made by making the notice above 

with a copy to citycountyattorney@broomfield.org.  
 
Failure of City’s on-site representative to call to the attention of the Contractor any 

defective work or deviations from the Contract Documents shall not constitute 

acceptance of such work by the City or relieve the Contractor of its obligation to 

perform the Work in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. 

11. TIME EXTENSIONS AND COMPENSATION FOR DELAY. 

11.1. Remedy. If the Contractor is delayed or disrupted in the performance of the 

Work, the Contractor’s exclusive remedy with respect to such delay or 

disruption shall be as stated in this Section. 

11.2. Time Extensions. Evaluation of all time extension requests shall be based upon 

the latest updated project schedule submitted to the City by the Contractor. 

11.3. Definitions. The following words shall have the meaning set forth below: 

11.3.1. “Contractor Delay” is defined as delay on a particular date resulting 

from acts or omissions within the control of the Contractor or its 

subcontractors, agents or suppliers, including any delay within their 

joint control. 

11.3.2. “No-Fault Delay” is defined as delay on a particular date resulting from 

events beyond the reasonable control of and without the fault or 

negligence of either the Contractor or the City or their agents, 

employees, contractors, subcontractors, sub-subcontractors or 

suppliers. 

11.3.3. “Owner Delay” is defined as delay on a particular date resulting from 

acts or omissions within the control of the City, its agents, employees or 

contractors, including the City’s Representative. 

11.3.4. “Concurrent Delay” is defined as the occurrence on a particular date of 

one or more instances of Owner Delay and Contractor Delay, Owner 

Delay and No-Fault Delay or Contractor Delay and No-Fault Delay. 

11.4. Completion Date Adjustment. An adjustment in the Completion Date for delay 

on a particular date shall be made under this subparagraph if any delay on such 

date is classified as either Owner, No-Fault or Concurrent Delay. The 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 8 

mailto:cityandcountyattorney@broomfield.org


 

adjustment in the Completion Date shall only be in proportion to the amount of 

the delay, which is attributable to Owner, or No-Fault Delay. No adjustment in 

the Completion Date shall be allowed for the portion of the delay that is 

attributable to Contractor Delay, including but not limited to, that portion of a 

Concurrent Delay which includes Contractor Delay. 

11.5. Price Adjustment. An adjustment in the Contract Price for delay on a particular 

date shall be made under this subparagraph only if such delay is classified as 

either Owner Delay or Concurrent Delay when such Concurrent Delay includes 

Owner Delay. The adjustment in the Contract Price shall only be in proportion 

to the portion of the delay costs, which is directly attributable to Owner Delay. 

No adjustment in the Contract Price shall be made for the portion of the delay 

costs, which is attributable to Contractor Delay, or No-Fault Delay, or that 

portion of a Concurrent Delay which includes Contractor Delay or No-Fault 

Delay or both. 

11.6. Mitigation. An adjustment in Contract Price shall be made under this 

subparagraph only to the extent to which the Contractor can demonstrate that 

its time-related costs to complete the Work will be increased. The Contractor 

expressly acknowledges its obligation to minimize the cost impact of 

compensable delays. The Contractor shall, to the best of its ability, re-assign 

labor and equipment, commence unaffected portions of the Work, and 

otherwise minimize delay costs. In no event shall the City be liable for payment 

of delay costs, which could have been avoided or mitigated by any means 

reasonably available to the Contractor or for consequential damages. 

11.7. Notification of Delay and Recovery. The Contractor shall notify the City as soon 

as practicable regarding the nature and starting date of a delay, and the 

activities affected, but in no case later than seven (7) calendar days after the 

event giving rise to the delay. In the case of a continuing delay, only one 

notification shall be necessary. Any claim for an extension of time for delay 

shall be made in writing to the City not more than ten (10) calendar days after 

the end of the delay; otherwise, such claim shall be waived. Recovery of delay 

costs shall be waived unless a request for a change order for delay costs is 

submitted within ten (10) calendar days after the end of the delay period. The 

Contractor must also provide a cost and time impact analysis with any request 

for a change order for delay costs. The cost impact analysis shall contain all 

direct and indirect labor costs, all material and equipment expenses, any and 

all documented impact costs related to, and/or occasioned by the Work 

described therein, as well as all taxes (if applicable under the provisions of this 

Contract), insurance and profit. Documentation supporting this cost impact 

analysis must be submitted at the time of the request for change order for 

delay costs. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 9 



 

12. DEFAULT AND DAMAGES. If the Contractor fails to comply with any provision of this 

Agreement, the Contractor shall be liable for any and all damages, including without 

limitation, the cost of procuring similar supplies and services and all other costs and 

expenses incurred by the City because of such failure. If the Contractor fails or refuses 

to perform the Work on schedule, or to complete the Work in a timely and satisfactory 

manner, the City may terminate this Contract and the Contractor’s right to proceed 

hereunder. If the City terminates this Contract under this paragraph, the Contractor 

may, at the option of the City, be required to cease any or all Work provided for under 

this Contract and shall be liable for any additional cost to the City for services 

acceptable to the City from another contractor as well as any actual damages 

associated with such failure to perform. The cost to complete the Work or any portion 

thereof which remains unperformed at the time of such termination, together with 

any other damages, shall be deducted from any sum payable hereunder before final 

payment to the Contractor.  

13. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Time is of the essence in completing the Work.  Alternatively, 

and in lieu of actual damages for delay, in the event of delay in the completion of the 

Work as specified beyond the Completion Date, it would be difficult to determine the 

exact amount of the loss or damages suffered by the City due to delays in completion 

of the Work. However, the City has attempted to forecast a reasonable daily amount as 

compensation for the damages incurred due to late completion caused by the 

Contractor, based upon considerations which include, but are not limited to, public 

inconvenience and additional contract administration costs.  Therefore, the Contractor 

will be liable to the City, as liquidated damages (and not as a penalty), in the amount 

of $500 for each and every calendar day beyond the Completion Date.  The City 

reserves the right to deduct said liquidated damages from any amount due the 

Contractor under this Agreement or, at its option, to collect such liquidated damages 

directly from the Contractor or its surety. 

14. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS. In accordance with C.R.S. §38-26-105, if the 

Contract Price exceeds $50,000, the Contractor shall furnish at its expense a separate 

performance bond and labor and materials bond, each for an amount not less than one 

hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price. The bonds shall be issued by a qualified 

corporate surety licensed to transact business in Colorado. If at any time during 

performance of the Work the surety on the bonds shall be disqualified from doing 

business in Colorado, or shall become insolvent or otherwise impaired, the Contractor 

shall furnish bonds from an alternate surety acceptable to the City. The bonds shall 

remain in effect through Final Acceptance, and continuing in effect through 

completion of all warranty and guaranty work and shall be delivered to the City prior 

to the commencement of the Work. The Contractor shall secure an increase in the 

bonds in an amount equal to the cost of any additional work authorized pursuant to a 

duly executed change order or contract amendment. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 10 



 

15. COLORADO LABOR. If the Contract Price exceed $500,000, the Contractor shall employ 

not less than eighty percent of Colorado labor of each type or class of labor in the 

several classifications of skilled and common labor to perform the work under this 

Agreement in accordance with the provisions of C.R.S. §8-17-101 et seq.  

16. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Contractor is an independent contractor as 

provided in C.R.S. § 8-40-202(2). The Contractor is not entitled to workers' 

compensation benefits and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state 

income tax on monies earned pursuant to this Agreement. 

17. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor expressly agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 

harmless the City, its officers, employees and insurers from and against all claims, 

damages, losses, expenses and demands, including court costs, attorney’s fees and 

expenses, due to injuries, losses or damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any 

manner connected with the Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors or 

agents in connection with the performance of the services pursuant to this Agreement. 

Except for workers’ compensation, disability benefits or other similar employee 

benefit claims, Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the City hereunder for that 

portion of any claims, damages, losses, demands, and expenses arising out of or 

resulting from any negligent act or omission of the City, or its agents and employees.  

This indemnification is intended to comply with and be subject to C.R.S. 

13-50.5-102(8), as amended from time to time. In the event that any such suit or 

action is brought against the City, the City will give timely notice thereof to the other 

Party.  

18. INSURANCE.  To assure the City that the Contractor is always capable of fulfilling 

specified indemnification obligations, the Contractor shall purchase and maintain 

insurance of the kind and in the amounts required by the City, from an insurer with an 

AM Best FSR rating of A- or higher as more particularly set forth on Exhibit B.  Current 

proof of such insurance is attached at Exhibit B, incorporated by this reference. 

However, proof of insurance attached as Exhibit B shall not be deemed to limit or 

define obligations of Contractor as provided elsewhere in this Agreement, and 

Contractor should rely on its expertise to obtain additional insurance coverage needed 

for the City and Contractor in its performance hereunder. 

19. APPROVAL OF SUBCONTRACTORS AND CONSULTANTS.  The Contractor shall not employ 

any subcontractors or consultants without the prior written approval of the City 

Representative.  Prior to commencing any work, each subcontractor or consultant shall 

provide the appropriate insurance as required for the Contractor under this 

Agreement.  The Contractor shall be responsible for coordination of the work and the 

acts and omissions of its agents, employees, subcontractors, consultants and suppliers, 

and shall bind each to the terms of this Agreement so far as are applicable.  This 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 11 



 

Agreement is voidable by the City if subcontracted by the Contractor without the 

express written consent of the City. 

20. WARRANTY.  

20.1. Warranty Period. The Contractor warrants that it will perform the Work in a 

timely, accurate and complete manner in accordance with the provisions of this 

Agreement. The Contractor warrants that the materials and/or workmanship 

will conform to the Contract Documents and that the materials used will be of 

good quality and new and that the Work shall be free from defects. The 

Contractor shall guarantee the Work against defects in workmanship and 

materials for a period of 2 years, commencing on the date of final acceptance 

of the Work by the City Representative (the “Warranty Period”). The Contractor 

shall also assign to the City any longer term guarantee of materials used by the 

Contractor as may be provided by the manufacturer. The Contractor shall 

promptly replace any materials or re-perform any portion of the Work found to 

be defective within the Warranty Period in accordance with this Agreement and 

without expense to the City. The time allowed for such corrective action shall 

be mutually agreed upon by the City and the Contractor. If the Contractor fails 

to proceed promptly in accordance with these guarantees, the City reserves 

the right to place the Contractor in default of its contractual obligations and 

may have the Work performed at the expense of the Contractor. This provision 

shall survive the completion of the Work and the termination of this 

Agreement. The above guarantee does not limit any claims that the City may 

otherwise have against the Contractor. 

20.2. Warranty Verification. At least 60 calendar days prior to the expiration of the 

Warranty Period, the City Representative shall have the option to make an 

inspection to determine whether the Work has been completed in accordance 

with this Agreement and may submit a written list of any defects to the 

Contractor (the “Warranty Work”). In the event the City chooses this option, 

the Contractor shall promptly correct all Warranty Work without additional cost 

to the City within the Warranty Period. If any Warranty Work cannot be 

corrected within the Warranty Period, the Contractor shall submit a letter to 

the City Representative for approval requesting an extension of time to 

complete such item (the “Request for Extension of Warranty Work”). The 

Request for Extension of Warranty Work must be received by the City 

Representative within seven calendar days of the Contractor’s receipt of the 

Warranty Work and shall include the Contractor’s justification for the request 

and a schedule for completion of the Warranty. 

21. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is intended to describe the rights and 

responsibilities only as to the parties hereto.  This Agreement is not intended and shall 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 12 



 

not be deemed to confer any rights on any person or entity not named as a party 

hereto. 

22. FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY.  All financial obligations of the City under this 

Agreement are subject to appropriation, budgeting, and availability of funds to 

discharge such obligations.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to pledge the 

City’s credit or faith, directly or indirectly, to the Contractor. If funds for this 

Agreement are not appropriated and budgeted in any year subsequent to the fiscal 

year of execution of this Agreement as determined by the City, this Agreement may be 

terminated by the City upon written notice to the Contractor.  The City’s fiscal year is 

currently the calendar year. 

23. EXHIBITS.  All exhibits referred to in this Agreement are by reference incorporated 

herein for all purposes. 

24. INTEGRATION AND AMENDMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement 

between the Parties and there are no oral or collateral agreements or understandings.  

This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing signed by the 

Parties. For purposes of clarity, the terms and conditions of any Contractor invoice, 

Contractor timesheet, or other form, including but not limited to indemnification, 

limitation of liability, or cancellation fees, shall be void and of no effect against the 

City notwithstanding any signatures on such form by a City employee.  The 

Contractor’s rights and obligations shall be solely governed by the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement.  

25. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this agreement as applied to either Party or to any 

circumstance shall be adjudged by a court to be void or unenforceable, the same shall 

in no way affect any other provision of this Agreement, the application of any such 

provision in any other circumstances, or the validity or enforceability of the 

Agreement as a whole. 

26. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS OR ACTION. The parties agree to execute any additional 

documents or take any additional action that is necessary to carry out this Agreement. 

27. MINOR CHANGES. The Parties executing this Agreement are authorized to make 

nonsubstantive corrections to this Agreement and attached exhibits, if any, as they 

consider necessary. 

28. DOCUMENTS.  All drawings, analyses, plans, tests, maps, surveys, electronic files and 

written material of any kind generated in the performance of this Agreement or 

developed specifically for work performed under this Agreement shall remain the sole 

and exclusive property of the City, and the other Party shall not provide copies of any 

such material to anyone without the express written consent of the City. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 13 



 

29. RECORDS RETENTION.  The Contractor shall maintain complete and accurate records of 

time spent and materials used for performance of the Work, together with any 

invoices, time cards, or other supporting data reasonably requested.  All records, data 

and documentation shall be retained by the Contractor for a period of not less than 

three (3) years after completion of the Work, and shall be subject to review, 

inspection and copying by the CIty upon reasonable notice.  

30. OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT.  No elected or employed member of City government shall 

directly or indirectly be paid or receive any share or part of this Agreement or any 

benefit that may arise therefrom.  The Contractor warrants that it has not retained 

any entity or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the 

Contractor, to solicit or secure this Agreement.  

31. SALES TAX EXEMPTION.  The Contractor and its subcontractors, consultants and 

suppliers will not be required to pay Colorado state sales and use taxes on property 

incorporated into the Work.  The Contractor shall obtain a sales tax exemption permit 

from the State of Colorado Department of Revenue, if necessary, to obtain materials 

for the Work without the payment of Colorado state sales tax.  

32. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party without the prior 

written consent of the other Party. 

33. BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 

parties and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns, 

provided that nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to permit the assignment of 

this Agreement except as otherwise expressly authorized herein. 

34. DAYS. If the day for any performance or event provided for herein is a Saturday, a 

Sunday, a day on which national banks are not open for the regular transactions of 

business, or a legal holiday pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-11-101(1), such day shall be 

extended until the next day on which such banks and state offices are open for the 

transaction of business. 

35. NO PRESUMPTION. The Parties to this Agreement and their attorneys have had a full 

opportunity to review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this 

Agreement.  Accordingly, this Agreement shall be construed without regard to any 

presumption or other rule of construction against the Party causing the Agreement to 

be drafted. 

36. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES.  In the performance of this Agreement or in considering any 

requested approval, acceptance, or extension of time, the Parties agree that each will 

act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or 

unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, or extension of 

time required or requested pursuant to this Agreement. 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 14 



 

37. WAIVER OF BREACH. This Agreement or any of its provisions may not be waived except 

in writing by a Party’s authorized representative. A waiver by any party to this 

Agreement of the breach of any term or provision of this Agreement shall not operate 

or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by either party. 

38. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Colorado.  Any claims or litigation arising under this Agreement will be brought by the 

Parties solely in the District Court, Broomfield County, Colorado. 

39. LAWS TO BE OBSERVED.  The Contractor shall be cognizant of all federal and state laws 

and local ordinances and regulations that in any manner affect those engaged or 

employed in the work or which in any manner affect the conduct of the work, and of 

all such orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority 

over the same, and shall at all times observe and comply with all such existing laws, 

ordinances, regulations and decrees, and shall protect and indemnify the City against 

any claim or liability arising from or based on the violations of any such law, 

ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether by itself, its subcontractors, agents or 

employees. The Contractor shall procure all necessary approvals, licenses and permits 

at its own expense; provided, that, the Contractor will be able to receive no cost 

permits when such permits are issued by the City directly. 

40. TERMINATION.  The City reserves the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in 

part, with or without cause by written notice to the Contractor. In the event of 

termination, the Contractor shall incur no additional expenses and shall perform no 

further Work for the City under this Agreement after the date of receipt of the notice 

of termination, unless otherwise specified by the City. The City shall pay the 

Contractor for all work satisfactorily performed prior to receipt of the notice of 

termination and for other services required by the City to be completed prior to 

termination and satisfactorily performed. 

41. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Parties 

understand and agree that all terms and conditions of this Agreement that require 

continued performance or compliance beyond the termination or expiration of this 

Agreement, including without limitation the indemnification provision, shall survive 

such termination or expiration and shall be enforceable against a Party if such Party 

fails to perform or comply with such term or condition. 

42. DIGITAL ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS.  In 2021, the State of Colorado adopted HB21-1110 

relating to the digital accessibility standards required to be implemented under the 

Colorado Anti-Discrimination Act which makes it unlawful to discriminate against 

individuals with a disability. In order to comply with the law on or before July 1, 2024, 

the Contractor shall ensure that all digital deliverables and digital technology provided 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall comply with at least the Web Content 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 15 



 

Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.1 Level AA, or such updated standard as the 

Colorado Governor’s Office of Information Technology may adopt from time-to-time.   

43. EXECUTION; ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be executed in 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall 

constitute but one and the same instrument. This Agreement shall not be binding upon 

any Party hereto unless and until the Parties have executed this Agreement. The 

Parties approve the use of electronic signatures for execution of this Agreement. All 

documents must be properly notarized, if applicable.   

 

 

 

 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.] 

 

 

 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 16 



 

  This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto in their respective names as of 

___________________, 20_____. 

 

 

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 

a Colorado municipal corporation and county 

  

  

_________________________________ 

City and County Manager 

One DesCombes Drive 

Broomfield, CO  80020 

 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

  

  

  

_________________________________ 

City and County Attorney’s Office 

  

 

 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 17 





 

EXHIBIT A  

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 19 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 20 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 21 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 22 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 23 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 24 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 25 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 26 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 27 



 

EXHIBIT B 

BID TABULATION 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 28 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 29 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 30 



 

 
 
 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 31 



 

EXHIBIT C 

REVISED BID TABULATION AND SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 32 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 33 



 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 34 



 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 35 



 

EXHIBIT D  

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

 

Construction Asset Replacement 

                                                                                                                                                                                      Updated 4/16/2023 

 
Page 36 


	CityCouncilRegularMeeting-2025-02-26
	Item 5A. 
	Semi-Annual Performance and Internal Audit Update Council Memo
	Attachment 1 - 2025 Project Plan & Attachment 2 - PIA Status Update
	Item 6A. 
	Minutes of February 11, 2025
	Item 6B. 
	Council Memo ADA Curb Ramp Program Construction Agreement
	Resolution 2025-39
	Standard Construction Agreement - Denver Dirt Works
	Item 6C. 
	Memo for Resolution 25-25 and 25-57 Accepting and allocating $2M in grant funding from DOLA_Energy and Mineral Impact Grant for Harvest Hill Development
	Resolution 2025-25 Accepting Mineral Impact Grant Funds and allocating the funds to the Harvest Hill Development 
	Resolution 2025-57 Loan Agreement to Harvest Hill for Mineral Impact Grant Funds 2-25-2025
	Ulysses Harvest Hill – DOLA Loan Agreement FINAL 2-25-2025
	EIAF 10008 MHN AWARD - City and County of Broomfield (5)
	Item 6D. 
	NEW Construction Council Memo
	Resolution 2025-46
	Resolution 2025-47
	Resolution 2025-48
	Construction Agreement - 112th and Uptown Avenue Improvements 2024 - Google Docs
	112th Consulting Agreement - CM FHU - Google Docs
	FHU Amendment for CA 112th No 4 -FHU Signed 012825
	112th & Uptown Complete Streets Typical Sections
	112th & Uptown Plan Sheets
	Item 6E. 
	Memo for Norm Smith Remodel
	Resolution 2025-18 Amendment 2
	Resolution 2025-50 CO2
	Consulting Amendment #2 - SEH Norm Smith Remodel - Signed
	NSSC Remodel - AD Miller - Amendment 01 - SIGNED
	Item 6F. 
	Memo for Honey Bucket and Aspen Waste Systems of Colorado Inc 
	Resolution No. 2025-43 - Approval of trash, rubbish and garbage hauling license for Northwest Cascade Inc. DBA Honey Bucket
	Item 6G. 
	BOE Memo for Action on Abatement Petitions - Denials - 2.25.25
	Resolution 2025-38-BOE - Action on Abatement Petitions - 2.25.2025
	Item 6H. 
	Memo for Almost Home Amendment 3 2025 2025-2-25
	Resolution 2025-51 Approving a Third Amendment with Almost Home Inc
	Almost Home Amendment 3 2025 (SWAP)
	Item 7A. 
	Memo - Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 1st Reading 2-25-2024
	Ordinance No. 2263 Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 
	BTS -- Operating Plan and Budget BID FINAL 2-25-2025
	BTS -- Petition to form BID DRAFT 2-14-2025
	Item 7B. 
	Memo for 2025 Waterline Replacement Construction Contract Award
	Resolution No. 2025-05
	2025 Waterline Replacement Construction Agreement with Diamond Contraction Corp updated

		2025-02-05T11:16:45-0700
	Brian Schrameyer




